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Ms. Ann Cole, Commission Clerk 
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Your assistance in this matter is greatly appreciated. If you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Beth Keating v 
AKERMAN SENTERFITT 
106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, FL 32302-1 877 
Phone: (850) 224-9634 
Fax: (850) 222-0103 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Application by Chesapeake Utilities ) 
Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common ) 
Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured andlor ) 
Unsecured Debt, and to Enter into Agreements ) 
For Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity ) 
Products and Other Financial Derivatives and to ) 
Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term ) 
Borrowings in 2008 ) 

APPLICATION BY CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK AND 

SECURED AND/OR UNSECURED DEBT, AND TO ENTER INTO 
AGREEMENTS FOR INTEREST RATE SWAP PRODUCTS, EQUITY 

PRODUCTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES, AND TO EXCEED 
LIMITATION PLACED ON SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS IN 2008 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (Chesapeake, the Company or Applicant) respectfully 

files this Application, pursuant to Section 366.04 (I), Florida Statutes, seeking authority 

in 2008 to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock; up to 1 ,000,000 

shares of Chesapeake preferred stock; up to $80,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured 

debt; to enter into agreements for up to $40,000,000 in Interest Rate Swap Products, 

Equity Products and other Financial Derivatives; and to obtain authorization to exceed 

the limitation placed on short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, so as 

to issue short-term obligations in 2008, in an amount not to exceed $70,000,000. 

1. Name and principal business offices of Applicant: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
P.O. Box 615 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Florida Division 
1501 Sixth Street, NW 
Winter Haven, Florida 33881 



2. Incorporated: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation - Incorporated under the laws of the state 

of Delaware on November 12, 1947 and qualified to do business in Florida, 

Maryland, and Pennsylvania 

3. Person authorized to receive notices and communications in this respect: 

Beth Keating, Esquire 
Akerman Senterfitt 
Suite 1200 
106 East College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

(850) 222-01 03 (Fax) 
(850) 224-9634 

Attorneys for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

4. Capital Stock and Funded Debt 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in the Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue common stock as follows: 

a) Common stock having a par value of $0.4867 per share. 

b) Amount authorized: 12,000,000 shares. 

c) Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2007: 6,743,136 

d) Amount held in Treasury: 0 shares. 

e) Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

9 Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

g) Amount held in any fund: None. 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in its Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue preferred stock as follows: 

a) Preferred stock having a par value of $0.01 per share. 

b) Amount authorized: 2,000,000 shares. 

c) Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2007: 0 shares. 

d) Amount held in Treasury: None. 
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e) Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

9 Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

g) Amount held in any fund: None. 

The funded indebtedness by class and series are as follows: 

(a ) l  8.25% Convertible Debentures due March 1, 2014 are convertible 

prior to maturity, unless previously redeemed, into shares of common 

stock of Chesapeake at a conversion price of $17.01 per share. 

Interest on the Debentures is payable on the first day of March and 

September, commencing September 1, 1989. The Debentures are 

redeemable at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest (i) 

on March 1 in any year, commencing in 1991, at the option of the 

holder and (ii) at any time within 60 days after request on behalf of a 

deceased holder. At Chesapeake’s option, beginning March 1, 1990, 

the Debentures may be redeemed in whole or in part at redemption 

prices declining from 107.25%, plus accrued interest. No sinking fund 

will be established to redeem the Debentures. As of June 30, 2007, 

there is a remaining balance of $1,905,000 on this issue. 

7.97% Unsecured Senior Notes due February 1, 2008, and issued on 

February 9, 1993 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing 

interest payable semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest 

only prior to February I, 1999; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance, over ten (IO) years at the 

rate of $1,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2007, there is a 

remaining balance of $1,000,000 on this issue. 

6.91% Unsecured Senior Notes due October 1, 2010, and issued on 

October 2, 1995 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing 

(a)2 

(a)3 
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interest payable quarterly with provisions for payment of interest only 

prior to October 1, 2000; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance, over eleven (11) years at 

the rate of $909,091 per annum. As of June 30, 2007 there is a 

remaining balance of $3,636,364 on this issue. 

6.85% Unsecured Senior Notes due January 1, 2012 and issued on 

December 15, 1997 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing 

interest payable semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest 

only prior to January 1, 2003; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance, over ten (IO) years at the 

rate of $1,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2007, there is a 

remaining balance of $5,000,000 on this issue. 

7.83% Unsecured Senior Notes due January 1, 2015 and issued on 

December 29, 2000 in the principal amount of $20,000,000 bearing 

interest payable semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest 

only prior to January 1, 2006; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance, over ten ( I O )  years at the 

rate of $2,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2007, there is a 

remaining balance of $1 6,000,000 on this issue. 

6.64% Unsecured Senior Notes due October 31, 201 7 and issued on 

October 31, 2002 in the principal amount of $30,000,000 bearing 

interest payable semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest 

only prior to October 31, 2007; thereafter, principal shall be payable, 

in addition to interest on the unpaid balance, over eleven (1 1) years at 

the rate of $2,727,272 per annum. As of June 30, 2007, there is a 

remaining balance of $30,000,000 on this issue. 

(a)4 

(a)5 

(a)6 
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(a)7 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes due October 12, 2020 and issued on 

October 12, 2006 in the principal amount of $20,000,000 bearing 

interest payable quarterly with provisions for payment of interest only 

prior to October 12, 2011; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance, for ten (IO) years at the 

rate of $2,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2007 there is a 

remaining balance of $20,000,000 on this issue. On September 6, 

2005, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 

6708 approving the issuance of up to $20,000,000 of Chesapeake’s 

5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes. A copy of the Order and a copy of 

the Agreement in Principle with Prudential Investment Management, 

LLC have been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit C of the 

Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to 

Issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or 

Unsecured Debt and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term 

Borrowings in 2006, Docket No. 050630-GU, dated September 21, 

2005, and are hereby incorporated by reference. A copy of the 

$20,000,000 Note Agreement for the 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes 

has been filed with the FPSC within Exhibit C of the Application by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common 

Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2007, Docket 

No. 060728-GU, dated December 26, 2006, and is hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

(b) The amounts authorized are set forth above. 

(c) The amounts outstanding at June 30, 2007 are set forth above. 
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(d) Amount held as reacquired securities: None. 

(e) Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

(9 Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

(9) Amount in Sinking Fund or other funds: None. 

(h) Additional information: 

(h)l As of the filing date, the Company had two unsecured, committed 

bank lines of credit in the amounts of $5,000,000 and $10,000,000; and 

two unsecured, uncommitted bank lines of credit in the amounts of 

$35,000,000 and $30,000,000. For the $30,000,000 unsecured, 

uncommitted line of credit, $5,000,000 of the total line can be used to 

guarantee letters of credit issued by Chesapeake or one of its 

subsidiaries for up to 364 days. As of June 30, 2007, the total short-term 

borrowing outstanding under the bank lines of credit was $21,500,000. 

5. Authorizations Requested 

Chesapeake requests authorization from the FPSC to issue up to 793,223 

new shares of its common stock during 2008 for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, 

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, conversion of the 

Company’s Convertible Debentures, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and 

Employee Stock Awards Plan. The share breakdown for each specific 

purpose is as follows: 

Number 
of Shares 

61,830 
Purpose 
Issuance pursuant to the Company’s 
Retirement Savings Plan. 

200.000 Issuance under the terms of the 
Company’s Performance Incentive Plan. 
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400,000 

11 1,993 

14,400 

5,000 

Issuance pursuant to the Company’s 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase 
Plan. 

Issuance under the terms of the Company’s 
outstanding 8 %% Convertible Debentures. 

Issuance pursuant to the Company’s 
Directors Stock Compensation Plan. 

Issuance under the terms of the Company’s 
Employee Stock Awards Plan. 

In addition, Chesapeake is requesting FPSC authorization to issue up to 

800,000 shares of Chesapeake stock or an equity-linked instrument 

equivalent in value in 2008 to permanently finance Chesapeake’s ongoing 

capital expenditure program. The capital expenditure program is subject to 

continuous review and modification and is funded from short-term borrowings 

and cash provided by operating activities. The Company, in an effort to 

manage its capital structure, may from time to time, permanently finance its 

short-term borrowings through the issuance of common stock or an equity- 

linked instrument, as opposed to long-term debt. 

Chesapeake requests FPSC authorization to issue up to $40,000,000 in 

secured an/or unsecured debt during 2008 for general corporate purposes 

including, but not limited to, working capital, retirement of short-term debt, 

retirement of long-term debt and capital improvements. 

Chesapeake is also requesting FPSC authorization during 2008 to issue 

up to 3,406,777 shares of common stock and up to $40,000,000 in secured 

and/or unsecured debt for possible acquisitions. Due to the nature of typical 

cash for stock acquisitions, the $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured 

debt may be initially issued through a bridge loan in the form of notes held by 

banks or some similar form of short-term obligations. For this reason, 
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Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to exceed the limitation placed on 

short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, so as to issue 

short-term obligations in an amount not to exceed $70,000,000 during 2008. 

The bridge financing would subsequently be refinanced as unsecured long- 

term debt with an estimated rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above 

U.S. Treasury rates (or extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent 

average life. 

Chesapeake is also requesting authority to issue up to 1,000,000 shares 

of Chesapeake preferred stock in 2008, for possible acquisitions, financing 

transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including potential 

distribution under the Company’s Shareholder Rights Agreement (“Rights 

Agreement”) adopted by the Board of Directors on August 20, 1999. 

Chesapeake further seeks FPSC approval to enter into financial 

agreements with institutions in 2008 to negotiate and execute financial 

derivatives enabling the Company to lock in its future financing costs and 

minimize its risk. A financial derivative is a risk-shifting agreement, the value 

of which is derived from the value of an underlying asset. The underlying 

asset could be a physical commodity, an interest rate, a company’s stock, a 

stock index, a currency, or virtually any other tradable instrument upon which 

two parties can agree. A financial derivative can be used for hedging, 

protecting against financial risk, or can be used to speculate on the 

movement of commodity or security prices, interest rates or the levels of 

financial indices. Financial derivatives fall into two categories. One consists 

of customized, privately negotiated derivatives, referred to as over-the- 

counter (OTC) derivatives or swaps. The other category consists of 

standardized, exchangeable derivatives, known generically as futures. In 
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addition, there are various types of products within each of the two 

categories. The Company has attempted to identify below some of the 

financial derivatives that the Company may evaluate in 2008, although the 

listing is not intended to be all-inclusive. Rather, the Company seeks 

approval to evaluate and employ those financial derivatives that would 

mitigate its financial risk associated with a particular financing transaction(s). 

Chesapeake is proposing to have the flexibility and authority to enter into 

the following (a) Treasury rate locks, credit spread locks, interest rate swaps, 

collars, caps and/or floors (the “Interest Rate Swap Products”); (b) equity 

collars, floors, prepaid forward contracts, covered calls, forward sales and 

purchases and/or equity-linked instruments (the “Equity Products”); or (c) any 

other Financial Derivatives that meet the objectives described above on such 

terms as Chesapeake considers to be appropriate, provided that the notional 

amount(s) for said Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or 

other Financial Derivatives do not, in the aggregate, exceed the sum of 

$40,000,000. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation allocates funds to the Florida Division 

on an as-needed basis, although in no event would such allocations exceed 

75 percent of the proposed equity securities (common stock and preferred 

stock), long-term debt, short-term debt, Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity 

Products and Financial Derivatives, pursuant to which approval is being 

sought by this Application. 

Purposes for which Securities are to be issued: 

(a) Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan (“RSP”) was implemented on 

February 1 , 1977. As of June 30, 2007, the RSP had 31 9 active participants; 

a total market valuation of $40,680,644 and 483,721 shares of the 

6. 
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Company’s common stock. The Company filed a revised RSP Document 

with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), and received a favorable 

determination letter. The changes made to the RSP Document were 

primarily associated with the IRS’ most recent Code changes and did not 

change the underlying features of the administration of the RSP. The key 

driver in filing the revised RSP Document was the IRS’ mandated 

determination letter filing cycle. A copy of the RSP Document filed with the 

IRS is included herewith at Exhibit C. Pursuant to the RSP, the first 100% of 

an employee’s contribution, up to a maximum 6% of hidher salary is matched 

by the Company in shares of Chesapeake common stock. Additional 

employee dollars that are matched by the Company are invested according to 

the respective employee’s 401 (k) designation. The RSP was amended at the 

end of 1998 to provide for a larger employer matching amount, from 60% to 

as much as 200%, and at the same time the Company’s Pension Plan was 

closed off to new employees. Accordingly, as the employer-matching amount 

has increased, so has the number of shares being issued under the RSP. 

To continue to balance the composition of debt and equity, Chesapeake 

wants to maintain flexibility in how the RSP is funded, i.e, with new shares of 

its stock, buying shares on the open market, and/or a combination of both 

funding methods. 

On June 23, 1992, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued 

Order No. 3425 approving the issuance of up to 100,000 new shares of 

Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s 

RSP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission is “open ended” in the sense that there is no time limit by which 

the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of the Order has been 
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previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit J of the Application for Approval 

of Issuance and Sale of Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 

Docket No. 931112-GU, dated November 17, 1993, and is hereby 

incorporated by reference. On July 13, 1999, the Delaware Public Service 

Commission issued Order No. 5165 approving the issuance of an additional 

100,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of 

administering the RSP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public 

Service Commission is also “open ended” in the sense that there is no time 

limit by which approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order 

has been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit C of the Application by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to issue Common Stock, 

Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt and to Exceed 

Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2000, Docket No. 991631- 

GU, dated October 20, 1999, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On 

December 19, 2000, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order 

No. 5609 approving the issuance of an additional 300,000 new shares of 

Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering the RSP. 

Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is 

also “open ended” in the sense that there is no time limit by which approved 

securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed 

with the FPSC as Exhibit E of the Consummation Report of Securities Issued 

by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 991 631 -GU, dated March 

29, 2001, and is hereby incorporated by reference. Pursuant to these 

Orders, Chesapeake has issued 438,170 new shares of common stock for 

the RSP as of June 30, 2007. Thus, there remains to be issued 61,830 

shares as authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. 
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The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of up to 91,450 shares of 

common stock for the Plan during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU 

issued on December 26, 2006. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization 

to issue up to 61,830 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of administering Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan during 

2008. 

(b) On May 19, 1992, the common stock shareholders of Chesapeake voted 

in favor of adopting the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 

Incentive Plan (“PIP”). On May 19, 1998, the common stock shareholders of 

Chesapeake approved several amendments to the PIP. A copy of the 

amended PIP agreement has been previously filed with the FPSC within 

Exhibit C of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 981 21 3-GU, dated September 

23, 1998, and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

The purposes of the PIP are (1) to further the long-term growth and 

earnings of the Company by providing incentives and rewards to those 

executive officers and other key employees of the Company and its 

subsidiaries who are in positions in which they can contribute significantly to 

the achievement of that growth; (2) to encourage those employees to obtain 

proprietary interests in the Company and to remain as employees of the 

Company; and (3) to assist the Company in recruiting able management 

personnel. 

To accomplish these objectives, the PIP authorizes the grant of 

nonqualified stock options, performance shares of the Company’s common 

stock and stock appreciation rights, or any combination thereof. The PIP, as 

it was originally adopted by the common stock shareholders of Chesapeake 
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in 1992, provided that over a ten-year period beginning in 1992, any one or 

more types of awards for up to a total of 200,000 shares of Chesapeake’s 

common stock may be granted. On June 23, 1992, the Delaware Public 

Service Commission issued Order No. 3425 approving the issuance of up to 

200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of 

administering Chesapeake’s PIP. A copy of this Order has been previously 

filed with the FPSC within Exhibit J of the Application for Approval of 

Issuance and Sale of Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket 

No. 931 112-GU, dated November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. The amendments to the PIP adopted by the common stock 

shareholders of Chesapeake on May 19, 1998 changed the terms and 

provisions of the PIP as follows: (1) the aggregate number of shares of 

common stock subject to awards was increased from 200,000 shares to 

400,000 shares; (2) the term of the PIP was extended for five years through 

December 31, 2005; and (3) the Board of Directors was granted greater 

flexibility to amend, modify or terminate the PIP, subject to shareholder 

approval requirements imposed by applicable law. On July 13, 1999, the 

Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 5165 approving the 

issuance of an additional 200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock 

for the purpose of administering the PIP, coinciding with these amendments. 

A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit C 

of the Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to 

Issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt 

and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2000, Docket 

No. 991631-GUI dated October 20, 1999, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. 
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As of June 30, 2007, Chesapeake had zero (0) shares of treasury stock, 

which can be reissued from the Performance Incentive Plan to satisfy 

outstanding awards. 

Pursuant to the PIP, Chesapeake has issued 140,309 shares of common 

stock as of June 30, 2007. Thus, there remains to be issued 389,876 shares 

as authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. The FPSC 

approved the issuance and sale of up to 200,000 shares of common stock for 

the PIP during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued on 

December 26, 2006. The pre-existing PIP expired on December 31, 2005 

and the Company’s current PIP was effective January 1, 2006. Stock awards 

granted prior to 2006, were under the authority of the pre-existing PIP. Stock 

awards granted in 2006 through 2014, to the extent earned and awarded in 

such years, have been and will continue to be issued under the authority of 

the current PIP. 

On February 24, 2005, Chesapeake’s Board of Directors adopted the 

current PIP, which applied to performance beginning January 1, 2006, and 

approved 400,000 shares of common stock to be authorized and reserved for 

issuance. The current PIP as adopted by the common shareholders of 

Chesapeake on May 5, 2005 allows for the issuance of restricted stock in the 

form of performance share awards. In addition, the current PIP, allows 

performance shares to be awarded to those key employees of the Company 

whom a designated committee, composed of independent directors chosen 

by the Board determines, are in positions to contribute significantly to the 

long-term growth, development, and financial success of the Company, and 

will encourage those employees to obtain proprietary interest in the Company 

and to remain as employees of the Company as well as to assist the 
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Company in recruiting able management personnel. Under the current PIP, 

no more than 25,000 shares are to be awarded to any one executive in any 

calendar year. The current PIP expires on December 31, 2014. On April 26, 

2005, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 6607 

approving the issuance of 400,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock for 

the purpose of administering the current PIP. A copy of the Application and 

Order have been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit D of the 

Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue 

Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2006, Docket No. 

050630-GU, dated September 21, 2005, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 200,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake's Performance Incentive Plan during 2008. The 200,000 shares 

should be adequate to cover any shares issued in 2008 pursuant to awards 

granted to executives and other key officers of the Company and its 

subsidiaries for 2007. 

(c) Chesapeake's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan ("DRP") 

was implemented on April 27, 1989. The DRP Administrator currently has 

the flexibility of purchasing shares of Chesapeake common stock on the open 

market, using Treasury stock or issuing new common stock. The gradual 

issuance of new common stock enables Chesapeake to balance the 

composition of its capital between common stock and long-term debt. As of 

June 30, 2007, the DRP had 1,327 stockholder participants. 
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A copy of the DRP as filed on Registration Statement Form S-3 with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission has been previously filed with the 

FPSC as Exhibit D of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of 

Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 961 194-GU, 

dated October 1, 1996, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On May 23, 

1989, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 3071 

approving the issuance of up to 200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common 

stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s DRP. Please note that 

this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is ”open ended’’ in the 

sense that there is no time limit by which the approved securities need to be 

issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC within 

Exhibit J of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 11 2-GU, dated November 

17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On December 20, 1995, 

the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 4097 approving 

the issuance of an additional 300,000 new shares of Chesapeake common 

stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s DRP. Please note that 

this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is also “open ended” 

in the sense that there is no time limit by which the approved securities need 

to be issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC 

within Exhibit E of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of 

Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 961 194-GU, 

dated October 1, 1996, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On August 

5 ,  2004, Chesapeake’s Board of Directors approved 750,000 additional 

shares of common stock to be authorized and reserved for issuance under 

the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, as well as several 
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amendments to the terms of the Plan. The amended plan (a) allows for direct 

stock purchases by persons who at the times of purchase are not 

shareholders of the Company; (b) establishes the minimum investment 

amount for direct stock purchases by persons who are not shareholders of 

the Company; (c) fixes the minimum monthly and maximum annual optional 

cash investment limits for participating shareholders; (d) allows for direct 

debiting of shareholder-designated bank accounts for purchases; and (e) 

adds a provision to the Plan, whereby the Company, with the prior approval 

of the Board of Directors or under guidelines adopted by the Board of 

Directors, could on a case-by-case basis waive the maximum annual optional 

cash investment limit and accept investments in excess of that amount. On 

December 21, 2004 the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order 

No. 6543, approving the issuance of an additional 750,000 shares of 

Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s 

amended Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. Please note 

that this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is “open ended” 

in the sense that there is no time limit by which the approved securities need 

to be issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC 

within Exhibit C of the Consummation Report of Securities Issued by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 030942-GU, dated March 22, 

2005, and is hereby incorporated by reference. Pursuant to the Orders 

above, Chesapeake has issued 593,113 new shares of common stock as of 

June 30, 2007. Thus, there remains to be issued 656,887 shares as 

authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. The FPSC 

approved the issuance and sale of up to 400,000 shares for the DRP during 

2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued on December 26, 2006. 
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Chesapeake now seeks FPSC approval to issue up to 400,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake's amended Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 

during 2008. 

(d) On April 4, 1989, Chesapeake issued $5,000,000 in 8.25% Convertible 

Debentures as part of a public offering. As of June 30, 2007, $1,905,000 

remained outstanding with a conversion price of $17.01 per share. Hence, 

the maximum number of shares of common stock that could be issued upon 

conversion is 11 1,993. A true and correct copy of the Registration Statement 

on Form S-2 dated February 16, 1989, as filed with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission, has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit I 

of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 11 2-GU, dated November 

17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

The Debentures had a conversion premium greater than the offering price 

of the common stock issued, no mandatory sinking fund, and became 

callable after one year at a premium equal to the interest rate less I % ,  

declining 112% per year thereafter. There is an optional bondholder 

redemption feature, which allows any debenture holder to present any 

Debenture for redemption, at par, on the anniversary date of the issue, 

subject to annual limitations of $1 0,000 per debenture holder and $200,000 in 

the aggregate. These optional redemption rights began on April 1, 1991. In 

addition, subject to the annual limitations of $10,000 per debenture holder 

and $200,000 in the aggregate, Chesapeake will redeem the Debentures of 

deceased debenture holders within 60 days of notification. Such redemption 

of estate Debentures shall be made prior to other Debentures. 
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On February 14, 1989, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued 

Order No. 3040 approving the issuance of $5,000,000 in Convertible 

Debentures and, inherently, their potential conversion into Chesapeake 

common stock. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission is "open ended" in the sense that there is no time limit by which 

the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order has been 

previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit J of the Application for Approval 

of Issuance and Sale of Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 

Docket No. 931112-GU, dated November 17, 1993, and is hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

As of June 30, 2007, a cumulative $2,170,000 of the Convertible 

Debentures has been converted. The FPSC approved the issuance and sale 

of up to 122,986 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose 

of honoring conversion rights pursuant to the Company's Convertible 

Debentures during 2007, by Order No.PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued on 

December 26, 2006. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization to issue up 

to 111,993 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of 

honoring these conversion rights during 2008. 

(e) On February 24, 2005, the Board adopted Chesapeake's Directors Stock 

Compensation Plan (DSCP) and on May 5, 2005, the DSCP received 

shareholder approval. Under the DSCP each non-employee director who is 

elected as a director or whose service as a director will continue after the 

date of the respective Annual Meeting will receive, as compensation for 

services during the ensuing year, an award of no more than 1,200 shares of 

the Company's common stock on the date of the Company's Annual Meeting. 

The DSCP enhances the Company's ability to attract, motivate and retain as 
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non-employee directors persons of training, experience and ability and to 

encourage the highest level of non-employee director performance by 

providing such directors with a proprietary interest in the Company’s growth 

and financial success. The DSCP expires on December 31,201 5. 

On April 26, 2005, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order 

No. 6607 authorizing Chesapeake to issue up to 75,000 shares of common 

stock to administer the Company’s DSCP. 

A copy of the Application, and Order have been previously filed with the 

FPSC within Exhibit D, as well as the DSCP plan document within Exhibit F 

of the Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to 

Issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt 

and to Exceed the Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2006, 

Docket No. 050630-GUI dated September 21, 2005, and is hereby 

incorporated by reference. The FPSC approved the issuance of up to 14,400 

shares of common stock for the DSCP during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06- 

1061-FOF-GUI issued on December 26, 2006. Pursuant to the DSCP, 

Chesapeake has issued 17,550 new shares of common stock as of June 30, 

2007. Thus, there remains to be issued 57,450 shares as previously 

authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. 

Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 14,400 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s DSCP during 2008. The 14,400 shares should be adequate to 

cover any awards granted to non-employee directors of the Company in 

2008. 

(9 The Board adopted the Employee Stock Awards Plan (ESAP) on 

February 24, 2005; allowing the Company to grant stock awards to its top 
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performing managers and employees of the year; and to have the flexibility to 

make other awards of stock to employees for exemplary performance. The 

ESAP received shareholder approval on May 5, 2005. The maximum 

number of shares that can be issued from the ESAP in any one year is 5,000. 

The ESAP expires on December 31,2015. 

On April 26, 2005, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order 

No. 6607 authorizing Chesapeake to issue up to 25,000 shares of common 

stock to administer the Company’s ESAP. 

A copy of the Application and Order have been previously filed with the 

FPSC within Exhibit D, as well as the ESAP document within Exhibit G of the 

Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue 

Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2006, Docket No. 

050630-GU, dated September 21, 2005, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. The FPSC approved the issuance of up to 5,000 shares of 

common stock for the ESAP during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF- 

GU, issued on December 26, 2006. Pursuant to the ESAP, Chesapeake has 

issued 700 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2007. Thus, there 

remains to be issued 24,300 shares as previously authorized by the 

Delaware Public Service Commission. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC 

authorization to issue up to 5,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock 

for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s ESAP during 2008. The 

5,000 shares should be adequate to cover any awards granted to managers 

and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in 2008. 

(g)On July 5, 2006, Chesapeake filed a Shelf Registration 

Form S-3 with the Securities Exchange Commission to 

Statement on 

issue up to 
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$40,000,000 in new common stock and/or debt securities over a three-year 

period. Under the Shelf Registration, the net proceeds from the sale of 

common stock and/or debt securities would be added to Chesapeake’s 

general corporate funds and used for general corporate purposes including, 

but not limited to, financing of capital expenditures, repayment of short-term 

debt, funding share repurchases, financing acquisitions, investing in 

subsidiaries and general working capital purposes. A copy of the Shelf 

Registration Statement is included herewith at Exhibit D. 

On November 9, 2006, Chesapeake filed a Prospectus Supplement with 

the Securities Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5). The 

Prospectus Supplement provided financial information about the Company 

and described the specific terms of the Company’s upcoming common stock 

offering, including the securities the Company would offer, the price of the 

offered shares, updated number of shares, delivery date of the sold shares, 

shares outstanding after the issuance, underwriting discounts and 

commissions as well as proceeds to the Company. A copy of the Prospectus 

Supplement is included herewith at Exhibit E. 

On November 21, 2006, Chesapeake, pursuant to the Prospectus 

Supplement completed a public stock offering of 600,300 shares of its 

common stock at $30.10 per share. The net proceeds of approximately 

$17,200,000 million from the sale of the 600,300 shares of common stock 

were used to repay a portion of the Company’s short-term debt under its 

unsecured lines of credit. Short-term debt has been used to temporarily 

finance the Company’s utility expansion projects. 

In connection with the stock offering of Chesapeake’s 600,300 shares of 

common stock, Chesapeake, on November 30, 2006, completed the sale of 
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90,045 additional shares of its common stock at $30.10 per share. The sale 

of the 90,045 shares of common stock was pursuant to the exercise of the 

over-allotment option by the underwriters. The net proceeds of approximately 

$2,600,000 from the sale of the 90,045 over-allotment shares were used to 

repay a portion of the Company’s short-term debt. 

On October 16, 2006, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued 

Order No. 7065 authorizing Chesapeake to issue up to $40,000,000 in 

common stock and/or debt securities over a three-year financing period under 

the Shelf Registration Statement. A copy of the Application and Order are 

included herewith at Exhibit F. The FPSC approved the issuance of 800,000 

shares of common stock for Chesapeake during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06- 

1061-FOF-GU7 issued on December 26, 2006. As of June 30, 2007, the 

Company has approximately $20,000,000 remaining under the Shelf 

Registration Statement as previously authorized by the Delaware Public 

Service Commission. 

Chesapeake now seeks FPSC approval to issue up to 800,000 shares of 

Chesapeake stock, or an equity-linked instrument equivalent in value in 2008 

to permanently finance Chesapeake’s ongoing capital expenditure program. 

Financing for the Company’s capital expenditure program is subject to 

continuous review and modification and is funded from short-term borrowings 

and cash provided by operating activities. The Company, in an effort to 

manage its capital structure, may, from time to time permanently finance 

through the issuance of common stock or an equity-linked instrument, as 

opposed to long-term debt. 

(h) Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue during 2008 up to 
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$40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt with an estimated 

rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U.S. Treasury rates (or 

extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average life. A portion of 

the debt issuance of up to $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long- 

term debt may be issued under the Company's existing Shelf Registration 

Statement with approximately $20,000,000 remaining under the Shelf 

Registration Statement as of June 30, 2007. Proceeds from this debt 

issuance would be used for general corporate purposes including, but not 

limited to, working capital, retirement of short-term debt, retirement of long- 

term debt and capital improvements. The FPSC approved the issuance and 

sale of $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt during 2007 

by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued December 26, 2006. As 

discussed previously, Chesapeake issued $20,000,000 of 5.50% Unsecured 

Senior Notes on October 12, 2006, which are due October 12, 2020. 

(i) Chesapeake seeks further FPSC authorization to issue during 2008 up 

to an additional 3,406,777 shares of common stock and an additional 

$40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt with an estimated 

rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U.S. Treasury rates (or 

extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average life. This 

additional stock and debt would be used to finance Chesapeake's ongoing 

acquisition program. Chesapeake expects to continue to search for growth 

opportunities through acquisitions, which fit its long-range plan to achieve the 

proper mix of business activities. Financing of acquisitions will depend upon 

the nature and extent of potential acquisitions as well as current market and 

economic conditions. 

The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of 3,366,164 shares of 
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common stock and $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt 

for this purpose during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued on 

December 26,2006. 

(j) 

of Chesapeake preferred stock during 2008 for possible acquisitions, 

financing transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including 

potential distribution under the Company’s Rights Agreement adopted by the 

Board of Directors on August 20, 1999. The Rights Agreement approved by 

the Board of Directors is designed to protect the value of the outstanding 

common stock in the event of an unsolicited attempt by an acquirer to take 

over the Company in a manner or on terms not approved by the Board of 

Directors. The Rights Agreement is not intended to prevent a takeover of the 

Company at a fair price and should not interfere with any merger or business 

combination approved by the Board of Directors. Copies of the Forms 8-A 

and 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in conjunction 

with the Rights Agreement have been previously filed with the FPSC as 

Exhibit D of the Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for 

Authorization to Issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or 

Unsecured Debt and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings 

in 2000, Docket No. 991631-GU, dated October 20, 1999, and are hereby 

incorporated by reference. As of June 30, 2007, zero (0) shares of 

Chesapeake preferred stock have been issued. The FPSC approved the 

issuance and sale of up to 1,000,000 shares of Chesapeake preferred stock 

for possible acquisitions, financing transactions, and other general corporate 

purposes, including potential distribution under the Company’s Rights 

Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 1,000,000 shares 
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Agreement, during 2007 by Order No. PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, issued on 

December 26, 2006. 

(k) Chesapeake is also requesting authority during 2008 to enter into an 

agreement for financial derivatives including, but not limited to Interest Rate 

Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other Financial Derivatives on such 

terms as Chesapeake considers appropriate provided that the notional 

amount(s) for said Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or 

other Financial Derivatives do not, in the aggregate, exceed the sum of $40 

million. On July 9, 2002, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued 

Order No. 5989 approving the Company’s application for approval of the 

issuance of certain long-term debt, and acknowledging that the Company 

was considering entering into, or utilizing Interest Rate Swap Products. While 

the Company does not consider such Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity 

Products, and/or other Financial Derivatives to involve the actual issuance of 

securities within the ambit of Section 366.04 ( I ) ,  Florida Statutes, in an 

abundance of caution, Chesapeake requests such authority to the extent the 

FPSC considers Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other 

Financial Derivatives subject to its jurisdiction. In the event that the FPSC 

does not consider Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or 

other Financial Derivatives to be jurisdictional, Chesapeake requests that that 

FPSC issue an Order acknowledging the Company’s request and confirming 

the FPSC’s absence of jurisdiction regarding these instruments. 

A copy of this Order was filed as Exhibit C of the Application by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common Stock, 

Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt, and to Enter into 

Agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products, and to Exceed Limitation 
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Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2004, Docket No. 030942-GU, and is 

hereby incorporated by reference. 

Purposes for which Securities are to be issued: 7. 

The common stock, preferred stock and long-term debt authorized for 

issuance will be used for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s 

Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, Dividend 

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, 

Employee Stock Awards Plan, conversion of the Company’s Convertible 

Debentures, financing of the Company’s acquisition program and for other 

corporate purposes including, but not limited to the following: working capital; 

retirement of short-term debt; retirement of long-term debt; capital 

improvements; and potential distribution under the Rights Agreement. 

Chesapeake believes that Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products and 

other Financial Derivatives would provide Chesapeake with an additional 

opportunity to achieve lower cost funding of existing and prospective debt 

and equity placements, as well as enhanced flexibility to manage the 

Company’s exposure to risk as market conditions permit. These are all for 

lawful objects within the corporate purposes of Chesapeake and compatible 

with the public interest and are reasonably necessary or appropriate for such 

purposes 

8. Counsel: 

The legality of the common stock, preferred stock and debt issuances will be 

passed upon by William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowski, Guerke and 

Swayze, P.A., 116 West Water Street, Dover, Delaware 19904, who will rely 

on Beth Keating, Esquire, Akerman Senterfitt, Suite 1200, 106 East College 

Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, as to matters of Florida law. 
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9. Other Res ulatorv Agencies: 

Under 26 Del. C Section 215 of the Delaware statutes, Chesapeake is 

regulated by the Delaware Public Service Commission and, therefore, must 

file a Prefiling Notice, a Notice, and an Application to obtain approval of the 

Delaware Commission before issuing new securities which mature more than 

one (1) year from the date of issuance. In addition, a Notice must be filed if 

Chesapeake expects to incur short-term indebtedness, which exceeds ten 

percent of the Company's total capitalization. All necessary applications or 

registration statements have been or will be made as required and will be 

made a part of the final consummation report to the FPSC as required by 

Rule 25-8.009, Florida Administrative Code. 

The address of the Delaware Commission is as follows: 

Delaware Public Service Commission 
861 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Cannon Building 
Dover, Delaware 19904 
Attention: Bruce H. Burcat, Executive Director 

10. Control or ownership: 

Applicant is not owned by any other company nor is Applicant a member of 

any holding company system. 

11. Exhibits: 

The following exhibits submitted with Applicant's Applications in Docket Nos. 

030942-GU, 050630-GU, 060728-GU, 931112-GU, 961194-GU, 981213-GUI 

and 991 631-GU, respectively, are incorporated in the instant Application by 

reference: 

Docket No. 030942-GU 

Exhibit C: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 6543 dated 
December 21, 2004 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
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Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock 
Purchase Plan (750,000 shares) (as filed with the FPSC 2004 
Consummation Report of Securities Issued by Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation on March 22, 2005). 

Exhibit C: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 5989 dated 
July 9, 2002 authorizing the issuance of long-term debt. 

Docket No. 050630-GU 

Exhibit C: 

Exhibit D: 

Exhibit E: 

Exhibit F: 

Exhibit G: 

Exhibit H: 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 6708 dated 
September 6, 2005 for the Issuance of up to $20,000,000 of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior 
Notes; 

and 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Agreement in Principle with 
Prudential Investment Management (doing business as 
Prudent ia I Capita I). 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application and Order 
No. 6607 dated April 26, 2005 for the Issuance of up to 
500,000 shares of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Common 
Stock for administering Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Performance Incentive Plan, Directors Stock Compensation 
Plan and Employee Stock Awards Plan. 

A copy of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 
Incentive Plan document (400,000 shares). 

A copy of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock 
Compensation Plan document (75,000 shares). 

A copy of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Employee Stock 
Awards Plan document (25,000 shares). 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application and Order 
No. 6543 dated December 21, 2004 for the issuance of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Common Stock to satisfy 
30,000 Outstanding Warrants (30,000 shares). 

Docket No. 060728-GU 

Exhibit C: $20,000,000 Note Agreement for Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes. 

Docket No. 931 11 2-GU 

29 



Exhibit I: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Public Offering of Common 
Stock and Convertible Debentures as filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on Registration Statement Form 
S-2 dated February 16, 1989. 

Exhibit J: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 3425 dated 
June 23, 1992 for the Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan 
(100,000 shares); 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 3425 dated 
June 23, 1992 for Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan 
(200,000 shares); 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 3071 dated 
May 23, 1989 for the Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and 
Direct Stock Purchase Plan (200,000 shares); 

and 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 3040 dated 
February 14, 1989 authorizing $5,000,000 for Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation 8.25% Convertible Debentures. 

Docket No. 961 194-GU 

Exhibit D: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and 
Stock Purchase Plan as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on Registration Statement Form S-3 dated 
December 1, 1995. 

Exhibit E: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 4097 dated 
December 20, 1995, for the issuance of 300,000 shares 
pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. 

Docket No. 981 21 3-GU 
Exhibit C: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Amended Performance 

Incentive Plan. 

Docket No. 981213-GU (as amended on June 25, 1999) 

Exhibit A: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan- 
Plan Document. 

Exhibit B: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan- 
Adoption Agreement. 

30 



Docket No. 991631-GU 

Exhibit C: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 5165 dated 
July 13, 1999 for the Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan 
(1 00,000 shares) and Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Performance Incentive Plan (200,000 shares). 

Exhibit D: Securities and Exchange Commission Form 8-A For 
Registration of Certain Classes of Securities Pursuant to 
Section 12(B) or 12(G) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 8-K Current 
Report. 

Exhibit E: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 5609 dated 
December 19, 2000 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Retirement Savings Plan (300,000 shares) (as 
filed with the FPSC Consummation Report of Securities Issued 
by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation on March 29, 2001). 

Filed herewith: 

Exhibit A: 

A(1) 

A(2) 

Exhibit B: 

Exhibit C: 

Exhibit D: 

Exhibit E: 

Exhibit F: 

Exhibit A consists of the following attachments: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 
IO-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2007. 

Sources and Uses of Funds Statement and Construction 
Budget. 

Retirement Savings Plan Document filed with the Internal 
Revenue Service dated January 30, 2007, effective January 1 , 
2006. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Public Offering of Common 
Stock as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
on Registration Statement Form S-3 dated July 5 ,  2006. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Prospectus Supplement as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant 
to Rule 424(b)(5) dated November 9, 2006. 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application and Order 
No. 7065 dated October 16, 2006 for the issuance of up to 
$40,000,000 in common stock and/or debt securities over a 
three-year financing period pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation’s Shelf Registration Statement. 
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12. Const it ut ion a li tv of Statute: 

Chesapeake has taken the position that the statutory requirement of FPSC 

approval of the issuance and sale of securities by a public utility, under 

Section 366.04 (I), Florida Statutes, as applied to Chesapeake, a Delaware 

corporation engaged in interstate commerce, is unconstitutional, in that it 

creates an unreasonable burden on interstate commerce. Support for this 

position is set out in Chesapeake's Petition for declaratory statement 

disclaiming jurisdiction, as filed in FPSC Docket No. 930705-GU. By FPSC 

Order No. PSC-93-1548-FOF-GU, issued on October 21, 1993, the FPSC 

denied the Petition for declaratory statement, while approving the alternative 

Application for approval of the issuance of up to 100,000 new shares of 

common stock for the purpose of administering a Retirement Savings Plan. 

The FPSC found that "the facial constitutionality of a statute cannot be 

decided in an administrative proceeding," and that since the stock issuance 

was approved, "the question of constitutionality appears to be academic at 

this time." 

Chesapeake continues to maintain that the assertion of jurisdiction by the 

FPSC over its securities unconstitutionally burdens interstate commerce, 

particularly where the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware 

has approved their issuance and sale, and/or where the securities do not 

create a lien or encumbrance on assets of Chesapeake's public utility 

operations in the State of Florida. 

Florida law provides for severe penalties for any willful violation of a 

statute administered by the FPSC or any of its rules or orders, Secs. 350.127 

(1) and 366.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, Chesapeake believes it must 
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submit to FPSC jurisdiction over its securities if it is to avoid assessment of 

such penalties and to otherwise remain in good standing before the FPSC. It 

therefore files the instant Application, under protest, and without waiver of its 

position regarding the unconstitutionality of the statute. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation requests that the FPSC issue an 

Order authorizing it in 2008 to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of common stock, up to 

1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, and up to $80,000,000 of secured and/or unsecured 

debt, and authorizing it to enter into agreements up to $40,000,000 in Interest Rate Swap 

Products, Equity Products and other Financial Derivatives, and to exceed the limitation 

placed on short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, so as to issue up to 

$70,000,000 in short-term obligations. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Akerman Senterfitt" 
Suite 1200 
106 East College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

(850) 222-0103 (Fax) 
(850) 224-9634 

Attorneys for 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
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STATE OF DELAWARE * 

* 
* COUNTY OF KENT ss 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this the day of October 1, 2007, personally appeared before 

me, a Notary Public for the State of Delaware, Beth W. Cooper, who being by me duly sworn, did 

depose and say that she is Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and that insofar as the Application of Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation states facts, and insofar as those facts are within her personal knowledge, they 

are true; and insofar as those facts that are not within her personal knowledge, she believes them to 

be true, that the exhibits accompanying this Application and attached hereto are true and correct 

copies of the originals of the aforesaid exhibits, and that she has executed this Application on behalf 

of the Company and pursuant to the authorization of its Board of Directors. 

Beth W. Cooper 
Vice President, Treasurer and 
Corporate Secretary 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me the day and year first above written. 
-7 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: G7// ‘ / I d  2 

35 



EXHIBIT A 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31 2006. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly 
Report on Form IO-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2007. 
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Exhibit A (1) 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the Fiscal Year Ended: December 31,2006 Commission File Number: 001-11590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

State of Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 

incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard. Dover, Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code) 

302-734-6799 
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Title of each class 
Common Stock - par value per share $.4867 

Name of each exchange on which registered 
New York Stock Exchange, Inc. 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
8.25% Convertible Debentures Due 2014 

(Title of class) 

Indicate by check mark ifthe registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities Act. Yes [ 1. No [XI. 

Indicate by check mark ifthe registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) ofthe Act. Yes [ 1. No [XI. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), 
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [XI. No [ 1. 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be 
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PART I 
References in this document to “Chesapeake,” “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” mean Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and/or its wholly owned subsidiaries, as appropriate. 

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form 10-K that are considered to be “forward-looking 
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not matters 
of historical fact and are typically identified by words such as, but not limited to, “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” 
“plans,” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” and “could”. 
These statcments relate to matters such as customer growth, changes in revenues or gross margins, capital expenditures, 
environmental remediation costs, regulatory trends and decisions, market risks associated with our propane operations, 
the competitive position of the Company and other matters. It is important to understand that these fonvard-looking 
statements are not guarantees, but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the fonvard-looking statements. The factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from the Company‘s expectations include, but are not limited to those discussed in Item 1A 
“Risk Factors.” 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS. 

(a) General Development of Business 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, 
transmission and marketing, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other 
related businesses. Chesapeake is a Delaware corporation that was formed in 1947. 

Chesapeake‘s three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 59,100 residential, commercial and industrial 
customers in central and southem Delaware, Maryland’s Eastem Shore and parts of Florida. The Company’s natural gas 
transmission subsidiary, Eastem Shore Natural Gas Company (“Eastem Shore” or “ESNG”), operates a 366-mile 
interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in Pennsylvania to the Company’s Delaware and 
Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southem Pennsylvania, Delaware 
and on the Eastem Shore of Maryland. Our propane distribution operation serves approximately 33,300 customers in 
central and southem Delaware, the Eastem Shore of Maryland and Virginia, southeastern Pennsylvania, and parts of 
Florida. The advanced information services segment provides domestic and intemational clients with information 
technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments 
Financial information by business segment is included in Item 8 under the heading “Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements -Note C.” 

(c) Narrative Description of Business 
Chesapeake is engaged in three primary business activities: natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing, propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing and advanced information services. In addition to the primary groups, Chesapeake 
has subsidiaries in other related businesses. 

(i) (a) Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission and Marketing 
General 
Chesapeake distributes natural gas to residential, commercial and industrial customers in central and southem 
Delaware, the Salisbury and Cambridge, Maryland areas on Maryland’s Eastem Shore and parts of Florida. These 
activities are conducted through three utility divisions, one division in Delaware, another in Maryland and a third 
division in Florida. The Company also offers natural gas supply and supply management services in the state of 
Florida through its subsidiary, Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. (“PESCO”). 
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Delaware and Mawland. Chesapeake‘s Delaware and Maryland utility divisions serve approximately 45,400 
customers, of which approximately 45,200 are residential and commercial customers purchasing gas primarily for 
heating purposes. The remaining customers are industrial. For the year 2006, residential and commercial customers 
accounted for approximately 77% of the volume delivered by the divisions and 75% of the divisions’ revenue. 

Florida. The Florida division distributes natural gas to approximately 13,630 residential and commercial and 100 
industrial customers in the 13 Counties of Polk, Osceola, Hillsborough, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Union, Holmes, Jackson, 
Desoto, Suwannee, Liberty, Washington and Citrus. Currently, the industrial customers, which purchase and 
transport gas on a firm basis, account for approximately 92% of the volume delivered by the Florida division and 
43% of the revenues. These customers are primarily engaged in the citrus and phosphate industries and in electric 
cogeneration. 

PESCO provides natural gas supply and supply management services to commercial and industrial end users in 
Florida. During 2005, Chesapeake formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc. to provide 
natural gas transportation services to industrial customers by an intra-state pipeline. 

Eastern Shore. The Company’s wholly owned transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore, owns and operates an 
interstate natural gas pipeline and provides open access transportation services for affiliated and non-affiliated 
companies through an integrated gas pipeline extending from southeastem Pennsylvania through Delaware to its 
terminus on the Eastem Shore of Maryland. Eastem Shore also provides swing transportation service and contract 
storage services. Eastem Shore’s rates and services are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (“FERC”). 

Adequacy of Resources 
General. The Delaware and Maryland divisions have both firm and interruptible contracts with four interstate “open 
access” pipelines including Eastem Shore. The divisions are directly interconnected with Eastem Shore and services 
upstream of Eastem Shore are contracted with Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation (“Transco”), Columbia 
Gas Transmission Corporation (“Columbia”) and Columbia Gulf Transmission Company (“Gulf”). None of the 
upstream service providers are affiliates of the Company. The divisions use their firm transportation supply 
resources to meet a significant percentage of their projected demand requirements. In order to meet the difference 
between firm supply and firm demand, the divisions purchase natural gas supply on the spot market from various 
suppliers. This gas is transported by the upstream pipelines and delivered to the divisions’ interconnects with Eastem 
Shore. The divisions also have the capability to use propane-air peak-shaving to supplement or displace the spot 
market purchases. The Company believes that the availability of gas supply and transportation to the Delaware and 
Maryland divisions is adequate under existing arrangements to meet the anticipated needs of their customers. 

Delaware. The Delaware division’s contracts with Transco include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 9,029 
dekatherms (“Dt”) per day, with provisions to continue from year to year, subject to 180 days notice for termination; 
(b) firm transportation capacity of 3 1 1 Dt per day for December through February, with provisions to continue such 
contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for termination; (c) firm transportation capacity of 174 Dt 
per day, which expires in 2008; (d) firm transportation capacity of 1,842 Dt, which expires in 2009; (e) firm storage 
service, providing a peak day entitlement of 1,680 Dt and a total capacity of 142,830 Dt, with provisions to continue 
such contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for termination; and (0 firm storage service, 
providing a peak day entitlement of 1,786 Dt and a total capacity of 17,967 Dt, which expires in 2013. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 880 Dt per day, which 
expires in 2014; (b) firm transportation capacity of 1,132 Dt per day, which expires in 201 7; (c) firm transportation 
capacity of 549 Dt per day, which expires in 201 8; (d) firm transportation capacity of 899 per day, which expires in 
2019; (e) firm storage service providing apeak day entitlement of6,193 Dt and a total capacity of298,195 Dt, which 
expires in 2015; (D firm storage service: providing a peak day entitlement of 635 Dt and a total capacity of 57,139 
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Dt, which expires in 2018; (g) firm storage service providing apeak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total capacity of 
52,460 Dt, which expires in 2019; (h) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total 
capacity of 52,460 Dt, which expires in 2020; (i) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 15 Dt and 
a total capacity of 1,350 Dt, which expires in 201 8; and (i) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 
21 5 Dt and a total capacity of 10,646 Dt, which expires in 2010. Delaware’s contracts with Columbia for storage- 
related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement for the period of October 
through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlement for the period of April through 
September. The terms of the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support. 

The Delaware division‘s contract with Gulf, which expires in 2009, provides firm transportation capacity of 880 Dt 
per day for the period November through March and 809 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Eastem Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 53,637 Dt per day 
for the period December through February, 52,415 Dt per day for the months of November, March and April, and 
43,339 Dt per day for the period May through October, with various expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2017; (b) 
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 2,655 Dt and a total capacity of 13 1,370 Dt, which expires 
in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 580 Dt and a total capacity of 29,000 Dt, 
which expires in 201 3; (d) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 91 1 Dt and a total capacity of 
5,708 Dt, with provisions to continue such contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for 
termination. 

The Delaware division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. 
These supply contracts provide the availability of a maximum firm daily entitlement of 37,500 Dt and delivered on 
Transco, Columbia, and/or Gulf systems to Eastem Shore for redelivery under firm transportation contracts. The gas 
purchase contracts have various expiration dates and daily quantities may vary from day to day and month to month. 

Murvlund. The Maryland division’s contracts with Transco include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 4,738 Dt per 
day, with provisions to continue such contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for termination; (b) 
firm transportation capacity of 155 Dt per day for December through February, with provisions to continue such 
contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for termination; (c) firm transportation capacity of 973 Dt, 
which expires in 2009; (d) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 390 Dt and a total capacity of 
33,120 Dt, with provisions to continue such contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for 
termination ; and (e) firm storage service, providing a peak day entitlement of 546 Dt and a total capacity of 5,489 
Dt, which expires in 2013. 

The Maryland division’s contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 442 Dt per day, which 
expires in 2014; (b) firm transportation capacity of 908 Dt per day, which expires in 2017; (c) firm transportation 
capacity of350 Dt per day, which expires in 201 8; (d) firm storage service providing apeak day entitlement of 3,142 
Dt and a total capacity of 154,756 Dt, which expires in 2015; (e) firm storage service providing a peak day 
entitlement of 521 Dt and a total capacity of 46,881 Dt, which expires in 2018; and ( f )  firm transportation capacity 
of 1,832 Dt per day for the period April through September. The Maryland division’s contracts with Columbia for 
storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement for the period 
October through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlement for the period April 
through September. The terms of the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they 
support. 

The Maryland division’s contract with Gulf, which expires in 2009, provides firm transportation capacity of 590 Dt 
per day for the period November through March and 543 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Maryland division’s contracts with Eastem Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 18,982 Dt per day 
for the period December through February, 18,254 Dt per day for the months of November, March and April and 
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13,674 Dt per day for the period May through October, with various expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 201 5; (b) 
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 1,428 Dt and a total capacity of 70,665 Dt: which expires 
in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 309 Dt and a total capacity of 15,500 Dt, 
which expires in 2013; and (d) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 569 Dt and a total capacity 
of 3,560 Dt, with provisions to continue such contract on a year to year basis, subject to 180 days notice for 
termination. 

The Maryland division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. 
These supply contracts provide the availability of a maximum form daily entitlement of 11,500 Dt delivered on 
Transco, Columbia, and/or Gulf systems to Eastern Shore for redelivery under the Maryland division’s 
transportation contracts. The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates and daily quantities may vary 
from day to day and month to month. 

Florida. The Florida division receives natural gas from Florida Gas Transmission Company (“FGT”) and Gulfstream 
Natural Gas System (“Gulfstream”). The Florida division has firm transportation agreements with both of these 
interstate pipelines. All of the capacity under these agreements has been released to various third parties and 
PESCO, our natural gas marketing subsidiary. Under terms of these capacity release agreements, Chesapeake is 
contingently liable to FGT and Gulfstream should the party that acquired the capacity through release fail to pay for 
the service. 

Chesapeake’s contracts with FGT include transportation service for: (a) daily firm transportation capacity of 27,5 19 
Dt in November through April; 21,123 Dt in May through September, and 27,105 Dt in October, which expires in 
2010; and (b) daily firm transportation capacity of 1,000 Dt daily, which expires in 2015. 

Chesapeake’s contracts with Gulfstream include transportation service for daily firm transportation capacity of 
10,000 Dt daily. The contract with Gulfstream expires May 31, 2022. 

PESCO currently has contracts with Eagle Energy Partners and Prior Energy for the purchase of firm natural gas 
supply. The Eagle Energy Partners’ contract provides the availability of a maximum firm daily entitlement of 10,000 
MMBtus and has an expiration date of May 2007. The Prior Energy contract provides the availability of a maximum 
firm daily entitlement of 7,jOO MMBtus and has an expiration date of May 2007. 

Eastern Shore. Eastern Shore also has contracts with Transco for: (a) 7:046 Mcf of firm peak day storage 
entitlements and total storage capacity of 278,264 Mcf, which expires in 2013. 

Eastern Shore has retained the firm transportation capacity and firm storage services described above in order to 
provide swing transportation service and storage service to those customers that requested such service. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.” 

Rates and Regulation 
General. Chesapeake‘s natural gas distribution divisions are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and 
Florida Public Service Commissions with respect to various aspects of the business, including the rates for sales and 
transportation to all customers in each respective jurisdiction. All of Chesapeake’s firm distribution sales rates are 
subject to gas cost recovery mechanisms, which match revenues with gas costs and normally allow eventual full 
recovery of gas costs. Adjustments under these mechanisms, which are limited to gas costs, require periodic filings 
and hearings with the relevant regulatory authority. 

Page 4 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10-K 



Eastem Shore is subject to regulation by the FERC as an interstate pipeline. The FERC regulates the provision of 
service, terms and conditions of service, and the rates Eastem Shore can charge for its transportation and storage 
services. 

Management monitors the achieved rate of retum in each jurisdiction in order to ensure the timely filing of rate 
cases. 

Regulatory Proceedings 
See discussion of regulatory activities in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Regulatory Activities.” 

(i) (b) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
General 
Chesapeake’s propane distribution group consists of (1) Sharp Energy, Inc. (“Sharp Energy”), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Chesapeake, (2) Sharpgas, Inc. (“Sharpgas”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy, and (3) Tri- 
County Gas Co., Incorporated (“Tri-County”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy. The propane wholesale 
marketing group consists of Xeron, Inc. (“Xeron”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. 

Propane is a form of liquefied petroleum gas, which is typically extracted from natural gas or separated during the 
crude oil refining process. Although propane is a gas at normal pressure, it is easily compressed into liquid form for 
storage and transportation. Propane is a clean-buming fuel, gaining increased recognition for its environmental 
superiority, safety, efficiency, transportability and ease ofuse relative to alternative forms of energy. Propane is sold 
primarily in suburban and rural areas, which are not served by natural gas distributors. Demand is typically much 
higher in the winter months and is significantly affected by seasonal variations, particularly the relative severity of 
winter temperatures, because of its use in residential and commercial heating. 

During 2006, our propane distribution operations served approximately 33,300 propane customers on the Delmarva 
Peninsula, southeastern Pennsylvania and in Florida and delivered approximately 24.2 million retail and wholesale 
gallons of propane. 

In May 1998, Chesapeake acquired Xeron, a natural gas liquids trading company located in Houston, Texas. Xeron 
markets propane to large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and southeastem retail propane 
companies in the United States. Additional information on Xeron’s trading and wholesale marketing activities, 
market risks and the controls that limit and monitor the risks are included in Item 7 under the heading 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk.” 

The propane distribution business is affected by many factors, such as seasonality, the absence of price regulation, 
and competition among local providers. The propane wholesale marketing business is affected by wholesale price 
volatility and the supply and demand for propane at a wholesale level. 

Adequacy of Resources 
The Company’s propane distribution operations purchase propane primarily from suppliers, including major oil 
companies and independent producers of natural gas liquids. Supplies of propane from these and other sources are 
readily available for purchase by the Company. Supply contracts generally include minimum (not subject to take-or- 
pay premiums) and maximum purchase provisions. 

The Company‘s propane distribution operations use trucks and railroad cars to transport propane from refineries, 
natural gas processing plants or pipeline terminals to its bulk storage facilities. From these facilities, propane is 
delivered primarily by “bobtail” trucks, owned and operated by the Company, to tanks located at the customer’s 
premises. 
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Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane; however, it contracts for storage 
and pipeline capacity to facilitate the sale of propane on a wholesale basis. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.” 

Rates and Regulation 
The propane distribution and wholesale marketing activities are not subject to any federal or state pricing regulation. 
Transport operations are subject to regulations concerning the transportation of hazardous materials promulgated 
under the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act, which is administered by the United States Department of 
Transportation and enforced by the various states in which such operations take place. Propane distribution 
operations are also subject to state safety regulations relating to “hook-up’’ and placement of propane tanks. 

The Company’s propane operations are subject to all operating hazards normally associated with the handling, 
storage and transportation of combustible liquids, such as the risk ofpersonal injury and property damage caused by 
fire. The Company carries general liability insurance in the amount of $35 million, but there is no assurance that 
such insurance will be adequate. 

(i) (c) Advanced Information Services 
General 
Chesapeake’s advanced information services segment consists of BravePoint, Inc. (“BravePoint”), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. BravePoint, headquartered in Norcross, Georgia, provides domestic and international 
clients with information technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business 
applications. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.” 

(i) (d) Other Subsidiaries 
Skipjack, Inc. (“Skipjack”), Eastem Shore Real Estate, Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Company are wholly owned 
subsidiaries of Chesapeake Service Company. Skipjack and Eastem Shore Real Estate, Inc. own and lease office 
buildings in Delaware and Maryland to affiliates of Chesapeake. Chesapeake Investment Company is a Delaware 
affiliated investment company. During 2004, Chesapeake formed a new company, OnSight Energy, LLC 
(“Onsight”), to provide distributed energy solutions to customers requiring reliable, uninterrupted energy sources 
andlor those wishing to reduce energy costs. 

(ii) Seasonal Nature of Business 
Revenues from the Company’s residential and commercial natural gas sales and from its propane distribution 
activities are affected by seasonal variations, since the majority of these sales are to customers using the fuels for 
heating purposes. Revenues from these customers are accordingly affected by the mildness or severity of the heating 
season. 

(iii) Capital Budget 
A discussion of capital expenditures by business segment and capital expenditures for environmental control 
facilities are included in Item 7 under the heading “Management Discussion and Analysis - Liquidity and Capital 
Resources.” 
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(iv) Employees 
As of December 3 1,2006, Chesapeake had 437 employees, including 193 in natural gas, 142 in propane and 70 in 
advanced information services. The remaining 32 employees are considered general and administrative and include 
officers of the Company, treasury, accounting, intemal audit, information technology, human resources and other 
administrative personnel. 

(v) Executive Officers of the Registrant 
Information pertaining to the executive officers of the Company is as follows: 

John R. Schimkaitis (age 59) Mr. Schimkaitis is President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake and its 
subsidiaries. Mr. Schimkaitis assumed the role of Chief Executive Officer on January I ,  1999. He has served as 
President since 1997. Prior to this, Mr. Schimkaitis served as President and Chiefoperating Officer, Executive Vice 
President, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer and 
Assistant Secretary of Chesapeake. 

Michael P. McMasters (age 48) Mr. McMasters is Senior Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer ofChesapeake 
Utilities Corporation. He was appointed Senior Vice President in 2004 and has served as Chief Financial Officer 
since December 1996. He has previously held the positions ofvice President, Treasurer, Director ofAccounting and 
Rates, and Controller. From 1992 to May 1994, Mr. McMasters was employed as Director of Operations Planning 
for Equitable Gas Company. 

Steuhen C. Thompson (age 46) Mr. Thompson is President of Eastem Shore Natural Gas Company and Senior Vice 
President of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President in 2004, he served as Vice 
President of Chesapeake since May 1997. He has also served as Vice President, Director of Gas Supply and 
Marketing, Superintendent of Eastem Shore and Regional Manager for the Florida distribution operations. 

Beth W. Cooper (age 40) Ms. Cooper is Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation. Ms. Cooper has served as Corporate Secretary since July 2005. She previously served as Assistant 
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary, Director of Internal Audit, Director of Strategic Planning, Planning Consultant, 
Accounting Manager for Non-regulated Operations and Treasury Analyst. Prior to joining Chesapeake, she was 
employed as an auditor with Emst & Young’s Entrepreneurial Services Group. 

S. Robert Zola (age 54) Mr. Zola joined Sharp Energy in August of 2002 as President. Prior to joining Sharp Energy, 
Mr. Zola most recently served as Northeast Regional Manager of Synergy Gas, now Comerstone MLP, in 
Philadelphia, PA. During his 26-year career in the propane industry, Mr. Zola also started Bluestreak Propane in 
Phoenix, AZ, which after successfully developing the business, was sold to Ferrell Gas. 

(vi) Financial Information about Geographic Areas 
All of the Company’s material operations, customers, and assets occur and are located in the United States. 

(d) Available Information 
As a public company, Chesapeake files annual, quarterly and other reports, as well as its annual proxy statement and 
other information, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The public may read and copy any materials 
that the Company files with the SEC at the SEC‘s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E. 
Washington, DC 20549-5546; and the public may obtain information on the operation ofthe Public Reference Room by 
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Intemet site that contains reports, proxy and information 
statements and other information regarding the Company. The address of the SEC‘s Intemet website is www.sec.gov. 
Chesapeake makes available, free of charge, on its Intemet website its Annual Report on Form 1 0-K, Quarterly Reports 
on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after 
such reports are electronically filed with or fumished to the SEC. The address of Chesapeake‘s Intemet website is 
www.chpk.com. The content of this website is not part of this report. 
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Chesapeake has a Business Code of Ethics and Conduct applicable to all employees, officers and directors and a Code of 
Ethics for Financial Officers. Copies of the Business Code of Ethics and Conduct and the Financial Officer Code of 
Ethics are available on its intemet website. Chesapeake also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines and Charters for 
the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, each of which 
satisfies the regulatory requirements established by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock 
Exchange (“NYSE”). The Board of Directors has also adopted “Corporate Governance Guidelines on Director 
Independence,” which conform to the NYSE listing standards on director independence. Each ofthese documents also is 
available on Chesapeake’s Intemet website or may be obtained by writing to: Corporate Secretary; c/o Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation; 909 Silver Lake Blvd.; Dover, DE 19904. 

If Chesapeake makes any amendment to, or grants a waiver of, any provision of the Business Code of Ethics and 
Conduct or the Financial Officer Code of Ethics applicable to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, 
principal accounting officer or controller, the amendment or waiver will be disclosed within five business days on the 
Company’s Intemet website. 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS. 

The following is a discussion of the primary factors that may affect the operations and/or financial performance of the 
regulated and unregulated businesses of Chesapeake. Refer to the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results ofOperations” under Item 7 of this report for an additional discussion of 
these and other related factors that affect the Company’s operations and/or financial performance. The principal business, 
economic and other factors that affect the operations and/or financial performance of the Company include: 

Fluctuations in weather have the potential to adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows andfinancial 
condition. 
Our utility and propane distribution operations are sensitive to fluctuations in weather, and weather conditions directly 
influence the volume ofnatural gas and propane delivered by our utility and propane distribution operations to customers. 
A significant portion of our utility and propane distribution operations‘ revenues are derived from the delivery of natural 
gas and propane to residential and commercial heating customers during the five-month peak heating season of 
November through March. If the weather is warmer than normal, we deliver less natural gas and propane to customers, 
and eam less revenue. In addition, hurricanes or other extreme weather conditions could damage production or 
transportation facilities, which could result in decreased supplies of natural gas and propane, increased supply costs and 
higher prices for customers. 

Regulation of the Company, including changes in the regulatory environment in general, may adversely affect our 
results of operations, cash flows andfinancial condition. 
The state Public Service Commissions of Delaware, Maryland and Florida regulate our natural gas distribution 
operations. Eastern Shore, our natural gas transmission subsidiary, is regulated by the FERC. These regulatory agencies 
set the rates in their respective jurisdictions that we can charge customers for our rate-regulated services. Changes in 
these rates, as ordered by regulatory commissions, affect our financial performance. Our ability to obtain timely future 
rate increases and rate supplements to maintain current rates ofretum depends on regulatory discretion, and there can be 
no assurance that our divisions and Eastern Shore will be able to obtain rate increases or supplements or continue 
receiving currently authorized rates of return. 

The amount and availability of natural gas and propane supplies are difficult to predict, which may reduce our 
earnings. 
Natural gas and propane production can be impacted by factors outside of our control, such as weather and refinery 
closings. Ifwe are unable to obtain sufficient natural gas and propane supplies to meet demand: our results of operations 
may be negatively impacted. 
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We rely on having access to interstate pipelines’ transportation and storage capacity. If these pipelines or storage 
facilities were not available, it may impair our ability to meet our customers’full requirements. 
We must acquire both sufficient natural gas supplies and interstate pipeline and storage capacity to meet customer 
requirements. We must contract for reliable and adequate delivery capacity for our distribution system, while considering 
the dynamics of the interstate pipeline and storage capacity market, our own on-system resources, as well as, the 
characteristics of our customer base. Local natural gas distribution companies, including us, and other participants in the 
energy industry, have raised concems regarding the future availability of additional upstream interstate pipeline and 
storage capacity. Additional available pipeline and storage capacity is a business issue that must be managed by us, as 
our customer base grows. 

Natural gas andpropane commodity price changes may affect the operating costs and competitive positions of our 
naturalgas andpropane distribution operations, which may adversely affect our results of operations, cashflows and 
jinan cia1 condition. 
Natural Gas. Over the last four years, natural gas costs have increased significantly and become more volatile. In 
addition, the hurricane activity in 2005 reduced the natural gas available from the Gulf Coast region, further contributing 
to the volatility of natural gas prices. Higher natural gas prices can result in significant increases in the cost of gas billed 
to customers during the winter heating season. Under our regulated gas cost recovery mechanisms, we record cost of gas 
expense equal to the cost of gas recovered in revenues from customers. Therefore, an increase in the cost ofgas due to an 
increase in the price of the natural gas commodity generally has no immediate effect on our revenues and net income. 
However, our net income may be reduced due to higher expenses that may be incurred for uncollectible customer 
accounts, as well as, lower volumes of natural gas deliveries to customers due to lower natural gas consumption caused 
by customer conservation. Increases in the price of natural gas also can affect our operating cash flows, as well as the 
competitiveness of natural gas as an energy source. 

Propane. The level of profitability in the retail propane business is largely dependent on the difference between the cost 
of propane and the revenues derived from our sale of propane to our customers. Propane costs are subject to volatile 
changes as a result of product supply or other market conditions, including economic and political factors impacting 
crude oil and natural gas supply or pricing. Propane cost changes can occur rapidly over a short period of time and can 
impact profitability. There is no assurance that we will be able to pass on propane cost increases fully or immediately, 
particularly when propane costs increase or decrease rapidly. Therefore, average retail sales prices can vary significantly 
from year to year as product costs fluctuate with propane, fuel oil, crude oil and natural gas commodity market 
conditions. In addition, in periods of sustained higher commodity prices, retail sales volumes may be negatively impacted 
by customer conservation efforts and increased amounts of uncollectible accounts, which may adversely affect net 
income. 

We compete in a competitive environment and may be faced with losing customers to a competitor. 
We compete with third-party suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. As it relates to transportation services, our 
competitors include the interstate pipelines if distribution customer is located close enough to the transmission 
company’s pipeline to make a connection economically feasible. 

Our propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their service territories, primarily 
on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. Some of our competitors have 
significantly greater resources. The retail propane industry is mature, and we foresee only modest growth in total 
demand. Given this limited growth, we expect that year-to-year industry volumes will be principally affected by weather 
pattems. Therefore, our ability to grow the propane distribution business is contingent upon execution of our community 
gas systems strategy to capture market share and to employ service pricing programs that retain and grow our customer 
base. Any failure to retain and grow our customer base would have an adverse effect on our results. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, many of which have significantly 
greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 
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The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having 
substantially greater resources available to them to compete on the basis oftechnological expertise, reputation and price. 

Costs of compliance with environmental laws may be signijicant. 
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. 
These evolving laws and regulations may require expenditures over a long period oftime to control environmental effects 
at current and former operating sites, including former manufactured gas plant sites that we have acquired from third 
parties. Compliance with these legal requirements requires us to commit capital toward environmental compliance. Ifwe 
fail to comply with environmental laws and regulations, even if such failure is caused by factors beyond our control, we 
may be assessed civil or criminal penalties and fines. 

To date, we have been able to recover through approved rate mechanisms the costs of recovery associated with the 
remediation of former manufactured gas plant sites. However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to recover future 
remediation costs in the same manner or at all. A change in our approved rate mechanisms for recovery of environmental 
remediation costs at former manufactured gas plant sites could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and 
financial condition. 

Further, existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised or new laws and regulations seeking to protect the 
environment may be adopted or become applicable to us. Revised or additional laws and regulations could result in 
additional operating restrictions on our facilities or increased compliance costs which may not be fully recoverable by us. 

A change in the economic conditions and interest rates may adversely affect our results of operations and cashflows. 
A downturn in the economies of the regions in which we operate, which we cannot accurately predict, might adversely 
affect our ability to increase our customer base and other businesses at the same rate they have grown in the recent past. 
Further, an increase in interest rates, without the recovery of the higher cost of debt in the sales and/or transportation 
rates we charge our utility customers, could adversely affect future earnings. An increase in short-term interest rates 
would negatively affect our results of operations, which depend on short-term debt to finance accounts receivable, 
storage gas inventories, and to temporarily finance capital expenditures. 

Inflation may impact our results of operations, cash flows andfinancial position. 
Inflation affects the cost of supply, labor, products and services required for operations, maintenance and capital 
improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane prices are subject 
to rapid fluctuations. To help cope with the effects of inflation on our capital investments and returns, we seek rate relief 
from regulatory commissions for regulated operations while monitoring the retums of our unregulated business 
operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain adequate and timely rate reliefto offset the effects of 
inflation. To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, we adjust our propane selling prices to the extent allowed 
by the market. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to increase propane sales prices sufficiently to 
fully compensate for such fluctuations in the cost of propane gas to us. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect our advanced information services segment’s results of operations, cash 
flows and financial condition. 
Our advanced information services segment participates in a market that is characterized by rapidly changing technology 
and accelerating product introduction cycles. The success of our advanced information services segment depends upon 
our ability to address the rapidly changing needs of our customers by developing and supplying high-quality, cost- 
effective products, product enhancements and services on a timely basis, and by keeping pace with technological 
developments and emerging industry standards. There can be no assurance that we will be able to keep up with 
technological advancements necessary to make our products competitive. 
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Our energy marketing subsidiaries have credit risk and credit requirements that may adversely affect our results of 
operations, cash flows andfinancial condition. 
Xeron, our propane wholesale and marketing subsidiary, and PESCO, our natural gas marketing subsidiary in Florida, 
extend credit to counter-parties. While we believe Xeron and PESCO utilize prudent credit policies, each of these 
subsidiaries is exposed to the risk that it may not be able to collect amounts owed to it. If the counter-party to such a 
transaction fails to perform and any underlying collateral is inadequate, we could experience financial losses. 

Xeron and PESCO are dependent upon the availability of credit to buy propane and natural gas for resale or to trade. If 
the financial condition of these subsidiaries declines, or if our financial condition declines, then the cost of credit 
available to these subsidiaries could increase. If credit is not available, or if credit is more costly, our results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected. 

Our use of derivative instruments may adversely affect our results of operations. 
Fluctuating commodity prices cause our earnings and financing costs to be impacted. Our propane distribution and 
wholesale marketing segment uses derivative instruments, including forwards, swaps and puts, to hedge price risk. In 
addition, we have utilized in the past, and may decide, after further evaluation, to continue to utilize derivative 
instruments to hedge price risk for our Delaware and Maryland divisions, as well as PESCO. While we have a risk 
management policy and operating procedures in place to control our exposure to risk, if we purchase derivative 
instruments that are not properly matched to our exposure, our results of operations, cash flows, and financial conditions 
may be adversely impacted. 

Inability to access the capital markets may impair our future growth. 
We rely on access to both short-term and longer-term capital markets as a significant source of liquidity for capital 
requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from our operations. Currently, $55 million of the total $80 million of short- 
term lines of credit utilized to satisfy our short-term financing requirements are discretionary, uncommitted lines of 
credit. We utilize discretionary lines of credit to reduce the cost associated with these short-term financing requirements. 
We are committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility 
needed to access the capital markets when required. However, if we are not able to access capital at competitive rates, 
our ability to implement our strategic plan, undertake improvements and make other investments required for our future 
growth may be limited. 

We are dependent upon access to natural gas suppb and the construction of new facilities to support futuregrowth in 
earnings in our utilities and the interstate pipeline. 
Construction ofthese facilities is subject to various regulatory, development and operational risks, include but not limited 
to our ability to obtain necessary approvals and permits by regulatory agencies on a timely basis and on terms that are 
acceptable to us; potential changes in federal, state and local statutes and regulations, including environmental 
requirements, that prevent a project from proceeding or increase the anticipated cost of the project; impediments on our 
ability to acquire rights-of-way or land rights on a timely basis on terms that are acceptable to us; lack of anticipated 
future growth in natural gas supply; and lack of transportation or throughput commitments. 

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance. 
Our operations are subject to the operating hazards and risks normally incidental to handling, storing, transporting and 
otherwise providing natural gas and propane to end users. As a result, we are sometimes a defendant in legal proceedings 
and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. We maintain insurance policies with insurers in such amounts 
and with such coverages and deductibles as we believe are reasonable and prudent. There can be no assurance; however, 
that such insurance will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for 
personal injury and property damage or that such levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical prices. 

ITEM 1 B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

None. 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

(a) General 
The Company owns offices and operates facilities in the following locations: Pocomoke, Salisbury, Cambridge and 
Princess Anne, Maryland; Dover, Seaford, Laurel and Georgetown, Delaware; and Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake 
rents office space in Dover and Ocean View: Delaware; Jupiter and Lecanto, Florida; Chincoteague and Belle Haven, 
Virginia; Easton, and Salisbury, Maryland; Honey Brook and Allentown, Pennsylvania; Houston, Texas; and Norcross, 
Georgia. In general, the Company believes that its properties are adequate for the uses for which they are employed. 
Capacity and utilization of the Company’s facilities can vary significantly due to the seasonal nature of the natural gas 
and propane distribution businesses. 

(b) Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake owns over 965 miles of natural gas distribution mains (together with related service lines, meters and 
regulators) located in its Delaware and Maryland service areas and 726 miles of natural gas distribution mains (and 
related equipment) in its central Florida service areas. Chesapeake also owns facilities in Delaware and Maryland for 
propane-air injection during periods of peak demand. 

(c) Natural Gas Transmission 
Eastern Shore owns and operates approximately 366 miles of transmission pipelines extending from supply interconnects 
at Parkesburg, Pennsylvania; Daleville, Pennsylvania and Hockessin, Delaware to approximately 75 delivery points in 
southeastern Pennsylvania, Delaware and the eastem shore of Maryland. 

(d) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
The company’s Delmarva-based propane distribution operation owns bulk propane storage facilities with an aggregate 
capacity of approximately 2.0 million gallons at 42 plant facilities in Delaware, Maryland and Virginia, located on real 
estate that is either owned or leased. The Company’s Florida-based propane distribution operation owns three bulk 
propane storage facilities with a total capacity of 66,000 gallons. Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or 
equipment to transport propane; however, it leases propane storage capacity and pipeline capacity. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

(a) General 
The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of 
business. The Company is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental 
agencies concerning rates. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a 
material effect on our consolidated financial position. 

(b) Environmental 
See discussion of environmental commitments and contingencies in Item 8 under the heading “Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements -Note M.” 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS. 

None 

PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 
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(a) Common Stock Price Ranges, Common Stock Dividends and Shareholder Information: 
The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CPK.” The high, low and 
closing prices of Chesapeake’s Common Stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter during the 
years 2006 and 2005 were as follows: 

Div idends  
Declared 

Quar ter  Ended High Low C l o s e  Per Share 
2006 

March  31 $ 32.47 S 29.97 $ 31.24 $ 0.285 
June 30 31.20 27.90 30.08 0.290 
September 30 35.65 29.51 30.05 0.290 
December 31 31.31 29.10 30.65 0.290 

2005 
March 3 1 $27.59 $25.83 $26.60 $ 0.280 
June 30 $30.95 $23.60 $30.58 0.285 
September 30 $35.60 $29.50 $35.16 0.285 
December 3 1 $35.78 $30.32 $30.80 0.285 

Dividend payments are payable at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Future payment of dividends, and the amount 
of these dividends, will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and other factors. 
We sold no securities during the year 2006 that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

Indentures to the long-term debt ofthe Company contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions state that the 
Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent oftotal capitalization and the pro-forma fixed charge coverage ratio 
must be at least 1.5 times. The Company was in compliance with these restrictions and the other debt covenants during 
2006. 

At December 3 1, 2006, there were 1,978 shareholders of record of the Common Stock. 

(b) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer 
The following table sets forth information on purchases by or on behalf of Chesapeake of shares of its Common Stock 
during the quarter ended December 31,2006. 

Total Number of 
Total Shares Purchased as Maximum Number of 

Number of Average Part of Publicly Shares That May Yet Be 
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Purchased Under the 

Period Purchased per Share Programs (2) Plans or Programs (2) 
October 1. 2006 
through October 31, 2006 (1) 463 $2992 0 

through November 30, 2006 0 $0.00 0 
November 1,2006 

December 1,2006 

0 

0 

through December 31, 2006 0 $0.00 0 0 

Total 463 $29.92 0 0 

(I) Chesapeake purchased shares of stock on the open market for the purpose of reinvesting the dividend on shares 
held in Rabbi Trust accounts for certain Senior Executives. During the quarter, 463 shares were purchased 
through executive dividend deferrals. 

repurchase its shares. 
12) Except for the purpose described in Footnote (I), Chesapeake has no publicly announced plans or programs to 
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Discussion on compensation plans of Chesapeake and its subsidiaries for which shares of Chesapeake common stock are 
authorized for issuance is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned “Equity 
Compensation Plan Information” to be filed not later than March 31, 2007 in connection with the Company‘s Annual 
Meeting to be held on May 2,2007. 

(c) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Common Stock Performance Graph 
The following Performance Graph compares the yearly percentage change in cumulative total shareholder retum on the 
Company’s common stock during the five fiscal years ended December 3 1,2006, with the cumulative retum on (i) the 
S&P 500 Index and (ii) an industry index consisting of 30 Natural Gas Distribution and Integrated Natural Gas 
Companies as published by C.A Tumer Utility Reports. 

The thirty companies in the C.A. Turner industry index are as follows: AGL Resources, Inc., Atmos Energy Corporation, 
Cascade Natural Gas Corporation, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Delta Natural Gas Company, Inc., El Paso 
Corporation, Energen Corporation, Energy West, Inc., EnergySouth. Inc., Equitable Resources, Inc., KeySpan 
Corporation, Kinder Morgan, Inc., The Laclede Group, Inc., National Fuel Gas Company, New Jersey Resources 
Corporation, NICOR, Inc., Northwest Natural Gas Company, ONEOK, Inc., Peoples Energy Corporation, Piedmont 
Natural Gas Co., Inc., Questar Corporation, RGC Resources, Inc., SEMCO Energy, Inc., South Jersey Industries, Inc., 
Southern Union Company, Southwest Gas Corporation, Southwest Energy Company, UGI Corporation, WGL Holdings, 
Inc., and The Williams Companies, Inc. 
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The comparison assumes $1 00 was invested on December 3 1,2001 in the Company's common stock and in each of the 
foregoing indices and assumes reinvested dividends. The comparisons in the Graph below are based on historical data 
and are not intended to forecast the possible future performance of the Company's Common Stock. 

$0 - 

Stock Performance 

-+-Chesapeake -A- Industry Index + S  & P 500 

Cumulative Total Stockholder Return 
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

ChesaDeake $100 $98 $145 $155 $186 $192 
Industry Index $100 $96 $121 $156 $200 $236 
S & P 500 $100 $78 $100 $111 $1 16 $134 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 '" 2005 2004 
Operating fin thousands of dollars1 (') 

Revenues 
Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced informations systems 

$124,246 
48,576 48,976 41,500 
12,568 14,140 12,427 

$170,374 $166,582 

Other and eliminations (317) (68) (218) 
Total revenues $231,201 $229,630 $177,955 

Operating income 
Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced informations systems 

$19,733 $17,236 $17,091 
2,534 3,209 2,364 

767 1,197 387 
Other and eliminations (103) (112) 128 

Total operating income $22,931 $2 1,530 $19,970 

Net income kom continuing operations S10,507 $10,468 $9,550 

Assets fin thousands of dollars1 
Gross property, plant and equipment S325,836 $280,345 $250,267 
Net property, plant and equipment (2) 3240,825 $201,504 $177,053 
Total assets (2) $324,994 $295,980 $24 1,938 
Capital expenditures ( I )  $48,969 $33,423 $17,830 

Capitalization fin thousands of dollars) 
Stockholders' equity $111,152 $84,757 $77,962 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 71,050 58,991 66,190 
Total capitalization $182,202 $143,748 $144,152 
Current portion of long-term debt $7,656 $4,929 $2,909 
Short-term debt 27,554 35,482 5,002 
Total capitalization and short-term financing $217,412 $1 84,159 $152,063 

('I These amounts exclude the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued operations. The assets 

(2) SFAS 143 was adopted in the year 2001; therefore, SFAS 143 was not applicable for the years prior to 2001. 
(3) SFAS 123R and SFAS 158 were adopted in the year 2006; therefore, they were not applicable for the years prior 

of all of the water businesses were sold in 2004 and 2003. 

to 2006. 
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2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

$1 10,247 $93,588 $107,4 18 $10 1,13 8 $75,637 $68,770 $88,108 
41,029 29,238 35,742 3 1,780 25,199 23,377 28,614 
12,578 12,764 14,104 12,390 13,531 10,331 7,786 

(286) (334) (113) (131) (14) (15) (182) 
$163,568 $135,256 $157,15 1 $145,177 $1 14,353 $102,463 $124,326 

$16,653 $14,973 $14,405 $12,798 $10,3 88 $8,820 $9,240 
3,875 1,052 913 2,135 2,622 965 1,137 

692 343 517 336 1,470 1,316 1,046 
359 237 386 816 495 485 558 

$21,579 $16,605 $16,22 1 $16,085 $14,975 $11,586 $11,981 

$10,079 $7,535 $7,341 $7,665 $8,372 $5,329 $5,812 

$234,919 $229,128 $216,903 $192,925 $172,068 $152,991 $144,251 
$167,872 $166,846 $161,014 $13 1,466 $1 17,663 $104,266 $99,879 
$222,058 $223,721 $222,229 $211,764 $166,958 $145,029 $145,719 

$11,822 $13,836 $26,293 $22,057 $21,365 $12,516 $13,47 1 

$72,939 $67,350 $67,5 17 $64,669 $60,714 $56,356 $53,656 
69,416 73,408 48,409 50,921 33,777 37,597 38,226 

$142,355 $140,758 $115,926 $115,590 $94,491 $93,953 $91,882 
$3,665 $3,938 $2,686 $2,665 $2,665 $520 $1,051 

3,515 10,900 42,100 25,400 23,000 11,600 7,600 
$149,535 $155,596 $160,712 $143,655 $120,156 $106,073 $100,533 
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 (" 2005 2004 

Common StockData and Ratios 
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations ' I )  $1.74 $1.79 $1.66 
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations ( I )  $1.72 $1.77 $1.64 

Return on average equity from continuing operations ( I )  10.7% 12.9% 12.7% 

Common equity /total capitalization 61.0% 59.0% 54.1% 
Common equity / total capitalization and short-term financing 51.1% 46.0% 51.3% 

Book value per share $16.62 $14.41 $13.49 

Market price: 
High S35.650 $35.780 $27.550 
Low $2 7.9 0 0 $23.600 $20.420 
Close $30.650 $30.800 $26.700 

Average number of shares outstanding 6,032,462 5,836,463 5,735,405 
Shares outstanding at year-end 6,688,084 5,883,099 5,778,976 
Registered common shareholders 1,978 2,026 2,026 

Cash dividends declared per share S1.16 $1.14 $1.12 
Dividend yield (annualized) 3.8% 3.7% 4.2% 
Payout ratio from continuing operations ( I ) ( ' )  66.7% 63.7% 67.5% 

Additional Data 
Customers 

Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Propane distribution 

59,132 54,786 50,878 
33,282 32,117 34,888 

Volumes 
Natural gas distribution and transmission deliveries (in MMCF) 34,321 34,981 31,430 
Propane distribution (in thousands of gallons) 24,243 26,178 24,979 

Heating degree-days (Delmarva Peninsula) 
Actual HDD 
10 -year average HDD (normal) 

3,931 4,792 4,553 
4,372 4,436 4,389 

Propane bulk storage capacity (in thousands of gallons) 2,315 2,315 2,045 

Total employees (') 437 423 426 

('I These amounts exclude the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued operations. The assets 

'*) Dividend yield (annualized) is calculated by multiplying the fourth quarter dividend by four (4), then 

(3) SFAS 123R and SFAS 158 were adopted in the year 2006; therefore, they were not applicable for the years prior 

( 4 )  The payout ratio from continuing operations is calculated by dividing cash dividends declared per share 

of all of the water businesses were sold in 2004 and 2003. 

dividing that amount by the closing common stock price at December 31. 

to 2006. 

(for the year) by basic earnings per share from continuing operations. 

Page 18 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10-K 



2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

$1.80 $1.37 $1.37 $1.46 $1.63 $1.05 $1.17 
$1.76 $1.37 $1.35 $1.43 $1.59 $1.04 $1.15 

14.4% 11.2% 11.1% 12.2% 14.3% 9.7% 11.1% 

5 1.2% 47.8% 58.2% 55.9% 64.3% 60.0% 58.4% 
48.8% 43.3% 42.0% 45.0% 50.5% 53.1% 53.4% 

$12.89 $12.16 $12.45 $12.21 $1 1.71 $1 1.06 $10.72 

$26.700 $21.990 $19.900 $18.875 $19.813 $20.500 $2 1.750 
$18.400 $16.500 $17.375 $16.250 $14.875 $16.500 $16.250 
$26.050 $18.300 $19.800 $18.625 $18.375 $18.313 $20.500 

5,610,592 5,489,424 5,367,433 5,249,439 5,144,449 5,060,328 4,972,086 
5,660,594 5,537,710 5,424,962 5,297,443 5,186,546 5,093,788 5,004,078 

2,069 2,130 2,171 2,166 2,212 2,271 2,178 

$1.10 $1.10 $1.10 $1.07 $1.03 $1.00 $0.97 
4.2% 6.0% 5.6% 5.8% 5.7% 5.5% 4.7% 

61.1% 80.3% 80.3% 73.3% 63.2% 95.2% 82.9% 

47,649 45,133 42,741 40,854 39,029 37,128 35,797 
34,894 34,566 35,530 35,563 35,267 34,113 33,123 

29,375 27,935 27,264 30,830 27,383 2 1,400 23,297 
25,147 21,185 23,080 28,469 27,788 25,979 26,682 

4,715 4,161 4,368 4,730 4,082 3,704 4,430 
4,409 4,393 4,446 4,356 4,409 4,493 4,574 

2,195 2,151 1,958 1,928 1,926 1,890 1,866 

439 455 458 47 1 466 43 1 397 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 
This section provides management’s discussion of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries 
with specific information on results of operations and liquidity and capital resources. It includes management’s 
interpretation of our financial results, the factors affecting these results, the major factors expected to affect future 
operating results and future investment and financing plans. This discussion should be read in conjunction with our 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. 

Several factors exist that could influence our future financial performance, some of which are described in Item 1A 
above, “Risk Factors”. They should be considered in connection with evaluating forward-looking statements contained in 
this report or otherwise made by or on behalf of us since these factors could cause actual results and conditions to differ 
materially from those set out in such forward-looking statements. 

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, 
transmission and marketing, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other 
related businesses. 

The Company’s strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in related 
businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than traditional utility returns. The key elements of 
this strategy include: 

Executing a capital investment program in pursuit of organic growth opportunities that generate returns equal to 
or greater than our cost of capital. 
Expanding the natural gas distribution and transmission business through expansion into new geographic areas 
in our current service territories. 
Expanding the propane distribution business in existing and new markets through leveraging our community 
gas system services and our bulk delivery capabilities. 
Utilizing the Company’s expertise across our various businesses to improve overall performance. 
Enhancing marketing channels to attract new customers and providing reliable and responsive customer service 
to retain existing customers. 
Maintaining a capital structure that enables the Company to access capital as needed. 
Maintaining a consistent and competitive dividend. 

In 2006, the Company earned $10,507,000 in net income, or $1.72 per share (diluted), in spite of weather that was the 
second warmest in the last thirty years. In 2005, net income was $10,468,000, or $1.77 per diluted share. Overall, 
operating income in 2006 increased $1,401,000, or 6.5 percent from 2005, despite weather that was 18 percent warmer 
than in 2005. However, the increase in operating income was offset by a decline of $194,000, or 51 percent, in other 
income, net of other expenses, and increases in interest expense of $644,000, or 12.5 percent, and income taxes of 
$525,000, or 8.3 percent. The net result was that net income was up by only $39,000, or 0.4 percent. 

The following discussions and those later in the document on operating income and segment results include use of the 
term “gross margin. ’’ Gross margin is determined by deducting the cost of sales from operating revenue. Cost of sales 
includes the purchasedgas cost for natural gas andpropane and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue-producing 
activities. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to operating income or net income, which are 
determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP’Y. Chesapeake believes that gross 
margin, although a non-GAAP measure, is useful andmeanin& to investors as a basis for making investment decisions. 
It provides investors with information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by the Company under its allowed 
rates for regulated operations and under its competitive pricing structure for non-regulated segments. Chesapeake’s 
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management uses gross margin in measuring its business units ’performance and has historically analyzed andreported 
gross margin information publicly. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

Operating Income 
The year 2006 reflects the strong year-over-year operating income growth experienced by the Company’s natural gas 
operations of $2,497,000: or 14.5 percent. This growth was offset by reductions in operating income from propane and 
advanced information services. In 2006, both natural gas and propane segments were negatively impacted by weather that 
was 18 percent warmer than in 2005. The Company estimates that the warmer weather reduced gross margin by $3.4 
million in 2006. The natural gas segment was able to overcome the weather impact and show an increase in operating 
income due to its growth and cost containment efforts. However, as the propane segment is more weather sensitive and is 
not experiencing the high level of growth of our natural gas segment, its operating income declined when compared to 
2005. 

Advanced information services experienced a decrease in operating income in 2006 as compared to the prior year due in 
part to the gain on the sale ofLightweight Association Management Processing System (“LAMPSTM”) during the fourth 
quarter of 2005. The LAMPS product was internally developed software that was developed and marketed specifically 
for REALTOR@ Associations. 

Key financial and operational highlights for fiscal year 2006 include the following: 

Customer growth in the natural gas and propane businesses remained strong, with the Delmarva and Florida 
natural gas distribution operations registering 9 and 8 percent increases in residential customers, respectively; 
and the Delmarva Community Gas Systems (“CGS”) generating a 34 percent increase in propane distribution 
customers. 

In June 2006, Eastern Shore Natural Gas announced that it had received approval from the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) to expand its pipeline system in the years 2006,2007 and 2008. The entire 
project represents an investment of $33.6 million, with expected annualized revenue of $6.7 million after the 
full build-out of the facilities. 

On September 26, 2006, the Company received approval for a base rate increase from the Maryland Public 
Service Commission (“PSC”) for our Maryland natural gas operations, with the new base rates effective 
October 1,2006. The base rate adjustment results in an increase in base rates of approximately $780,000, which 
would result in an average increase in revenues of approximately 4.5 percent for the Company’s firm 
residential, commercial and industrial customers in Maryland. The PSC also approved the Company’s proposal 
to implement a revenue normalization mechanism for its residential heating and smaller commercial heating 
customers, reducing the Company’s future risk due to weather and usage changes. 

In November 2006, the Company completed a public offering of 600,300 shares of its common stock at a price 
per share of $30.10. Additionally, in November 2006, the Company completed the sale of 90,045 additional 
shares of its common stock, pursuant to the over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters by the Company. 
The net proceeds of approximately $19.7 million, after the deduction of underwriting commissions and 
expenses from the sale of the common stock, were added to the Company’s general funds and primarily used to 
repay a portion of the Company’s short-term debt. 

Total capitalization, including short-term borrowing, increased $33.3 million at December 3 1,2006 compared 
with December 31, 2005. The increased capitalization was obtained to fund the $39.3 million increase in net 
plant and for other working capital needs. 

For the year ended December 3 1,2006, the Company generated $30.1 million in operating cash flow compared 
with $13.6 million for the year ended December 31,2005. The higher cost of natural gas and propane in 2005 
had an adverse impact on working capital in 2005. 

Net property, plant and equipment increased to $240.8 million at December 3 1,2006 from $201.5 million at 
December 3 1, 2005, primarily reflecting continued capital investment to support customer growth. 
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In June 2006, Eastem Shore announced the Bay Crossing Project for which it plans to develop, construct and 
operate new pipeline facilities that would transport natural gas from Calvert County, Maryland, cross under the 
Chesapeake Bay into Dorchester and Caroline Counties, Maryland, to points on the Delmarva Peninsula where 
such facilities would interconnect with its existing facilities in Sussex County, Delaware. If completed, the 
project will expand the capacity of its interstate pipeline system by approximately 33 percent. We still have 
significant obstacles to overcome on this project to make it a reality. In 2007, Eastern Shore will initiate the 
processes required to obtain the FERC and other federal, state and local permits required to construct the 
project. Eastem Shore received approval from the FERC in August 2006 to recover the pre-service costs 
associated with this pipeline project through its rates from two of its customers. As of December 3 1,2006, the 
Company had deferred a total of $409,000 of pre-service costs associated with the project. 

The Company’s financial performance is discussed in greater detail below in Results of Operations. 

Critical Accounting Policies 
Chesapeake’s reported financial condition and results of operations are affected by the accounting methods, assumptions 
and estimates that are used in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements. Because most of Chesapeake’s 
businesses are regulated, the accounting methods used by Chesapeake must comply with the requirements of the 
regulatory bodies; therefore, the choices available are limited by these regulatory requirements. Management believes 
that the following policies require significant estimates or otherjudgments of matters that are inherently uncertain. These 
policies and their application have been discussed with Chesapeake’s Audit Committee. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
Chesapeake records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 71 “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Costs are deferred when there is a 
probable expectation that they will be recovered in future revenues as a result of the regulatory process. At 
December 31,2006, Chesapeake had recorded regulatory assets of $3.0 million, including $1.1 million for under- 
recovered purchased gas costs, $1.3 million for tax-related regulatory assets, $1 39,000 for defined postretirement 
benefits, and $122,000 for environmental cost recovery. The Company has recorded regulatory liabilities totaling 
$23.8 million, including $1 8.4 million for accrued asset removal cost, $2.4 million for over-recovered purchased gas 
costs, $1.2 million for self-insurance, $1.2 million for cash idcash out, and $349,000 for over-collected 
environmental costs at December 3 1,2006. If the Company were required to terminate application of SFAS No. 71, 
it would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes. 
Such a charge could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. 

Valuation of Environmental Assets and Liabilities 
As more fully described in Note M to the Financial Statements, Chesapeake has completed its responsibilities related 
to one environmental site and is currently participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of three other 
former manufactured gas plant sites. Amounts have been recorded as environmental liabilities and associated 
environmental regulatory assets based on estimates of future costs provided by independent consultants. There is 
uncertainty in these amounts because the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or applicable state 
environmental authority may not have selected the final remediation methods. Additionally, there is uncertainty due 
to the outcome of legal remedies sought from other potentially responsible parties. At December 31, 2006, 
Chesapeake had recorded environmental regulatory assets of $122,000 and a regulatory liability of $350,000 for 
over-collections and an additional liability of $2 12,000 for environmental costs. 

Propane Wholesale Marketing Contracts 
Chesapeake’s propane wholesale marketing operation enters into forward and futures contracts that are considered 
derivatives under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” In accordance 
with the pronouncement, open positions are marked to market prices at the end of each reporting period and 
unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income as revenue. The contracts all mature 
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within one year, and are almost exclusively for propane commodities with delivery points of Mt. Belvieu, Texas, 
Conway, Kansas and Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Management estimates the market valuation based on references to 
exchange-traded futures prices, historical differentials and actual trading activity at the end of the reporting period. 
At December 3 1, 2006, these contracts had net unrealized gains of $8,500 that was recorded in the financial 
statements. At December 31, 2005, these contracts had net unrealized gains of $46,000 that were recorded in the 
financial statements. 

Operating Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved by the public 
service commissions (”PSC”) of the jurisdictions in which we operate. The natural gas transmission operation’s 
revenues are based on rates approved by the FERC. Customers’ base rates may not be changed without formal 
approval by these commissions. However, the regulatory authorities have granted the Company’s regulated natural 
gas distribution operations the ability to negotiate rates with customers that have competitive altematives using 
approved methodologies. In addition, the natural gas transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below the 
FERC approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution operations in Delaware and Maryland each have a gas cost recovery 
mechanism that provides for the adjustment of rates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are 
collected or refunded through adjustments to rates in subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial interruptible customers to make them 
competitive with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative 
types of supply. Neither the Company nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive 
natural gas. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity, on a net mark-to-market basis in the 
Company’s income statement, for open contracts. The natural gas segment recognizes revenue on an accrual basis. 
The propane distribution, advanced information services and other segments record revenue in the period the 
products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Results of Operations 
Net Income & Diluted Earnings Per Share Summary 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Net Income * 

Continuing operations $10,507 $10,468 $39 $10,468 $9,550 $918 

Increase Increase 

Discontinued operations (121) 121 
Total Net Income $10,507 $10,468 $39 $10,468 $9,429 $1,039 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Continuing operations $1.72 $1.77 ($0.05) $1.77 $1.64 $0.13 - .  

Discontinued operations (0.02) 0.02 
Total Eamings Per Share $1.72 $1.77 ($0.05) $1.77 $1.62 $0.15 

* Dollars in thousands. 

The Company’s net income from continuing operations increased $39,000 in 2006 when compared to 2005. Net income 
was $10.50 million, or $1.72 per share (diluted), for 2006, compared to a net income of $10.47 million, or $1.77 per 
share (diluted). 

The Company’s net income from continuing operations increased $918,000, or 10 percent, in 2005 compared to 2004. 
Net income from continuing operations was $10.5 million, or $1.77 per share (diluted), compared to a net income from 
continuing operations of $9.6 million, or $1.64 per share (diluted) for 2004. 
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During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and had sold the assets of six of seven dealerships 
by December 31, 2003. The remaining operation was sold in 2004. The results of water services were classified as 
discontinued operations for year 2004. Discontinued operations experienced losses of $0.02 per share (diluted) for 2004. 

Operating Income Summary (in thousands) 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Business Segment: 

Natural gas $19,733 $17,236 $2,497 $17,236 $17,091 $145 
Propane 2,534 3,209 (675) 3,209 2,364 845 

Other & eliminations (103) (1 12) 9 (112) 128 (240) 
Total Operating Income $22,931 $21,530 $1,401 $21,530 $19,970 $1,560 

Increase Increase 

Advanced information services 767 1,197 (430) 1,197 387 810 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income in 2006 increased $1.4 million, or 6.5 percent, greater than 2005, despite adverse weather, which when 
measured in terms of heating degree-days, was 18 percent warmer. The improved 2006 results of operations when 
compared to 2005 were impacted by: 

0 Weather on the Delmarva Peninsula was 18 percent warmer in 2006 than 2005, which the Company estimates 
to have cost approximately $3.4 million in gross margin for its Delmarva natural gas and propane distribution 
operations. 
Strong residential customer growth of 9 percent and 8 percent, respectively, for the Delmarva and Florida 
natural gas distribution operations in 2006. 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $1.8 million, or 11 percent, due to 
additional capacity contracts that went into effect in November 2005 and November 2006. 
A 67 percent increase in the number of customers for the Company’s natural gas marketing operation. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva propane distribution operations decreased $834,000, primarily from the warmer 
weather in 2006. 
The Delmarva Community Gas Systems continue to experience strong customer growth as the number of 
customers increased 34 percent in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Operating income for the advanced information services segment decreased $430,000 in 2006. Although 
revenues from consulting increased $749,000 in 2006, the 2005 results contained $993,000 of operating income 
for the LAMPSTM product, which was sold in the fourth quarter 2005. 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2005 ComDared to 2004 
The improvement in results for 2005 versus 2004 was primarily driven by: 

0 The LAMPSTM product, including the sale of its property rights, contributed $622,000 to operating income in 
2005 for the Company‘s advanced information services segment. 
The Delmarva and Florida natural gas distribution operations experienced strong residential customer growth of 
9 percent and 7 percent, respectively, in 2005. 
Temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula were 5 percent colder than 2004, which led to increased contributions 
from the Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations. This increase was offset by conservation 
efforts by customers. 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of 9 percent due to additional 
transportation capacity contracts that went into effect in November 2004. 
A 100 percent increase in the number of customers for the Company’s natural gas marketing operation. 
An increase of 1.1 million gallons sold by the Delmarva propane distribution operation. 

0 

0 
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Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission, and Marketing 
The natural gas segment eamed operating income of $19.7 million for 2006, $17.2 million for 2005, and $17.1 
million for 2004, resulting in increases of $2.5 million, or 14.5 percent, for 2006 and $145,000, or 1.0 percent, for 
2005. 

Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission, and Marketing (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $170,374 $166,582 $3,792 $166,582 $124,246 $42,336 
Cost of gas 117,948 116,178 1,770 116,178 77,456 38,722 
Gross margin 52,426 50,404 2,022 50,404 46,790 3,614 

Operations & maintenance 22,673 23,874 (1,201) 23,874 21,129 2,745 
Depreciation & amortization 6,312 5,682 630 5,682 5,418 264 
Other taxes 3,708 3,612 96 3,612 3,152 460 
Other operating expenses 32,693 33,168 (475) 33,168 29,699 3,469 

Total Operating Income $19,733 $17,236 $2,497 $17,236 $17,091 $145 

Heatina Dearee-Dav lHDDl and Customer Analvsis 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Heating degree-day data - Delmarva 

Actual HDD 3,931 4,792 (861) 4,792 4,553 239 
1 0-year average HDD 4,372 4,436 (64) 4,436 4,383 53 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $2,013 $2,234 ($221) $2,234 $1,800 $434 

Gross margin $372 $372 $0 $372 $372 $0 
Other operating expenses S l l l  $106 $5 $106 $104 $2 

Estimated dollars per residential customer added: 

Average number of residential customers 
Delmarva 40,535 37,346 3,189 37,346 34,352 2,994 
Florida 12,663 11,717 946 11,717 10,910 807 

Total 53,198 49,063 4,135 49,063 45,262 3,801 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Gross margin for the Company’s natural gas segment increased $2.0 million, or 4 percent, and other operating 
expenses decreased $475,000, or 1 percent, in 2006 compared to 2005. The gross margin increases of $1.8 million 
for the natural gas transmission operation, $395,000 for the Florida natural gas distribution operation and $75,000 
for the natural gas marketing operation were partially offset by lower gross margin of $210,000 for the Delmarva 
natural gas distribution operations. 

Natural Gas Transmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $1.8 million, or 11 percent. Of the $1.8 
million increase, $1.1 million was attributed to new transportation capacity contracts implemented in November 
2005 and $612,000 due to new transportation capacity contracts implemented inNovember 2006. In 2007, the new 
transportation capacity contracts implemented in November 2006 are expected to generate an additional gross 
margin of $3.3 million above and beyond 2006 gross margins. An increase of $416,000 in other operating expenses 
partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increased expenses are as follow: 

Payroll costs and incentive compensation increased $108,000 to serve the additional growth experienced by 
the operation. 
Higher depreciation and asset removal costs of $558:000 and increased property taxes of $109,000 due to 
an increase in the level of capital investment. 
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A reduction of $376,000 as a result of the operation receiving approval from the FERC to recover certain 
pre-service costs associated with the Bay Crossing Project. Please refer to the Regulatory Matters section 
under Other Matters within Item 2 of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis for additional details. As 
a result of this approval, the Company is deferring the pre-service costs that it incurs. In 2006, the Company 
deferred $188,000 of costs previously incurred and expensed in 2005. As a result of this deferral, the 
amounts recognized in the Company’s income statement have declined from 2005 by $376,000. 
There was an increase of approximately $17,000 in other operating expenses relating to various minor 
items. 

Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased $75,000 for 2006 compared to 2005. The increase 
was attained primarily from an increase in the number of customers to which it provides supply management 
services. Other operating expenses decreased $78,000 for the operation due to lower levels of consulting services, 
partially offset by an increase in the allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

Natural Gas Distribution 
Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $395,000. The impact of an 8 percent growth in 
residential customers contributed $230,000 to gross margin. In addition to residential customer growth, new 
commercial and industrial customers contributed $91,000 to gross margin in 2006. The remaining $74,000 increase 
in gross margin is attributed to various factors, including tum-on revenue. 

The Delmarva distribution operations experienced a decrease of $21 0,000 in gross margin. Weather significantly 
impacted gross margin in 2006 compared to 2005 as temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula were 18 percent 
warmer in 2006. The Company estimates that the warmer temperatures in 2006 led to a decrease in gross margin of 
approximately $1.7 million when compared to 2005. This decrease was partially offset by continued residential 
customer growth. The average number of residential customers on the Delmarva Peninsula increased 3,189, or 9 
percent, for 2006 compared to 2005 and the Company estimates these additional residential customers contributed 
approximately $1.2 million to gross margin. The remaining $190,000 increase in gross margin can be attributed to 
various factors, including an increase in the number of commercial customers and decrease of interruptible sales. 

Other operating expense for the natural gas distribution operations decreased $814,000 in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Some of the key components of the decrease in other operating expenses in 2006, compared to 2005, include the 
following: 

Health care costs decreased by $3 13,000 as a result of the Company changing health care service providers in 
November 2005 and has subsequently experienced lower costs related to claims. 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts decreased by $289,000 in 2006 compared to 2005 due to lower revenues 
and increased collection efforts. Revenues are down due to lower prices and warmer temperatures. 
Incentive compensation decreased $177,000 in 2006 to reflect lower than expected earnings 
Lower corporate costs due to lower payroll and related expenses. 
Depreciation and amortization expense and asset removal cost increased $132,000 and $1 86,000, respectively, 
as a result of the Company’s continued capital investments. 
Merchant payment fees increased $136,000 in 2006 compared to 2005 as the Company experienced more 
customers making payments with the use of credit cards. 
In addition, there is an increase of approximately $55,000 in other operating expenses relating to various minor 
items. 

2005 ComDared to 2004 
Gross margin for the Company’s natural gas segment increased $3.6 million, or 8 percent, which was partially offset 
by higher other operating expenses of $3.5 million in 2005 compared to 2004. Each of the natural gas operations 
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experienced year-over-year increases in gross margin in 2005, primarily from customer growth, colder temperatures, 
and changes in rate design. 

Natural Gas Transmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $1.4 million, or 9 percent, primarily due to 
additional contracts signed in November 2004 for transportation capacity provided to its firm customers. In addition, 
the Company’s capital investments enabled the natural gas transmission operations to execute additional 
transportation capacity contracts in November 2005. An increase of $980,000 in other operating expenses partially 
offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increased expenses were associated with continued 
economic growth, as well as higher depreciation and property taxes due to an increase in the level of capital 
investments. 

Natural Gas Marketing 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased $506,000, or 39 percent, for 2005 compared to 2004 
as the number of customers to which it provides supply management services increased 100 percent. The increase in 
gross margin was partially offset by an increase of $352,000 in other operating expenses due to higher levels of staff 
and other operating costs necessary to support the increase in business. 

Natural Gas Distribution 
Gross margin for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions increased $1.2 million, as temperatures in 2005 
were 5 percent colder than 2004 and the number ofresidential customers increased 8.7 percent. An increase in gross 
margin from the colder weather of $534,000 was offset by a decrease of $65 1,000 in gas deliveries to customers as a 
result of conservation efforts in response to the higher gas prices. Gross margin for the Florida distribution 
operations increased $579,000, primarily due to changes in the customer rate design and a 7.4 percent increase in the 
number of residential customers served. The Company estimates the rate design changes contributed $322,000 in 
additional gross margin and resulted in the Florida division collecting a greater percentage of revenues from fixed 
charges, rather than variable charges based upon consumption. Other operating expense for the natural gas 
distribution operations increased $2.1 million in 2005. Some of the key components of the increase in other 
operating expenses in 2005, compared to 2004, include the following: 

The incremental operating and maintenance cost of supporting the residential customers added by the 
Delmarva and Florida distribution operations was approximately $403,000. 
In response to higher natural gas prices, the Company increased its allowance for uncollectible 
accounts by $98,000. 
The cost of providing health care for our employees increased $1 80,000. 
Costs of line location activities increased $177,000. 
With the additional capital investments, depreciation expense, asset removal cost and property taxes 
increased $225,000, $130,000 and $3 19,000, respectively. 

Propane 
The propane segment experienced a decrease of $675,000 in operating income in 2006 compared to 2005, reflecting 
a gross margin decrease of $1.1 million, which was partially offset by a decrease in operating expenses of $464,000. 
During 2005, the propane segment increased operating income by $845,000, or 36 percent, over 2004. Gross margin 
in 2005 increased $2.6 million over 2004, which more than offset the increase of $1.7 million of operating expenses. 
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Propane (in thousands) 
Increase In crease 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $48,576 $48,976 ($400) $48,976 $41,500 $7,476 
Cost of sales 30,780 30,041 739 30,041 25,155 4,886 
Gross margin 17,796 18,935 (1,139) 18,935 16,345 2,590 

Operations & maintenance 12,823 33,355 (532) 13,355 11,718 1,637 
Depreciation & amortization 1,659 1,574 85 1,574 1,524 50 
Other taxes 780 797 (17) 797 739 58 
Other operating expenses 15,262 15,726 (464) 15,726 13,981 1,745 

Total Operating Income $2,534 $3,209 ($675) $3,209 $2,364 $845 

Propane Heating Degree-Day (HDD) Analysis - Delmarva 

For the Yean Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Heating degree-days 

Actual 3,931 4,792 (86 1) 4,792 4,553 239 
10-year average 4,372 4,436 (64) 4,436 4,383 53 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $1,743 $1,743 $0 $1,743 $1,691 $52 

Increase Increase 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income for the propane segment decreased $675,000, or 21 percent, to $2.5 million for 2006 compared to 
2005. This decrease was due primarily to warmer weather on the Delmarva Peninsula in 2006, which resulted in 
reduced customer consumption. Gross margin in the Delmarva propane distribution operations was lower when 
compared to 2005 by $834,000, primarily due to warmer weather. Gross margin also decreased in the Florida 
propane distribution operation and the Company’s wholesale propane marketing operation by $146,000 and 
$1 59,000, respectively. 

Delmarva Prouane Distribution 
The Delmarva propane distribution operation’s decrease in gross margin of $834,000 resulted from the following 
items: 

a 

a 

a 

Volumes sold in 2006 decreased 1.9 million gallons, or 8 percent, primarily from temperatures on the 
Delmarva Peninsula being 18 percent warmer during 2006 when compared to 2005. The Company 
estimates that the warmer temperatures resulted in a decrease in gross margin of approximately $1.7 
million when compared to 2005. 
Gross margin increased $956,000 from an increase of $0.0302 in the average gross margin per retail gallon 
in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva CGS increased $155,000 when compared to the prior period, primarily 
from an increase in the average number of customers. The average number of customers increased by 
approximately 1,000 to a total count of approximately 3,900, or a 34 percent increase, when compared to 
2005. The Company expects the growth of its CGS operation to continue as the number of systems 
currently under construction or under contract is anticipated to provide for an additional 7,700 customers. 
Gross margin was adversely impacted by a $272,000 write-down ofpropane inventory to reflect the lower 
of cost or market. 
The remaining gross margin decrease of $29,000 is attributed primarily to customer conservation and 
changes in the timing of deliveries to customers. 

Other operating expenses decreased $335,000 for the Delmarva operations in 2006, compared to 2005. The 
significant items contributing to the decrease are explained below. 
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The Company recovered $387,000 in fixed costs from one of its propane suppliers in response to a propane 
contamination incident that occurred in March 2006. The Company identified that approximately 75,000 
gallons of propane that it purchased from the supplier contained above-normal levels of petroleum 
byproducts. 
Health care costs decreased by $324,000. The Company changed health care service providers in 
November 2005 and has subsequently experienced lower costs related to claims. 
In addition, there is a decrease of approximately $39,000 in other operating expenses relating to various 
minor items. 
These lower costs were partially offset by increased costs of $176,000 for one ofthe Pennsylvania start- 
ups, which began operation in July 2005, increased payroll costs of $165,000 and higher costs of $74,000 
associated with vehicle fuel. 

Florida Prouane Distribution 
The Florida propane distribution operation experienced a decrease in gross margin of $146,000, or 12 percent, when 
compared to the same period in 2005. The lower gross margin reflects a decrease of $208,000 for in-house piping 
sales as the operation exited the house piping service, which was partially offset by an increase in gross margin of 
$62,000 from propane sales. The increase in gross margin from propane sales was attained primarily from an 
increase in the average gross margin per retail gallon, partially offset by a 1 percent decrease in the volumes sold in 
2006. Florida propane experienced a decrease in other operating expenses in 2006 compared to 2005 of $49,000 
attributed to lower payroll and benefits costs due to vacant positions during the year, partially offset by higher 
expenses related to leak testing and depreciation expense. 

Prouane Wholesale and Marketinq 
Gross margin for the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation decreased by $159,000 in 2006 compared 
to 2005. This decrease from the 2005 results reflects the increased market opportunities that rose in 2005 due to the 
extreme price volatility in the propane wholesale market from rising propane prices following the hurricanes in the 
Gulf of Mexico area. The same level of price fluctuations was not experienced in 2006. The decrease in gross 
margin was partially offset by lower other operating expenses of $79,000 attributed primarily to lower incentive 
compensation as a result of the lower earnings in 2006. 

2005 ComDared to 2004 
Operating income for the propane segment increased $846,000, or 36 percent, to $3.2 million for 2005 compared to 
2004. Gross margin in the Delmarva propane distribution operations was higher when compared to 2004 by $1.8 
million, primarily due to colder weather. Gross margin also increased in the Florida propane distribution operation 
and the Company’s wholesale propane marketing operation by $385,000 and $445,000, respectively. 

Delmarva Prouane Distribution 
The gross margin increase for the propane segment was due primarily to an increase of $1.8 million for the 
Delmarva distribution operations. Volumes sold in 2005 increased 1.1 million gallons or 5 percent. Temperatures in 
2005 were 5 percent colder than 2004, causing an estimated gross margin increase of $417,000. Additionally, the 
gross margin per retail gallon improved by $0.0342 in 2005 compared to 2004. Gross margin per gallon increased as 
a result of market prices rising greater than the Company’s inventory price per gallon. This trend reverses when 
market prices decrease and move closer to the Company’s inventory price per gallon. The gross margin increase was 
partially offset by increased other operating expenses of $1.5 million. The higher other operating costs were 
attributable to the Pennsylvania start-up costs and expenses related to higher earnings, such as incentive 
compensation and other taxes: employee benefits, insurance, vehicle fuel and maintenance expenses, and a non- 
recurring credit of $100,000 for vehicle insurance audits in 2004. The Pennsylvania start-up costs accounted for 
$722,000, or approximately 49 percent, of the increase in operating expenses. 
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Florida ProDane Distribution 
Gross margin for the Florida propane distribution operations increased $385,000, or 45 percent, in 2005 compared to 
2004. The increase in gross margin was attained from an increase of 27% in the average number of customers, which 
contributed to the $267,000 in propane sales gross margin, and an increase of $1 18,000 in house-piping sales. 
Florida propane also experienced an increase in other operating expenses of $1 47,000 attributed to business growth, 
such as payroll, vehicle fuel and maintenance, insurance, and depreciation expense. 

ProDane Wholesale and Marketing 
The Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation experienced an increase in gross margin of $445,000 and an 
increase of $121,000 in other operating expenses, leading to an improvement of $323,000 in operating income over 
2004. Wholesale price volatility created trading opportunities during the third and fourth quarters of the year; 
however, these were partially offset by reduced trading activities particularly in the first half of the year when the 
wholesale marketing operation followed a conservative marketing strategy, which lowered risk and earnings, in light 
of continued high wholesale price levels. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology 
related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. The advanced information 
services business contributed operating income of $767,000 for 2006, $1.2 million for 2005, and $387,000 for 2004. 

Advanced Information Services (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $12,568 $14,140 ($1,572) $14,140 $12,427 $1,713 
Cost of sales 7,082 7,181 (99) 7,181 7,015 166 
Gross margin 5,486 6,959 (1,4731 6,959 5,412 1,547 

Operations & maintenance 4,119 5,129 (1,010) 5,129 4,405 124 

Other taxes 487 510 (23) 510 482 28 
Depreciation & amortization 113 123 (10) 123 138 (15) 

Other operating expenses 4,719 5,762 (1,043) 5,762 5,025 737 

Total Operating Income $761 $1,197 ($430) $1,197 $387 $810 

2006 Comaared to 2005 
Operating income for advanced information services business decreased $430,000 to $767,000 for 2006 compared to 
$1.2 million in 2005. The operating income for 2005 included operating income of $993,000 for LAMPSTM, 
inclusive of a $924,000 pre-tax gain on the sale of the product. The LAMPSTM product was sold to Fidelity National 
Information Solutions, Inc., a subsidiary of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., in October 2005. 

Revenues for the period decreased $1.6 million compared to 2005, due primarily to elimination of $1.9 million of 
revenue generated by the LAMPSTM product in 2005. Consulting revenues increased $749,000 in 2006 when 
compared to 2005, primarily from offering a new service, Managed Database Administration (“MDBA”), to its 
customers in 2006 and an increase of 7.6 percent in the average hourly billing rate, while the number of billable 
hours remained at the same level of 2005. The MDBA service provides third parties with professional database 
monitoring and support solutions during business hours or around the clock. The MDBA service contributed 
$470,000 to consulting revenues. Partially offsetting the increase in consulting revenues were decreases of $1 28,000 
and $244,000 from training and product sales and other revenues, respectively. 

Cost of sales for 2006 decreased $99,000 to $7.08 million, compared to 2005. The 2005 cost of sales of $7.1 8 
million included $401,000 related to LAMPSTM. Absent the cost of sales associated with the LAMPSTM product, 
cost of sales increased in 2006 compared to 2005 to support the higher revenues. 
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Other operating expenses decreased $1 .O million in 2006 to $4.7 million, when compared to 2005. The reduction in 
expenses primarily reflects expenses of $554,000 in 2005 associated with LAMPSTM and lower benefits costs, rent 
expense and consulting costs. 

2005 ComDared to 2004 
The advanced information services segment had operating income of $1.2 million and $387,000 for years 2005 and 
2004: respectively. The results for 2005 and 2004 include revenues and costs related to the LAMPSTM product that 
was sold in October 2005, which resulted in a $924,000 pre-tax gain. 

Revenues for 2005 increased $1.7 million to $14.1 million compared to revenues of $12.4 million for 2004. The 
2005 and 2004 revenue figures include $2.4 million and $1 49,000 of revenue relating to the LAMPSTM product for 
those respective years. Decreases in consulting revenues for the eBusiness group of $793,000 and lower sales of 
Progress software licenses of $285,000 accounted for the decrease in revenue when compared to 2004. This decrease 
was partially offset by the performance revenue of $238,000 received in the third quarter 2005 and an increase of 
$3 17,000 in consulting revenues for the Enterprise Solutions group. The performance revenue was related to the sale 
of the webproEX software that took place in 2003. As part of the sale agreement, Chesapeake received a percentage 
of revenues after certain annual revenue and performance targets were reached. 

Cost of sales for 2005 increased $165,000 to $7.2 million, compared to $7.0 million for 2004. The increase in cost of 
sales was attributed to the LAMPSTM product. The 2005 and 2004 cost of sales figures included $51 1,000 and 
$345,000 of cost for the LAMPSTM product. Other operating expenses increased $738,000 in 2005 to $5.8 million, 
compared to $5.0 million in 2004. The increase in other operating cost was attributed to the increase of costs relating 
to the LAMPSTM product. The costs associated with the LAMPSTM product for 2005 and 2004 were $1.2 million and 
$575,000 respectively. The remaining increase was primarily due to health care claims and office rent, which were 
offset by cost containment measures implemented in the second quarter of 2005 to reduce operating expenses. 

0 th er Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations consist primarily of subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Company subsidiaries and the 
results of operations for OnSight Energy, LLC (“Onsight”). Eliminations are entries required to eliminate activities 
between business segments from the consolidated results. Other operations and eliminating entries generated an 
operating loss of $103,000 for 2006 compared to an operating loss of $1 12,000 for 2005. The operating loss in both 
2006 and 2005 is attributed to results of OnSight. 

The Company formed OnSight in 2004 to provide distributed energy services. Distributed energy refers to a variety 
of small, modular power generating technologies that may be combined with heating and/or cooling systems. For 
2006, OnSight had an operating loss of $401,000 compared to an operating loss of $390,000 for 2005. The higher 
operating loss in 2006 when compared to 2005 is the result of: 

In the third quarter of 2006, actions were taken to reduce operating expenses going forward, which resulted 
in a charge of $65,000 to other operating expenses associated with staff reductions. 
The 2005 results of operation includes the impact of OnSight completing its first and only contract to date, 
which occurred in the second quarter of 2005. 
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Other Operations L Eliminations (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $620 $763 ($143) $763 $647 $1 16 
Cost of sales 1 116 (115) 116 116 
Gross margin 619 647 (28) 641 647 

Operations & maintenance 419 472 7 47% 27 8 194 
Depreciation & amortization 163 220 (57) 220 210 10 
Other taxes 83 97 (14) 97 63 34 
Other operating expenses 125 789 (64) 789 551 238 

Operating Income - Other ($106) ($142) $36 ($142) $96 ($238) 

Total Operating Income (Loss) ($103) ($1 12) $9 ($1 12) $128 ($240) 
Operating Income - Eliminations $3 $30 ($27) $30 $32 ($2) 

Discontinued Operations 
In 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold during 2003 
and the remaining operation was sold in October 2004. The results of the water companies’ operations, for all periods 
presented in the consolidated income statements, have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax. 
For 2004, the discontinued operations experienced a net loss of $121,000. The Company did not have any discontinued 
operations in 2006 and 2005. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense for 2006 was $6.8 million compared to $6.3 million for 2005. Income taxes increased in 2006 
compared to 2005, due primarily to increased taxable income. Income taxes increased in 2005 compared to 2004, due to 
increased income. The effective current federal income tax rate for 2006 and 2005 was 35 percent, whereas the rate for 
2004 was 34 percent. During 2006,2005, and 2004, the Company realized benefit of $220,000, $223,000, and $205,000, 
respectively, from a change in the tax law that allows tax deductions for dividends paid on Company stock held in 
Employee Stock Ownership Plans C‘ESOP”). 

Other Income 
Other income was $1 89,000, $383,000, and $549,000 for the years 2006,2005, and 2004, respectively. The other income 
amounts for the years 2006 and 2005 consist of interest income, compared to interest income and gains from the sale of 
assets for the year 2004. 

Interest Expense 
Total interest expense for 2006 increased approximately $644,000, or 12.5 percent, compared to 2005. The increase 
reflects the increase in the average short-term debt balance and higher short-term interest rates in 2006 compared to 2005. 
The average short-term borrowing balance increased $21.2 million in 2006 to $26.9 million compared to $5.7 million in 
2005. The large year-over-year increase in the average short-term borrowing balance was primarily to finance the $39.3 
million of net property, plant, and equipment added in 2006. The weighted average interest rate for short-term borrowing 
increased from 4.47 percent for 2005 to 5.47 percent for 2006. The average long-term debt balance during 2006 was 
$67.2 million with a weighted average interest rate of 6.98 percent, compared to $67.4 million with a weighted average 
interest rate of 7.18 percent for 2005. The Company also capitalized $586,000 of interest as part of capital project costs 
during 2006. 

Total interest expense for 2005 decreased approximately $135,000, or 2.6 percent, compared to 2004. The decrease 
reflects the decrease in the average long-term debt balance. The average long-term debt balance during 2005 was $67.4 
million with a weighted average interest rate of 7.18 percent, compared to $71.3 million with a weighted average interest 
rate of 7.17 percent in 2004. The average short-term borrowing balance in 2005 was $5.7 million, an increase from 
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$870,000 in 2004. The weighted average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 3.72 percent for 2004 to 
4.47 percent for 2005. The Company also capitalized $136,000 of interest as part of capital project costs during 2005. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Chesapeake’s capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally attributable to its 
investment in new plant and equipment and the retirement of outstanding debt. The Company relies on cash generated 
from operations, short-term borrowing, and other sources to meet normal working capital requirements and to finance 
capital expenditures. During 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $30.1 million, cash used by investing 
activities was $48.9 million and cash provided by financing activities was $20.7 million. 

During 2005, net cash provided by operating activities was $13.6 million, cash used by investing activities was $33.1 
million and cash provided by financing activities was $20.4 million. 

As of December 3 1,2006, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has authorized the Company to borrow up to $55.0 million 
of short-term debt from various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. During 2006, the Board 
authorized increases in the Company’s borrowing authority up to $75 million to fund the 2006 capital budget and 
working capital. The $75 million limit was subsequently reduced to its current level by the Board on November 7,2006, 
following the placement on October 12,2006 of $20 million 5.50 percent Senior Notes. 

On December 3 1, 2006, the Company had four unsecured bank lines of credit with two financial institutions, totaling 
$80.0 million, none of which required compensating balances. These bank lines provide funds for the Company’s short- 
term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital 
expenditures. Two ofthe bank lines, totaling $1 5.0 million, are committed. The other two lines are subject to the banks’ 
availability of funds. The outstanding balances of short-term debt at December 3 1,2006 and 2005 were $27.6 million and 
$35.5 million, respectively. The level of short-term debt was reduced with funds provided from the placement of $20 
million of 5.5 percent Senior Notes in October 2006 and from the proceeds ofthe issuance of 600,300 shares of common 
stock in November 2006. 

Chesapeake has budgeted $45.5 million for capital expenditures during 2007. This amount includes $20.2 million for 
natural gas distribution, $16.5 million for natural gas transmission, $7.5 million for propane distribution and wholesale 
marketing, $154,000 for advanced information services and $91 5,000 million for other operations. The natural gas 
distribution and transmission expenditures are for expansion and improvement of facilities. The propane expenditures are 
to support customer growth and for the replacement of equipment. The advanced information services expenditures are 
for computer hardware, software and related equipment. The other category includes general plant, computer software 
and hardware. Financing for the 2007 capital expenditure program is expected from short-term borrowing, cash provided 
by operating activities, and other sources. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous review and 
modification. Actual capital requirements may vary from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including 
acquisition opportunities, changing economic conditions, customer growth in existing areas, regulation, new growth 
opportunities and availability of capital. 

Chesapeake expects to incur approximately $75,000 in 2007 and 2008 for environmental-related expenditures. Additional 
expenditures may be required in future years (see Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Management does 
not expect financing of future environmental-related expenditures to have a material adverse effect on the financial 
position or capital resources of the Company. 

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities 
Our cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities were as follows: 
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Net income $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,428,767 
Non-cash adjustments to net income 11,186,418 13,059,678 16,342,116 
Changes in working capital 8,424,055 (9,927,351) (3,767,730) 

Net cash from operating activties $30,116,998 $13,599,941 $22,003,153 

Year-over-year changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarily to net income, 
depreciation and working capital changes. The changes in working capital are impacted by weather, the price of 
natural gas and propane, the timing of customer collections, payments of natural gas and propane purchases, and 
deferred gas cost recoveries. 

The Company generates a large portion of its annual net income and subsequent increases in our accounts receivable 
in the first and fourth quarters of each year due to significant volumes of natural gas and propane delivered by our 
Delmarva natural gas and propane distribution operations to our customers during the peak heating season. In 
addition, our natural gas and propane inventories, which usually peak in the fall months, are largely drawn down in 
the heating season and provide a source of cash as the inventory is used to satisfy winter sales demand. 

During this period, our accounts payable increased to reflect payments due to providers ofthe natural gas, propane 
commodities and pipeline capacity. The value of the natural gas and propane can vary significantly from one period 
to the next as a result of volatility in the prices of these commodities. Our natural gas costs and deferred purchased 
natural gas costs due from, or to, our customers represent the difference between natural gas costs that we have paid 
to suppliers in the past and amounts that we have collected from customers. These natural gas costs can cause 
significant variations in cash flows from period to period. 

In 2006, our net cash flow provided by operating activities was $30.1 million, an increase of $16.5 million from the 
same period of 2005. The increase was primarily a result of the recovery of working capital during 2006 that was 
deployed in 2005 due to the significantly higher commodity prices and the amount of working capital required for 
operations. Contributing to this increase was a decrease in the amount of natural gas and propane purchased for 
inventory of $6.1 million as a result of mild weather in the prior heating season and therefore higher inventory 
balances for the current heating season. 

In 2005, our net cash flow provided by operating activities was $13.6 million, a decrease of $8.4 million from the 
same period of 2004. The decrease was primarily a result of increased working capital requirements including 
increased spending of $5.7 million for seasonal natural gas and propane inventories in advance of the winter sales 
demand. We spent more on these inventories in 2005 primarily because of higher natural gas and propane prices due 
to the effects of the hurricanes in the Gulf Coast region. The Company also used $1.2 million of cash to purchase 
investments for the Rabbi Trust associated with the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. 
See Note E on Investments in Item 8 under the heading “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data.” 

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 
Net cash flows used in investing activities totaled $48.9 million, $33.1 million, and $15.5 million during fiscal years 
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. In fiscal years 2006,2005, and 2004, $48.8 million, $33.3 million, and $16.4 
million, respectively, of cash were utilized for capital expenditures. Additions to property, plant and equipment in 
2006 were primarily for natural gas transmission ($28.0 million), natural gas distribution ($16.1 million) and 
propane distribution ($4.3 million). In both 2006 and 2005, the natural gas distribution expenditures were used 
primarily to fund expansion and facilities improvements. Natural gas transmission capital expenditures related 
primarily to expanding the Company’s transmission system. 
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Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities 
Cash flows provided by financing activities totaled $20.7 million during 2006, $20.4 million during 2005 and cash 
flows used by financing activities was $8.0 million for 2004. Our significant financing activities for the years 2006, 
2005. and 2004 are summarized as follow: 

In November 2006, the Company sold 600,300 shares of common stock, including the underwriter’s exercise of 
their over-allotment option of 90,045 shares, pursuant to a shelf registration statement declared effective in 
November 2006, generating net proceeds of $19.7 million. 

In October 2006, the Company placed $20 million of 5.5 percent Senior Notes (“Notes”) to three institutional 
investors (The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity 
Company and United Omaha Life Insurance Company). The original note agreement was executed on October 
18,2005 and provided for the Company to sell the Notes at any time prior to January 15, 2007. 

The Company repaid $4.9 million of long-term debt during 2006 compared with $4.8 million during 2005 and 
$3.7 million during 2004. 

During 2006, the Company reduced short-term debt by $8.0 million. During 2005 and 2004, net borrowing of 
short-term debt increased by $29.6 million and $1.2 million, respectively, primarily to support our capital 
investment. 

During 2006, the Company paid $6.0 million in cash dividends compared with dividend payments of $5.8 
million and $5.6 million for years 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in dividends paid over prior year 
reflects the increase in the dividend rate from $ 1 .  I4 per share during 2005 to $1.16 per share during 2006 and 
the issuance of additional shares of common stock. 

In August 2006, the Company paid cash of $435,000, in lieu of issuing shares ofthe Company’s common stock 
for the 30,000 stock warrants outstanding at December 3 1 ,  2005. 

Capita I Structure 
The following presents our capitalization as of December 31, 2006 and 2005: 

December 31, 
2006 2005 
[In thousands, except percentages) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $71,050 39% $58.990 41% 
Shareholders’ equity S111.152 , 61% $841157 59% 
Total capitalization, excluding short-term debt $182,202 100% $143,741 100% 

The Company increased its capitalization by $38.5 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The increased capitalization 
was primarily used to fund the $39.3 million of net property, plant, and equipment added in 2006 and for working 
capital. 

As of December 3 1; 2006, common equity represented 61 percent of total capitalization, compared to 59 percent in 
2005. 
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The following presents our capitalization as of December 3 1, 2006 and 2005 if short-term borrowing and current 
portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization: 

December 31, 
2006 2005 
(In thousands, except percentages) 

Short-term debt S27,554 13% $35,482 19% 
Long-term debt, including current maturities $78,706 36% $63,919 35% 
Shareholders’ equity $111,152 51% $84,757 46% 
Total capitalization, including short-term debt $217,412 100% $184,158 100% 

If short-term borrowing and current portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization, total capitalization 
increased by $33.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The increased capitalization was primarily used to fund a 
portion of the $39.3 million of net property, plant, and equipment added in 2006 and for other general working 
capital. In addition, if short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt were included in total 
capitalization, the equity component ofthe Company’s capitalization would have been 51 percent and 46 percent for 
2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Total debt as a percentage of total capitalization, including short-term debt, was 49 percent and 54 percent at 
December 3 1, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in the debt-to-capitalization ratio in 2006 was primarily 
attributed to the following: 

The Company sold 600,300 additional shares of common stock pursuant to a shelf registration declared 
effective by the SEC in November 2006. The sale of these additional shares increased total shareholder’s 
equity by approximately $19.7 million. 

The outstanding long-term debt balance increased $14.8 million. Contributing to the increase was the 
placement of $20 million of 5.5 percent Senior Notes in October 2006, partially offset by scheduled 
principal payments. 

The outstanding short-term debt balance decreased $7.9 million. The Company reduced its outstanding 
short-term debt with funds received from the sale of additional shares of common stock and the placement 
of the Senior Notes. 

Chesapeake remains committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the 
financial flexibility needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate and 
timely rate relief for the Company’s regulated operations, is intended to ensure that Chesapeake will be able to 
attract capital from outside sources at a reasonable cost. The Company believes that the achievement of these 
objectives will provide benefits to customers and creditors, as well as to the Company’s investors. 

Shelf Registration 
In July 2006, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC to issue up to $40.0 million in 
new common stock and/or debt securities. The registration statement was declared effective by the SEC in 
November 2006. In November 2006, we sold 600,300 shares of common stock, including the underwriter’s exercise 
of their over-allotment option of 90,045 shares, under this registration statement, generating net proceeds of $19.7 
million. The net proceeds from the sale were used for general corporate purposes, including financing of capital 
expenditures, repayment of short-term debt, and general working capital purposes. At December 3 1, 2006, the 
Company had approximately $20.0 million remaining under this registration statement. 
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Contractual Obligations 
We have the following contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2006: 

Payments Due by Period 
Less than 1 More than 5 

Contractual Obligations year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 years years Total 

Long-term debt ('I $7,656,364 $14,312,727 $14,403,636 $42,333,636 $78,706,363 

Operating leases (') 649,659 919,216 652,026 3,769,640 5,990,541 

Purchase obligations (') 
Transmission capacity 7,182,746 12,413,145 8,154,556 23,523,355 5 1,273,802 
Storage - Natural Gas 1,363,488 2,698,742 2,666,955 5,163,488 11,892,673 
Commodities 17,862,123 17,862,123 
Forward purchase contracts -Propane (4) 13,868,391 13,868,391 

Unfunded benefits (5' 292,445 588,705 614,043 2,710,528 4,205,721 
Funded benefits 323,500 148,364 117,732 1,419,046 2,008,642 
2 otal Contractual Obligations $49,198,716 $31,080,899 $26,608,948 $78,919,693 $185,808,256 

'I) Principal payments on long-term debt, see Note H, "Long-Term Debt," in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for additional discussion of this item. The expected interest payments on long-term debt are $5.2 million, $8.8 million, 
$6.9 million and $10.0 million, respectively, for the periods indicated above. Expected interest payments for all periods 
total $ 30.9 million. 

i2) See Note J, "Lease Obligations," in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of this item. 
i3) See Note N, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further 

information. 
i4) The Company has also entered into forward sale contracts. See "Market Risk'' of the Management's Discussion and Analysis 

for further information. 
( 5 )  The Company has recorded long-term liabilities of $4.2 million at December 31,2006 for unfunded post-retirement benefit 

plans. The amounts specified in the table are based on expected payments to current retirees and assumes a retirement age 
of 65 for currently active employees. There are many factors that would cause actual payments to differ from these amounts, 
including early retirement, future health care costs that differ from past experience and discount rates implicit in calculations. 

@)The Company has recorded long-term liabilities of $2.0 million at December 31,2006 for funded benefits. These liabilities have 
been funded using a Rabbi Trust and an asset in the same amount is recorded under Investments on the Balance Sheet. 
The defined benefit pension plan was closed to new participants on January 1, 1999 and participants in the plan on that date 
were given the option to leave the plan. See Note K, "Employee Benefit Plans," in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further information on the plan. Since the plan modification, no additional funding has been required from the 
Company and none is expected for the next five years, based on factors in effect at December 31,2006. However, this is 
subject to change based on the actual return eamed by the plan assets and other actuarial assumptions, such as the discount 
rate and long-term expected rate of return on plan assets. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary, its 
natural gas supply and management subsidiary, and propane distribution subsidiary. These corporate guarantees 
provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the event of the subsidiaries' default. The liabilities 
for these purchases are recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed at 
December 3 1, 2006, totaled $21.4 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates in 2007. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees, the Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary insurance company 
for $775,000, which expires on May 31, 2007. The letter of credit is provided as security for claims amounts to 
satisfy the deductibles on the Company's policies. The current letter ofcredit was renewed during the second quarter 
of 2006 when the insurance policies were renewed. 

Regulatory Activities 
The Company's natural gas distribution operations are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida 
Public Service Commissions. Eastem Shore Natural Gas ("Eastem Shore"). The Company's natural gas transmission 
operation is subject to regulation by the FERC. 
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Delaware. On September 1 ,  2006, the Delaware division filed its annual Gas Sales Service Rates (“GSR”) application 
that was effective for service rendered on and after November 1, 2006 with the Delaware Public Service Commission 
(“Delaware PSC”). On October 3, 2006, the Delaware PSC approved the GSR charges, subject to full evidentiary 
hearings and a final decision. The Delaware division expects a final decision during the first half of 2007. 

On September 2, 2005: the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval of an 
alternative rate design and rate structure in order to provide natural gas service to prospective customers in eastem 
Sussex County. While Chesapeake does provide natural gas service to residents and businesses in portions of Sussex 
County, under the Company’s current tariff, natural gas distribution lines have not been extended to a large portion ofthe 
State ofDelaware’s recently targeted growth areas in eastem Sussex County. In April 2002, Govemor Ruth Ann Minner 
established the Delaware Energy Task Force (“Task Force”), whose mission was to address the State of Delaware’s long- 
term and short-term energy challenges. In September 2003, the Task Force issued its final report to the Govemor that 
included a strategy related to enhancing the availability of natural gas within the State by evaluating possible incentives 
for expanding residential and commercial natural gas service. Chesapeake believes its current proposal to implement a 
rate design that will enable the Company to provide natural gas as a viable energy choice to a broad number of 
prospective customers within eastem Sussex County is consistent with the Task Force recommendation. While the 
Company cannot predict the outcome of its application at this time, the Company anticipates a final decision from the 
Delaware PSC regarding its application in 2007. 

On October 16, 2006, the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval for the 
issuance of up to $40,000,000 of common stock and/or debt securities as contained in the shelf registration statement 
filed with the SEC in July 2006. The Delaware PSC granted approval ofthe issuance at its regularly scheduled meeting 
on October 3 1,2006. 

On November 1,2006, the Delaware division filed with the Delaware PSC its annual Environmental Rider (“ER’) rate 
application to become effective for service rendered on and after December 1,2006. The Delaware PSC granted approval 
of the ER rate at its regularly scheduled meeting on November 21,2006, subject to full evidentiary hearings and a final 
decision. The Delaware PSC granted final approval of the ER rate at its regulatory scheduled meeting on January 23, 
2007. 

On November 9,2006, the Delaware division filed two applications with the Delaware PSC requesting approval for a 
Town of Millsboro Franchise Fee Rider and a Town of Georgetown Franchise Fee Rider. These Riders will allow the 
Delaware division to charge all respective natural gas customers within town limits the franchise fee paid by the 
Delaware division to the Towns of Millsboro and Georgetown as a condition to providing natural gas service. The 
Delaware PSC granted approval of both of the Riders at its regularly scheduled meeting on January 23, 2007. 

On December 14,2006, the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval to change 
its base delivery service rates in order to recover a 1 mill increase in the assessment factor, which had been approved by 
the state legislature. The Delaware PSC granted approval of the application at its regularly scheduled meeting on 
December 19,2006. 

Marvland. On May 1, 2006, the Maryland division filed a base rate application with the Maryland Public Service 
Commission (“Maryland PSC”) requesting an overall increase in base rates of approximately $1 , I  37,000 annually, based 
on a proposed overall rate of retum of 9.7 percent and a return on equity of 1 1.5 percent. On September 26, 2006, the 
Maryland PSC approved a base rate increase of approximately $780,000 annually, based on an overall rate of retum of 
9.03 percent and a retum on equity of 10.75 percent. This increase will result in an average increase in revenues of 
approximately 4.5 percent for the Maryland division’s firm residential, commercial and industrial customers. The PSC 
also approved the Company’s proposal to implement a revenue normalization mechanism for its residential heating and 
smaller commercial heating customers, reducing the Company’s risk due to weather and usage changes. 
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On December 14,2006, the Maryland PSC held an evidentiary hearing to determine the reasonableness ofthe Maryland 
division‘s four quarterly gas cost recovery filings during the twelve months ended September 30,2006. On December 15, 
2006, the Hearing Examiner issued proposed findings approving the quarterly gas cost recovery rates as filed by the 
Maryland division, permitting complete recovery of its purchased gas costs for the period under review. No appeals or 
written exceptions to the proposed findings were made and a final order approving the quarterly gas cost recovery rates 
as filed was issued by the Maryland PSC on January 17, 2007. 

Florida. On March 22,2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida Public Service Commission (“Florida 
PSC”) seeking approval of special contracts to provide Delivery Point Operator (“DPO”) services. Under the proposed 
contracts, the DPO services would be provided to an affiliate company, Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. The 
Florida PSC approved the petition on July 7, 2006, ordering that the special contracts be effective June 20, 2006. 

On May 16, 2005, the Florida division filed a request with the Florida PSC for approval of a Special Contract with the 
Department of Management Services, an agency of the State of Florida, for service to the Washington Correction 
Institution (“WCI”). The Florida PSC approved the Company’s request on July 19,2005, and service to the existing WCI 
facility began in February 2006. WCI is located in Washington County in the Florida panhandle and is the thirteenth 
county served by the Company’s Florida division. 

On September 2, 2005, the Florida division filed a petition for a Declaratory Statement with the Florida PSC for a 
determination that Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc. (“PPC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, qualifies as a 
natural gas transmission company under the Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Intrastate Regulatory Act. The Florida 
PSC approved this Petition at its December 20,2005 agenda conference, and a final order was issued on January 9,2006. 
The determination that PPC qualifies as a natural gas transmission company provides opportunities for investment by 
PPC to provide natural gas transmission service to industrial customers in Florida by an intrastate pipeline. 

On September 15,2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for approval of its Energy Conservation 
Cost Recovery Factors for the year 2007. Approved on November 30th by the Florida PSC, the new factors went into 
effect on January 1,2007. 

On October 10,2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for authority to implement phase two of 
its experimental transitional transportation service (“TTS”) pilot program, and for approval of a new tariff to reflect the 
division’s transportation service environment. When approved, the implementation of phase two ofthe TTS program for 
residential and certain small commercial consumers will expand the number of pool managers from one to two, and 
increase the gas supply pricing options available to these consumers. A decision is expected from the Florida PSC in 
March 2007. 

On November 29, 2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for authority to modify its energy 
conservation programs. In this petition the Florida division is seeking approval to increase the cash allowances paid 
within the Residential Homebuilder Program and the Residential Appliance Replacement Program, and to expand the 
scope ofthe Residential Water Heater Retention Program to add natural gas heating systems, cooking and clothes drying 
appliances. A decision is expected from the Florida PSC in March 2007. 

Eastern Shore. During October 2002, Eastern Shore filed for recovery of gas supply realignment costs, which totaled 
$196,000 (including interest), associated with the implementation of FERC Order No. 636. At that time, the FERC 
deferred review of the filing pending settlement of a related matter concerning another transmission company. Upon 
resolution of the issue with the other transmission company, Eastern Shore resubmitted its filing to the FERC, requesting 
authorization to recover a total of $223,000 (including interest) of gas supply realignment costs. FERC approved Eastern 
Shore’s filing by letter order dated July 14, 2006. 

System Expansion 2006 - 2008. On January 20, 2006, Eastem Shore filed an application for a Certificate of 
Public Convenience and Necessity for its 2006-2008 system expansion project (the ”2006 - 2008 Project”) with 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Additional firm capacity per day 

Capital investment $17 million 

Annualized gross margin contribution $3,670,000 

26,200 

the FERC. The application requested authority to construct and operate approximately 55  miles ofnew pipeline 
facilities and two new metering and regulating station facilities to provide an additional 47,350 dekatherms per 
day (“dtid”) of firm transportation service in accordance with the phased-in customer requests of 26,200 dtid in 
2006, 10,300 dud in 2007, and 10,850 dtid in 2008, at a total estimated cost of approximately $33.6 million. 
The following table provides a breakdown for the additional amounts of firm capacity per day, the estimated 
capital investment required, and the estimated annual gross margin contribution for the new services that will 
become effective November 1’‘ for each of the respective years of the project: 

10,300 10,850 

$8 million $8 million 

$1,484,000 $1,595,000 

Year 

A Scoping Meeting was held on March 29,2006 at which the public and all other interested stakeholders were 
invited to attend to review the project. No opposition to the project was received. On June 13,2006, the FERC 
issued a Certificate to Eastem Shore authorizing it to construct and operate the 2006-2008 Project as proposed. 
Eastem Shore has completed and placed in service the authorized Phase I facilities. Phase I1 and Phase 111 
facilities are expected to be constructed in 2007 and 2008, respectively. 

Bay Crossing Proiect. On May 31, 2006, Eastem Shore entered into Precedent Agreements with Delmarva 
Power & Light Company (“Delmarva”) and Chesapeake, through its Delaware and Maryland Divisions to 
provide additional firm transportation services upon completion of its latest proposed pipeline project. 

Under the Bay Crossing Project, Eastem Shore has proposed to develop, construct and operate approximately 
63 miles of new pipeline facilities that would transport natural gas from Calvert County, Maryland, crossing 
under the Chesapeake Bay into Dorchester and Caroline Counties, Maryland, to points on the Delmarva 
Peninsula where such facilities would interconnect with its existing facilities in Sussex County, Delaware. 

Chesapeake and Delmarva are currently parties to existing firm natural gas transportation service agreements 
with Eastem Shore and each desires firm transportation services under the Bay Crossing Project, as evidenced 
by the May 31 Precedent Agreements. Pursuant to these Precedent Agreements, the parties have agreed to 
proceed with the required initiatives to obtain the govemmental and regulatory authorizations that are necessary 
for Eastem Shore to provide, and for Chesapeake and Delmarva to utilize, such firm transportation services 
under the Bay Crossing Project. 

During the negotiations of the Precedent Agreements, Eastem Shore and each of the participating customers 
entered into Letter Agreements which provide that, in the event that the Bay Crossing Project is not certified 
and placed in service, the participating customers will each pay their proportionate share of certain pre- 
certification costs by means of a negotiated surcharge of up to $2 million, over a period of no less than 20 years. 

In connection with the Bay Crossing Project, on June 27,2006 Eastem Shore submitted a petition to the FERC 
for approval of the uncontested Settlement Agreement. The Settlement Agreement provides Eastem Shore and 
all customers utilizing Eastem Shore’s system with benefits, including but not limited to the following: (1) 
advancement of a necessary infrastructure project to meet the growing demand for natural gas on the Delmarva 
Peninsula; ( 2 )  sharing of project development costs by the participating customers in the project; and (3) no 
development cost risk for non-participating customers. On August 1,2006, the FERC granted approval of the 
uncontested Settlement Agreement. On September 6, 2006, Eastem Shore submitted to FERC proposed tariff 
sheets to implement the provisions of the above-referenced Settlement Agreement. By Letter Order dated 
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October 6, 2006, the FERC accepted the tariff sheets effective September 7, 2006. Eastem Shore anticipates 
entering into a pre-filing process at the FERC during the first half of 2007 with the ultimate goal of obtaining 
FERC approval to construct the Proposed Project. Eastem Shore will also be required to obtain permits from 
other federal, state and local agencies prior to proceeding with construction. It is not until the Company obtains 
the appropriate approvals and permits that a majority of the total estimated cost of $93 million for the Bay 
Crossing Project is estimated to be spent. This estimated cost will depend upon the final size and route of the 
pipeline, as well as construction materials and labor costs. 

Rate Matters. On September 19, 2006, Eastern Shore submitted its Annual Charge Adjustment (“ACA”) 
compliance filing to reflect the most current ACA surcharge rate as established by the FERC. The compliance 
filing was accepted by the FERC and the revised ACA surcharge rate became effective on October 1,2006. 

On October 3 1,2006 Eastem Shore filed a Section 4 base rate proceeding in compliance with Article IX of the 
Stipulation & Agreement approved in its prior base rate proceeding in Docket No.RP02-34-000. Eastern 
Shore’s filed rates, proposed to be effective November 1,2006, reflect an annuaf increase of $j,j89,000 over its 
current rates. The proposed rate increase reflects increases in operating and maintenance expenses, depreciation 
expense, taxes other than income taxes, and retum on new gas plant facilities that are expected to be placed into 
service before March 3 1,2007. Eastern Shore proposed a retum on equity of 14.875 percent utilizing a capital 
structure of 39  percent debt and 6lpercent equity. 

On November 30,2006 the FERC issued its Order Accepting and Suspending Tariffsheets Subject to Refund 
and Establishing a Hearing. The FERC accepted and suspended the effectiveness of Eastem Shore’s rate 
increase until May 1,2007, subject to refund and the outcome of the hearing established in the order. 

On December 5, 2006 the FERC’s Chief Judge issued an order stating this proceeding is subject to a Track 
Three procedural schedule. Track Three denotes an exceptionally complex case and provides for a total of 63 
weeks within which a formal hearing will be conducted and an Initial Decision issued. The Chief Judge’s order 
also designated the Presiding Administrative Law Judge (‘‘ALJ”). 

On December 19, 2006 the ALJ issued an Order Establishing Procedural Schedule as agreed upon by the 
participants and the Judge at a pre-hearing conference held that same day. The procedural schedule specifies 
that an Initial Decision shall be issued on February 19,2008. The ALJ also strongly encouraged the participants 
in this proceeding to pursue a negotiated settlement through the Commission’s settlement process, thus 
eliminating the need for a formal hearing. 

Environmental Matters 
The Company continues to work with federal and state environmental agencies to assess the environmental impact and 
explore corrective action at three environmental sites (see Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The 
Company believes that future costs associated with these sites will be recoverable in rates or through sharing 
arrangements with, or contributions by, other responsible parties. 

Market Risk 
Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Long-term debt is 
subject to potential losses based on the change in interest rates. The Company’s long-term debt consists of senior notes 
and convertible debentures (see Note H to the Consolidated Financial Statements for annual maturities of consolidated 
long-term debt). All of Chesapeake’s long-term debt is fixed-rate debt. The carrying value of the Company’s long-term 
debt, including current maturities, was $78.7 million at December 3 1,2006 as compared to a fair value of $81.4 million, 
based mainly on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar terms 
and remaining maturities. The Company evaluates whether to refinance existing debt or permanently finance existing 
short-term borrowing based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. 
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The Company’s propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage activities and 
entering into fixed price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximately four million gallons of 
propane (including leased storage and rail cars) during the winter season to meet its customers’ peak requirements and to 
serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price ofpropane may cause the value of stored propane to decline. 
To mitigate the impact of price fluctuations, the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy that allows the 
propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its inventory. At December 3 1, 2006, the propane 
distribution operation had entered into a swap agreement to protect the Company from the impact of price increases on 
our price-cap plan that we offer to customers. The Company considers this agreement to be an economic hedge and does 
not qualify for hedge accounting as described in SFAS 133. At the end of the period, the market price of propane dropped 
below the unit price within the swap agreement. As a result of the price drop, the Company marked the agreement to 
market, which resulted in an unrealized loss of $84,000. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids (“NGL”) forward contracts, primarily 
propane contracts, with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane wholesale marketing operation 
purchase or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration, the contracts are settled by the delivery ofNGL 
to the Company or the counterparty or booking out the transaction (booking out is a procedure for financially settling a 
contract in lieu of the physical delivery of energy). The propane wholesale marketing operation also enters into futures 
contracts that are traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are settled by the 
payment of a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the futures contract and the original 
contract price. 

The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The propane wholesale 
marketing operation is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent that market prices for NGL 
deviate from fixed contract settlement amounts. Market risk associated with the trading of futures and forward contracts 
are monitored daily for compliance with Chesapeake’s Risk Management Policy, which includes volumetric limits for 
open positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices, open positions are marked up or down to market prices 
and reviewed by oversight officials on a daily basis. Additionally, the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic 
reports on market and credit risk, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within the limits established 
by the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. Quantitative information on the forward 
and futures contracts at December 31,2006 and 2005 is shown in the following charts. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31,2006 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 13,797,000 $0.9250 - $1.2100 $1.0107 
Purchase 13,733,800 $0.9250 - $1.2200 $1.0098 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expire in 2007. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31,2005 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 20,794,200 $1.0350 - $1.1013 $1.0718 
Purchase 20,202,000 $1.0100 - $1.0450 $1.0703 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expired in 2006. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution and marketing operations have entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers 
to purchase natural gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet the definition of 
derivatives in SFAS No. 133 or are considered ”normal purchases and sales” under SFAS No. 138 and are not marked to 
market. 
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Competition 
The Company’s natural gas operations compete with other forms of energy including electricity, oil and propane. The 
principal competitive factors are price, and to a lesser extent, accessibility. The Company’s natural gas distribution 
operations have several large volume industrial customers that have the capacity to use fuel oil as an altemative to natural 
gas. When oil prices decline, these interruptible customers convert to oil to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels 
in interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower relative to the price ofnatural gas. Oil prices, as well as the prices of 
electricity and other fuels, are subject to fluctuation for a variety of reasons; therefore, future competitive conditions are 
not predictable. To address this uncertainty, the Company uses flexible pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales 
side of this business to maximize sales volumes. As a result ofthe transmission business’ conversion to open access and 
the Florida division’s restructuring of its services, their businesses have shifted from providing competitive sales service 
to providing transportation and contract storage services. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida offer transportation 
services to certain commercial and industrial customers. In 2002, the Florida operation extended transportation service to 
residential customers. With transportation service available on the Company’s distribution systems, the Company is 
competing with third-party suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. As it relates to transportation services, the 
Company’s competitors include the interstate transmission company if the distribution customer is located close enough 
to the transmission company’s pipeline to make a connection economically feasible. The customers at risk are usually 
large volume commercial and industrial customers with the financial resources and capability to bypass the distribution 
operations in this manner. In certain situations, the distribution operations may adjust services and rates for these 
customers to retain their business. The Company expects to continue to expand the availability of transportation service 
to additional classes of distribution customers in the future. The Company established a natural gas sales and supply 
operation in Florida to compete for customers eligible for transportation services. The Company also provides sales 
service in Delaware. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their service 
territories, primarily on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. Competition 
is generally from local outlets of national distribution companies and local businesses, because distributors located in 
close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. Propane competes with electricity as an energy 
source, because it is typically less expensive than electricity, based on equivalent BTU value. Propane also competes 
with home heating oil as an energy source. Since natural gas has historically been less expensive than propane, propane 
is generally not distributed in geographic areas serviced by natural gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, many of which have significantly 
greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having 
substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition, changes in the advanced 
information services business are occurring rapidly, which could adversely impact the markets for the products and 
services offered by these businesses. This segment competes on the basis oftechnological expertise, reputation and price. 

Inflation 
Inflation affects the cost of labor, products and services required for operation, maintenance and capital improvements. 
While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane prices are subject to rapid 
fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural gas prices are passed on to customers through the gas cost recovery mechanism in the 
Company’s tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its capital investments and returns, the Company seeks 
rate relief from regulatory commissions for regulated operations while monitoring the returns of its unregulated business 
operations. To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, Chesapeake adjusts its propane selling prices to the 
extent allowed by the market. 
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Cautionary Statement 
Chesapeake has made statements in this report that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These statements are 
not matters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “will” or 
“may,” and other similar words of a predictive nature. These statements relate to matters such as customer growth, 
changes in revenues or gross margin, capital expenditures, environmental remediation costs, regulatory approvals, market 
risks associated with the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation, competition, inflation and other matters. It 
is important to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees but are subject to certain risks and 
uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward- 
looking statements. These factors include, among other things: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 

the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices on the Company’s distribution, wholesale marketing and 
energy trading businesses; 

amount and availability of natural gas and propane supplies and the access to interstate pipelines’ transportation 
and storage capacity; 

the effects ofnatural gas and propane commodity price changes may affect the operating costs and competitive 
positions of our natural gas and propane distribution operations; 

the effects of competition on the Company‘s unregulated and regulated businesses; 

the effect of changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including deregulation; 

the effect of changes in technology on the Company’s advanced information services segment; 

the effects of credit risk and credit requirements on the Company’s energy marketing subsidiaries; 

the effect of accounting changes; 

the effect of changes in benefit plan assumptions; 

the effect of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental damage; 

the effects of general economic conditions and including interest rates on the Company and its customers; 

the ability of the Company’s new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected revenues; 

the Company’s ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators and the timing 
of the requested regulatory actions; and 

the Company’s ability to obtain necessary approvals and permits by regulatory agencies on a timely basis. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk is included in Item 7 under the heading 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk.“ 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f). A company‘s internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer, Chesapeake’s management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its intemal control over 
financial reporting based on the criteria established in a report entitled “Internal Control -Integrated Framework” issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent limitations, internal 
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Chesapeake’s management 
has evaluated and concluded that Chesapeake’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 3 1, 
2006. 

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of Chesapeake’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 
3 1,2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated 
in their report which is included herein. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

We have completed integrated audits of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation‘s consolidated financial statements and of its 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below. 

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)( 1) present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 3 1,2006 
and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 3 1, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) 
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related 
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial 
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits ofthese statements in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note K to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts 
for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans, effective December 3 1,2006. 

Internal control over financial reporting 

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting appearing under Item 8, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 3 1,2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on 
those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes 
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we 
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company‘s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
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and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Boston, MA 
March 13,2007 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Operating Revenues $231,200,591 $229,629,736 $177.955,441 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of sales, excluding costs below 155,810,622 153,514.739 109,626,377 
Operations 37,053,223 40,18 1,648 3 5,146.595 
Maintenance 2,103,562 1,818,981 1,518,774 
Depreciation and amortization 8,243,7 15 7,568,209 7,257,538 
Other taxes 5,058,158 5.015,660 4,436,411 

Total operating expenses 208,269,280 208.099.237 157,985,695 

Operating Income 22,931,311 2 1,530,499 19,969,746 

Other income net of other expenses 189,112 382,626 549,156 

Interest charges 5,777,336 5,133,495 5,268,145 

Income Before Income Taxes 17,343,087 16,779,630 15,250,757 

Income taxes 6,836,562 6,312,016 5,701,090 

Net Income from Continuing Operations 10,506,525 10,467,614 9,549,667 

Loss from discontinued operations, net of 
tax benefit of $0, $0 and $59,751 (120,900) 

Net Income $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,428,767 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock  
Basic 

From continuing operations $1.74 $1.79 $1.66 - .  

Net Income $1.74 

Diluted 
From continuing operations $1.72 $1.77 $1.64 - .  

0.02 
Net Income $1.72 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Page 48 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10-K 



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Operating Activities 
Net Income $10,506,525 $10,467,6 14 $9,428,767 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 8,243,715 7,568,209 7,257,538 
Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 3,102,066 2,705,620 2,611,779 
Deferred income taxes, net (408,533) 1,510,777 4,559,207 
Unrealized gain (loss) on commodity contracts 37,110 (227,193) 353,183 
Unrealized loss on investments (151,952) (56,650) (43,256) 
Employee benefits and compensation 382,608 1,62 1,607 1,536,586 
Other, net (18,596) (62,692) 67,079 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Sale (purchase) of investments (177,990) (1,242,563) 43,354 
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 9,705,860 (16,831,751) (11,723,505) 
Propane inventory, storage gas and other inventory 354,764 (5,704,040) (1,741,941) 
Regulatory assets 2,498,954 (1,719,184) 428,516 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (271,438) 36,704 (221,137) 
Other deferred charges (231,822) (102,561) ( 168,89 8) 
Long-term receivables 137,101 247,600 428,964 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (1 1,434,370) 15,569,924 9,731,360 
Income taxes receivable (payable) 1,800,913 (2,006,762) (229,237) 

(42,376) (5 1,272) Accrued interest 
Customer deposits and refunds 2,36 1,265 462,781 665,549 
Accrued compensation (542,512) 875,342 (794,194) 
Regulatory liabilities 2,824,068 144,501 (191,266) 
Other liabilities 1,125,590 385,034 55,977 

2 73,6 72 

Net cash provided by operating activities 30,116,998 13,599,94 1 22,003,153 

Investing Activities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures (48,845,828) (33,319,613) (16,435,938) 
Sale of investments 135,170 
Sale of discontinued operations 4 15,707 

369,719 240,336 2 15,549 
Net cash used by investing activities (48,861,377) (33,079,277) (15,515,342) 

Financing Activities 
Common stock dividends (5,982,531) (5,789,180) (5,560,535) 

Stock issuance 19,698,509 
Cash settlement of warrants (434,782) 
Change in cash overdrafts due to outstanding checks 
Net borrowing (repayment) under line of credit agreements (7,977,347) 29,606,400 1,184,742 

Repayment of long-term debt (4,929,674) (4,794,827) (3,665,589) 
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 20,745,087 20,355,233 (7,984,551) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,000,708 875,897 (1,496,740) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period 2,487,658 1,611,761 3,108,501 

Cash and Cash Equivalents -End of Period S4,488,366 $2,487,658 $1,611,761 

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing Activities: 

Issuance of stock for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 321,865 458,757 200,551 

49,047 874,083 (143,720) 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 20,000,000 

Capital property and equipment acquired on account, 
but not paid as of December 3 1 SI ,490,890 $1,367,348 $1,678,724 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow information 
Cash paid for interest 
Cash paid for income taxes 

$5,334,477 $5,052,0 13 $5,280,299 
$6,285,272 $6,342,476 $1,977,223 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Assets 
At December 31, 2006 2005 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $269,012,516 $220,685,461 
Propane 44,791,552 41,563,810 
Advanced information services 1,054,368 1,221,177 
Other plant 9,147,500 9,275,729 

Total property, plant and equipment 324,005,936 272,746,177 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (85,010,472) (78,840,413) 
Plus: Construction work in progress 1,829,948 7,598,531 

Net property, plant and equipment 240,825,412 201,504,295 

Investments 2,015,577 1,685,635 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,488,366 2,487,658 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectible 

accounts of $661,597 and $861,378, respectively) 44,969,182 54,284,011 
Accrued revenue 4,325,351 4,716,383 
Propane inventory, at average cost 7,187,035 6,332,956 
Other inventory, at average cost 1,564,937 1,538,936 
Regulatory assets 1,275,653 4,434,828 

7,393,335 8,628,179 Storage gas prepayments 
Income taxes receivable 1,078,882 2,725,840 
Deferred income taxes 1,365,316 
Prepaid expenses 2,280,900 2,021,164 
Other current assets 1,553,284 1:596:797 

Total current assets 17,482,241 88,766,752 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodwill 674,451 674,451 
Other intangible assets, net 191,878 205,683 
Long-term receivables 824,333 961,434 

1,765,088 1,178,232 Other regulatory assets 
Other deferred charges 1,215,004 1,003,393 

Total deferred charges and other assets 4,670,754 4,023,193 

Total Assets S324,993,984 $295,979,875 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Capitalization and Liabilities 
At December 31, 2006 2005 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equity 

Common Stock; par value $0.4867 per share 
(authorized 12,000.000 shares) (1) $3,254,998 $2,863,212 

Additional paid-in capital 61,960,220 39,619,849 
Retained earnings 46,270,884 42,854.894 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (334,550) ( 5 7 8 3  1) 

797 156 5 1,118,509 

Total stockholders' equity 11 1,151,552 84,757,183 

Deferred compensation obligation 1,118,509 794,535 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 71,050,000 58,990,363 

Total capitalization 182,201,552 143,747,546 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of  long-term debt 7,656,364 4,929,091 
Short-term borrowing 27,553,941 35,482,241 
Accounts payable 33,870,552 45,645,228 
Customer deposits and refunds 7,502,265 5,140,999 
Accrued interest 832,392 558,719 
Dividends payable 1,939,482 1,676,398 
Income taxes payable 
Deferred income taxes 1,150,828 
Accrued compensation 2,901,053 3,793,244 
Regulatory liabilities 4,199,147 550,546 
Other accrued liabilities 4,005,795 3,560,055 

Total current liabilities 90,460,991 102,487,349 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 26,517,098 24,248,624 
Deferred investment tax credits 328,277 367,085 
Other regulatory liabilities 1,236,254 2,008,779 
Environmental liabilities 211,581 352,504 
Accrued pension costs 1,608,311 3,099,882 
Accrued asset removal cost 18,410,992 16,727,268 
Other liabilities 4,018,928 2,940,838 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 52,331,441 49,744,980 

Other Commitments and Contingencies (Note N) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $324,993,984 $295;979,875 

(1) Shares issued were 6:688;084 and 5,883,099 for 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
Shares outstanding were 6,688,084 and 5,883,002 for 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan' of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Common Stock 
Balance - beginning of year 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 
Performance shares and options exercised (') 

$2,863,212 $2,812,538 $2,754,748 
18,685 20,038 20,125 
14,457 10,255 19,058 
8,117 1 1,004 9,060 

14,536 9,377 9,547 
Stock issuance 335,991 

Balance - end of year 3,254,998 2,863,212 2,812,538 

Additional Paid-in Capital 
Balance - beginning of year 39,619,849 36,854,717 34,176,361 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 1,148,100 1,224,874 996,715 
Retirement Savings Plan 900,354 682,829 946,319 
Conversion of debentures 275,300 373,259 307,940 
Performance shares and options exercised ('I 887,426 484,170 427,382 
Stock issuance 19,362,518 
Exercise wanants, net of tax (233,327) 

Balance - end of year 61,960,220 39,619,849 36,854,717 

Retained Earnings 
Balance - beginning of year 

Net income 
Cash dividends (*) 

42,854,894 39,015,087 36,008,246 
10,506,525 10,467,614 9,428,767 
(7,090,535) (6,627,807) (6,403,450) 

Loss on issuance of treasury stock (1 8,476) 
Balance - end of year 46,270,884 42,854,894 39,015,087 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 
Balance - beginning of year (578,151) (527,246) 

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax 74,036 (50,905) (527,246) 
Gain on funded status of Employee Benefit Plans, net of tax 

Balance - end of year (334,550) (578,151) (527,246) 
169,565 

Deferred Compensation Obligation 
Balance - beginning of year 794,535 816,044 913,689 

296,790 

Balance - end of year 1,118,509 794,535 8 16,044 

New deferrals 323,974 130,426 
Payout of deferred compensation (15 1,935) (394,435) 

Treasury Stock 
Balance - beginning of year (797,156) (1,008,696) (913,689) 

New deferrals related to compensation obligation (323,974) (130,426) (296,790) 
Purchase of treasury stock (51,572) (182,292) (344,753) 
Sale and distribution oftreasury stock 54,193 524,258 546,536 

Balance - end of year (1,118,509) (797,156) (1,008,696) 

Total Stockholders' Equity 5111,151,552 $84,757,183 $77,962,444 

('I  Includes amounts for shares issued for Directors' compensation. 
(*) Cash dividends declared per share for 2006,2005 and 2004 were $1.16, $1.14 and $1.12, respectively. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Net income $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,428,767 
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of 

$48,889, $33,615 and $347,726, respectively 74,036 (50,905) (527,246) 

Comprehensive Income S10,580,561 $10,4 16,709 $8,90 1,52 1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Current Income Tax  Expense 
Federal $5,994,296 $3,687,800 $1,221,155 
State 1,424,485 789,233 618,916 
Investment tax credit adjustments, net (54,816) (54,s 16) ( 54,s 16) 

Total current income tax expense 7,363,965 4,422,217 1,785,255 

Deferred Income Tax Expense (” 
Property, plant and equipment 1,697,024 1,380,628 4,230,650 
Deferred gas costs (2,085,066) 1,064,310 283,547 
Pensions and other employee benefits (97,436) (340,987) (49,620) 
Environmental expenditures (5,580) (98,229) (150,864) 
Other (36,345) (115,923) (397,878) 

Total deferred income tax expense (527,403) 1,889,799 3,915,835 
Total Income Tax Expense $6,836,562 $6,312,016 $5,701,090 

Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rates 
Federal income tax expense (2) 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 
$6,070,080 $5,872,871 $5,185,257 

8 0 4,9 8 8 708,192 736,116 
Other (38,506) (269,047) (220,343) 

Total Income Tax Expense $6,836,562 $6,312,016 $5,701,090 

Effective income tax rate 39.4% 37.6% 37.4% 

At December 31, 2006 2005 

Deferred Income Taxes 
Deferred income tax liabilities: 

Property, plant and equipment 
Environmental costs 
Deferred gas costs 

$27,997,744 $26,795,452 

1,664,252 
204,149 

Other 870,424 612,943 
Total deferred income tax liabilities 29,072,317 29,012,647 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Pension and other employee benefits 2,225,944 2,289,370 
Self insurance 468,922 575,303 
Environmental costs 181,734 
Deferred gas costs 528,814 
Other 6 9 6,8 5 5 626,788 

Total deferred income tax assets 3,920,535 3,613,195 
Deferred Income Taxes Per Consolidated Balance Sheet $25,151,782 $25,399,452 

(1) Includes ($54,000), $146,000 and $386,000 of deferred state income taxes for the years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
(2) Federal income taxes were recorded at 35% for the years 2006 and 2005. They were recorded at 34% in 2004. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake” or “the Company”) is engaged in natural gas distribution to 
approximately 59,100 customers located in central and southem Delaware: Maryland‘s Eastem Shore and Florida. The 
Company’s natural gas transmission subsidiary operates an intrastate pipeline from various points in Pennsylvania and 
northem Delaware to the Company’s Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as other utility and industrial 
customers in Pennsylvania, Delaware and the Eastem Shore of Maryland. The Company‘s propane distribution and 
wholesale marketing segment provides distribution service to approximately 33,300 customers in central and southem 
Delaware, the Eastern Shore of Maryland, southeastem Pennsylvania, central Florida and the Eastem Shore of Virginia, 
and markets propane to wholesale customers including large independent oil and petrochemical companies, resellers and 
propane distribution companies in the southeastem United States. The advanced information services segment provides 
domestic and international clients with information technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise 
and e-business applications. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. The 
Company does not have any ownership interests in investments accounted for using the equity method or any variable 
interests in a variable interest entity. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

System of Accounts 
The natural gas distribution divisions of the Company located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to 
regulation by their respective Public Service Commissions with respect to their rates for service, maintenance of their 
accounting records and various other matters. Eastem Shore Natural Gas Company is an open access pipeline and is 
subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). Our financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which give appropriate recognition to the ratemaking and 
accounting practices and policies of the various commissions. The propane, advanced information services and other 
business segments are not subject to regulation with respect to rates or maintenance of accounting records. 

Property, Plant, Equipment and Depreciation 
Utility and non-utility property is stated at original cost. The costs of repairs and minor replacements are charged against 
income as incurred and the costs of major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Upon retirement or disposition of 
non-utility property, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to income. Upon retirement or disposition of utility 
property, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable property over the 
estimated remaining useful life of the asset. Depreciation and amortization expenses are provided at an annual rate for 
each segment. The three-year average rates were 3 percent for natural gas distribution and transmission, 5 percent for 
propane, 11 percent for advanced information services and 7 percent for general plant. 
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At December 31, 2006 2005 Useful Life (’) 
Plant in service 

Mains 
Services - utility 
Compressor station equipment 
Liquefied petroleum gas equipment 
Meters and meter installations 
Measuring and regulating station equipmer 
Office furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Structures and improvements 
Land and land rights 
Propane bulk plants and tanks 

$1 51,890,304 
32,334,145 
24,921,976 
24,627,398 
16,093,737 
13,272,201 
10,114,101 
10,686,259 
9,538,345 
7,386,268 
5,301,457 

$1 13,111,408 
29,010,008 
23,853,871 
22,162,867 
15,165,212 
12,219,964 
9,572,926 
9,822,272 
9,161,696 
5,646,852 
6,097,036 

24-37 years 
14-28 years 
28 years 
30-39 years 
Propane 15-33 years, Natural gas 17-49 years 
17-37 years 
Non-regulated 3-10 years, Regulated 3-20 years 
2-1 1 years 
5-44 years (2) 

Not depreciable, except certain regulated assets 
15 - 40 years 

Various 17,839,745 16,922,065 Various 
Total plant in service 324,005,936 272,746,177 
Plus construction work in progress 1,829,948 7,598,531 
Less accumulated depreciation (85;010,472) (78,840,4131 
Net property, plant and equipment $240:825,412 $201,504,295 

Certain immaterial account balances may fall outside this range. 

The regulated operations compute depreciation in accordance with rates approved by either the state Public Service Commission 
or the FERC. These rates are based on depreciation studies and may change periodically upon receiving approval from the 
appropriate regulatory body. The depreciation rates shown above are based on the remaining useful lives of the assets at the 
time of the depreciation study, rather than their original lives. The depreciation rates are composite, straight-line rates applied 
to the average investment for each class of depreciable property and are adjusted for anticipated cost of removal less salvage 
value. 

The non-regulated operations compute depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset 

Includes buildings, structures used in connection with natural gas and propane operations, improvements to those facilities 
and leasehold improvements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Company’s policy is to invest cash in excess of operating requirements in overnight income producing accounts. 
Such amounts are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Investments with an original maturity of three months 
or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents. 

lnven tories 
The Company uses the average cost method to value propane and materials and supplies inventory. If the market prices 
drop below cost, inventory balances that are subject to price risk are adjusted to market values. 

Regulatory Assets, Liabilities and Expenditures 
The Company accounts for its regulated operations in accordance with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation.” This standard includes accounting principles for companies whose rates are determined by 
independent third-party regulators. When setting rates, regulators often make decisions, the economics of which require 
companies to defer costs or revenues in different periods than may be appropriate for unregulated enterprises. When this 
situation occurs, the regulated utility defers the associated costs as assets (regulatory assets) on the balance sheet, and 
records them as expense on the income statement as it collects revenues. Further, regulators can also impose liabilities 
upon a company for amounts previously collected from customers, and for recovery of costs that are expected to be 
incurred in the future (regulatory liabilities). 

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the regulated utility operations had recorded the following regulatory assets and 
liabilities on the Balance Sheets. These assets and liabilities will be recognized as revenues and expenses in future 
periods as they are reflected in customers’ rates. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

At December 31, 2006 2005 

Regulatory Assets 
Current 
Underrecovered purchased gas costs $1,076,921 $4,016,522 
Conservation cost recovery 51,408 303,930 

PSC Assessment 22,290 
Flex rate asset 81,926 113,922 
Other 43,108 
Total current 1,275,653 4,434,828 

Swing transportation imbalances 454 

Non-Current 
Income tax related amounts due from customers 1,300,544 71 1,961 
Deferred regulatory and other expenses 188,686 89,258 
Deferred gas supply 15,201 15,201 
Deferred Dost retirement benefits 138,949 166,739 
5 195,073 
Total non-current 1,765,088 1,178,232 

Total Regulatory Assets $3,040,741 $5,613,060 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Current 
Self insurance - current $568,897 $44,221 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 2,351,553 
Shared interruptible margins 100,355 3,039 
Operational flow order penalties 7,831 7,831 
Swing transportation imbalances 1,170,511 495,455 
Total current 4,199,147 550,546 

N on-Cu rren t 
Self insurance - long-term 600,787 1,383,247 
Income tax related amounts due to customers 285,819 327,893 
Environmental overcollections 349,648 297,639 
Total non-current 1,236,254 2,008,779 

Accrued asset removal cost 18,410,992 16,727,268 

Total Regulatory Liabilities $23,846,393 $19,286,593 

Included in the regulatory assets listed above are $133,000 of which is accruing interest. Of the remaining regulatory 
assets, $1.4 million will be collected in approximately one to two years, $3 10,000 will be collected within approximately 
3 to 10 years, and $1.4 million are awaiting regulatory approval for recovery, but once approved are expected to be 
collected within 12 months. 

As required by SFAS No. 71, the Company monitors its regulatory and competitive environment to determine whether 
the recovery of its regulatory assets continues to be probable. If the Company were to determine that recovery of these 
assets is no longer probable, it would write off the assets against earnings. The Company believes that SFAS No. 71 
continues to apply to its regulated operations, and that the recovery of its regulatory assets is probable. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
The Company accounts for its goodwill and other intangibles under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is not amortized, but it is tested for impairment at least annually. In addition, 
goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that 
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. Other intangible assets are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic useful lives. Please refer to Note F “Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets” for additional discussions of this area. 
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Other Deferred Charges 
Other deferred charges include discount, premium and issuance costs associated with long-term debt. Debt costs are 
deferred and then are amortized to interest expense over the original lives of the respective debt issuances. Deferred post- 
employment benefits are adjusted based on current age, the present value of the projected annual benefit received and 
estimated life expectancy. 

Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credit Adjustments 
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. Income tax expense allocated to the Company’s subsidiaries 
is based upon their respective taxable incomes and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial 
statements bases and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using current effective income tax rates. The 
portions of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities applicable to utility operations, which have not been reflected in 
current service rates, represent income taxes recoverable through future rates. Investment tax credits on utility property 
have been deferred and are allocated to income ratably over the lives of the subject property. 

Financial Instruments 
Xeron, Inc. (“Xeron”), the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation, engages in trading activities using 
forward and futures contracts which have been accounted for using the mark-to-market method of accounting. Under 
mark-to-market accounting, the Company’s trading contracts are recorded at fair value, net of future servicing costs. The 
changes in market price are recognized as gains or losses in revenues on the income statement in the period of change. 
The resulting unrealized gains and losses are recorded as assets or liabilities, respectively. There were unrealized gains of 
$8,500 and $46,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Trading liabilities are recorded in other accrued 
liabilities. Trading assets are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets. 

The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas and 
propane suppliers to purchase gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet the 
definition of derivatives in SFAS No. 133 or are considered “normal purchases and sales” under SFAS No. 138 and are 
accounted for on an accrual basis. 

The propane distribution operation has entered into a fair value hedge of its inventory, in order to mitigate the impact of 
wholesale price fluctuations. At December 3 1, 2006, the propane distribution operation had entered into a swap 
agreement to protect the Company from the impact of price increases on our price-cap plan that we offer to customers. 
The Company considers this agreement to be an economic hedge and does not qualify for hedge accounting as described 
in SFAS 133. At the end of the period, the market price of propane dropped below the unit price within the swap 
agreement. As a result of the price drop, the Company marked the agreement to market, which resulted in an unrealized 
loss of $84,000. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Earnings Per Share 
The calculations of both basic and diluted eamings per share from continuing operations are presented in the following 
chart. 

For  the Periods Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share: 
Net Income $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,549,667 
Weighted average shares outstanding 6,032,462 5,836,463 5,735,405 

Basic Earnings Per Share $1.74 $1.79 $1.66 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Reconcil iation of Numerator: 
Net Income - Basic $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,549,667 
Effect of 8.25% Convertible debentures 105,024 123,559 139,097 

Adjusted numerator - Diluted $10,611,549 $10,591,173 $9,688,764 

Reconcil iation of Denominator: 
Weighted shares outstanding - Basic 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options 
Warrants 

6,032,462 5,836,463 5,735,405 

1,784 
11,711 7,900 

8.25% Convertible debentures 122,669 144,378 162,466 
Adjusted denominator - Diluted 6,155,131 5,992,552 5,907,555 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $1.72 $1.77 $1.64 

Operating Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved by the various public 
service commissions. The natural gas transmission operation’s revenues are based on rates approved by the FERC. 
Customers‘ base rates may not be changed without formal approval by these commissions; however, the regulatory 
authorities have granted our regulated natural gas distribution operations the ability to negotiate rates with customers that 
have competitive altematives using approved methodologies. In addition, the natural gas transmission operation can 
negotiate rates above or below the FERC-approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s Maryland and Delaware natural gas distribution operations each have a gas cost recovery mechanism that 
provides for the adjustment of rates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are collected or refunded 
through adjustments to rates in subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial interruptible customers to compete with 
altemative types of fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or altemative types of supply. Neither 
the Company nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity net on the Company’s income statement, on a mark- 
to-market basis, for open contracts. The propane distribution, advanced information services and other segments record 
revenue in the period the products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Certain Risks and Uncertainties 
The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles that require 
management to make estimates in measuring assets and liabilities and related revenues and expenses (see Notes M and N 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for significant estimates). These estimates involve judgments with respect to, 
among other things, various future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond the control of the 
Company; therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The Company records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 71. If the Company were required to 
terminate application of SFAS No. 71 for its regulated operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the 
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income statement at that time. This could result in a charge to eamings, net of applicable income taxes, which could be 
material. 

FASB Statements and Other Authoritative Pronouncements 
In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 20041, “Share- 
Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”). SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2005. The Company was required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the first quarter of 2006. The Company is 
required to measure the cost of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock 
options, using a fair-value-based method. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 no longer 
will be an alternative to financial statement recognition. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material 
impact on the financial statements 

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”. This statement applies to 
all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the 
unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions. When a pronouncement includes 
specific transition provisions, those provisions should be followed. This statement requires retrospective application to 
prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the 
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. This statement was effective for accounting changes and 
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,2005. The Company was required to adopt SFAS 
No. 154 in the first quarter of 2006. The implementation of this statement did not have a material impact on 
Chesapeake’s financial statements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans”. This statement improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to recognize the over- 
funded or under-funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its statement of financial 
position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive 
income. The Company is required to initially recognize the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and to 
provide the required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15,2006. The Company adopted 
SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006. Based on the fair value of plan assets and their related funded status at 
December 31, 2006, the adoption of SFAS 158 resulted in an increase in total assets by approximately $282,000, an 
increase in total liabilities by approximately $1 12,000 and an increase to total shareholders equity by approximately 
$170,000. Please refer to Note K “Employee Benefit Plans,” for details of each of the Company’s benefit plans. 

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Employers’ Accounting for Uncertainty in Income 
Taxes”. This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial 
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. This interpretation prescribes a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax 
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, 
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. This interpretation is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Chesapeake is required to adopt FIN No. 48 in the first 
quarter of 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this interpretation will have on our financial 
statements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. This statement defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures 
about fair value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair 
value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the 
relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this statement does not require any new fair value measurements. This 
statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim 
periods within those fiscal years. Chesapeake will be required to adopt SFAS No. 157 in the first quarter of 2008. The 
Company has not yet evaluated the impact that this statement will have on our financial statements. 
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In September 2006, the SEC issued StaffAccounting Bulletin No. 108, which expresses the SEC’s views regarding the 
process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. The application of the guidance in this bulletin is applicable at 
December 3 1,2006. The implementation of this bulletin did not have any impact on the Company‘s financial statements. 

Reclassification of Prior Years’ Amounts 
Certain prior years’ amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 

B. BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and sold six of its seven operations. The 
remaining operation was sold in October 2004. At December 3 1, 2006, all property and assets of the water 
subsidiary have been sold. The results of operations for all water service businesses have been reclassified to 
discontinued operations for all periods presented. Operating revenues for discontinued operations was $1.1 million 
and operating losses for discontinued operations was $94,000 for 2004. A loss of $52,000, net of tax, was recorded 
for 2004 on the sale of the water operations. The Company did not have any discontinued operations in 2006 and 
2005. 
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C. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
The following table presents information about the Company’s reportable segments. The table excludes discontinued 
operations. 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $170,114,514 $166,388,562 $124,073,939 
Propane 48,575,976 48,975,349 41,499,687 
Advanced information services 12,509,077 14,121,441 12,38 1,815 
Other 1,024 144,384 

Total operating revenues, unafiliated customers S231,200,591 $229,629,736 $177,955,441 

lntersegment Revenues (I) 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $259,969 $1 93,404 $172,427 
Propane 668 
Advanced information services 58,532 18,123 45,266 
Other 618,493 618,492 647,378 

Total intersegment revenues $936,994 $830,687 $865,071 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~  ~ 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $1 9,733,487 $17,2353 10 $17,09 1,360 
Propane 2,534,035 3,209,388 2,363,884 
Advanced information services 767,160 1,196,544 387,193 
Other and eliminations (103,371) (1 1 1,243) 127,309 

Total operating income $22,931,311 $2 1,530,499 $19,969,746 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $6,312,277 $5,682,137 $5,418,007 
Propane 1,658,554 1,574,357 1,524,016 
Advanced information services 112,729 122,569 138,007 
Other and eliminations 160,155 189,146 177,508 

Total depreciation and amortization $8,243,715 $7,568,209 $7,257,538 

Capital Expenditures 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $43,894,614 $28,433,671 $13,945,214 
Propane 4,778,891 3,955,799 3,395,190 
Advanced information services 159,402 294,792 84,185 
Other 321,204 739,079 404,941 

Total capital expenditures $49,154,111 $33,423,341 $17,829,530 

( I )  All significant intersegment revenues are billed at market rates and have been eliminated from consolidated revenues 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
~ 

Identifiable Assets 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $252,292,600 $225,667,049 $184,412,301 
Propane 60,170,200 57,344,859 47,531,106 
Advanced information services 2,573,810 2,062,902 2,387,440 
Other 9,957,374 10,905,065 7,379,794 

Total identifiable assets S324,993,984 $295,979,875 $24 1,7 10,64 1 

Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its business around 
differences in products or services and the operating results of each segment are regularly reviewed by the Company’s 
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chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about resources and to assess performance. The segments are 
evaluated based on their pre-tax operating income. 

The Company’s operations are all domestic. The advanced information services segment has infrequent transactions with 
foreign companies, located primarily in Canada, which are denominated and paid in U.S. dollars. These transactions are 
immaterial to the consolidated revenues. 

D. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instruments because they are cash or are to be 
settled in cash. The carrying values ofthese items generally approximate their fair value (see Note E to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for disclosure of fair value of investments). The Company’s open forward and futures contracts at 
December 3 1,2006 had a gain in fair value of $8,500 and at December 3 1,2005 had a gain in fair value of $46,000 based 
on market rates. The fair value ofthe Company’s long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flow methodology. 
The Company’s long-term debt at December 3 1,2006, including current maturities, had an estimated fair value of $81.4 
million as compared to a carrying value of $78.7 million. At December 31, 2005, the estimated fair value was 
approximately $68.5 million as compared to a carrying value of $63.9 million. These estimates are based on published 
corporate borrowing rates for debt instruments with similar terms and average maturities. 

E. INVESTMENTS 
The investment balances at December 31, 2006 and 2005 represent a Rabbi Trust (“the trust”) associated with the 
Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. In accordance with SFAS No. 11 5, “Accounting for 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” the Company classifies these investments as trading securities. As a 
result of classifying them as trading securities, we are required to report the securities at their fair value, with any 
unrealized gains and losses included in other income. We also have an associated liability that is recorded and adjusted 
each month, along with other expense, for the gains and losses incurred by the trust. At December 3 1,2006 and 2005, 
total investments had a fair value of $2.0 million and $1.7 million. 

F. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. In addition, goodwill of a 
reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more 
likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. The propane unit had $674,000 in 
goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Testing for 2006 and 2005 has indicated that no 
impairment has occurred. 
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The carrying value and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization for the two years ended 
December 31, 2006 are as follows: 

December 31,2006 December 31,2005 

Gross Gross 
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization 

Customer lists S115,333 $75,057 $115,333 $61,845 
Acquisition costs 263,659 112,057 2 6 3,6 5 9 105,465 

Total $378,992 $187,114 $378,992 $173,310 

Amortization of intangible assets was $14,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 
estimated annual amortization of intangibles is $14,000 per year for each ofthe years 2007 through 201 1, respectively. 

G. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
The changes in the common stock shares issued and outstanding are shown in the table below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Common Stock shares issued and outstanding ( I )  

Shares issued - beginning of period balance 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (*) 
Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 
Employee award plan 
Performance shares and options exercised ('' 

5,883,099 5,118,916 5,660,594 
38,392 41,115 40,993 
29,705 21,011 39,151 
16,677 22,609 18,616 

29,516 19,268 19,616 
350 

Public offering 690,345 
Shares issued - end of period balance (4) 6,688,084 5,883,099 5,118,916 

Treasury shares - beginning of period balance 
Purchases 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Retirement Savings Plan 

(97) (9,418) 
(4,852) (15,3 16) 
2,142 

12,03 1 
Other issuances 97 5,898 

Treasury Shares - end of period balance (97) (9,418) 

Total Shares Outstanding 6,688,084 5,883,002 5,769,558 

( I )  12,000,000 shares are authorized at a par value of $0.4867 per share. 
('I Includes shares purchased with reinvested dividends and optional cash payments. 
(3) Includes shares issued for Directors' compensation. 
(4) Includes 48,187,37,528, and 48,175 shares at December 31,2006,2005 and 2004, respectively, held in a 

Rabbi Trust established by the Company relating to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. 

In 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into agreements with an investment banker to assist in identifying acquisition 
candidates. Under the agreements, the Company issued warrants to the investment banker to purchase 15,000 shares of 
Chesapeake stock in 2000 at an exercise price of $18.00 per share and 15,000 in 2001 at an exercise price of $18.25 per 
share. In August 2006, the investment banker exercised the 30,000 warrants pursuant to the terms of the agreement at 
$33.3657 per share. At the request of the investment banker, Chesapeake settled the warrants with a cash payment of 
$435,000, in lieu of issuing shares of the Company's common stock. At December 3 1,2006, Chesapeake does not have 
any stock warrants outstanding. 
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On November 21,2006 the Company completed a public offering of 600,300 shares of its common stock at a price per 
share of $30.10. On November 30: 2006, the Company completed the sale of 90,045 additional shares of its common 
stock, pursuant to the over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters by the Company. The net proceeds from the sale 
of common stock, after deducting underwriting commissions and expenses, were approximately $19.8 million, which 
were added to the Company’s general funds and used primarily to repay a portion of the Company’s short-term debt 
under unsecured lines of credit. 

H. LONG-TERM DEBT 
The outstanding long-term debt, net of current maturities, is as shown below. 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Uncollateralized senior notes: 

7.97% note, due February 1, 2008 %1,000,000 52,000,000 $3,000,000 

6.85%note, due January 1, 2012 4,000,000 5,000,000 6,000,000 
7.83% note, due January 1, 2015 14,000,000 16,000,000 20,000,000 
6.64% note, due October 31,2017 27,272,727 30,000,000 30,000,000 

6.91% note, due October I ,  2010 2,727,273 3,636,363 4,545,454 

5.50% note, due October 12,2020 20,000,000 
Convertible debentures: 

8.25% due March 1. 2014 1,970,000 2.254.000 2,644,000 
Promissory note 80,000 100,000 
Total Long-Term Debt $71,050,000 $58,990,363 $66,189,454 

Annual matiirities of consolidatedlong-term debtfor the nextfive years are as follows: 57,656,964 for  2007. 
S 7,656.361 for 2008, 56,656,364for 2009,$6,656,364 for 201 0 and S7,747,Z 73 for  201 I 

The convertible debentures may be converted, at the option ofthe holder, into shares ofthe Company’s common stock at 
a conversion price of $17.01 per share. During 2006 and 2005, debentures totaling $284,000 and $385,000, respectively, 
were converted to stock. The debentures are also redeemable for cash at the option of the holder, subject to an annual 
non-cumulative maximum limitation of $200,000. In 2006, no debentures were redeemed for cash. During 2005, 
debentures totaling $5,000 were redeemed for cash. At the Company’s option, the debentures may be redeemed at stated 
amounts. 

On October 12,2006, the Company issued $20 million of 5.5 percent Senior Notes to three institutional investors (The 
Prudential Insurance Company ofAmerica, Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company and United Omaha 
Life Insurance Company). The original note agreement was executed on October 18,2005 and provided for the Company 
to sell the Notes at any time prior to January 15,2007. The terms of the Notes require annual principal repayments of $2 
million beginning on the fifth anniversary ofthe issuance ofthe Notes. The Notes will mature on October 12,2020. The 
proceeds from this issuance were used to reduce a portion of the Company’s outstanding short-term debt. 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The most stringent 
restrictions state that the Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization and the pro-forma 
fixed charge coverage ratio must be 1.5 times. The Company is in compliance with all of its debt covenants. 

I. SHORT-TERM BORROWING 
As of December 3 1,2006, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has authorized the Company to borrow up to $55.0 million 
from various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. During 2006, the Board authorized increases in 
the Company’s borrowing authority up to $75 million to fund the 2006 capital budget and working capital. The $75 
million limit was subsequently reduced to its current level by the Board on November 7,2006, following the placement 
on October 12, 2006 of $20 million 5.50 percent Senior Notes. 
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As of December 3 1: 2006, the Company had four unsecured bank lines of credit with two financial institutions, totaling 
$80.0 million, none of which required compensating balances. These bank lines provide funds for the Company’s short- 
term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital 
expenditures. Two of the bank lines, totaling $15.0 million, are committed. The other two lines are subject to the banks’ 
availability of funds. Under these lines of credit, the outstanding balances of short-term debt at December 3 1,2006 and 
2005 were $27.6 million and $35.5 million, respectively. The annual weighted average interest rates on short-term debt 
were 5.47 percent and 4.47 percent for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company also had a letter of credit outstanding 
in the amount of $775,000 that reduced the amounts available under the lines of credit. 

J. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The Company has entered into several operating lease arrangements for office space at various locations, equipment and 
pipeline facilities. Rent expense related to these leases was $680,000, $837,000, and $934,000 for 2006,2005 and 2004, 
respectively. Future minimum payments under the Company’s current lease agreements are $650,000, $496,000, 
$423,000, $331,000 and $321,000 for the years 2007 through 201 1, respectively; and $3.8 million thereafter, totaling 
$6.0 million. 

K. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Retirement Plans 
Before 1999, Company employees generally participated in both a defined benefit pension plan (“Defined Pension Plan”) 
and a Retirement Savings Plan. Effective January 1, 1999, the Company restructured its retirement program to compete 
more effectively with similar businesses. As part of this restructuring, the Company closed the Defined Pension Plan to 
new participants. Employees who participated in the Defined Pension Plan at that time were given the option of 
remaining in (and continuing to accrue benefits under) the Defined Pension Plan or receiving an enhanced matching 
contribution in the Retirement Savings Plan. 

Because the Defined Pension Plan was not open to new participants, the number of active participants in that plan 
decreased and is approaching the minimum number needed for the Defined Pension Plan to maintain its tax-qualified 
status. To avoid jeopardizing the tax-qualified status of the Defined Pension Plan, the Company’s Board of Directors 
amended the Defined Pension Plan on September 24,2004. To ensure that the Company continues to provide appropriate 
levels of benefits to the Company’s employees, the Board amended the Defined Pension Plan and the Retirement Savings 
Plan, effective January 1,2005, so that Defined Pension Plan participants who were actively employed by the Company 
on that date (1) receive two additional years of benefit service credit to be used in calculating their Defined Pension Plan 
benefit (subject to the Defined Pension Plan’s limit of 35 years of benefit service credit), (2) have the option to receive 
their Defined Pension Plan benefit in the form of a lump sum at the time they retire, and (3) are eligible to receive the 
enhanced matching contribution in the Retirement Savings Plan. In addition, effective January 1, 2005, the Board 
amended the Defined Pension Plan so that participants will not accrue any additional benefits under that plan. These 
changes were communicated to the Company’s employees during the first week of November 2004. As a result of the 
amendments to the Defined Pension Plan, a gain of approximately $172,000 (after tax) was recorded during 2004. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans” (SFAS 158). The Company adopted SFAS 158 prospectively on December 3 1,2006. SFAS 158 
requires that we recognize all obligations related to defined benefit pensions and other postretirement benefits. This 
statement requires that we quantify the plans’ funded status as an asset or a liability on our consolidated balance sheets. 

SFAS 158 requires that we measure the plans’ assets and obligations that determine our funded status as ofthe end ofthe 
fiscal year. The Company is also required to recognize as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income 
(“AOCI”) the changes in funded status that occurred during the year that are not recognized as part of net periodic benefit 
cost as explained in SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” or SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” 
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Based on the funded status of the Company’s defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans as of December 
31, 2006, the effects of adopting SFAS 158 on the Company’s financial statement is set forth in the following table. 

SFAS 158 
Adoption Post 

Pre-SFAS 158 Adjustments SFAS 158 
Asset (liability) for pension benefits ($3,74 1,054) $281,538 ($3,4593 16) 
Deferred income tax asset (liability) 1,224,742 (1 11,973) 1 , I  12,769 

Accumulatedothercomprehenslvelncome 504,115 169,565 334,550 

The amounts recognized in AOCI as a result of the adoption of SFAS 158 consist of: 

Defined Other 
Benefit Postretirement 
Pension Benefit Total 

Prior service cost (credit) ($29,560) ($29,560) 
Loss(galn) 1,284,400 1,032,422 251,978 

Total (1,3 13,960) 1,032,422 (281,538) 
Less: Deferred tax asset (liability) (522,582) 410,609 (1 11,973) 
3 $791,378 $62 1,813 $169,565 

The amounts in AOCI for the respective retirement plans that are expected to be recognized as a component of net benefit 
cost in 2007 is set forth in the following table. 

Defined Executive Excess Other 
Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement 
Pension Pension Benefit 

Prior service cost (credit) ($4,699) 
Loss (gain) (6,846) 51,279 136,978 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
As described above, effective January 1,2005, the Defined Pension Plan was frozen with respect to additional years of 
service or additional compensation. Benefits under the plan were based on each participant’s years of service and highest 
average compensation, prior to the freeze. The Company’s funding policy provides that payments to the trustee shall be 
equal to the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Company 
does not expect to be required to make any funding payments toward the Defined Pension Plan in 2007. The 
measurement dates for the Pension Plan were December 3 1, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The following schedule summarizes the assets of the Defined Pension Plan, by investment type, at December 3 1,2006, 
2005 and 2004: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Asset Category 

Equity securities 77.34% 76.12% 72.64% 
Debt securities 18.59% 23.28% 12.91% 
Other 4.07% 0.60% 14.45% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

The asset listed as “Other” in the above table represents monies temporarily held in money market funds. The money 
market fund invests at least 80 percent of its total assets in: 

United States Government obligations; and 
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Repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by such obligations. 

The investment policy of the Plan calls for an allocation of assets between equity and debt instruments with equity being 
60 percent and debt at 40 percent, but allowing for a variance of 20 percent in either direction. Additionally, as changes 
are made to holdings, cash, money market funds or United States Treasury Bills may be held temporarily by the fund. 
Investments in the following are prohibited: options, guaranteed investment contracts, real estate: venture capital, private 
placements, futures, commodities, limited partnerships and Chesapeake stock. Additionally, short selling and margin 
transactions are prohibited. During 2004, Chesapeake modified its investment policy to allow the Employee Benefits 
Committee to reallocate investments to better match the expected life of the plan. 

The following schedule sets forth the hnded status of the Defined Pension Plan at December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year $12,399,621 $12,053,063 $1 1,948,755 
Service cost 338,352 
Interest cost 635,877 645,740 690,620 
Change in assumptions (301,851) 388,979 573,639 
Actuarial loss 607 28,895 220,842 
Amendments 883,753 
Effect of curtailment/settlement (2,171,289) 
Benefits paid (1,284,529) (717,056) (43 1,609) 

Benefit obligation - end of year 11,449,725 12,399,62 1 12,053,063 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 11,780,866 12,097,248 11,301,548 

Actual return on plan assets 1,543,950 400,674 1,227,309 
Benefits paid (1,284,529) (717,056) (431,609) 

11,780,866 12,097,248 Fair value of plan assets - end of year 12,040,287 

Reconciliation of funded status: (I) 

Plan assets in excess (less than) benefit obligation at year-end 
Unrecognized prior service cost (34,259) (38,958) 

5 9 0,s 6 0 (618,755) 44,185 

Unrecognized net actuarial gain (129,739) (850,224) 
Net amount accrued $590,560 ($782,753) ($844,997) 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.25% 5.50% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.00% 6.00% 7.88% 

(1) After the adoption of SFAS 158 on December 31, 2006, these amounts are recorded and this reconciliation is no longer required 

Net periodic pension costs for the defined benefit Pension Plan for 2006, 2005, and 2004 include the components as 
shown below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Components of net periodic pension cost: 

Service cost $0 $0 $338,352 
Interest cost 635,877 645,740 690,620 
Expected return on assets (690,533) (703,285) (869,336) 
Amortization of 

Transition assets ( 1 1,328) 
Prior service cost (4,699) (4,699) (4,6991 

Net periodic pension cost (benefit) ($59,355) ($62,244) $143,609 

The following actuarial assumptions were used in calculating net periodic pension cost or benefit. 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Assumptions: 

Discount rate 5.25% 5.50% 5.88% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.00% 6.00% 7.88% 
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The assumptions used for the discount rate of the plan were reviewed by the Company and increased from 5.25 percent to 
5.50 percent, reflecting an increase in the interest rates ofhigh quality bonds and reflecting the expected life ofthe plan, 
due to the lump sum payment option. Additionally, the average expected return on plan assets for the qualified plan 
remained constant at 6 percent due to the adoption of a change in the investment policy that allows for a higher level of 
investment in bonds and a lower level of equity investments. Since the Plan is frozen in regards to additional years of 
service and compensation, the rate of assumed compensation rate increases is not applicable. The accumulated benefit 
obligation was $1 1.4 million and $12.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Executive Excess Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
The Company also sponsors an unfunded executive excess defined benefit pension plan. As noted above, this plan was 
frozen with respect to additional years of service and additional compensation as of December 3 1,2004. Benefits under 
the plan were based on each participant’s years of service and highest average compensation, prior to the freeze. The 
accumulated benefit obligation was $2.29 million and $2.32 million at December 3 1, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Net periodic pension costs for the executive excess benefit pension plan for 2006, 2005, and 2004 include the 
components as shown below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Components of net periodic pension cost: 

Service cost $0 SO $105,913 
Interest cost 119,588 119,658 87,568 
Amortization of 

Prior service cost 2,090 
Actuarial loss 57,039 49,319 21,699 

Net periodic pension cost $176,627 $168,977 $2 17,270 

The following schedule sets forth the status of the executive excess defined benefit plan: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year $2,322,471 $2,162,952 $1,406,190 
Service cost 105,913 
Interest cost 119,588 119,658 87,568 
Actuarial (gain) loss (65,886) 133,839 713,225 
Amendments 60,000 
Effect of curtailment/settlement (1 84,844) 
Benefits paid (89,203) (93,978) (25,100) 

Benefit obligation - end of year 2,2 8 6,9 7 0 2,322,471 2,162,952 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 

Employer contributions 89,203 93,978 25,100 
Benefits paid (89,203) (93,978) (25,100) 

Fair value of plan assets - end of year 

Funded status (2,286,970) (2,322,471) (2,162,952) 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 959,492 874,972 
Net amount accrued (” ($2,286,970) ($1,362,979) ($1,287,980) 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.25% 5.50% 

(1) After the adoption of SFAS 158 on December 31, 2006, these amounts are recorded and this reconciliation is no longer 
required. 

The assumptions used for the discount rate ofthe plan were reviewed by the Company and increased from 5.25 percent to 
5.50 percent, reflecting an increase in the interest rates of high quality bonds and a reduction in the expected life of the 
plan. Since the Plan is frozen in regards to additional years of service and compensation, the rate of assumed pay rate 
increases is not applicable. The measurement dates for the executive excess benefit plan were December 3 1,2006 and 
2005, respectively. 
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Other Postretirement Benefits 
The Company sponsors a defined benefit postretirement health care and life insurance plan that covers substantially all 
employees. 

Net periodic postretirement costs for 2006, 2005 and 2004 include the following components: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Components of net periodic postretirement cost: 

Service cost $9,194 $6,257 $5,354 
Interest cost 93,924 77,872 86,883 
Amortization of. 

Transition obligation 22,282 27,859 27,859 
Actuarial loss 144,694 88,291 78,900 

Net periodic postretirement cost $270,094 $200,279 $198,996 

The following schedule sets forth the status of the postretirement health care and life insurance plan: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligation: - - 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year $1,534,684 $1,599,280 $1,47 1,664 
Retirees 264,470 (59,152) 91,747 
Fully-eligible active employees (114,082) (3 1,76 1) 22,071 
Other active 78,036 26,3 17 13,798 

Benefit obligation - end of year $1,763,108 $1,534,684 $1,599,280 

Funded status ($1,763,108) ($1,534,684) ($1,599,280) 
Unrecognized transition obligation 22,282 50,141 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 75 1,450 899,228 
Netamountaccrued'l' ($1,763,108) ($760,952) ($649,911) 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.25% 5.50% 

(1) After the adoption of SFAS 158 on December31, 2006, these amounts are recorded and this rewnciliation is no longer 
required. 

The health care inflation rate for 2006 is assumed to be 6 percent for medical and 8 percent for prescription drugs. These 
rates are projected to gradually decrease to ultimate rates of 5 and 6 percent, respectively, by the year 2009. A one 
percentage point increase in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would increase the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $250,000 as of January 1,2007, and would increase the aggregate of 
the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2007 by approximately 
$15,000. A one percentage point decrease in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would decrease the 
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $207,000 as of January 1,2007, and would decrease the 
aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2007 by 
approximately $13,000. The measurement dates were December 3 1, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments 
The schedule below shows the estimated future benefit payments for each of the years 2007 through 201 1 and the 
aggregate of the next five years for each of the plans previously described. 

Defined Executive Excess Other Post- 
Benefit Defined Benefit Retirement 

Pension Plan (’I Pension Plan (’) Benefits (2) 

2007 $721,575 $88,096 $1 80,205 
2008 713,699 86,868 182,977 
2009 1,447,370 85,513 185,059 
2010 898,179 84,026 204,870 
201 1 460,335 82,411 I 94,448 

4,714,092 758,013 1,010,982 Years 2012 through 2016 

(’I The pension plan is funded; therefore, benefit payments are expected to be paid out of the plan assets. 
(’) Benefit payments are expected to be paid out of the general funds of the Company. 

Retirement Savings Plan 
The Company sponsors a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, which provides participants a mechanism for making 
contributions for retirement savings. Each participant may make pre-tax contributions of up to 15 percent of eligible base 
compensation, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. These participants were eligible for the enhanced 
matching described below effective January 1, 2005. 

Effective January 1, 1999, the Company began offering an enhanced 401(k) Plan to all new employees, as well as 
existing employees that elected to no longer participate in the Defined Benefit Plan. The Company makes matching 
contributions on a basis of up to six percent of each employee’s pre-tax compensation for the year for all of the 
Company’s employees, except the employees for our Advanced Information Senices segment. The match is between 100 
percent and 200 percent, based on a combination of the employee’s age and years of service. The first 100 percent ofthe 
funds are matched with Chesapeake common stock. The remaining match is invested in the Company’s 401(k) Plan 
according to each employee’s election options. 

Effective July 1 ~ 2006, the matching contribution made on behalf ofAdvanced Information Services segment employees, 
is a 50 percent matching contribution, up to six percent of the employee’s annual compensation. The matching 
contribution is funded in Chesapeake common stock. The Plan was also amended at the same time to enable it to receive 
discretionary profit-sharing contributions in the form of employee pre-tax deferrals. The extent, to which the Advanced 
Information Services segment has any dollars available for profit-sharing, is dependent upon the extent to which actual 
eamings exceed budgeted eamings. Any profit-sharing dollars made available to employees can be deferred into the Plan 
and/or paid out in the form of a bonus. 

On December 1, 2001, the Company converted the 401(k) fund holding Chesapeake stock to an Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). 

Effective January 1, 1999, the Company began offering a non-qualified supplemental employee retirement savings plan 
open to Company executives over a specific income threshold. Participants receive a cash only matching contribution 
percentage equivalent to their 401(k) match level. All contributions and matched funds can be invested among the 
twenty-one mutual funds available for investment. These same funds are available for investment of employee 
contributions within the Retirement Savings Plan. 

The Company’s contributions to the 401(k) plans totaled $1,612,000, $1,681,000 and $1,497,000 for the years ended 
December 3 1, 2006,2005, and 2004, respectively. As of December 3 1, 2006, there are 77,479 shares reserved to 
fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan. 
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L. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 
Effective January 1,2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, ”Share-Based Payment,“ which establishes accounting 
for equity instruments exchanged for employee services. Prior to January 1,2006, the Company accounted for share- 
based compensation to employees in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (’‘APB”) No. 25, 
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,“ and related interpretations. The Company also followed the disclosure 
requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148, 
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.‘’ Commencing January 1,2006, the Company 
elected to adopt the modified prospective method as provided by SFAS No. 123R and, accordingly, financial statement 
amounts for the prior periods presented have not been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the fair value of expensing 
stock-based compensation. 

Stock ODtions 
The Company did not have any stock options outstanding at December 3 1,2006 or December 3 1, 2005, nor were any 
stock options issued during 2006. 

Director Stock Compensation Plan (“DSCP ’ I )  

Under the Company’s DSCP, each non-employee director receives an annual retainer of 600 shares of common stock and 
an additional 150 shares of common stock for services as a committee chairman, subject to adjustment in future years 
consistent with the terms of the DSCP. Shares issued under the DSCP are fully vested as of the date of the grant. At the 
date of grant, the Company records a prepaid expense equal to the fair value of the shares issued and amortizes the 
expense equally over the service period of one year. Compensation expense recorded by the Company relating to the 
DSCP awards was $165,000 and $140,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

A summary of restricted stock activity for the DSCP as of December 31, 2006 is presented below: 

Number of Weighted Average 
Restricted Shares GrantDate Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2005 
Issued - May 2,2006 5,850 $30.02 

As of December 3 1,2006, there were 63,300 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of the Company’s 
Director’s Stock Compensation Plan. 

-1 
The Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is authorized to grant to key employees of the 
Company the rights to receive awards of shares of the Company’s common stock, contingent upon the achievement of 
established performance goals. These goals consist of annual or three-year performance targets. The awards are made 
pursuant to the Company’s Performance Incentive Plan, subject to certain post-vesting transfer restrictions, and are 
granted in the first quarter of each year and are issued based upon the performance achieved in the previous fiscal year or 
three-year award period. In the first quarters of 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 23,666 and 10,130 shares, 
respectively, to key employees as PIP stock awards for each of the preceding fiscal years. Please note that 2005 
concluded the three-year performance period and these awards were issued in the first quarter of 2006 and included in the 
23,666 stock awards. 

The Company accrues an expense each month of the fiscal year representing an estimate of the value ofthe stock awards 
granted for the current fiscal year. This accrual process matches the compensation expense with the employees’ service 
period rather than recognizing the expense on the issue date, which occurs in the first quarter of the subsequent year. The 
shares issued under the PIP are fully vested and the fair value of each share is equal to the estimated market price of the 
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Company’s stock on the date issued. Compensation expense recorded by the Company in 2006 and 2005 relating to the 
PIP was $544,000 and $721,000, respectively. 

A summary of restricted stock activity for the PIP for 2006 is presented below: 

Number of Weighted Average 
Restricted Shares Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2005 
Issued - February 23,2006 23,666 $30.3999 
Vested 23,666 
Outstanding - December 31,2006 

As of December 3 1:  2006, there were 293,480 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of the Company’s 
Performance Incentive Plan. 

M. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Chesapeake is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution 
control. These laws and regulations require the Company to remove or remedy the effect on the environment of the 
disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. 

In 2004, Chesapeake received a Certificate of Completion for the remedial work performed at a former gas 
manufacturing plant site located in Dover, Delaware. Chesapeake is also currently participating in the investigation, 
assessment or remediation of two additional former gas manufacturing plant sites located in Maryland and Florida. The 
Company has accrued liabilities for the three sites referred to, respectively, as the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town Gas 
Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Company has been in discussions with the Maryland Department ofthe 
Environment (”MDE”) regarding a fourth former gas manufacturing plant site located in Cambridge, Maryland. The 
following provides details of each site. 

Dover Gas Light Site 
The Dover Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site located in Dover, Delaware. On January 15,2004, the 
Company received a Certificate of Completion of Work from the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(“EPA”) regarding this site. This concluded Chesapeake’s remedial action obligation related to this site and relieves 
Chesapeake from liability for future remediation at the site, unless previously unknown conditions are discovered at the 
site, or information previously unknown to the EPA is received that indicates the remedial action that has been taken is 
not sufficiently protective. These contingencies are standard and are required by the United States in all liability 
settlements. 

The Company has reviewed its remediation costs incurred to date for the Dover Gas Light site and has concluded that all 
costs incurred have been paid. The Company does not expect any future environmental expenditure for this site. Through 
December 3 1,2006, the Company has incurred approximately $9.67 million in costs related to environmental testing and 
remedial action studies at the site. Approximately $9.96 million has been recovered through December 2006 from other 
parties or through rates. As of December 3 1, 2006, a regulatory liability of approximately $294,500, representing the 
over-recovery portion of the clean-up costs: has been recorded. The over-recovery is temporary and will be refunded by 
the Company to customers in future rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 
In cooperation with the MDE? the Company has completed remediation ofthe Salisbury Town Gas Light site, located in 
Salisbury, Maryland, where it was determined that a former manufactured gas plant had caused localized ground-water 
contamination. During 1996, the Company completed construction and began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction 
(“AS/SVE”) remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been reporting the remediation and monitoring results to the MDE 
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on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 2002, the MDE granted permission to permanently decommission the 
AS/SVE system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site well monitoring: except for one well that is being maintained 
for continued product monitoring and recovery. In November 2002, Chesapeake submitted a letter to the MDE requesting 
a No Further Action determination. The Company has been in discussions with the MDE regarding such request and is 
awaiting a determination from the MDE. 

Through December 31, 2006, the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 million has been 
recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. On September 26, 2006, the Company received approval from the 
Maryland Public Service Commission to recover through its rates charged to customers the remaining $1.1 million of the 
incurred environmental remediation costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake has been working with the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) in assessing this coal gas site. In May 1996, the Company filed an 
AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan (the “Work Plan”) for the Winter Haven site with the FDEP. The Work Plan described 
the Company’s proposal to undertake an ASiSVE pilot study to evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP, the 
Company filed a modified Work Plan, the description of the scope ofwork to complete the site assessment activities and 
a report describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In December 1998, the FDEP approved the 
modified Work Plan, which the Company completed during the third quarter of 1999. In February 2001, the Company 
filed a Remedial Action Plan (“RAP”) with the FDEP to address the contamination of the subsurface soil and ground- 
water in a portion of the site. The FDEP approved the RAP on May 4,2001. Construction of the AS/SVE system was 
completed in the fourth quarter of 2002 and the system remains fully operational. 

The Company has accrued a liability of $212,000 as ofDecember 3 1,2006 for the Winter Haven Coal Gas site. Through 
December 3 1,2006, the Company has incurred approximately $1.7 million of environmental costs associated with this 
site. At December 3 1 $2006, the Company had collected $90,000 through rates in excess of costs incurred. A regulatory 
asset of approximately $122,000, representing the uncollected portion of the estimated clean-up costs, has also been 
recorded. The Company expects to recover the remaining costs through rates. 

The FDEP has indicated that the Company may be required to remediate sediments along the shoreline of Lake Shipp, 
immediately west of the Winter Haven site. Based on studies performed to date, the Company objects to the FDEP’s 
suggestion that the sediments have been contaminated and will require remediation. The Company’s early estimates 
indicate that some of the corrective measures discussed by the FDEP may cost as much as $1 million. Given the 
Company’s view as to the absence of ecological effects, the Company believes that cost expenditures of this magnitude 
are unwarranted and plans to oppose any requirements that it undertake corrective measures in the offshore sediments. 
Chesapeake anticipates that it will be several years before this issue is resolved. At this time, the Company has not 
recorded a liability for sediment remediation. The outcome of this matter cannot be predicted at this time. 

Other 
The Company is in discussions with the MDE regarding a gas manufacturing plant site located in Cambridge, Maryland. 
The outcome ofthis matter cannot be determined at this time; therefore, the Company has not recorded an environmental 
liability for this location. 

N. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Natural Gas and Propane Supply 
The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual commitments for gas from 
various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In November 2004, the Company renewed its contract 
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with an energy marketing and risk management company to manage a portion of the Company‘s natural gas 
transportation and storage capacity. The contract expires March 3 1,2007. 

Corporate Guarantees 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary, its 
Florida natural gas supply and management subsidiary, and Delmarva propane distribution subsidiary. These corporate 
guarantees provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the event of the subsidiaries’ default. The 
liabilities for these purchases are recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed at 
December 3 1 ,  2006 totaled $21.4 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates in 2007. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees, the Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary insurance company for 
$775,000, which expires on May 3 1, 2007. The letter of credit is provided as security for claims amounts to satisfy the 
deductibles on the Company’s policies. The current letter of credit was renewed during the second quarter of 2006 when 
the insurance policies were renewed. 

Other 
The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. The Company is 
also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies concerning rates. In 
the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. 

0. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

In the opinion of the Company, the quarterly financial information shown below includes all adjustments necessary for a 
fair presentation of the operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company’s business, there are 
substantial variations in operations reported on a quarterly basis. 

For the Quarters Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

2006 
Operating Revenue S90,950,672 $44,303,752 $35,141,531 S60,804,636 
Operating Income S11,437,228 $3,205,368 S162,137 S8,126,578 
Net Income (Loss) $6,096,416 $1,132,509 ($656,579) $3,934,179 
Eamings per share: 

Basic $1.03 $0.19 (SO.11) $0.63 
Diluted $1.01 $0.19 ($0.11) $0.62 

2005 
Operating Revenue $77,845,248 $42,220,377 $35,155,121 $74,408,990 
Operating Income (Loss) $1 1,504,343 $2,324,945 ($99,149) $7,800,360 
Net Income (Loss) $6,232,796 $795,924 ($693,774) $4,132,668 
Eamings per share: 

Basic $1.08 $0.14 ($0.12) $0.70 
Diluted $1.05 $0.14 ($0.12) $0.69 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

None 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other Company 
officials, have evaluated the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is defined under Rule 13a- 
15(e) and 15d - 15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December 31,2006. 
Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2006. 

Changes in Internal Controls 
During the quarter ended December 3 1, 2006, there was no change in the Company’s intemal control over financial 
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
See Management‘s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting in Item 8, “Financial Statements and 
Supplemental Data.” 

CEO and CFO Certifications 
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer as well as the Senior Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer have filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission the certifications required by Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 as 
Exhibits 3 1.1 and 3 1.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,2006. In 
addition, on May 26,2006 the Company’s CEO certified to the New York Stock Exchange that he was not aware of any 
violation by the Company of the NYSE corporate govemance listing standards. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. 

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 29,2006, discussing the Compensation Committee’s 
(the “Committee”) actions on that date, including their approval of the compensation arrangements relating to the 
executive officers of the Company for 2007. 

On November 29,2006, the Committee approved awards under the Company’s Performance Incentive Plan to John R. 
Schimkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer and Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer. According to the terms of the awards, each executive officer is entitled to earn up to a specified 
number of shares of the Company’s common stock (“Contingent Performance Shares”) depending on the extent to which 
pre-established performance goals (the “Performance Goals”) are achieved during the year ended December 31, 2007 
(the “2007 Award Year”). 

On November 29, 2006, the Compensation Committee also approved awards under the Company’s Performance 
Incentive Plan to (i) Stephen C. Thompson, Senior Vice President, and (ii) S. Robert Zola, President of Sharp Energy, 
Inc., a Company subsidiary, for the three-year period ending December 3 1,2008. For a performance period beginning 
January 1, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007, each executive officer is entitled to earn, in the form of shares of 
restricted stock, up to 30 percent of the annual award of Contingent Performance Shares if the Company achieves certain 
Performance Goals. The second component consists of performance awards pursuant to which the remaining 70 percent 
of the annual award of Contingent Performance Shares will be earned, if certain Performance Goals for the three-year 
period ending December 3 1,2008 for each of the respective business units for which they are individually responsible, 
are achieved. 
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PART Ill 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANACE. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement, 
captioned “Proposal I - Election of Directors,” “Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Nominees,” 
“Corporate Govemance Practices and Stockholder Communications - Nomination of Directors,” “Committees of the 
Board - Audit Committee” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” to be filed not later than 
March 31,2007 in connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 2, 2007. 

The information required by this Item with respect to executive officers is, pursuant to instruction 3 ofparagraph (b) of 
Item 401 of Regulation S-K, set forth in Part I of this Form 10-K under “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” 

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Officers, which applies to its principal executive officer, 
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. The 
information set forth under Item 1 hereof conceming the Code of Ethics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Director Compensation,’’ “Executive Compensation” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” in the Proxy 
Statement to be filed not later than March 3 1 ,  2007, in connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on 
May 2,2007. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Beneficial Ownership of Chesapeake’s Securities” to be filed not later than March 3 1, 2007 in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 2,2007. 
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The following table sets forth information as of December 3 1,2006, with respect to compensation plans of Chesapeake 
and its subsidiaries under which shares of Chesapeake common stock are authorized for issuance: 

(a) (b) (c) 
Number of securities 

remaining available for future 
Number of securities to Weighted-average issuance under equity 
be issued upon exercise exercise price compensation plans 
of outstanding options, of outstanding options, (excluding securities 

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a)) 
Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
security holders 0 (1) NIA 381,431 (2) 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 
security holders 0 (3) NIA 0 

Total 0 381,431 

(1) All options to purchase shares under the 1992 Performance Incentive Pian, as amended, were exercised 

(2) Includes 293,481 shares under the 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, 63,300 shares available under the 2005 

(3) All warrants were exercised in 2006. 

as of 12/31/05. 

Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and 24,650 shares available under the 2005 Employee Stock Awards Plan 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. 

None 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Fees and Services of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP” to be filed not later than March 3 1,2007, in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 2,2007. 
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 
1. 
0 

a 

0 

a 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2. 

3. 
a 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Financial Statements: 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years ended December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3 1,2006 and December 3 1,2005 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years ended December 3 1, 
2006,2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each ofthe three years ended December 3 1,2006,2005 
and 2004 

Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes for each ofthe three years ended December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Financial Statement Schedule - Schedule I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, are inapplicable or the information is otherwise 
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 3.1 

Exhibit 3.2 

Exhibit 4.1 

Exhibit 4.2 

Underwriting Agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Robert W. 
Baird & Co. Incorporated and A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc., on November 15,2007, relating to 
the sale and issuance of 600,300 shares of the Company’s common stock, is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 16,2007, File No. 001-11590. 

Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
period ended June 30, 1998, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Amended Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, effective February 24, 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 ofthe Company’s Annual Report on Form 10- 
K for the year ended December 31,2004, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Form of Indenture between the Company and Boatmen’s Trust Company, Trustee, with 
respect to the 8 114% Convertible Debentures is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 
4.2 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-2, Reg. No. 33-26582, filed on 
January 13, 1989. 

Note Agreement dated February 9, 1993, by and between the Company and Massachusetts 
Mutual Life Insurance Company and MML Pension Insurance Company, with respect to $10 
million of 7.97% Unsecured Senior Notes due February 1, 2008, is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 3 1, 1992, File No. 0-593. 
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Exhibit 4.3 

Exhibit 4.4 

Exhibit 4.5 

Exhibit 4.6 

Exhibit 4.7 

Exhibit 4.8 

Exhibit 4.9 

Exhibit 4.10 

Exhibit 5.1 

Exhibit 5.2 

Exhibit 10.1 * 

Exhibit 10.2* 

Exhibit 10.3* 

Exhibit 10.4* 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on October 2, 1995: pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $10 million of its 6.91% Senior Notes due in 2010, is 
not being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 15, 1997, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $10 million of its 6.85% Senior Notes due 2012, is not 
being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to fumish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 27,2000, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $20 million of its 7.83% Senior Notes due 2015, is not 
being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to fumish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 3 1, 2002, pursuant to which the 
Company privately placed $30 million of its 6.64% Senior Notes due 2017, is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
November 6,2002, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 18, 2005, pursuant to which the 
Company, on October 12, 2006, privately placed $20 million of its 5.5% Senior Notes, due 
2020, with Prudential Investment Management, Inc., is incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 4.1 ofthe Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1 ,  
2005, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Form of Senior Debt Trust Indenture between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and the 
trustee for the debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3.1 of the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. No. 333-135602, datedNovember 6, 
2006. 

Form of Subordinated Debt Trust Indenture between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and 
the trustee for the debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3.2 of the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. No. 333-135602, datedNovember 6, 
2006. 

Form of debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. No. 333-135602, dated November 6, 2006. 

Opinion of Baker & Hostetler LLP is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 5.1 of the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, Reg. No. 333-135602, dated July 5,2006. 

Opinion of Baker & Hostetler LLP is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 5.1 of the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. No. 333-135602, dated November 6, 
2006. 

Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 2004, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan dated January 1, 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock Compensation Plan, adopted in 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to the Company‘s Proxy Statement dated March 28,2005 in 
connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting held on May 5,2005, FileNo. 001-1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Employee Stock Award Plan, adopted in 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement dated March 28,2005 in 
connection with the Company‘s Annual Meeting held on May 5,2005, File No. 001-1 1590. 
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Exhibit 10.5* 

Exhibit 10.6* 

Exhibit 10.7* 

Exhibit 10.8* 

Exhibit 10.9* 

Exhibit 10.10* 

Exhibit 10.11* 

Exhibit 10.12* 

Exhibit 10.13* 

Exhibit 10.14* 

Exhibit 10.15* 

Exhibit 10.16* 

Exhibit 12 

Exhibit 14 

Exhibit 21 

Exhibit 23.1 

Exhibit 23.2 

Exhibit 23.3 

Exhibit 23.4 

Exhibit 23.5 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan, adopted in 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement dated March 28,2005 in 
connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting held on May 5,2005, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Deferred Compensation Program (as amended and restated as of December 7, 2006) is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 ofthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8- 
K, filed December 13,2006, File No. 001-11590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zola, is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Stephen C. Thompson, is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Beth W. Cooper, is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Michael P. McMasters, is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and John R. Schimkaitis, is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 15,2006, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and S. Robert Zola, is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 23,2006, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and Stephen C. Thompson, is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 27,2006, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and Beth W. Cooper, is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 29,2006, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and Michael P. McMasters, is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 29,2006, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and John R. Schimkaitis, is filed herewith. 

Computation of Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges, filed herewith. 

Code of Ethics for Financial Officers, filed herewith. 

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herewith. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 23.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, Reg. No. 
333-135602, dated July 5, 2006. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 23.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. No. 
333-135602, dated November 6,2006. 

Consent of Baker & Hostetler LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1). 

Consent of Baker & Hostetler LLP (included in Exhibit 5.2). 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, filed herewith. 
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Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 24.1 of the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-3, Reg. No. 333-135602, dated July 5, 2006. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a), dated March 13,2007, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a): dated March 13, 2007, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. Section 1350, dated March 13, 2007, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. Section 1350, dated March 13, 2007, filed herewith. 

Exhibit 3 1.1 

Exhibit 3 1.2 

Exhibit 32.1 

Exhibit 32.2 

* Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: / S i  JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 13, 2007 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/S/ RALPH J. ADKINS 
Ralph J. Adkins, Chairman of the Board 
and Director 
Date: February 2 1,2007 

Is/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis, President, 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: March 13, 2007 

/SI MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Date: March 13, 2007 

1st RICHARD BERNSTEIN 
Richard Bemstein, Director 
Date: February 21,2007 

/ S I  EUGENE H. BAYARD 
Eugene H. Bayard, Director 
Date: February 21, 2007 

/ S I  THOMAS P. HILL, JR. 
Thomas P. Hill, Jr., Director 
Date: February 2 1,2007 

/ S I  J. PETER MARTIN 
J. Peter Martin, Director 
Date: February 21,2007 

/SI CALVERT A. MORGAN. JR. 
Calvert A. Morgan, Jr., Director 
Date: February 21,2007 

i s /  THOMAS J. BFESNAN 
Thomas J. Bresnan, Director 
Date: March 13, 2007 

Is/ WALTER J. COLEMAN 
Walter J. Coleman, Director 
Date: February 21,2007 

/s i  JOSEPH E. MOORE. ESO. 
Joseph E. Moore, Esq., Director 
Date: February 21,2007 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Schedule II 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Additions 
Balance at 

Beginning of Charged to Other Balance at End 
For the Year Ended December 31, Year Income Accounts (') Deductions of Year 
Reserve Deducted From Related Assets 

Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts 

.. ..-....... 2006 5561,378 5351,424 565,519 ($646,724) 5661,597 

200s $610,819 $632,644 SI 58,409 ($540,494) $86 1,378 

2004 $682,002 $505,595 $1 03,020 ($679,798) $61 0,819 

................................................ .,-..... ... .......-............. "l".,," ..... ".,"-.",-" ............ I.." ........................ -.".._.".."-.I." ...................................... ....I." ......................... ....................... ... 
............................... ""1"-" ................... ....................................... ...............-.... - .................. ......... ........................................ 

.._- ................................. ........ I ......... ."... ........... .............................................. " ..... ................ - ... I-..... ...... 11. ..... I... 

(I) Recoveries. 
( 2 )  Uncollectible accounts charged off 



EXHIBIT 12 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

~ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Income from continuing operations $10,506,525 S10,467,614 $9,549,667 $10,079,483 $7,535,009 
Add 

Income taxes 6,836,562 6,312,016 5,701,090 6,032,445 4,609,552 
Portion of rents representative of interest factor 226,583 278,846 309,446 351,445 411,461 
Interest on indebtedness 5,725,228 5,077,693 5,206,723 5,616,756 4,867,520 
Amortization of debt discount and expense 52,108 55,802 61,422 89,155 87,502 

Earnings as adjusted $23,347,006 $22,191,971 $20,828,348 $22,169,284 $17,511,044 

Fixed Charges 
Portion of rents representative of interest factor $226,583 $278,846 $309,446 $351,445 $411,461 
Interest on indebtedness 5,125,228 5,077,693 5,206,723 5,616,756 4,867,520 
Amortization of debt discount and expense 52,108 55,802 61,422 89,155 87,502 

Fixed Charges $6,003,919 $5,412.341 $5,577 591 $6 057.356 $5.366 483 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.89 4.10 3.73 3.66 3.26 



EXHIBIT 21 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

Subsidiaries 
Eastem Shore Natural Gas Company 

Sharp Energy, Inc. 
Chesapeake Service Company 

Xeron, Inc. 
Sam Shannahan Well Company, Inc. 

Sharp Water, Inc. 
OnSight Energy, LLC 

Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. 
Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc. 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Energy. Inc. 
Sharpgas, Inc. 

Tri-County Gas Co., Incorporated 

Subsidiaries of ChesaDeake Service Comuany 
Skipjack, Inc. 

Bravepoint, Inc. 
Chesapeake Investment Company 

Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. 

Subsidiaries of SharD Water, Inc. 
Sharp Water of Idaho, Inc. 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Mississippi 
Maryland 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Maryland 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Georgia 

Delaware 
Maryland 

State IncorDorated 
Delaware 

Sharp Water of Minnesota, Inc. Delaware 



EXHIBIT 23.5 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 13,2007 

33- 3381, 3 p -  

121524 and 333-135602) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-01 175, 333-94159, 333-124646,333-124694 and 333-124717) of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation of our report dated March 13,2007 relating to the consolidated financial statements, 
financial statement schedule, management's assessment ofthe effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting 
and the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K. 



EXHIBIT 31 .I 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the 
periods presented in this report; 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluations; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant ‘ s  
intemal control over financial reporting; and 

a) 

b) 

c) 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant‘s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant‘s intemal control over financial reporting. 

a) 

b) 

Date: March 13,2007 

/s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, Michael P. McMasters, certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the 
periods presented in this report; 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluations; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant ’s 
internal control over financial reporting; and 

a) 

c) 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting. 

a) 

Date: March 13,2007 

IS/ MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for 
the year ended December 3 1 ,  2006, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fully 
complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the 
information contained therein fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
Chesapeake. 

/s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
March 13,2007 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other document 
authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
version ofthis written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and fumished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff 
upon request. 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation ("Chesapeake") for the year ended December 3 1,2006, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

IS /  MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. Mclviasters 
March 13, 2007 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other document 
authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
version ofthis written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff 
upon request. 



Upon written request, 
Chesapeake will provide, free of 
charge, a copy of any exhibit to 

the 2006 Annual Report on 
Form 1 O-K not included 

in this document. 



Exhibit A (2) 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2007 

OR 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number: 001 -1 1590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 51 -00641 46 
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer 
incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including Zip Code) 

1302) 734-6799 
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements 
for the past 90 days. Yes [XI No [ ] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non- 
accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the 
Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated filer [XI Non-accelerated filer [ ] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the 
Exchange Act). Yes [ ] No [XI 

Common Stock, par value $0.4867 - 6,751,983 shares outstanding as of July 31, 2007. 
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Item 1. Financial Statements 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 

Operating Revenues $52,501,920 $44,303,752 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of sales, excluding costs below 34,232,939 28,505,528 
Operations 10,316,296 8,851,831 
Maintenance 5 64,854 583,638 
Depreciation and amortization 2,367,523 2,037,003 
Other taxes 1,332,249 1,120,384 

Total operating expenses 48,813,861 41,098,384 

Operating Income 3,688,059 3,205,368 

Other income net of other expenses 234,195 63,715 

Interest charges 1,594,701 1,501,352 

Income Before Income Taxes 2,327,553 1,767,731 

Income taxes 845,762 635,222 

Net Income $1,481,791 $1,132,509 

Earnings Per Share of  Common Stock: 

Basic $0.22 $0.19 

Diluted $0.22 $0.19 

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 6,737,384 5,952,074 
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 6,849,890 5,963,596 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock: $0.295 $0.290 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 

Operating Revenues $146,028,811 $1 35,254,425 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of sales, excluding costs below 98,168,806 94,430,289 
Operations 2 0,8 7 5,9 9 6 18,453,112 
Maintenance 1,145,019 1,027,607 
Depreciation and amortization 4,683,318 4,014,350 
Other taxes 2,885,561 2,686,471 

Total operating expenses 127,758,700 120,611,829 

Operating Income 18,270,111 14,642,596 

Other income net of other expenses 287,567 142,299 

Interest charges 3,193,951 2,994,689 

Income Before Income Taxes 15,363,727 11,790,206 

Income taxes 5,890,848 4,561,281 

Net Income $9,472,879 $7,228,925 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 

Basic 
Diluted 
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 

$1.41 $1.22 

$1.39 $1.20 

6,721,694 5,930,872 
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 6,835,257 6,070,191 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock: $0.585 $0.575 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 

Operating Activities 
Net In come 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Gain on sale of assets 
Unrealized gain on commodity contracts 
Unrealized gain on investments 
Employee benefits and compensation 
Other, net 

Sale (purchase) of investments 
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 
Propane inventory, storage gas and other inventory 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Other deferred charges 
Long-term receivables 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Income taxes receivable (payable) 
Accrued interest 
Customer deposits and refunds 
Accrued compensation 
Regulatory liabilities 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

$9,472,879 

4,683,318 
1,682,980 
1,590,955 
(204,882) 
(296,892) 
(188,203) 
920,460 

(1,839) 

71,432 
6,961,621 
2,781,638 

597,354 
(686,387) 

(1,405,003) 
51,557 

(7,026,3 33) 
(1 39,486) 

(20,910) 
361,078 

(400,959) 
1,798,097 

$7,228,925 

4,014,350 
1,503,982 

(2,594,606) 

(99,715) 
(56,628) 
876,543 

(1,806) 

(66,146) 
20,855,446 

2,947,555 
3,826,484 
(1 45,4 1 0) 

27,409 
87,643 

(20,874,990) 
5,346,331 

54,094 
(468,019) 

(1,532,150) 
2,110,251 

Other liabilities 15,582 (68,757) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 20,618,057 22,970,786 

Investing Activities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures (15,969,557) (1 6,825,679) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Environmental recoveries (expenditures) (135,953) 1,620 

204,882 

Net cash used in investing activities (15,900,628) (16,824,059) 

Financing Activities 
Common stock dividends 
Issuance of stock for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Change in cash overdrafts due to outstanding checks 
Net repayment under line of credit agreements 

(3,465,987) (2,945,899) 
174,315 177,077 
843,845 1,268,914 

(4,829,053) (3,747,750) 
(1,020,454) 

Net cash used in financing activities (8,297,012) (6,268,112) 

Net Decrease in Cash and  Cash Equivalents (3,579,583) (1 2 1,385) 
Cash a n d  Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period 4,488,367 2,487,658 

Cash and  Cash Equivalents - End of Period $908,784 $2,366,273 

Repayment of long-term debt (1,020,132) 

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing Activities: 
Capital property and equipment acquired on account, 
but not paid as of June 30 $1,216,749 $788,758 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

June 30, December 31, 
Assets 2007 2006 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Natural gas $277,239,562 $269,012,516 
Propane 46,361,641 44,791,552 
Advanced information services 1,098,355 1,054,368 
Other plant 9,140,526 9,147,500 

Total property, plant and equipment 333,840,084 324,005,936 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (89,484,746) (85,010,472) 
Plus: Construction work in progress 6,739,641 1,829,948 

Net property, plant and equipment 251,094,979 240,825,412 

Investments 2,132,348 2,015,577 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 908,784 4,488,366 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectible 

accounts of $720,353 and $661,597, respectively) 40,938,891 44,969,182 
Accrued revenue 1,394,021 4,325,351 
Propane inventory, at average cost 6,874,869 7,187,035 
Other inventory, at average cost 1,368,907 1,564,937 
Regulatory assets 650,139 1,275,653 
Storage gas prepayments 5,119,893 7,393,335 
Income taxes receivable 1,218,368 1,078,882 
Deferred income taxes 412,493 1,365,316 
Prepaid expenses 2,995,506 2,280,900 

Total current assets 65,523,322 77,482,241 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 

Other current assets 3,641,451 I ,553,284 

Goodwill 674,451 674,451 
Other intangible assets, net 184,976 191,878 
Pension 630,082 590,562 
Long-term receivables 772,776 824,333 
Other regulatory assets 1,757,691 1,765,088 
Other deferred charges 2,593,474 1,215,004 

Total deferred charges and other assets 6,613,450 5,261,316 

Total Assets $325,364,099 $325,584,546 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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June 30, December 31, 
Capitalization and Liabilities 2007 2006 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equity 

Common Stock, par value $0.4867 per share 
(authorized 12,000,000 shares) $3,281,792 $3,254,998 

Additional paid-in capital 64,129,089 61,960,220 
Retained earnings 51,806,645 46,270,884 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (334,550) (334,550) 
Deferred compensation obligation 1,370,547 1,118,509 
Treasury stock (1,370,547) (1,118,509) 

Total stockholders' equity 118,882,976 111,151,552 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 69,965,000 71,050,000 

Total capitalization 188,847,976 182,201,552 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 7,656,364 7,656,364 
Short-term borrowing 23,568,733 27,553,941 
Accounts payable 26,645,349 33,870,552 
Customer deposits and refunds 7,863,343 7,502,265 
Accrued interest 81 1,482 832,392 
Dividends payable 1,989,086 1,939,482 
Accrued compensation 1,881,211 2,901,053 
Regulatory liabilities 6,117,6 18 4,199,147 
Other accrued liabilities 5,739,405 4,005,795 

Total current liabilities 82,272,591 90,460,991 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 27,155,230 26,517,098 
Deferred investment tax credits 300,869 328,277 
Other regulatory liabilities 1,053,294 1,236,254 
Environmental liabilities 102,656 21 1,581 
Accrued pension costs 2,241,819 2,198,874 
Accrued asset removal cost 19,355,153 18,410,992 
Other liabilities 4,034,511 4,018,927 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 54,243,532 52,922,003 

Other Commitments and Contingencies (Note 4) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $325,364,099 $325,584,546 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited) 

For the Six For the Twelve 
Months Ended Months Ended 
June 30,2007 December 31,2006 

Common Stock 
Balance - beginning of period $3,254,998 $2,863,212 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 9,375 18,685 

Conversion of debentures 1,858 8,117 
Performance shares and options exercised 7,945 14,536 
Stock issuance 335,991 

Balance - end of period $3,281,792 $3,254,998 

Retirement Savings Plan 7,616 14,457 

Additional Paid-in Capital 
Balance - beginning of period $61,960,220 $39,619,849 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 585,503 1,148,100 
Retirement Savings Plan 476,758 900,354 
Conversion of debentures 63,010 275,300 
Stock-based compensation 1,043,598 887,426 
Stock issuance 19,362,518 
Exercise of warrants (233,327) 

Balance - end of period $64,129,089 $61,960,220 

Retained Earnings 
Balance - beginning of period $46,270,884 $42,854,894 

Net income 9,472,87 9 10,506,525 
Cash dividends declared (3,937,118) (7,090,535) 

Balance - end of period $51,806,645 $46,270,884 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
Balance - beginning of period ($334,550) (578,151) 

74,036 
169,565 

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax 
Gain on funded status of Employee Benefit Plans, net of tax 

Balance - end of period ($334,550) ($334,550) 

Deferred Compensation Obligation 
Balance - beginning of period $1 , I  18,509 $794,535 

New deferrals 252,038 323,974 
Balance - end of period $1,370,547 $1,118,509 

Treasury Stock 
Balance - beginning of period ($1,118,509) ($797,156) 

New deferrals related to compensation obligation (252,038) (32 3,9 74) 
Purchase of treasury stock ('I (29,771) (51,572) 
Sale and distribution of treasury stock (') 29,771 54,193 

Balance - end of period ($1,370,547) ($1 ,I 18,509) 

Total Stockholders' Equity $118,882,976 $1 11,151,552 

( ' I  Amount includes shares purchased in the open market for the Company's Rabbi Trust to secure its 

(*) Amount includes shares issued to the Company's Rabbi Trust as obligation under the Executive Deferred 
obligations under the Company's Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. 

Compensation Plan. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Basis of Presentation 
References in this document to “the Company,” “Chesapeake,” “we,” “us” and “our” are intended to mean 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries. 

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
compliance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and United 
States of America Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). In accordance with these rules 
and regulations, certain information and disclosures normally required for audited financial statements 
have been condensed or omitted. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, included in the Company’s latest Annual Report on 
Form 1 O-K filed with the SEC on March 14,2007. In the opinion of management, these statements reflect 
normal recurring adjustments that are necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s results of 
operations, financial position and cash flows for the interim periods presented. 

Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income contains items that are excluded from net income and recorded directly to 
stockholders’ equity. Chesapeake did not have any adjustments to the components of comprehensive 
income that are required to be reported by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB”) Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“S FAS”) No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” for the first six 
months of 2007 and 2006. Accumulated other comprehensive loss was $334,550 at June 30,2007 and 
December 31,2006. 

Calculation of Earnings Per Share 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
For the Periods Ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share: 
Net Income $1,481,791 $1 , I  32,509 $9,472,879 $7,228,925 
Weighted average shares outstanding 6,737,384 5,952,074 6,721,694 5,930,872 

Basic Earnings Per Share $0.22 $0.1 9 $1.41 $1 2 2  

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share: 
Reconciliation of Numerator: 

Net Income $1,481,791 $1,132,509 $9,472,879 $7,228,925 
Effect of 8.25% Convertible debentures (1) 24,015 48,214 54,048 

Adjusted numerator - Diluted $1,505,806 $1,132,509 $9,521,093 $7,282,973 

Reconciliation of Denominator: 
Weighted shares outstanding - Basic 
Effect of dilutive securities (1) 

Warrants 

6,737,384 5,952,074 6,721,694 5,930,872 

- 11.522 12,016 
8.25% Convertible debentures 112,506 - 113,563 127,303 

Adjusted denominator - Diluted 6,849,890 5,963,596 6,835,257 6,070,191 

Diluted Earnings per Share $0.22 $0.19 $1.39 $1.20 
(1) Amounts associated with securities resulting in an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share 

are not included in this calculation. 

Commitments and Contingencies 
Environmental Matters 
Chesapeake is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality 
and pollution control. These laws and regulations require the Company to remove or remedy the effect on 
the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. 
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In 2004, Chesapeake received a Certificate of Completion for the remedial work performed at a former 
manufactured gas plant site located in Dover, Delaware. Chesapeake is also currently participating in the 
investigation, assessment or remediation of two additional former manufactured gas plant sites located in 
Maryland and Florida. The Company has accrued liabilities for the three sites referred to, respectively, as 
the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town Gas Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Company has 
been in discussions with the Maryland Department of the Environment (“MDE”) regarding a fourth former 
gas manufacturing plant site located in Cambridge, Maryland. The following provides details of each site. 

Dover Gas Light Site 
The Dover Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site located in Dover, Delaware. On January 
15, 2004, the Company received a Certificate of Completion of Work from the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA) regarding this site. This concluded Chesapeake’s remedial 
action obligation related to this site and relieves Chesapeake from liability for future remediation at the 
site, unless previously unknown conditions are discovered at the site, or information previously unknown 
to the EPA is received that indicates the remedial action that has been taken is not sufficiently protective. 
These contingencies are standard and are required by the EPA in all liability settlements. 

The Company has reviewed its remediation costs incurred to date for the Dover Gas Light site and has 
concluded that all costs incurred have been paid. The Company does not expect any future environmental 
expenditure for this site. Through June 30,2007, the Company has incurred approximately $9.67 million in 
costs related to environmental testing and remedial action studies at the site. Approximately $9.96 million 
has been recovered through June 2007 from other parties or through rates. As of June 30, 2007, a 
regulatory liability of approximately $294,500, representing the over-recovery portion of the clean-up costs, 
has been recorded. The over-recovery is temporary and will be refunded by the Company to customers in 
future rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 
In cooperation with the MDE, the Company has completed remediation of the Salisbury Town Gas Light 
site, located in Salisbury, Maryland, where it was determined that a former manufactured gas plant had 
caused localized ground-water contamination. During 1996, the Company completed construction and 
began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction (“AS/SVE”) remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been 
reporting the remediation and monitoring results to the MDE on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 
2002, the MDE granted permission to decommission permanently the ASlSVE system and to discontinue 
all on-site and off-site well monitoring, except for one well that is being maintained for continued product 
monitoring and recovery. Chesapeake has requested a No Further Action determination and is awaiting 
such a determination from the MDE. 

Through June 30, 2007, the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.77 million 
has been recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. On September 26, 2006, the Company 
received approval from the Maryland Public Service Commission to recover, through its rates charged to 
customers, the remaining $1 .I6 million of the incurred environmental remediation costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake has been working with 
the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) in assessing this coal gas site. In May 1996, 
the Company filed an AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan (the ”Work Plan”) for the Winter Haven Coal Gas site 
with the FDEP. After discussions with the FDEP, the Company filed a modified Work Plan, which 
contained a description of the scope of work to complete the site assessment activities and a report 
describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In December 1998, the FDEP approved the 
modified Work Plan, which the Company completed during the third quarter of 1999. In February 2001, the 
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Company filed a Remedial Action Plan (“RAP”) with the FDEP to address the contamination of the 
subsurface soil and ground-water in a portion of the site. The FDEP approved the RAP on May 4,2001. 
Construction of the ASEVE system was completed in the fourth quarter of 2002, and the system remains 
fully operational. 

Through June 30, 2007, the Company has incurred approximately $1.8 million of environmental costs 
associated with this site. At June 30, 2007, the Company had accrued a liability of $103,000 related to 
this site, offsetting 1.) $17,000 collected, through rates in excess of costs incurred and 2.) a regulatory 
asset of approximately $86,000, representing the uncollected portion of the estimated clean-up costs. The 
Company expects to recover the remaining clean-up costs through rates. 

The FDEP has indicated that the Company may be required to remediate sediments along the shoreline of 
Lake Shipp, immediately west of the Winter Haven Coal Gas site. Based on studies performed to date, the 
Company objects to the FDEP’s suggestion that the sediments have been contaminated and will require 
remediation. The Company’s early estimates indicate that some of the corrective measures discussed by 
the FDEP may cost as much as $1 million. Given the Company’s view as to the absence of ecological 
effects, the Company believes that cost expenditures of this magnitude are unwarranted and plans to 
oppose any requirement that it undertake corrective measures in the offshore sediments. Chesapeake 
anticipates that it will be several years before this issue is resolved. At this time, the Company has not 
recorded a liability for sediment remediation. The outcome of this matter cannot be predicted at this time. 

Other 
The Company is in discussions with the MDE regarding a manufactured gas plant site located in 
Cambridge, Maryland. The outcome of this matter cannot be determined at this time; therefore, the 
Company has not recorded an environmental liability for this location. 

Other Commitments and Contingencies 

Natural Gas and Propane Supply 
The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual 
commitments to purchase gas from various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In 
April 2007, the Company renewed its contract with an energy marketing and risk management 
company to manage a portion of the Company’s natural gas transportation and storage capacity. This 
new contract expires on March 31, 2008. 

Corporate Guarantees 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing 
subsidiary, its Florida natural gas supply and management subsidiary, and its Delmarva propane 
distribution subsidiary. These corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane and natural 
gas purchases in the event of the subsidiaries’ default. The liabilities for these purchases are recorded 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed at June 30, 2007 
totaled $21.7 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates in 2007 and 2008. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees, the Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary 
insurance company for $775,000, which expires on May 31, 2008. The letter of credit is provided as 
security to satisfy the deductibles for claim amounts on the Company’s policies. 

Application of SFAS No. 71 
Certain assets and liabilities of the Company are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 71 - 
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” SFAS No. 71 provides guidance for public 
utilities and other regulated operations where the rates (prices) charged to customers are subject to 
regulatory review and approval. Regulators sometimes include allowable costs in a period other than 
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the period in which the costs would be charged to expense by an unregulated enterprise. That 
procedure can create assets, reduce assets, or create liabilities for the regulated enterprise. For 
financial reporting, an incurred cost for which a regulator permits recovery in a future period is 
accounted for like an incurred cost that is reimbursable under a cost-reimbursement type contract. 
The Company believes that all regulatory assets as of June 30,2007 are probable of recovery through 
rates. If the Company were required to terminate the application of SFAS No. 71 to its regulated 
operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the income statement at that time. This 
would result in a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes, which could be material. 

Other 
The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. 
The Company is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various 
governmental agencies concerning rates and other matters. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. 

5. Recent Authoritative Pronouncements on Financial Reporting and Accounting 
In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Employers’ Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes 
recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for 
Income Taxes.” This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the 
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return. This interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition and classification of uncertain tax 
positions, reporting of interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. This 
interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2006. Chesapeake was required to 
adopt FIN No. 48 in the first quarter of 2007, and its adoption did not have any impact on the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines 
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair 
value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or 
permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting 
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this statement does 
not require any new fair value measurements. This statement is effective for financial statements issued 
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. 
Chesapeake will be required to adopt SFAS No. 157 in the first quarter of 2008. The Company has not yet 
evaluated the impact that SFAS No. 157 will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, ‘The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities-including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 11 5.”SFAS No. 159 permits entities 
to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently 
required to be measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses related to these financial 
instruments reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. This Statement is effective as of the 
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet 
evaluated the impact that this statement will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In April 2007, the FASB directed the FASB Staff to issue FSP No. FIN 39-1, “Amendment of FASB 
Interpretation No. 39” (“FSP FIN 39-1”). FSP FIN 39-1 modifies FIN No. 39, “Offsetting of Amounts 
Related to Certain Contracts,” and permits companies to offset cash collateral receivables or payables 
with net derivative positions under certain circumstances. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007, with early adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the effect 
of adopting FSP FIN 39-1 on its Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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6. Segment Information 
Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. The Company organizes its 
business around differences in products or services, and the operating results of each segment are 
regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the 
allocation of resources and to assess performance. The following table presents information about the 
Company’s reportable segments. 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
For the Periods Ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 
Natural gas $39,287,667 $33,327,846 $104,719,271 $100,906,504 
Propane 9,494,170 7,937,378 34,416,570 28,488,315 
Advanced information services 3,720,083 3,038,015 6,892,970 5,858,581 
Other 51 3 1,025 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers $52,501,920 $44,303,752 $146,028,811 $135,254,425 

In terseg m en t Revenues (‘) 
Natural gas $78,087 $58,769 $156,150 $1 17,717 
Propane 406 
Advanced information services 95,991 16,875 228,227 21,513 
Other 154,623 154,623 309,246 309,246 

Total intersegment revenues $328,701 $230,267 $694,029 $448,476 

Operating Income 
Natural gas $3,992,282 $3,500,628 $13,608,264 $1 1,495,833 
Propane (545,898) (441,632) 4,327,658 2,992,101 
Advanced information services 178,706 172,061 227,528 188,371 
Other and eliminations 62,969 (25,689) 106,661 (33,709) 

Total operating income $3,688,059 $3,205,368 $18,270,111 $14,642,596 

(’) All significant intersegment revenues are billed at market rates and have been 
eliminated from consolidated revenues. 

June 30, December 31, 
2007 2006 

Identifiable Assets 
Natural gas $249,358,307 $252,292,600 
Propane 62,151,633 60,170,200 
Advanced information services 2,877,021 2,573,810 
Other 10,977,138 10,547,936 

Total identifiable assets $325,364,099 $325,584,546 

The Company’s operations are primarily domestic. The advanced information services segment, 
headquartered in Norcross, Georgia, provides domestic and international clients with information 
technology related business services and solutions. Transactions with foreign companies are 
denominated and paid in US. dollars and are immaterial to the consolidated revenues. 
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7. Employee Benefit Plans 
Net periodic benefit costs for the defined benefit pension plan, the executive excess benefit plan and other 
post-retirement benefits are shown below: 

Defined Benefit Executive Excess Other Post-Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Benefit Plan Benefits 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Service Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $2.529 $1.565 
interest Cost 155,514 156,726 30,841 29,897 23,233 19,468 
Expected return on pian assets (174,100) (171,076) 
Amortization of transition amount 6,965 
Amortization of prior sewice cost (1,175) (1,175) 
Amortization of net loss 12,933 14,260 41,640 22,074 
Net periodic (benefit) cost ($19,761) ($15,525) $43,774 $44,157 $67,402 $50,072 

Defined Benefit Executive Excess Other Post-Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Benefit Plan Benefits 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Service Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $5.057 $3.129 - - . . . . . . . 
Interest Cost 311,029 313,452 61,681 59,794 46,467 38,936 
Expected return on plan assets (348,199) (342,152) 
Amortization of transition amount 13,930 
Amortization of prior service cost (2,350) (2,350) 
Amortization of net loss 25,867 28,520 83,280 44,147 
Net periodic (benefit) cost ($39,520) ($31,050) $87,548 $88,314 $134,804 $100,142 

As disclosed in the December 31,2006 financial statements, no contributions are expected to be required 
in 2007 for the defined benefit pension plan. The cost of the executive excess defined benefit pension plan 
and the other post-retirement benefit plans are unfunded, and are expected to be paid out of the general 
funds of the Company. Cash benefits paid under the executive excess defined benefit pension plan for the 
three months and six months ended June 30, 2007 were $23,000 and $45,000, respectively; for the year 
2007, such benefits paid are expected to be $89,000. Cash benefits paid for other post-retirement 
benefits, primarily for medical claims, for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2007 totaled 
$1 17,000 and $1 61,000, respectively; for the year 2007, the Company’s actuary has estimated that such 
benefits to be paid are $1 80,000. 

8. Investments 
The investment balance at June 30, 2007 represents a Rabbi Trust (“the Trust”) associated with the 
Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. In accordance with SFAS No. 11 5, 
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” the Company classifies these 
investments as trading securities. As a result of classifying them as trading securities, the Company is 
required to report the securities at their fair value, with any unrealized gains and losses included in other 
income. The Company also has an associated liability that is recorded and adjusted each month for the 
gains and losses incurred by the Trust. At June 30,2007, total investments had a fair value of $2.1 million. 

9. Share-Based Compensation 
The Company accounts for its share-based compensation arrangements under the revised SFAS No. 123, 
“Share Based Payments” (“SFAS 123R”), which requires the recognition of compensation cost over the 
respective service period for employee services received in exchange for an award of equity or equity- 
based compensation based on the fair value of the grant on the date it was awarded. The Company 
currently has two share-based compensation plans, Director’s Stock Compensation (“DSCP”) and the 
Performance Incentive Plan (“PIP”), that require accounting under SFAS 123R. 
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The table below presents the amounts included in net income, after tax, related to share-based 
compensation expense, in respect of restricted stock awards issued under the DSCP and the PIP. 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
For the periods ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Director’s Stock Compensation Plan $ 27,600 $ 25,100 $ 54,400 $ 47,100 
Performance Incentive Plan 130,800 134,900 253,900 217,300 

Amounts included in net income, after tax $ 158,400 $ 160,000 $ 308,300 $ 264,400 

Stock Options 
The Company did not have any stock options outstanding at June 30,2007 or December 31,2006, nor 
were any’stock options issued-during the six months ended June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006. 

Director’s Stock Compensation Plan 
Under the DSCP, each non-employee director of the Company received in 2007 an annual retainer of 600 
shares of common stock and an additional 150 shares of common stock for services as a committee 
chairman. Shares issued under the DSCP are fully vested as of the date of the grant. The Company 
records a prepaid expense as of the date of the grant equal to the fair value of the shares issued and 
amortizes the expense equally over the service period of one year. 

Compensation expense related to DSCP awards recorded by the Company for the three months and six 
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is presented in the following table: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
For the periods ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Compensation expense for DSCP $ 45,200 $ 41,200 $ 89,100 $ 77,200 

A summary of restricted stock activity under the DSCP as of June 30, 2007, and changes during the six 
months then ended, is presented below: 

Number of Restricted Weighted Average 
Shares Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2006 
Issued - Mav 2. 2007 5,850 $31.38 
Vested 5,850 
Outstanding -June 30, 2007 

Performance Incentive Plan (“PIP”1 
The Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is authorized to grant key employees 
of the Company the rights to receive awards of shares of the Company’s common stock, contingent upon 
the achievement of established performance goals. These awards are subject to certain post-vesting 
transfer restrictions. The Company issued 10,124 and 23,666 restricted stock awards during the three 
months of March 2007 and 2006, respectively, to key employees under the Company’s PIP. The shares 
granted under the PIP are fully vested, and the fair value of each share is equal to the market price of the 
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of these restricted stock awards, based on 
the fair value of the Company’s stock on the issue date, was $30.89 and $30.40, for the shares issued in 
March 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
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Compensation expense related to the PIP recorded by the Company for the three months and six months 
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is presented in the following table: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
For the periods ended June 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Compensation expense for PIP $ 214,400 $ 221,100 $ 416,300 $ 356,200 

A summary of restricted stock activity under the PIP as of June 30, 2007, and changes during the six 
months then ended, is presented below: 

Number of Restricted Weighted Average 
Shares Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2006 
Issued - March 1, 2007 10,124 $30.89 
Vested 10,124 
Outstanding - June 30, 2007 

I O .  Stockholders’ Equity 
The changes in common stock shares issued and outstanding are shown below: 

For the Twelve 
Months Ended 

For the Six 

Months Ended December 31, 
2006 

June 30,2007 

Common Stock shares issued and outstanding (’) 
Shares issued -beginning of period balance 6,688,084 5,883,099 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 19,262 38,392 
Retirement Savings Plan 15,649 29,705 
Conversion of debentures 3,817 16,677 
Employee award plan 350 350 
Performance shares and options exercised (‘’ 15,974 29,516 
Public offering 690,345 

6,688,084 

(97) 
Other issuances 97 

6,743,136 Shares issued - end of period balance (4) 

Treasury shares - beginning of period balance 

Treasury Shares -end of period balance 

Total Shares Outstanding 6,743,136 6,688,084 

(’I 12,000,000 shares are authorized at a par value of $0.4867 per share. 
(*) Includes shares purchased with reinvested dividends and optional cash payments. 
(’) Includes shares issued for DSCP. 
(4) Includes 54,978 and 48,187 shares at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively, 

held in a Rabbi Trust established by the Company relating to the Executive Deferred Compensation 
Plan. 
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11. Reclassifications 
The Company reclassified some previously reported amounts to conform to current period classifications. 

Share-based compensation was recorded as a liability to Accrued Compensation at December 
31,2006. Accordingly, the Company reclassified the $123,000 remaining in the liability account, 
after the issuance of the 2006 performance shares, to Additional Paid in Capital. This 
reclassification is considered immaterial to the overall presentation of the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 
Pension assets were netted against the liabilities for the executive excess defined benefit 
pension plan and the other post-retirement benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and March 31, 
2007. Accordingly, the Company reclassified the pension assets of $630,000 at June 30,2007 to 
the asset side of the balance sheet. For comparison, the balance of $591,000 at December 31, 
2006 has also been reclassed to the asset side of the balance sheet. This reclassification is 
considered immaterial to the overall presentation of the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (”MD&A) is 
designed to provide a reader of the financial statements with a narrative on the Company’s financial condition, 
results of operations and liquidity. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the attached 
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and Chesapeake’s Annual Report 
on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31,2006, including the audited consolidated financial statements 
and notes contained in the Form IO-K. 

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form IO-Q that are considered to be “forward- 
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These 
statements are not matters of historical fact and are typically identified by words such as, but not limited to, 
“believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “may,” 
“will,” “should,” “would,” and “could.” These statements relate to matters such as customer growth, changes in 
revenues or gross margins, capital expenditures, environmental remediation costs, regulatory trends and 
decisions, market risks associated with our propane operations, the competitive position of the Company and 
other matters. It is important to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees, but are 
subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those in the forward-looking statements. The factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from the Company’s expectations include, but are not limited to: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 
the effects of spot, forward, futures market prices, and the Company’s use of derivative 
instruments on the Company’s distribution, wholesale marketing and energy trading businesses; 
amount and availability of natural gas and propane supplies; 
the access to interstate pipelines’ transportation and storage capacity and the construction of new 
facilities to support future growth; 
the effects of natural gas and propane commodity price changes on the operating costs and 
competitive positions of our natural gas and propane distribution operations; 
third-party competition for the Company’s unregulated and regulated businesses; 
changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including deregulation; 
changes in technology affecting the Company’s advanced information services segment; 
changes in credit risk and credit requirements affecting the Company’s energy marketing 
subsidiaries; 
the effects of accounting changes; 
changes in benefit plan assumptions; 
cost of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental damage; 
the effects of general economic conditions, including interest rates, on the Company and its 
customers; 
the ability of the Company’s new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected 
revenues; 
the ability of the Company to construct facilities at its estimated costs; 
the Company’s ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators 
and the timing of the requested regulatory actions; 
the Company’s ability to obtain necessary approvals and permits from regulatory agencies on a 
timely basis; 
impact of inflation on the results of operations, cash flows, financial position and on the 
Company’s planned capital expenditures; 
inability to access the financial markets that may impair future growth; and 
operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance. 
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Overview 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, 
transmission and marketing, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and 
other related businesses. For additional information regarding segments, refer to Note 6, Segment Information, 
of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q. 

The Company’s strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in 
related businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than traditional utility returns. 
The key elements of this strategy include: 

0 

0 

0 

executing a capital investment program in pursuit of organic growth opportunities that generate 
returns equal to or greater than our cost of capital: 
expanding the natural gas distribution and transmission business through expansion into new 
geographic areas in our current service territories; 
expanding the propane distribution business in existing and new markets through leveraging our 
community gas system services and our bulk delivery capabilities; 
utilizing the Company’s expertise across our various businesses to improve overall performance; 
enhancing marketing channels to attract new customers; 
providing reliable and responsive customer service to retain existing customers: 
maintaining a capital structure that enables the Company to access capital as needed; and 
maintaining a consistent and competitive dividend for shareholders. 

Due to the seasonality of the Company’s business, results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of 
results for the entire fiscal year. Revenue and earnings are typically greater during the Company’s first and 
fourth quarters, when natural gas and propane consumption is highest due to colder temperatures. 

Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended June 30,2007 
The following discussions on operating income and segment results for the three months ended June 30, 2007 
include use of the term ’‘gross margin.” Gross margin is determined by deducting the cost of sales from 
operating revenue. Cost of sales includes the purchased gas cost fornatural gas andpropane and the cost of 
labor spent on direct revenue-producing activities. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to 
operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with GAAP. Chesapeake believes that 
gross margin, although a non-GAAP measure, is useful and meaningful to investors as a basis for making 
investment decisions. It provides investors with information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by the 
Company under its allowed rates for regulated operations and under its competitive pricing structure for non- 
regulated segments. Chesapeake’s management uses gross margin in measuring its business units’ 
performance and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin information publicly. Other companies 
may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 
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Consolidated Overview 
The Company's net income for the quarter ended June 30,2007 increased $349,000, or 31 percent, compared 
to the same period in 2006. Net income was $1.5 million, or$0.22 per share (diluted), an increase of $0.03 per 
share compared to 2006. The period-over-period period increase in quarterly earnings reflects an increase in 
the operating income of the Company's natural gas and other segments, partially offset by a decrease in the 
propane segment. The period-over-period increase in the quarterly operating income resulted primarily from 
the Company's continued growth, colder weather on the Delmarva Peninsula, and increased rates for our 
natural gas customers. The Company estimates that the growth, colder weather, and rate increases 
contributed $1.4 million, $425,000, and $295,000, respectively, to gross margin during the second quarter of 
2007. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Operating Income 

NaturalGas 
Propane 
Advanced Information Services 

$3,992,282 $3,500,628 $491,654 
(545,898) (441,632) (104,266) 
178,706 172,061 6,645 

Other & Eliminations 62,969 (25,689) 88,658 
Operating Income 3,688,059 3,205,368 482,691 

Other Income 
Interest Charges 

234,195 63,715 170,480 
1,594,701 1,501,352 93,349 

Income Taxes 845,762 635,222 210,540 
Net Income $1,481,791 $1,132,509 $349,282 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $0.22 $0.19 $0.03 

Natural Gas 
The natural gas segment earned operating income of approximately $4.0 million for the second quarter ended 
June 30, 2007 compared to $3.5 million for the corresponding period in 2006, an increase of approximately 
$492,000, or 14 percent. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $39,365,754 $33,386,615 $5,979,139 
Cost of sales 263130,962 21,941,405 4,189,557 
Gross margin 13,234,792 1 1,445,210 1,789,582 

Operations & maintenance 6,440,171 5,563,477 876,694 
Depreciation & amortization 1,834,712 1,565,995 268,717 
Other taxes 967,627 815,110 152,517 
Other operating expenses 9,242,510 7,944,582 1,297,928 
Total Operating Income $3,992,282 $3,500,628 $491,654 

Statistical Data - Delmarva Peninsula 
Heating degree-days ("HDD"): 

Actual 527 388 139 
IO-year average (normal) 496 512 (16) 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $2,283 $2,234 $49 

Per residential customer added: 
Estimated gross margin 
Estimated other operating expenses 

$372 $372 $0 
$106 $1 06 $0 

Residential Customer Information 
Average number of customers: 

Delmarva 43,331 40,037 3,294 
Florida 13,361 12,511 850 

Total 56,692 52,548 4,144 
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Gross margin for the Company’s natural gas segment increased by $1.8 million, or 16 percent, and other 
operating expenses increased $1.3 million, or 16 percent, in the quarter ended June 30, 2007, compared to 
the same period in 2006. The gross margin increases of $1.1 million for the natural gas transmission 
operation, $790,000 for the Delmarva natural gas distribution operations, and $7,000 for the Florida natural 
gas distribution operation were partially offset by lower gross margin of $70,000 for the natural gas marketing 
operation, as further explained below. 

Natural Gas Transmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $1 .I million, or 26 percent. This 
increase was primarily attributed to new transportation capacity contracts implemented in November 2006 and 
the implementation of temporary rates, subject to refund, based on the status of the Company’s rate 
proceeding discussed below in the “Regulatory Matters” section. In total for 2007, these new transportation 
capacity contracts are expected to generate a gross margin of $3.3 million above the 2006 gross margin. An 
increase of $845,000 in other operating expenses partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors 
contributing to the increase in other operating expenses are as follow: 

The increase in operating expenses for the second quarter of 2007 relative to the second quarter of 
2006 is magnified by the approval from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in July 
2006 to defer pre-service costs of the Company’s Energylink Expansion Project as a regulatory asset. 
The deferral of these costs resulted in the reduction of $310,000 in other operating expenses in the 
second quarter of 2006. Please refer to the “Regulatory Matters” section below for further information 
regarding this expansion project. 
Payroll and benefit costs increased by $76,000 and $34,000, respectively, to comply with federal 
pipeline integrity maintenance regulations and to serve the additional growth experienced by the 
operation. 
Incentive compensation increased by $71,000 as a result of the improved operating results in 2007 
compared to 2006. 
Regulatory expenses increased by $55,000 in the second quarter of 2007 as the Company 
incurred costs associated with its rate filing with the FERC. 
The increased level of capital investment caused higher depreciation and asset removal costs of 
$1 94,000 and increased property taxes of $31,000. 
Other operating expenses relating to various items increased collectively by approximately 
$74,000. 

Natural Gas Distribution 
The Delmarva distribution operations experienced an increase of $790,000, or 20 percent, in gross margin. 
The significant factors contributing to the increase in gross margin include: 

Continued residential customer growth contributed to the increase in gross margin. The average 
number of residential customers on the Delmarva Peninsula increased by 3,294, or eight percent, for 
the second quarter 2007 compared to the same period in 2006, and the Company estimates that 
these additional residential customers contributed approximately $243,000 to gross margin. 
The Company estimates that colder weather contributed $224,000 to gross margin in the second 
quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006, as temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula 
were 36 percent colder in 2007. The colder temperatures did not have a significant impact on the 
Maryland distribution operation’s gross margin in the second quarter of 2007 because the operation’s 
approved rate structure now includes a weather normalization adjustment (“WNA) mechanism. The 
WNA mechanism was implemented in October 2006 and is designed to protect a portion of the 
Company’s revenues against warmer-than-normal weather, as deviations from normal weather can 
affect our financial performance and liquidity. The WNA also serves to offset the impact of colder- 
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than-normal weather by reducing the amounts the Company can charge its customers during such 
periods. 
In October 2006, the Maryland PSC granted the Company a base rate increase, which resulted in an 
$1 83,000 period-over-period increase to gross margin in the second quarter of 2007. 
The remaining $140,000 increase in gross margin can be attributed to various factors, including 
increases in the number of commercial and industrial customers. 

0 

0 

Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $7,000 in the second quarter of 2007 
compared to the second quarter of 2006. The impact of a seven percent growth in residential customers and a 
three percent growth in commercial customers was offset by lower volumes sold to industrial customers. 

Other operating expense for the natural gas distribution operations increased by $220,000 in the second 
quarter of 2007 compared to the second quarter of 2006. Among the key components of the increase were the 
following: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Payroll costs increased by $48,000 to serve the additional growth experienced by the operations. 
Health care costs increased by $1 03,000 during the second quarter of 2007 compared to the second 
quarter of 2006 as the Company experienced higher cost of health care claims during this period. 
Depreciation and amortization expense, asset removal cost and property taxes increased by $96,000, 
$51,000 and $21,000, respectively, as a result of the Company’s continued capital investments. 
The 2007 increase in revenue related taxes is magnified by the Company’s receipt of approval in the 
second quarter of 2006 from the Delaware Public Service Commission to defer $74,000 of previously 
expensed taxes associated with the Annual Gross Revenue Tax as a regulatory asset. 
In addition, other operating expenses relating to various minor items increased by approximately 
$36,000. 
The above increases were partially offset by a decrease of $1 11,000 in the allowance for uncollectible 
accounts, which was due primarily to increased collection efforts. In addition, merchant payment fees 
decreased by $98,000 as the Company’s Delmarva operation outsourced the processing of credit 
card payments in April of 2007 in an effort to reduce operating costs. 

0 

0 

Natural Gas Marketinq 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation decreased by $70,000, or 13 percent, for the second 
quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. The decline in gross margin was primarily the result of 
unfavorable imbalance resolutions with interstate pipelines, which caused an increase in the cost of gas. Other 
operating expenses increased by $233,000 for the marketing operation due to increased payroll and benefit 
costs and increased incentive compensation. The year-over-year increase in incentive compensation is due to 
an adjustment that occurred in second quarter 2006 to record compensation at the expected payout based on 
the level of earnings. 
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Propane 
The propane segment incurred an operating loss of $546,000, representing an increased loss of $1 04,000, or 
24 percent, for the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. Gross margin increased by 
$408,000, which was offset by an increase in other operating expenses of $512,000. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $9,494,170 $7,937,378 $1,556,792 
Cost of sales 5,930,398 4,781,819 1,148,579 
Gross margin 3,563,772 3,155,559 408,213 

Operations & maintenance 3,463,047 3,024,725 438,322 
Depreciation & amortization 458,788 402,675 56,113 
Other taxes 187,835 169,791 18,044 
Other operating expenses 4,109,670 3,597,191 512,479 
Total Operating Loss ($545,898) ($441,632) ($104,266) 

Statistical Data - Delmarva Peninsula 
Heating degree-days ("HDD"): - -  

Actual 
1 O-year average (normal) 

527 388 139 
496 512 (16) 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $1,974 $1,743 $231 

Gross margin for the Company's propane segment increased by $408,000, or 13 percent, and other operating 
expenses increased $512,000, or 14 percent, in the three months ended June 30,2007 compared to the same 
period in 2006. The gross margin increases of $216,000 for the Delmarva propane distribution operations, 
$39,000 for the Florida propane distribution operations, and $1 53,000 for the propane wholesale marketing are 
further explained below. 

Delmarva Propane Distribution 
The Delmarva propane distribution operation's increase in gross margin of $216,000 resulted from the 
following: 

Volumes sold in the second quarter 2007 increased by 365,000 gallons, or 13 percent, primarily 
because temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula were 36 percent colder during this period in 2007 
when compared to the same period in 2006. The Company estimates that the colder weather 
increased gross margin by approximately $201,000 for the Delmarva propane distribution operation 
compared to the second quarter of 2006. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva Community Gas Systems ("CGS") increased by $1 16,000 in the 
second quarter of 2007, compared to the same period in 2006, primarily because of an increase in the 
average number of customers and the colder weather on the Delmarva Peninsula. The average 
number of CGS customers increased by approximately 1,020 to a total count of approximately 4,800, 
or a 27 percent increase, compared to the second quarter 2006. The Company expects the growth of 
its CGS operation to continue, as the number of systems currently under construction or under 
contract is anticipated to provide an additional 7,900 CGS customers once the systems are built out. 
The remaining $90,000 increase in gross margin can be attributed to various factors, including service 
sales and wholesale sales. 
Partially offsetting the increases to gross margin listed above, the Delmarva propane distribution 
operations experienced a decrease in gross margin of $1 91,000 in the second quarter of 2007 
compared to the same period in 2006 because of a $0.06 decrease in the average gross margin per 
retail gallon. This decrease occurs when the market price of propane decreases to levels closer to the 
Company's average inventory price per gallon. Propane gross margin is also impacted by the 
Company's pricing with its customers. 
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Total other operating expenses increased by $379,000 for the Delmarva propane distribution operations in the 
quarter ended June 30, 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. The significant items contributing to this 
increase are explained below. 

0 The increase in operating expenses for the second quarter of 2007 is magnified by the Company’s 
one-time recovery of previously incurred costs of $87,000 from one of its propane suppliers. This 
recovery reimbursed the Company for fixed costs incurred in the removal of above-normal levels of 
petroleum by-products contained in approximately 75,000 gallons of propane that it purchased from 
the supplier. The recovery of these costs reduced other operating expenses in the second quarter of 
2006. 
Health care costs increased by $85,000 during the second quarter of 2007 compared to the second 
quarter of 2006 as the Company experienced a higher cost of health care claims during the period. 
The operation incurred an additional $108,000 in the second quarter of 2007 compared to 2006 for 
propane tank recertifications and maintenance to comply with Department of Transportation 
standards. 
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $40,000 as a result of the Company’s continued 
capital investments. 
In addition, other operating expenses relating to various items increased collectively by approximately 
$59,000. 

0 

0 

0 

Florida ProDane Distribution 
The Florida propane distribution operation experienced an increase in gross margin of $39,000, or 15 percent, 
in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. Gross margin from propane sales 
increased $32,000 as a higher average gross margin per retail gallon was partially offset by a nine percent 
decrease in the volumes sold in 2007. The remaining increase of $7,000 is attributed to higher in-house piping 
sales. Other operating expenses in the second quarter 2007 compared to the second quarter 2006 increased 
by $69,000 primarily due to an increase in payroll costs, insurance and higher depreciation expense, partially 
offset by lower incentive compensation. 

ProDane Wholesale and Marketing 
Gross margin for the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation increased by $1 53,000, or 35 
percent, in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. This increase reflects the larger 
number of market opportunities that arose in the second quarter of 2007 due to price volatility in the propane 
wholesale market. The increase in gross margin was partially offset by higher other operating expenses of 
$64,000 primarily due to higher incentive compensation based on the increased earnings in 2007. 
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Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients with information- 
technology-related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. The 
advanced information services business experienced gross margin growth of approximately $376,000, or 30 
percent, and contributed operating income of approximately $179,000 for the three months ended June 30, 
2007. Increases in revenue and gross margin were almost completely offset by increases in other operating 
expenses, consequently, operating income increased by only $7,000 compared to the same period in 2006. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $3,816,074 $3,054,890 $761,184 
Cost of sales 2,166,963 1,781,866 385,097 
Gross margin 1,649,111 1,273,024 376,087 

Operations & maintenance 
DeDreciation & amortization 

1,273,241 958,234 31 5,007 
35,248 28,276 6,972 

The increase of revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2007 is attributable to: 

An increase of $654,000 in consulting revenues as the number of billable hours increased by 20 
percent; 
An increase of $69,000 from Managed Database Administration (“MDBA) services, first offered in 
2006, which provide clients with professional database monitoring and support solutions during 
business hours or around the clock; and 
An increase of $38,000 in revenue from training services and product sales. 

Other operating expenses increased by $369,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2007 to $1.5 million, 
compared to $1 .I million for the same period in 2006. This increase in operating expenses is primarily due to 
an increase in accrued incentive compensation based on improved operating results and other costs incurred 
to support the growth. 

Other Business Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations consist primarily of subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Company subsidiaries 
and the results of operations for OnSight Energy, LLC (“Onsight”). Other operations generated an operating 
income of approximately $63,000 for the three months ended June 30,2007 compared to an operating loss of 
approximately $26,000 for the same period in 2006. The improved results are primarily from OnSight 
experiencing a reduced operating loss in the second quarter of 2007. 
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The Company formed OnSight in 2004 to provide distributed energy services. Distributed energy refers to a 
variety of small, modular power generating technologies that may be combined with heating and/or cooling 
systems. For the three months ended June 30,2007, OnSight had an operating loss of $1 0,000 compared to 
an operating loss of $98,000 for the same period in 2006. The reduced operating loss in 2007 is a direct result 
of actions which the Company took in the third quarter of 2006 to reduce operating expenses going forward. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $154,623 $1 55,136 ($51 3) 
Cost of sales 4,616 438 4,178 
Gross margin 150,007 154,698 (4,691) 

Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

33,394 119,301 (85,907) 
39,545 40,827 (1,282) 

Other taxes 14,871 21,029 (6,158) 

Operating Income (Loss) - Other 62,197 (26,459) 88,656 
Other operating expenses 87,810 181,157 (93,347) 

Operating Income - Eliminations (1) 772 770 2 
Total Operating Income (Loss) $62,969 ($25,689) $88,658 

(1) Eliminations are entries required to eliminate activities between business segments from the 
the consolidated results. 

Interest Expense 
Total interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2007 increased approximately $93,000, or six 
percent, compared to the same period in 2006. The higher interest expense is a result of the following 
developments: 

The Company’s average long-term debt balance during the three months ended June 30,2007 was 
$78.0 million with a weighted average interest rate of 6.67 percent, compared to $62.8 million with a 
weighted average interest rate of 7.1 1 percent for the same period in 2006. The large period-over- 
period increase in the average long-term debt balance is the result of a debt placement of $20 million 
Senior Notes (“Notes”) at 5.5 percent in October 2006 with three institutional investors (The Prudential 
Insurance Company of America, Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company and United 
Omaha Life Insurance Company). 
An increase in the Company’s average short-term interest rate in the three months ended June 30, 
2007 compared to 2006. The average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 5.46 
percent to 5.73 percent. 
A decrease in the Company’s average short-term debt balance during the three months ended June 
30,2007 compared to the same period in 2006. The average short-term borrowing balance decreased 
$9.8 million in 2007 to $14.1 million compared to $23.9 million in 2006. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense for the three months ended June 30,2007 was $846,000 compared to $635,000 for the 
three months ended June 30, 2006. The increase in income tax expense primarily reflects higher earnings. 
The effective tax rate for the second quarter of 2007 is 36.3 percent compared to an effective tax rate of 35.9 
percent for the same period in 2006. 
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Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 
The following discussions on operating income and segment results for the six months ended June 30, 2007 
include use of the term “gross margin.” Gross margin is determined by deducting the cost of sales from 
operating revenue. Cost of sales includes the purchased gas cost for natural gas and propane and the cost of 
labor spent on direct revenue-producing activities. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to 
operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with GAAP. Chesapeake believes that 
gross margin, although a non-GAAP measure, is useful and meaningful to investors as a basis for making 
investment decisions. It provides investors with information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by the 
Company under its allowed rates for regulated operations and under its competitive pricing structure for non- 
regulated segments. Chesapeake’s management uses gross margin in measuring its business units’ 
performance and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin information publicly. Other companies 
may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

Consolidated Overview 
The Company’s net income for the six months ended June 30, 2007 increased $2.2 million, or 31 percent, 
compared to the same period in 2006. Net income was $9.4 million, or $1.39 per share (diluted), an increase 
of $0.19 per share compared to 2006. The period-over-period increase in earnings reflects an increase in 
operating income at the Company’s natural gas and propane operations as a result of continued growth and 
colder temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula, which increased volumes sold to customers. The Company 
estimates that the growth and colder weather contributed $3.4 million and $1.7 million, respectively, to gross 
margin during the first six months of 2007. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Operating Income 

Natural Gas $13,608,264 $1 1,495,833 $2,112,431 
Propane 4,327,658 2,992,101 1,335,557 
Advanced Information Services 227,528 188,371 39,157 
Other & Eliminations 106,661 (33,709) 140,370 

Operating Income 18,270,111 14,642,596 3,627,515 

Other Income 
Interest Charges 

287,567 142,299 145,268 
3,193,951 2,994,689 199,262 

Income Taxes 5,890,848 4,561,281 1,329,567 
Net Income $9,472,879 $7,228,925 $2,243,954 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $1.39 $1.20 $0.19 

- 25 - 



Natural Gas 
The natural gas segment earned operating income of $1 3.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 
compared to $1 1.5 million for the corresponding period in 2006, an increase of $2.1 million, or 18 percent. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $104,875,421 $101,024,221 $3,851,200 
Cost of sales 72,899,708 73,166,577 (266,869) 
Gross margin 31,975,713 27,857,644 4,118,069 

Operations & maintenance 
Detxeciation & amortization 

12,703,572 11,367,924 1,335,648 
3,630,193 3,053,083 577,110 

Other taxes 2,033,684 1,940,804 92,880 
Other operating expenses 18,367,449 16,361,811 2,005,638 
Total Operating Income $13,608,264 $1 1,495,833 $2,112,431 

Statistical Data - Delmarva Peninsula 
Heating degree-days (“HDD”): 

Actual 2,966 2,457 509 
IO-year average (normal) 2,737 2,793 (56) 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $2,283 $2,234 $49 

Per residential customer added: 
Estimated gross margin 
Estimated other operating expenses 

$372 $372 $0 
$106 $106 $0 

Residential Customer Information 
Average number of customers: 

Delmarva 43,471 40,126 3,345 
Florida 13,311 12,470 84 1 

Total 56,782 52,596 4,186 

Gross margin for the Company’s natural gas segment increased by $4.1 million, or 15 percent, and other 
operating expenses increased $2.0 million, or 12 percent, in the six months ended June 30,2007 compared to 
the same period in 2006. The gross margin increases of $2.0 million for the natural gas transmission 
operation, $2.3 million for the Delmarva natural gas distribution operations, and $1 32,000 for the Florida 
natural gas distribution operation were partially offset by a lower gross margin of $274,000 for the natural gas 
marketing operation, as further explained below. 

Natural Gas Transmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $2.0 million, or 22 percent. This 
increase was-primarily attributed to new transportation capacity contracts implemented in November 2006 and 
the implementation of temporary rates, subject to refund, based on the status of the FERC rate proceeding 
discussed below in the “Regulatory Matters” section. In total for 2007, these new transportation capacity 
contracts are expected to generate a gross margin of $3.3 million above the 2006 gross margin. An increase 
of $1.3 million in other operating expenses partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing 
to the increase in other operating expenses are as follows: 

The increase in operating expenses for the first six months of 2007 is magnified by the FERC’s 
approval, in July 2006, to defer pre-service costs of the Company’s Energylink Expansion Project as a 
regulatory asset. The deferral of these costs resulted in the reduction of $31 0,000 in other operating 
expenses in the second quarter of 2006. Please refer to the “Regulatory Matters” section below for 
further information on this expansion project. 
Payroll and benefit costs increased by $149,000 and $45,000, respectively, to comply with federal 
pipeline integrity maintenance regulations and to serve the additional growth experienced by the 
operation. 
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Incentive compensation increased by $24,000 as a result of the improved operating results in 2007 
compared to 2006. 
Regulatory expenses increased by $108,000 in the first six months of 2007 as the Company 
incurred costs associated with its rate filing with the FERC. 
The increased level of capital investment caused higher depreciation and asset removal costs of 
$425,000 and increased property taxes of $52,000. 
Other operating expenses relating to various items increased collectively by approximately 
$1 69,000. 

Natural Gas Distribution 
The Delmarva distribution operations experienced an increase of $2.3 million, or 19 percent, in gross margin. 
The significant items contributing to the increase in gross margin include the following: 

The Company estimates that weather contributed $756,000 to gross margin in the six months ended 
June 30, 2007 compared to the same period in 2006, as temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula 
were 21 percent colder in 2007. The colder temperatures did not have a significant impact on the 
Maryland distribution operation’s gross margin in the first six months of 2007, because the operation’s 
approved rate structure now includes a WNA mechanism. The WNA mechanism was implemented in 
October 2006 and is designed to protect a portion of the Company’s revenues against warmer-than- 
normal weather, as deviations from normal weather can affect our financial performance and liquidity. 
The WNA also serves to offset the impact of colder-than-normal weather by reducing the amounts the 
Company can charge its customers during such periods. 
Continued residential customer growth also contributed to the increase in gross margin. The average 
number of residential customers on the Delmarva Peninsula increased by 3,345, or eight percent, for 
the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the same period in 2006, and the Company 
estimates that these additional residential customers contributed approximately $703,000 to gross 
margin. 
In October 2006, the Maryland PSC granted the Company a base rate increase, which resulted in a 
$495,000 period-over-period increase to gross margin in the first six months of 2007. 
The remaining $205,000 increase in gross margin can be attributed to various factors, including an 
increase in the number of commercial and industrial customers. 

Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $133,000, or two percent, in the first six 
months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. The higher gross margin for the period is primarily 
attributed to the increase in customers as the operation experienced a seven percent growth in residential 
customers and a three percent growth in commercial customers. 
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Other operating expense for the natural gas distribution operations increased by $599,000 in the first six 
months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. Among the key components of the increase were the 
following: 

Payroll costs increased by $90,000 to serve the additional growth experienced by the operation. 
Health care costs increased by $1 13,000 as the Company experienced a higher cost of claims in the 
first six months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. 
Depreciation and amortization expense, asset removal cost and property taxes increased by 
$200,000, $99,000 and $52,000, respectively, as a result of the Company's continued capital 
investments. 
In addition, other operating expenses relating to various minor items increased by approximately 
$86,000. 
Merchant payment fees decreased by $41,000, as the Company's Delmarva operation outsourced the 
processing of credit card payments in April of 2007; this decrease was partially offset by the increased 
merchant payment fees incurred in the first quarter of 2007. 

Natural Gas Markefinq 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation decreased by $274,000, or 21 percent, for the first six 
months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. The decline in gross margin was primarily the result of 
unfavorable imbalance resolutions with interstate pipelines, which caused an increase in the cost of gas. Other 
operating expenses increased by $1 25,000 for the marketing operation primarily due to increases in payroll 
and benefit costs, allowance for uncollectible accounts and corporate overhead costs. 

Propane 
The propane segment experienced an increase of $1.3 million, or 45 percent, in operating income for the six 
months ended June 30,2007 compared to the same period in 2006. Gross margin increased by $2.5 million, 
which was partially offset by an increase in other operating expenses of $1.2 million. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $34,416,976 $28,488,315 $5,928,661 
Cost of sales 21,263,372 17,877,811 3,385,561 
Gross margin 13,153,604 10,610,504 2,543,100 

Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

7,459,990 6,365,200 1,094,790 
904,368 819,384 84,984 

Other taxes 461,588 433,819 27,769 
Other operating expenses 8,825,946 7,618,403 1,207,543 
Total Operating Income $4,327,658 $2,992,101 $1,335,557 

Statistical Data - Delmarva Peninsula 
Heating degree-days ("HDD'): 

Actual 2,966 2,457 509 
IO-year average (normal) 2,737 2,793 (56) 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $1,974 $1,743 $231 

Operating income for the propane segment increased by $1.3 million, or 45 percent, to $4.3 million for the six 
months ended June 30,2007 compared to the same period in 2006. This increase was due primarily to colder 
weather on the Delmarva Peninsula in the first six months of 2007, which resulted in increased consumption 
by customers. Gross margin in the Delmarva propane distribution operations increased, compared to the first 
six months of 2006, by $2.1 million, primarily due to colderweather. Gross margin also increased in the Florida 
propane distribution operation and the Company's wholesale propane marketing operation by $62,000 and 
$367,000, respectively. 
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Delmawa Propane Distribution 
The Delmarva propane distribution operation’s increase in gross margin of $2.1 million resulted from the 
following: 

Volumes sold in the first six months of 2007 increased by 1.9 million gallons, or 13 percent, primarily 
because temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula were 21 percent colder during the first six months 
of 2007 than during the same period in 2006. The Company estimates that the colder weather 
increased gross margin by approximately $931,000 for the Delmarva propane distribution operation 
compared to the first six months of 2006. 
Gross margin further increased by $577,000 in the first six months of 2007, compared to the same 
period in 2006, because of a $0.05 increase in the average gross margin per retail gallon. This 
increase occurs when market prices of propane rise greater than the Company’s average inventory 
price per gallon. This trend reverses, as it did in the second quarter of 2007, when market prices 
decrease and moves closer to the Company’s inventory price per gallon. Propane gross margin is 
also impacted by the Company’s pricing with its customers. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva Community Gas Systems (“CGS”) increased by $529,000 in the first 
six months of 2007, compared to the same period in 2006, primarily because of the colder weather 
and an increase in the average number of customers. The average number of CGS customers 
increased by approximately 1,000 to a total count of approximately 4,680, or a 27 percent increase, 
compared to the first six months of 2006. The Company expects the growth of its CGS operation to 
continue as the number of systems currently under construction or under contract is anticipated to 
provide an additional 7,900 CGS customers, an increase of 169 percent. 
The remaining $77,000 decrease in gross margin can be attributed to various factors, including lower 
service sales and wholesale sales. 

Total other operating expenses increased by $995,000 for the Delmarva operations in the six months ended 
June 30, 2007, compared to the same period in 2006. The significant items contributing to this increase are 
explained below: 

The increase in operating expenses for the first six months of 2007 is magnified by the Company’s 
one-time recovery of previously incurred costs of $387,000 from one of its propane suppliers. This 
recovery reimbursed the Company for fixed costs incurred in the removal of above-normal levels of 
petroleum by-products contained in approximately 75,000 gallons of propane that it purchased from 
the supplier. The recovery of these costs reduced other operating expenses in the first six months of 
2006. 
Payroll costs have increased by $73,000 to serve the additional growth experienced by the operation. 
Incentive compensation increased by $183,000 as a result of the improved operating results in 2007 
compared to 2006. 
Health care costs increased by $80,000 during the first six months of 2007 compared to the same 
period in 2006 as the Company experienced a higher cost of claims during the period. 
The operation incurred an additional $116,000 in 2007 for propane tank recertifications and 
maintenance to comply with Department of Transportation standards. 
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $60,000 as a result of the Company’s continued 
capital investments. 
In addition, other operating expenses relating to various items increased collectively by approximately 
$96,000. 

Florida Propane Distribution 
The Florida propane distribution operation experienced an increase in gross margin of $62,000, o.r 10 percent, 
in the first six months 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. Gross margin from propane sales increased 
$14,000 as a higher average gross margin per retail gallon was partially offset by a two percent decrease in 
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the volumes sold in 2007. The remaining increase of $48,000 is attributed to higher in-house piping sales. 
Other operating expenses in the first six months of 2007, compared to the same period in 2006, increased by 
$1 18,000, primarily due to increases in payroll costs, insurance and depreciation expense, which were partially 
offset by lower incentive compensation. 

Propane Wholesale and Marketinq 
Gross margin for the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation increased by $367,000, or 38 
percent, in the first six months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006. This increase reflects the larger 
number of market opportunities that arose in the first six months of 2007, due to price volatility in the propane 
wholesale market, which exceeded the level of price fluctuations experienced in the same period of 2006. The 
increase in gross margin was partially offset by higher other operating expenses of $94,000, due primarily to 
higher incentive compensation based on the increased earnings in 2007. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services business experienced gross margin growth of approximately $625,000, or 
25 percent, and contributed operating income of $228,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2007, an 
increase of $39,000 compared to the same period in 2006. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $7,121,197 $5,880,094 $1,241.103 
Cost of sales 4,001 , I  11 3,385,026 616,085 
Gross margin 3,120,086 2,495,068 625,018 

Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

2,464,659 1,972,680 491,979 
69,485 61,940 7,545 

The increase of revenues in the six months ended June 30. 2007 is resulted from: 

An increase of $1 .O million in consulting revenues as the number of billable hours increased by 17 
percent; 
An increase of $1 50,000 from Managed Database Administration (“MDBA”) services, first offered in 
2006, which provide clients with professional database monitoring and support solutions during 
business hours or around the clock; and 
An increase of $66,000 in revenue from training services and product sales. 

Other operating expenses increased by $586,000 to $2.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2007, 
compared to $2.3 million for the same period in 2006. This increase in operating expenses is due primarily to 
an increase in accrued incentive compensation based on improved operating results and other costs incurred 
to support the growth and improved earnings. 
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Other Business Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations generated an operating income of approximately $1 07,000 for the six months ended June 
30,2007 compared to an operating loss of approximately $34,000 for the same period in 2006. The improved 
results are attainable primarily to OnSight experiencing a reduced operating loss in the first six months of 
2007. 

For the six months ended June 30,2007, OnSight had an operating loss of $42,000 compared to an operating 
loss of $1 96,000 for the same period in 2006. The reduced operating loss in 2007 is a direct result of actions 
which the Company took in the third quarter of 2006 to reduce operating expenses going forward. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 Change 
Revenue $309,246 $31 0,271 ($1,025) 
Cost of sales 4,616 875 3,741 
Gross margin 304,630 309,396 (4,766) 

Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

86,822 223,390 (136,568) 
80,813 81,484 

Operatina Income (Loss) - Other 105,121 
Operating Income - Eliminations (1) 1,540 1,540 0 
Total Operating Income (Loss) $106,661 ($33,709) $140,370 

(1) Eliminations are entries required to eliminate activities between business segments from the 
the consolidated results. 

Interest Expense 
Total interest expense for the first six months of 2007 increased approximately $199,000, or seven 
percent, compared to the same period in 2006. The higher interest expense is a result of the following 
developments: 

The Company’s average long-term debt balance during the first six months of 2007 was $77.8 million 
with a weighted average interest rate of 6.68 percent, compared to $62.8 million with a weighted 
average interest rate of 7.14 percent for the same period in 2006. The large year-over-year increase 
in the average long-term debt balance is the result of a debt placement of $20 million Senior Notes 
(“Notes”) at 5.5 percent in October 2006 with three institutional investors (The Prudential Insurance 
Company of America, Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company and United Omaha Life 
Insurance Company). 
An increase in the average short-term interest rates in the first six months of 2007 compared to the 
same period in 2006. The Company’s average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 
5.20 percent to 5.72 percent. 
A decrease in the Company’s average short-term debt balance during the first six months of 2007 
compared to the same period in 2006. The average short-term borrowing balance decreased $1 0.7 
million in 2007 to $1 5.8 million compared to $26.5 million in 2006. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense for the six months ended June 30,2007 was $5.9 million compared to $4.6 million for the 
six months ended June 30,2006. The increase in income tax expense primarily reflects higher earnings. The 
effective tax rate for the first six months of 2007 is 38.3 percent compared to an effective tax rate of 38.7 
percent for the same period in 2006. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Chesapeake’s capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally 
attributable to its investment in new plant and equipment and the retirement of outstanding debt. The 
Company relies on cash generated from operations, short-term borrowing, and other sources to meet normal 
working capital requirements and to finance capital expenditures. During the first six months of 2007, net cash 
provided by operating activities was $20.6 million, cash used by investing activities was $1 5.9 million and cash 
used by financing activities was $8.3 million. 

By comparison, during the first six months of 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $23.0 million, 
cash used by investing activities was $16.8 million and cash used by financing activities was $6.3 million. 

The Board of Directors has authorized the Company to borrow up to $55.0 million of short-term debt, as 
required, from various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. As of June 30, 2007, 
Chesapeake had four unsecured bank lines of credit with two financial institutions, totaling $80.0 million. 
These bank lines will provide funds for the Company’s short-term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital expenditures. Two of the bank lines, totaling $1 5.0 
million, are committed. The other two lines are subject to the availability of bank funds. The outstanding 
balance of short-term borrowing at June 30,2007 and December 31,2006 was $23.6 million and $27.6 million, 
respectively. 

Chesapeake has budgeted $45.5 million for capital expenditures during 2007. This amount includes $20.2 
million for natural gas distribution, $16.5 million for natural gas transmission, $7.5 million for propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing, $1 54,000 for advanced information services and $91 5,000 for other 
operations. The natural gas distribution and transmission expenditures are for expansion and improvement of 
facilities. The propane expenditures are to support customer growth and the replacement of equipment. The 
advanced information services expenditures are for computer hardware, software and related equipment. The 
other operations category includes general plant, computer software and hardware. Financing for the 2007 
capital expenditure program is expected from short-term borrowing, cash provided by operating activities, and 
other sources. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous review and modification. Actual capital 
requirements may vary from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including acquisition 
opportunities, changing economic conditions, customer growth in existing areas, regulation, new growth 
opportunities and availability of capital. 

Chesapeake expects to incur approximately $75,000 for environmental-related expenditures in 2007 and the 
same amount in 2008. Additional expenditures may be required in future years (see Note 4 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). Management does not expect financing of future environmental-related 
expenditures to have a material adverse effect on the financial position or capital resources of the Company. 

Capital Structure 
The following presents the Company’s capitalization as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006: 

June 30,2007 December 31,2006 

(In thousands, except percentages) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $69,965 37% $71,050 39% 
Stockholders’ equity $1 18,883 63% $111,152 61 Yo 
Total capitalization, excluding short-term debt $188,848 100% $1 82,202 100% 

As of June 30,2007, common equity represented 63 percent of total capitalization, compared to 61 percent at 
December 31, 2006. If short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt were included in total 
capitalization, the equity component of the Company’s capitalization would have been 54 percent and 51 
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percent at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively. Chesapeake remains committed to 
maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility needed to 
access capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate and timely rate relief for the 
Company's regulated operations, is intended to ensure that Chesapeake will be able to attract capital from 
outside sources at a reasonable cost. The Company believes that the achievement of these objectives will 
provide benefits to customers and creditors, as well as to the Company's investors. 

Shelf Registration 
In July 2006, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC to issue up to $40.0 million 
in new common stock and/or debt securities. The registration statement was declared effective by the SEC in 
November 2006. At June 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $20.0 million remaining under this 
registration statement. 

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities 
Cash flows provided by operating activities were as follows: 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 2006 
Net Income $9,472,879 $7,228,925 
Non-cash adjustments to net income 8,185,897 3,642,120 
Changes in working capital 2,959,281 12,099,741 

Net cash provided by operating activties $20,618,057 $22,970,786 

Period-over-period changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarily to net income, 
depreciation and working capital changes. The changes in working capital are impacted by weather, the price 
of natural gas and propane, the timing of customer collections, payments of natural gas and propane 
purchases, and deferred gas cost recoveries. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2007, net cash flow provided by operating activities was $20.6 million, a 
decrease of $2.4 million compared to the same period of 2006. The decrease was due primarily to changes in 
working capital, which were partially offset by higher net income and higher non-cash adjustments for 
depreciation and amortization expense and changes in deferred income taxes. The reduction in working 
capital was due primarily to the decrease in cash provided from accounts receivable and income tax 
receivable, which was partially offset by a decrease in cash used by accounts payable for gas purchases 
payable. The changes in accounts receivable and accounts payable were impacted by the weather and the 
lower gas commodity costs. 

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 
Net cash flows used in investing activities totaled $1 5.9 million and $16.8 million during the six months ended 
June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Cash utilized for capital expenditures was $16.0 million and $16.8 
million for the first six months of 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additions to property, plant and equipment in 
these quarters were primarily for natural gas transmission, natural gas distribution and propane distribution. In 
both 2007 and 2006, the natural gas distribution expenditures were used primarily to fund expansion and 
facilities improvements. In both periods, the natural gas transmission capital expenditures related primarily to 
expanding the Company's transmission system. In addition, $1 36,000 more than what was recovered through 
rates charged to customers was used for environmental expenditures in the first six months of 2007 compared 
to a net recovery of $2,000 for environmental costs through rates charged to customers in the same period in 
2006. 
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Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities 
Cash flows used in financing activities totaled $8.3 million and $6.3 million for the six months ended June 
30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Significant financing activities included the following: 

During the first six months of 2007, the Company reduced short-term debt by $4.8 million compared to 
a $3.7 million reduction in the first six months of 2006. 

During the first six months of 2007, the Company paid $3.5 million in cash dividends compared with 
dividend payments of $2.9 million for the same time period in 2006. The increase in dividends paid 
over the prior year reflects an increase in the annualized dividend rate from $1 . I4  per share during the 
first quarter of 2006 to $1 . I6  per share in the first quarter of 2007 and the issuance of additional 
shares of common stock. 

The Company repaid $1 .O million of long-term debt during the first six months of 2007 and 2006. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing 
subsidiary, its Florida natural gas supply and management subsidiary and its Delmarva propane distribution 
subsidiary. These corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the 
event of a subsidiary’s default. Liabilities for these purchases are recorded in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed at June 30, 2007 was $21.7 million, with the guarantees 
expiring on various dates in 2007 and 2008. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees, the Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary insurance 
company for $775,000, which expires on May 31, 2008. The letter of credit is provided as security for claims 
amounts to satisfy the deductibles on the Company’s policies. 

Contractual Obligations 
There have not been any material changes in the contractual obligations presented in the Company’s 2006 
Annual Report on Form IO-K, except for commodity purchase obligations and forward contracts entered into in 
the ordinary course of the Company’s business. Below is a summary of the commodity and forward contract 
obligations at June 30, 2007. 

Payments Due by Period 
Less than 1 More than 5 

Purchase Obligations year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 years years Total 
Commodities (I) $2,264,343 $55,506 $0 $0 $2,319,849 

Total Purchase Obligations $69,726,053 $55,506 $0 $0 $69,781,559 
Propane (*) 67,461,710 - 67,461,710 

(I) In addition to the obligations noted above, the natural gas distribution and propane 
distribution operations have agreements with commodity suppliers that have provisions 
allowing the Company to reduce or eliminate the quantities purchased. There are no 
monetary penalties for reducing the amounts purchased; however, the propane contracts 
allow the suppliers to reduce the amounts available in the winter season if the Company 
does not purchase specified amounts during the summer season. Under these contracts, 
the commodity prices will fluctuate as market prices fluctuate. 
The Company has also entered into forward sale contracts in the aggregate amount of 
$69.6 million. See Part I, Item 3, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market 
Risk,” below for further information. 
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Environmental Matters 
As more fully described above in Note 4 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, Chesapeake 
has incurred costs relating to the completed or ongoing environmental remediation at three former 
manufactured gas plant sites. In addition, Chesapeake is currently participating in discussions regarding 
possible responsibility of the Company for remediation of a fourth former manufactured gas plant site located 
in Cambridge, Maryland. Chesapeake believes that future costs associated with these sites will be recoverable 
in rates or through sharing arrangements with, or contributions by, other responsible parties. 

OTHER MATTERS 

Regulatory Matters 
The Company’s natural gas distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to regulation 
by the respective Public Service Commissions. Eastern Shore Natural Gas (“Eastern Shore”), the Company’s 
natural gas transmission operation, is subject to regulation by the FERC. 

Delaware. On September 2,2005, the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware Public Service 
Commission (“Delaware PSC”) requesting approval of an alternative rate design and rate structure in order to 
provide natural gas service to prospective customers in eastern Sussex County. While Chesapeake does 
provide natural gas service to residents and businesses in portions of Sussex County under the Company’s 
current tariff, natural gas distribution lines have not been extended to a large portion of the State of Delaware’s 
recently targeted growth areas in eastern Sussex County. In April 2002, Governor Ruth Ann Minner 
established the Delaware Energy Task Force (“Task Force”), whose mission was to address the State of 
Delaware’s long-term and short-term energy challenges. In September 2003, the Task Force issued its final 
report to the Governor that included a strategy related to enhancing the availability of natural gas within the 
State by evaluating possible incentives for expanding residential and commercial natural gas service. 
Chesapeake believes its current proposal to implement a rate design that will enable the Company to provide 
natural gas as a viable energy choice to a broad number of prospective customers within eastern Sussex 
County is consistent with the Task Force recommendation. As the Delaware division has included these 
proposals in its filing made on July 6,2007, the Delaware division anticipates closing this particular proceeding 
and continuing discussions in the context of the base rate proceeding. 

On September 1, 2006, the Company filed with the Delaware PSC its annual Gas Sales Service Rates 
Application (“GSR”) seeking the approval of the Delaware PSC to change its GSR rates effective for service 
rendered on and after November 1,2006. On October 3,2006, the Delaware PSC authorized the Company to 
implement the GSR charges on a temporary basis and subject to refund, pending the completion of full 
evidentiary hearings and a final decision by the Delaware PSC. The Division of the Public Advocate (“DPA) 
recommended a cost disallowance of approximately $4.4 million related to the Delaware division’s commodity 
procurement purchases and a disallowance of approximately $275,000 related to pipeline capacity the 
Delaware division holds in eastern Sussex County, Delaware. The Delaware PSC Staff recommended a cost 
disallowance of approximately $2.2 million related to the Delaware division’s commodity procurement 
purchases and the deferral of approximately $535,000 related to pipeline capacity the Delaware division holds 
in eastern Sussex County, Delaware. The Company disagreed with these recommendations and opposed the 
proposed cost disallowance and deferral in its rebuttal position submitted on April 19,2007. Under established 
Delaware law, gas procurement costs, like other normally accepted operating expenses, cannot be disallowed 
unless it is shown that the costs were the result of an abuse of discretion, bad faith, or waste. Management 
believes that the Company’s gas procurement practices and pipeline capacity costs were reasonable and that, 
in no event were the costs at issue incurred as a result of any abuse of discretion, bad faith, or waste on the 
part of the Company. On July 24, 2007, the Delaware PSC approved a settlement agreement between the 
parties resulting in no cost disallowance for the Delaware division. As a result of the settlement agreement, 
the Delaware division has agreed to contribute an amount equal to $37,500 per year for the next three years to 
its internal program designed to benefit elderly, disabled, and low-income customers of the Delaware division. 
Additionally, with respect to the allowances for recovery of costs associated with pipeline capacity in eastern 
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Sussex County, the settlement provides for the Delaware division to reduce the total amount of GSR charges 
to be collected from its customers by $275,000, effective beginning with the billing period from November 1, 
2007 through October 31, 2008, and provides for the Delaware division to subsequently add $275,000 to the 
total of its GSR charges to be collected from customers effective for billings from November 1, 2008 through 
October 31, 2009. 

On November 1, 2006, the Delaware division filed with the Delaware PSC its annual Environmental Rider 
(“ER”) rate application to become effective for service rendered on and after December 1,2006. The Delaware 
PSC granted approval of the ER rate at its regularly scheduled meeting on November 21,2006, subject to full 
evidentiary hearings and a final decision. On January 23, 2007, the Delaware PSC granted final approval of 
the ER rate as filed. 

On November 9, 2006, the Delaware division filed two applications with the Delaware PSC requesting 
approval for a Town of Millsboro Franchise Fee Rider and a Town of Georgetown Franchise Fee Rider. These 
Riders will allow the Delaware division to charge all respective natural gas customers within town limits the 
franchise fee paid by the Delaware division to the Towns of Millsboro and Georgetown as a condition to 
providing natural gas service. The Delaware PSC granted approval of both Riders on January 23, 2007. 

On July 6,2007, the Company filed with the Delaware PSC an application seeking approval of the following: (i) 
participation by the Company’s Delaware commercial and industrial customers in transportation buying pools 
served by third-party natural gas marketers; (ii) a base rate adjustment of $1,896,000 annually that represents 
approximately a 3.25 percent rate increase on average for the Delaware division’s firm customers; (iii) an 
alternative rate design for residential customers in a defined expansion area in eastern Sussex County, 
Delaware; and (iv) a revenue normalization mechanism that reduces the impact of natural gas consumption on 
both customers and the Company. As an incentive for the Delaware division to make the significant capital 
investments to serve the growing areas of eastern Sussex County and in supporting Delaware’s Energy 
Policy, the Company has proposed as part of the filing that the Delaware division be permitted to earn a return 
on equity up to 15 percent. This level of return ensures that the Company’s investors are adequately 
compensated for the increased risk associated with the higher levels of capital investment necessary to 
provide natural gas in those growing areas. 

Marvland. On September 26,2006, the Maryland PSC approved a base rate increase for the Maryland division 
of approximately $780,000 annually. In a settlement agreement entered into in that proceeding, the Maryland 
division was required to file a depreciation study, which was filed on April 9,2007. The Maryland division filed 
formal testimony on July 10, 2007, initiating a phase II of this proceeding. In this filing, the Maryland division 
proposed a rate decrease of approximately $80,000 annually, resulting from a change in depreciation 
expense. The Maryland division anticipates a decision from the Maryland PSC on its proposed change in 
depreciation expense during the fourth quarter of 2007. 

On December 14, 2006, the Maryland PSC held an evidentiary hearing to determine the reasonableness of 
the Maryland division’s four quarterly gas cost recovery filings during the twelve months ended September 30, 
2006. On December 15,2006, the Hearing Examiner issued proposed findings approving the quarterly gas 
cost recovery rates as filed by the Maryland division and permitting complete recovery of its purchased gas 
costs for the period under review. No appeals or written exceptions to the proposed findings were made, and a 
final order approving the quarterly gas cost recovery rates, as filed, was issued by the Maryland PSC on 
January 17,2007. 

Florida. On September 15, 2006, the Florida gas distribution division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for 
approval of its Energy Conservation Cost Recovery Factors for the year 2007. Approved on November 30, 
2006 by the Florida PSC, the new factors went into effect on January 1, 2007. 
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On October 10,2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for authority to implement phase 
two of its experimental transitional transportation service (“TTS”) pilot program, and for approval of a new tariff 
to reflect the division’s transportation service environment. Phase two of the TTS program for residential and 
certain small commercial consumers will expand the number of pool managers from one to two and increase 
the gas supply pricing options available to these consumers. Approved on April 24,2007 by the Florida PSC, 
phase two of the TTS program will go into effect in the third quarter of 2007. 

Additional firm capacity per day 

Capital investment 

Annualized gross margin contribution 

On November 29, 2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for authority to modify its 
energy conservation programs. In this petition, the Florida division is seeking approval to increase the cash 
allowances paid within the Residential Homebuilder Program and the Residential Appliance Replacement 
Program, and to expand the scope of the Residential Water Heater Retention Program to add natural gas 
heating systems, cooking and clothes drying appliances. The Florida PSC granted approval of the petition in 
an order dated March 5,2007. The modifications and new cash allowances became effective on March 30, 
2007. 

26,200 10,300 10,850 

$17 million $8 million $8 million 

$3.7 million $1.5 million $1.6 million 

On May 2, 2007, the Florida division filed its summary of activity and true-up calculation for its 2006 Energy 
Conservation Cost Recovery Program with the Florida PSC. The outcome of this filing is dependent upon an 
audit of the costs by the Florida PSC, which is expected in the third quarter of 2007. The results of the audit 
will be incorporated into the calculation of the 2008 Energy Conservation Cost Recovery Factors, which is 
expected to be filed with the Florida PSC in mid-September 2007. 

In compliance with the Florida Administrative Code, the Florida division filed its 2007 Depreciation Study with 
the Florida PSC on May 17, 2007. This study provides the Florida PSC with the opportunity to review and 
address the lives, salvage values, reserves and resulting life depreciation rates since the last study performed 
in 2002. In its filing, the Florida division has requested that any changes to the depreciation rates be made 
effective January 1,2008. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of the Florida PSC’s review at this 
time, the Company anticipates a final decision regarding the depreciation rates in the fourth quarter of 2008. 

Eastern Shore. The system expansion and rate matters for Eastern Shore include: 

Svstem ExDansion 2006 - 2008. On January 20, 2006, Eastern Shore filed an application for a 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for its 2006-2008 system expansion project (the 
“2006 - 2008 Project”) with the FERC. The application requested authority to construct and operate 
approximately 55 miles of new pipeline facilities and two new metering and regulating station facilities 
to provide an additional 47,350 dekatherms per day (“dffd”) of firm transportation service in 
accordance with the phased-in customer requests of 26,200 dffd in 2006, 10,300 dud in 2007, and 
10,850 dt/d in 2008, at a total estimated cost of approximately $33.6 million. On June 13, 2006, the 
FERC issued a Certificate to Eastern Shore authorizing it to construct and operate the 2006 - 2008 
Project as proposed. The following table provides a breakdown of the additional amounts of firm 
capacity per day, the estimated capital investment required, and the estimated annual gross margin 
contribution for the new services that will become effective November 1“ for each of the respective 
years of the project: 

Year 
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Eastern Shore has completed and placed in service the authorized Phase I facilities. The actual 
capital investment for Phase I was $25.5 million, compared to the $17.0 million original estimate 
included in the filing. Phase II and Phase Ill facilities are expected to be constructed in 2007 and 
2008, respectively. 

Eastern Shore Eneravlink Expansion Proiect (“E3 Proiect”). Eastern Shore has proposed to develop, 
construct and operate approximately 63 miles of new pipeline facilities to transport natural gas from 
Calvert County, Maryland, crossing under the Chesapeake Bay into Dorchester and Caroline 
Counties, Maryland, to points on the Delmarva Peninsula where such facilities would interconnect with 
Eastern Shore’s existing facilities in Sussex County, Delaware. 

On May 31,2006, Eastern Shore entered into Precedent Agreements (the “Precedent Agreements”) 
with Delmarva Power & Light Company (“Delmarva”) and Chesapeake, through its Delaware and 
Maryland Divisions, to provide additional firm transportation services upon completion of the E3 
Project. 

Chesapeake and Delmarva are parties to existing firm natural gas transportation service agreements 
with Eastern Shore, and each desires firm transportation services under the E3 Project, as evidenced 
by the Precedent Agreements. Pursuant to the Precedent Agreements, the parties have agreed to 
proceed with the required initiatives to obtain the governmental and regulatory authorizations that are 
necessary for Eastern Shore to provide, and for Chesapeake and Delmarva to utilize firm 
transportation services under the E3 Project. 

Eastern Shore, Chesapeake and Delmarva have also entered into Letter Agreements which provide 
that, in the event that the E3 Project is not certificated and placed in service, Chesapeake and 
Delmarva will each pay their proportionate share of certain pre-certification costs by means of a 
negotiated surcharge of up to $2 million each, over a period of not less than 20 years. 

In furtherance of the E3 Project, Eastern Shore submitted a petition to the FERC on June 27, 2006 
seeking approval of an uncontested rate-related Settlement Agreement by and between Eastern 
Shore, Chesapeake and Delmarva (the “Settlement Agreement”). The Settlement Agreement provides 
Eastern Shore and all customers utilizing Eastern Shore’s system with benefits, including but not 
limited to the following: (1) advancement of a necessary infrastructure project to meet the growing 
demand for natural gas on the Delmarva Peninsula; (2) sharing of project development costs by the 
participating customers in the project; and (3) no development cost risk for non-participating 
customers. On August 1, 2006, the FERC approved the Settlement Agreement, which was 
uncontested. On September 6, 2006, Eastern Shore submitted to FERC proposed tariff sheets to 
implement the provisions of the Settlement Agreement. By Letter Order dated October 6, 2006, the 
FERC accepted the tariff sheets effective September 7, 2006. 

Eastern Shore submitted its Request for Pre-Filing to the FERC on April 23, 2007, and on May 15, 
2007, the FERC notified Eastern Shore that its request had been approved. The pre-filing process is 
intended to engage all interested and affected stakeholders early in the process with the intention of 
resolving all environmental issues prior to the formal certificate application being filed. 

Eastern Shore is actively involved in the FERC’s pre-filing process. Eastern Shore has performed 
various environmental, engineering and cultural surveys and studies to advance the project and has 
held meetings with federal, state and local permitting/regulatory agencies, non-governmental 
organizations and other interested stakeholders. As part of an updated and revised engineering study, 
Eastern Shore received construction cost estimates for the E3 project which are significantly higher 
than previous estimates. Eastern Shore has initiated additional analyses to identify and quantify 
alternative construction methods, cost mitigation strategies and additional markets to retain the 

- 38 - 



economic viability of the project. Eastern Shore has had discussions with several potential new 
customers who have interest in the project; their participation in the project could offset the impact of 
the increased project cost. The ultimate success of the E3 project, however, depends upon a number 
of external factors which cannot be predicted at this time. 

Rate Matters. On October 31, 2006 Eastern Shore filed a Section 4 base rate proceeding with the 
FERC in compliance with the settlement approved in its prior base rate proceeding. Eastern Shore’s 
filed rates, proposed to be effective November 1,2006, reflect an annual increase of $5,589,000 over 
its current annual operating revenues. The proposed rates reflect increases in operating and 
maintenance expenses, depreciation expense, taxes other than income taxes, and return on new gas 
plant facilities placed into service before March 31, 2007. 

On November 30,2006 the FERC issued its OrderAccepting and Suspending Tariff Sheets Subject 
to Refund and Establishing a Hearing. The FERC accepted and suspended the effectiveness of 
Eastern Shore’s rate increase until May 1, 2007, subject to refund and the outcome of the hearing 
established in the order. On December 19, 2006 the FERC’s Presiding Administrative Law Judge 
approved a procedural schedule to govern further proceedings in this case. 

An initial settlement conference was held on April 17,2007 at the FERC’s offices in Washington, D.C. 
On May 14,2007, Eastern Shore filed a motion to implement its suspended rate increase on May 15, 
2007, subject to refund, pending ultimate resolution of the rate case. The Parties reached an 
agreement in principle at the June 6,2007 conference. On June 8,2007, the Chief Administrative Law 
Judge suspended the procedural schedule to allow time for the Patties to memorialize the settlement 
in principle into a formal Stipulation and Agreement (”Stipulation”). The Stipulation is currently being 
circulated among the Parties for final review and revisions. It is anticipated that the Stipulation will be 
forwarded to the FERC for final approval in the second half of 2007. 

Competition 
The Company’s natural gas operations compete with other forms of energy including electricity, oil and 
propane. The principal competitive factors are price, and to a lesser extent, accessibility. The Company’s 
natural gas distribution operations have several large volume industrial customers that have the capacity to 
use fuel oil as an alternative to natural gas. When oil prices decline, these interruptible customers convert to oil 
to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels of interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower than the 
price of natural gas. Oil prices, as well as the prices of electricity and other fuels, are subject to fluctuation for a 
variety of reasons; therefore, future competitive conditions are not predictable. To address this uncertainty, the 
Company uses flexible pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales side of this business to maximize 
sales volumes. As a result of the transmission operation’s conversion to open access and the Florida gas 
distribution division’s restructuring of its services, their businesses have shifted from providing competitive 
sales service to providing transportation and contract storage services. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida offer transportation 
services to certain commercial and industrial customers. In 2002, the Florida operation extended 
transportation service to residential customers. With transportation service available on the Company’s 
distribution systems, the Company is competing with third-party suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. 
As it relates to transportation services, the Company’s competitors include interstate transmission companies 
if the distribution customer is located close enough to a transmission company’s pipeline to make a connection 
economically feasible. The customers at risk are usually large volume commercial and industrial customers 
with the financial resources and capability to bypass the Company’s distribution operations in this manner. In 
certain situations, the Company’s distribution operations may adjust services and rates for these customers to 
retain their business. The Company expects to continue to expand the availability of transportation service to 
additional classes of distribution customers in the future. The Company established a natural gas sales and 
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supply operation in Florida to compete for customers eligible for transportation services. The Company also 
provides sales service in Delaware. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their 
service territories, primarily on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and 
responsiveness. Competition is generally from local outlets of national distribution companies and local 
businesses; because distributors located in close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. 
Propane competes with electricity as an energy source, because it is typically less expensive than electricity, 
based on equivalent BTU value. Propane also competes with home heating oil as an energy source. Since 
natural gas has historically been less expensive than propane, propane is generally not distributed in 
geographic areas serviced by natural gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, many of which have 
significantly greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors 
having substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition, changes in the 
advanced information services business are occurring rapidly, which could adversely impact the markets for 
the products and services offered by these businesses. This segment competes on the basis of technological 
expertise, reputation and price. 

Inflation 
Inflation affects the cost of supply, labor, products and services required for operations, maintenance and 
capital improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane 
prices are subject to rapid fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural gas prices are passed on to customers through 
the gas cost recovery mechanism in the Company’s tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its 
capital investments and returns, the Company seeks rate relief from regulatory commissions for its regulated 
operations while monitoring the returns of its unregulated business operations. To compensate for fluctuations 
in propane gas prices, the Company adjusts its propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the market. 

Recent Authoritative Pronouncements on Financial Reporting and Accounting 
Recent accounting developments and their impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows are described in Note 5 to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Long-term 
debt is subject to potential losses based on changes in interest rates. The Company’s long-term debt consists 
of first mortgage bonds, fixed-rate senior notes and convertible debentures. All of the Company’s long-term 
debt is fixed-rate debt and was not entered into for trading purposes. The carrying value of long-term debt, 
including current maturities, was $77.6 million at June 30, 2007, as compared to a fair value of $79.4 million, 
based mainly on current market prices or discounted cash flows, using current rates for similar issues with 
similar terms and remaining maturities. The Company evaluates whether to refinance existing debt or 
permanently refinance existing short-term borrowing, based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. 

The Company’s propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage 
activities and fixed price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximately four million gallons 
(including leased storage and rail cars) of propane during the winter season to meet its customers’ peak 
requirements and to serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of propane may cause the 
value of stored propane to decline. To mitigate the impact of price fluctuations, the Company has adopted a 
Risk Management Policy that allows the propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its 
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inventory. Management reviewed the Company’s storage position as of June 30, 2007 and elected not to 
hedge any of its inventories. 

The Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids (“NGL”) forward 
contracts, primarily propane contracts, with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane 
wholesale marketing operation purchase or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration, the 
contracts are settled by the delivery of NGL to the Company or the counter-party or booking out the transaction 
(booking out is a procedure for financially settling a contract in lieu of the physical delivery of energy). The 
propane wholesale marketing operation also enters into futures contracts that are traded on the New York 
Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are settled by the payment or receipt of a net 
amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the futures contract and the original 
contract price; however, they may also be settled for physical receipt or delivery of propane. 

The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The 
propane wholesale marketing business is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent 
that market prices for NGL deviate from fixed contract settlement prices. Market risk associated with the 
trading of futures and forward contracts are monitored daily for compliance with the Company’s Risk 
Management Policy, which includes volumetric limits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing 
market prices, open positions are marked up or down to market prices and reviewed by the Company’s 
oversight officials on a daily basis. In addition, the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic reports on 
market and the credit risk of counter-parties, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within 
limits established by the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. Quantitative 
information on forward and futures contracts at June 30, 2007 is presented in the following table. 

Quantity in Estimated Market Weighted Average 
At June 30,2007 g a I I o n s Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 
Purchase 

62,081,838 $0.8850 - $1.2100 $1.1209 
59,934,000 $0.8700 - $1.2000 $1.1256 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expire in 2007 or the first quarter 2008. 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other 
Company officials, have evaluated the Company’s ”disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is 
defined under Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended) as of June 30, 2007. Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30,2007. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
During the quarter ended June 30,2007, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

Item I. Legal Proceedings 
As disclosed in Note 4 “Commitments and Contingencies” of the unaudited condensed 
consolidated financial statements, the Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims 
arising in the normal course of business. The Company is also involved in certain legal and 
administrative proceedings before various government agencies concerning rates. In the opinion 
of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings and claims will not have a material 
effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 
In addition to the other information set forth in this Form 10-Q, including the risks and 
uncertainties described under Item 2 of the MD&A hereof entitled “Safe Harbor and Forward 
Looking Statements,” consideration should be given to the factors discussed under “Item IA.  Risk 
Factors” in the Company’s Form 1 O-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2006. These risks 
could affect the operations and/or financial performance of the Company. The risks described in 
the Form 1 O-K and this Form 1 O-Q are not the only risks that the Company faces. The Company’s 
operations and/or financial performance could also be affected by additional factors that are not 
presently known to it or that the Company considers immaterial to its operations and/or financial 
performance. 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 

Total Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of 
Number of Average Purchased as Part of Shares That May Yet Be 

Shares Price Paid Publicly Announced Purchased Under the 
Period Purchased per Share Plans or Programs (2) Plans or Programs (2) 

Anril 1 7nn7 , .r. .. ., 
through April 30, 2007 (1) 505 $31.22 0 0 

through May 31,2007 0 $0.00 0 0 
May 1,2007 

June 1,2007 
through June 30,2007 0 $0.00 0 0 

Total 505 531.22 0 0 

(‘I Chesapeake purchased shares of stock on the open market for the purpose of reinvesting the dividend on shares 
held in Rabbi Trust accounts for certain Senior Executives. During the quarter, 505 shares were purchased 
through executive dividend deferrals. 
Except for the purpose described in Footnote (I), Chesapeake has no publicly announced plans or programs to 
repurchase its shares. 

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities 
None 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
The Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation was held on May 2, 
2007. The items set forth below were submitted to a vote of security holders. Proxies for the 
meeting were solicited in accordance with Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. Broker non-votes had no effect on the outcome of the vote on these matters. 

The stockholders elected three nominees to the Company’s Board of Directors to serve as Class 
II directors for three-year terms ending in 2010, and until their successors are duly elected and 
qualified. 
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The following shows the separate tabulation of votes for each nominee: 

The terms of the following directors were not subject to re-nomination or re-election on May 2, 
2007 and their terms are continuing: 

-_ ""-"---"-"~-~"- I_ -" _ _  - - ~  - - ~  ---_ -- 
Class 111 Directors fTerms ExDire in 2008)11 Class I Directors fTerms ExDire in 2009)"/ 

I Thomas J. Bresnan I Calvert A. Morgan, Jr. 
4 

Walter J. Coleman I I Eugene H. Bayard I 
i 
I Joseph E. Moore 8 I 1  Thomas P. Hill, Jr. 

__ ~ __^__I_____-______ 

John R. Schimkaitis I I  

The stockholders approved the ratification of the appointment of Beard Miller Company LLP 
as the Company's independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31,2007. There 
were 6,299,634 affirmative votes, 54,095 negative votes, and 16,942 abstentions. 

As of the Record Date, March 15, 2007, 6,717,348 shares of common stock of the Company, 
the only outstanding class of voting or equity securities of the Company, were outstanding. 

Item 5. Other Information 
None 

Item 6. Exhibits 
The exhibits listed on the following Exhibit Index are filed as part of this Report. Exhibits 
required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, but which are not listed below, are not applicable. 

Exhibit DescriDtion 

31.1 

31.2 

32.1 

32.2 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-I4(a) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated August 9, 2007 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-I4(a) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated August 9,2007 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C 
Section 1350, dated August 9, 2007 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, dated August 9,2007 

- 4 3 -  



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

lsl MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Date: August 9, 2007 
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EXHIBIT 31 .I 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, certify that: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2007 of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e)) and 
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(9 and 15d-15(9) 
for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over 
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; 

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control 
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 9, 2007 

/s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, Michael P. McMasters, certify that: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2007 of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e)) and 
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(9 and 15d-15(9) 
for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over 
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; 

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control 
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 9, 2007 

lsl MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 
certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the period ended June 30, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

/s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
August 9, 2007 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or 
other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed 
form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Ofker  of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the period ended June 30, 2007, filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in 
all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

/s/ MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
August 9, 2007 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or 
other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed 
form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 



CHESAPEAKE UTI LIT1 ES CORPORATI ON 
2007 SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
DISTRIBUTION UTILITY PLANT 
UNAUDITED 

PLANT 
ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

30 1 
302 
303 
304 
305 
31 1 
374 
375 
376 
378 
379 
380 
381 
382 
383 
384 
385 
387 
389 
390 
39 1 
392 
393 
394 
395 
396 
397 
398 
399 

DESCRIPTION 

ORGANIZATION 
FRANCHISE AND CONSENTS 
INTANGIBLE PLANT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
PROPANE PLANT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
MAINS 
M & R STATIONS - GENERAL 
M & R STATIONS - CITY GATE 
SERVICES 
METERS 
METER INSTALLATIONS 
HOUSE REGULATORS 
REGULATOR INSTALLATIONS 
INDUSTRIAL M & R STATION 
OTHER EQUIPMENT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
OFFICE AND EQUIPMENT 
TRANSPORTATION 
STORES EQUIPMENT 
TOOLS, SHOP, AND GARAGE EQUIP 
LABORATORY EQUIPMENT 
POWER OPERATED EQUIPMENT 
COMMUNI CAT1 0 N EQ U I PM ENT 
MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 
OTHER TANGIBLE PROPERTY 

EXHIBIT B 

TOTAL 
2007 CAPITAL 
ESTIMATED 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$635,000 
$2,336,030 

$107,681 
$6 1 ,599 

$1,220,562 
$767,850 
$362,000 
$1 27,500 

$0 
$66,000 
$91,750 

$0 
$25,000 
$56,610 

$24 1 ,545 
$0 

$1 0,000 
$0 
$0 

$1 74,480 
$7,500 

$0 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 
The proceeds from stock and debt issuances will be used to administer the 

Company’s Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, Automatic Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, Employee 
Awards Stock Plan, and Convertible Debentures, as well as for other corporate purposes 
including, but not limited to, working capital, retirement of short-term debt, retirement of 
long-term debt , capital improvements and/or acquisitions. 



Exhibit C 

Rakers Hostetler iip 
Capitol Square, Suite 2100 
65 East State Street 
Columbus. OH 43215-4260 

- 614 228 ’541 
614 462  2616 

w w  oakerlaw cam 
January 30: 2007 

CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
Beorgeann G. Peters 
direct dial: 614.462.4769 
gpeters Q bakerlaw.com 

Internal Revenue Service 
P.O. Box 192 
Covington, KY 41 01 2-01 92 

Re: Chesapeake Utilities Cotporation (the “Company”) 

Chesapeake Utilities Comoration Retirement Savinus Plan (the Wan”)  
EIN: 5 1-0064 146 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

On behalf of the Company, we submit the following documents in application for a 
favorable determination letter for the Plan. Please note that there are two separate 
plans that are a part of this submission. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Form 871 7 (User Fee for Employee Plan Determination Letter Request), and a 
check in the amount of $1,000.00 made payable to the United States Treasury. 

Form 2848 (Power of Attorney and Declaration of Representative) authorizing 
Leigh Ann Wilson or me to represent the Company in connection with the Plan’s 
application for a favorable determination letter. 

Form 5300 (Application for Determination for Empioyee Benefit Plan) with an 
executed original Page 1. 

An attachment for various items to Form 5300. 

Schedule Q (Nective Determination Requests) to Form 5300. 

Form 5309 (Application for Determination of Employee Stock Ownership P Ian) 
for the ESOP component of the Plan. 

A copy of the following Plan documents and amendments executed since the 
Plan’s last determination letter: 





Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement 

S-3 1 s3.htm CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES C O W  - SHELF REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

Exhibit D Page 1 of 20 

As filed with the Securities and  Exchange Commission on July 5,2006 

Registration No. 333- 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM S-3 

REGISTRATION STATEMENT 
UNDER 

T H E  SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
(Exact name of registrant as speclfied in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer Identlfication No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant’s principal executive offices) 
(302) 734-6799 

Michael P. McMasters,  Senior Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporat ion 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 

Dover, Delaware 19904 

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for  service) 
(302) 734-6799 

Copies to: 

Jeffrey E. Decker, Esq. 
Baker  & Hostetler L L P  
2300 SunTrust  Center  
200 S. Orange Avenue 

Orlando,  Florida 32801 
(407) 649-4000 

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after the effective date of this Registration 
Statement. 

I f the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the 
following box. [ ] 

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the 
Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. 
[XI 

http : //www . sec . gov/Arc hives/edgar/dat a/ 1 9 74 5/00000 1 9 74 5 060 00 024/s3. htm 10/1/2007 



Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement Page 2 of 20 

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the 
following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [ 3 

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the 
Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [ ] 

If this form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become 
effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box. [ ] 

httn*/Iwww wr ~nvlArc,hivesled~arldatall9745/OOOOO 1974506000024/s3 .htm 10/1/2007 



Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement Page 3 of 20 

Amount to Proposed 
Title of each class of be maximum offering 

securities to be registered registered price per unit 
(1) (1) 

If this form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional 
securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box. [ ] 

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE 

Proposed maximum 
aggregate offering 

price 
(1) 

par value per share $0.4867 
ebt Securities 

$40,000,000.00 

Amount of 
registration 

fee 

$4,280 .OO 

(1) The Registrant is registering an indeterminate aggregate initial offering price and number of shares of common stock, par value per 
share $0.4867, and an indeterminate aggregate amount of debt securities, as may from time to time be offered at indeterminate prices. 
The maximum aggregate offering price for all securities that the Registrant is registering is $40 million. Separate consideration may or 
may not be received for securities that are issuable on exercise, conversion or exchange of other securities. In accordance with Rule 457 
(o), the Registrant is required to specify only the maximum aggregate offering price for all classes of securities being registered. 

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the 
Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in 
accordance with Section S(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the 
Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine. 

11 
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PROSPECTUS 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

Common Stock and Debt Securities 

We may offer, from time to time in one or more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on terms that we will determine at the time of 
offering, shares of our common stock, par value per share $0.4867 (the “Common Stock”), and/or debt securities. We will provide the specific 
terms of any offering of Common Stock and/or debt securities in supplements to this prospectus. The prospectus supplements will also describe 
the specific manner in which we will offer these securities and may also supplement, update or amend information contained in this prospectus. 
You should read this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement, and any documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus 
carefully before you invest. 

We may sell Common Stock and/or debt securities on a continuous or delayed basis directly, through agents, dealers or underwriters 
as designated from time to time, or through a combination of these methods. If any agents, dealers or underwriters are involved in the sale of 
any securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth any applicable commissions or discounts. Our net proceeds from the sale of 
securities also will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol, “CPK.” The last reported sale price of our common 
shares on the New York Stock Exchange on [ 1,2006 was $[ ] per share. 

These Securities have not been approved or  disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission or  any  state securities 
commission, nor  has the Securities and  Exchange Commission o r  any state securities commission passed upon the accuracy o r  
adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 

The  date of this prospectus is [ 1,2006. 

W e  have not authorized any  dealer,  salesman o r  other person to give any  information o r  to make any  representation other  
than those contained or  incorporated by reference in this prospectus o r  any  applicable supplement to this prospectus. You must  not 
rely upon any  information o r  representation not contained o r  incorporated by reference in this prospectus o r  any applicable 
supplement to this prospectus as  if we had authorized it. This prospectus and  any  applicable prospectus supplement do not constitute 
an  offer to sell o r  the solicitation of an offer to buy any  securities other than the registered securities to which they relate. Nor do  this 
prospectus and  any  accompanying prospectus supplement constitute an  offer to sell o r  the solicitation of an offer to buy securities in 
any  jurisdiction to any  person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer o r  solicitation in such jurisdiction. You should not assume 
that  the information contained in this prospectus o r  any  applicable prospectus supplement is correct on any date af ter  its date,  even 
though this prospectus o r  a supplement is delivered o r  securities a r e  sold on a la ter  date. 

1 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplements include and incorporate by reference forward-looking statements within 
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for 
forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are generally 
identifiable by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. Our ability to 
predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from those in 
forward-looking statements because of, among other reasons, the factors described under the caption “Risk Factors” in the periodic reports that 
we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS 

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using a “shelf’ 
registration process. Under this shelf process, we may sell any combination of our Common Stock and/or debt securities described in this 
prospectus in one or more offerings up to a total amount of $40,000,000.00. This prospectus only provides you with a general description of the 
securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the 
terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read 
both this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings, “Where You 
Can Find More Information” and “Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference.” 

Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this prospectus to “we,” “us,” “our,” the 
“Company,” the “Registrant” or “Chesapeake” mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and all entities owned or controlled by Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation. When we refer to our “Certificate of Incorporation,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended Certificate of 
Incorporation, and when we refer to our “Bylaws,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended Bylaws. 

2 
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION 

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the “SEC”) pursuant to the Exchange Act. Such filings are available to the public from the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. You may 
also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. 
You may obtain copies of any document filed by us at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at that address. 
You may obtain information about the operation of the SEC’s Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You may 
inspect reports and other information that we file at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 
10005. Information about us, including our filings, is also available on our website at http://www.chpk.com; however, that information is not 
part of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement. 

We have filed a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, and related exhibits with the SEC under the Securities Act. 
That registration statement contains additional information about us and the Common Stock and debt securities. You may inspect the 
registration statement and exhibits without charge at the SEC’s Public Reference Room or at the SEC’s web site set forth above, and you may 
obtain copies from the SEC at prescribed rates. 

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE 

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by reference” the information contained in documents we file with the SEC, which means that we 
can disclose important information to you by referring to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of 
this prospectus. Any statement contained in a document that is incorporated by reference in this prospectus is automatically updated and 
superseded if information contained in this prospectus, or information that we later file with the SEC, modifies or replaces that information. 
Any statement made in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement concerning the contents of any contract, agreement or other document is 
only a summary of the actual contract, agreement or other document. If we have filed or incorporated by reference any contract, agreement or 
other document as an exhibit to the registration statement, you should read the exhibit for a more complete understanding of the document or 
matter involved. Each statement regarding a contract, agreement or other document is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual 
document. 

We incorporate by reference the following documents we filed, excluding any information contained therein or attached as exhibits 
thereto which has been furnished to, but not filed with, the SEC: 

(a) Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2005, filed on March 7,2006; 

(b) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 11,2006, filed on March 16,2006; 

(c) Our definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 31,2006; 

(d) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2,2006,  filed on May 3,2006;  

(e) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 1,2006,  filed on May 5,2006;  

(f) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 5,2006,  filed on May 5,2006;  

3 
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(g) Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 3 1,2006, filed on May 10,2006; 

(h) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31,2006, filed on June 2,2006; 

(i) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 13,2006, filed on June 19,2006; 

a) The description of our preferred stock purchase rights contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on August 24, 
1999, and all amendments or reports filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating such description, and hr ther  described in the 
section, “Description of Common Stock”; and 

(k) The description of our Common Stock contained in our registration statements filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 
and all amendments or reports filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating such description, and further described in the 
section, “Description of Common Stock.” 

Any documents we file pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and prior to 
the termination of the offering of the securities to which this prospectus relates will automatically be deemed to be incorporated by reference in 
this prospectus and a part of this prospectus from the date of filing such documents; provided however, that we are not incorporating, in each 
case, any documents or information contained therein that has been furnished to, but not filed with, the SEC. 

To receive a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus (other than exhibits, unless they are 
specifically incorporated by reference in any such documents), call or write Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, 
Dover, Delaware 19904, Attention: Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, telephone number (302) 734- 
6799. We also maintain a web site that contains additional information about us (http://www.chpk.com). 

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or set forth in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus 
supplement. We have not authorized anyone else to provide you with different information. We may only use this prospectus to sell securities 
if it is accompanied by a prospectus supplement. We are offering these securities only in states where the offer is permitted. 

You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other 
than the dates on the front pages of these documents. 
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THE COMPANY 

We are a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing, 
propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other related businesses. We are a Delaware corporation that 
was formed in 1947. Our three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 54,800 residential, commercial and industrial customers 
in central and southern Delaware, Maryland’s Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. Our natural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore 
Natural Gas Company, operates a 33 1 -mile interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in Pennsylvania to our Delaware 
and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southem Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the 
Eastern Shore of Maryland. Our propane distribution operation serves approximately 32,900 customers in central and southern Delaware, the 
Eastern Shore of Maryland and Virginia, southeastem Pennsylvania, and parts of Florida; and our wholesale propane marketing subsidiary 
markets propane to large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and retail propane companies in the United States. Our advanced 
information services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology-related business services and solutions 
for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Our principal executive office is located at 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, and our telephone number is (302) 
734-6799. Our website address is http://www.chpk.com. Information on our website does not constitute part of this prospectus. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

Unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement, the net proceeds from the sale of Common Stock andlor debt securities will be 
added to our general corporate funds and may be used for general corporate purposes including, but not limited to, financing of capital 
expenditures, repayment of short-term debt, funding share repurchases, financing acquisitions, investing in subsidiaries and general working 
capital purposes. Prior to such application, all or a portion of the net proceeds may be invested in short-term investments. 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK 

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to issue up to 12,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value per share $0.4867. As of 
March 3 1,2006, we had 5,93 1,487 shares of Common Stock outstanding. In addition, as of March 3 1,2006, we have reserved 572,373 shares 
of Common Stock for issuance under our equity-based compensation plans and 30,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance upon the exercise 
of warrants. Our Certificate of Incorporation also authorizes us to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value per share $0.01; 
however, no shares of preferred stock are outstanding. Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol, 
“CPK.” The transfer agent and registrar of the Common Stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P.O. Box 43010, Providence, Rhode 
Island 02940-3010. 

The following descriptions of our Common Stock and preferred stock set forth certain of their general terms and provisions. The 
following descriptions are in all respects subject to and qualified by reference to the applicable provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation 
and our Bylaws. 
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Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors, out of funds 
legally available therefor. If we are liquidated, dissolved or involved in any winding-up, the holders of our Common Stock are entitled to 
receive ratably any assets legally available for distribution to holders of Common Stock. Holders of our Common Stock possess ordinary 
voting rights, with each share entitling the holder to one vote. Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of our 
Common Stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote for the election of directors. Holders of our 
Common Stock do not have preemptive rights, which means that they have no right to acquire any additional shares of Common Stock that we 
may subsequently issue (other than pursuant to the Rights, described below). Holders of our Common Stock also do not have conversion or 
subscription rights, and the Common Stock is not subject to redemption by the Company. 

All of our shares of Common Stock currently outstanding are, and any shares of Common Stock offered hereby when issued will be: 
fully paid and nonassessable. 

We may issue preferred stock from time to time, by authorization of our Board of Directors and without the necessity of further action 
or authorization by our stockholders, in one or more series and with such voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, 
optional or other special rights and qualifications as our Board may, in its discretion, determine, including, but not limited to (a) the distinctive 
designation of such series and the number of shares to constitute such series; (b) the dividends, if any, for such series; (c) the voting power, if 
any, of shares of such series; (d) the terms and conditions (including price), if any, upon which shares of such stock may be converted into or 
exchanged for shares of stock of any other class or any other series of the same class or any other securities or assets; (e) our right, if any, to 
redeem shares of such series and the terms and conditions of such redemption; ( f )  the retirement or sinking fund provisions, if any, of shares of 
such series and the terms and provisions relative to the operation thereof; (8) the amount, if any, which the holders of the shares of such series 
shall be entitled to receive in case of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up; (h) the limitations and restrictions, if any, upon the payment of 
dividends or the making of other distributions on, and upon our purchase, redemption, or other acquisition of, our Common Stock; and (i) the 
conditions or restrictions, if any, upon the creation of indebtedness or upon the issuance of any additional stock. 

Under our Certificate of Incorporation, the affirmative vote of not less than 75% of the total voting power of all outstanding shares of 
our stock is required to approve our merger or consolidation with, or the sale of all or substantially all of our assets or business to, any other 
corporation (other than a corporation 50% or more of the common stock of which we own), if such corporation or its affiliates singly or in the 
aggregate own or control directly or indirectly 5% or more of our outstanding shares of Common Stock, unless the transaction is approved by 
our Board of Directors prior to the acquisition by such corporation or its affiliates of ownership or control of 5% or more of our outstanding 
shares of Common Stock. In addition, our Certificate of Incorporation provides for a classified Board of Directors under which one-third of the 
members are elected annually for three-year terms. The supermajority voting requirement for certain mergers and consolidations and our 
classified Board of Directors may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of the Company. 
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On August 25, 1999, we filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form 8-A with respect to Rights (defined below) to purchase 
our Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value per share $0.01 (the “Preferred Shares”). On August 20, 1999, our Board of 
Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of our Common Stock. 
The dividend was payable to the stockholders of record on September 3, 1999 (the “Record Date”). One Right will also be issued with each 
share of Common Stock issued thereafter until the Distribution Date (defined below) and, in certain circumstances, with each share of Common 
Stock issued after the Distribution Date. Except as set forth below, each Right, when it becomes exercisable, entitles the registered holder to 
purchase from the Company one-fiftieth of a Preferred Share at a price of $54.56 (the “Purchase Price”), subject to adjustment. The description 
and terms of the Rights and the definition of the “Distribution Date” are set forth in a Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”) between the 
Corporation and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., successor to BankBoston, N.A., as Rights Agent (the “Rights Agent”), dated as of 
August 20, 1999. The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date and will expire at the close of business on August 20,2009, unless 
earlier redeemed by the Company. The Registration Statement on Form 8-A, and the Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit, are 
incorporated herein by reference. This description of the Rights, the Rights Agreement and the Preferred Shares is in all respects subject to and 
qualified by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 8-A, the Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit and the applicable 
provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws. 

The Preferred Shares purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each Preferred Share will be entitled to a 
minimum preferential quarterly dividend payment equal to the greater of (i) $13.00 per share (or $0.26 per 1150th of a Preferred Share) and (ii) 
an aggregate dividend per share of 50 times (subject to adjustment) the dividend declared per share of Common Stock. In the event of 
liquidation, the holders of the Preferred Shares will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation payment of $900.00 per share (or $1 8.00 
per 1150th of a Preferred Share); thereafter, and after the holders of the Common Stock receive a liquidation payment of $18.00 per share, the 
holders of the Preferred Shares and the holders of the Common Stock will share the remaining assets in the ratio of 50 (subject to adjustment) 
to one for each Preferred Share and share of Common Stock so held, respectively. In the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction 
in which Common Stock is exchanged, each Preferred Share will be entitled to receive 50 times (subject to adjustment) the amount received 
per share of Common Stock. The holders of Preferred Shares will be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Common Stock 
(with the Preferred Shares being entitled to 50 votes per share). In the event that the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Preferred 
Shares is equivalent to six full quarterly dividends or more, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall have the right, voting as a class, to elect 
two directors in addition to the directors elected by the holders of the Common Stock until all cumulative dividends on the Preferred Shares 
have been paid through the last quarterly dividend payment date. These rights are protected by customary anti-dilution provisions. 

Because of the nature of the dividend, liquidation and voting rights of the Preferred Shares, the value of a one-fiftieth interest in a 
Preferred Share purchasable upon the exercise of a Right should approximate the value of one share of Common Stock. 

The Rights approved by the Board of Directors of the Company were designed to protect the value of the outstanding Common Stock 
in the event of an unsolicited attempt by an acquirer to take over the Company in a manner or on terms not approved by the Board of Directors. 
The Rights were not intended to prevent a takeover of the Company at a fair price and should not interfere with any merger or business 
combination approved by the Board of Directors. The Rights have no dilutive effect, nor do they affect reported earnings per share or change 
the way in which the Common Stock is traded. 
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The Rights may have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of the Company deemed undesirable by the 
Board of Directors. If  a person or group attempts to acquire the Company on terms or in a manner not approved by the Board of Directors, then 
the Rights may cause such person's or group's ownership interest to become substantially diluted unless the offer includes, as a condition to the 
acquisition, a provision that the Rights will be purchased, redeemed or otherwise effectively eliminated. 

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES 

A description of the debt securities that we may offer will be included in an applicable prospectus supplement. 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Our ratios of earnings to fixed charges for the fiscal years ended December 3 1,2001 - 2005, were as follows: 

Time Period Ratio 
2001 3.23 
2002 3.26 
2003 3.66 
2004 3.73 
2005 4.10 

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the quarterly period ended March 31,2006, was 7.38. 

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is computed by dividing fixed charges into earnings plus fixed charges. For purposes of 
computing this ratio, earnings have been calculated as pretax income from continuing operations before adjustment for minority interests in 
consolidated subsidiaries. Fixed charges include a portion of rents representative of the interest factor, interest on indebtedness and the 
amortization of debt discounts and expenses. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

We may sell securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement to one or more underwriters for public offering and 
sale by them or we may sell such securities to investors directly or through agents, some of which may be dealers. We may also sell the 
securities through a combination of these methods. The name of any underwriter or agent involved in the offer and sale of such securities will 
be included in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

The distribution of securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement may occur: 

(a) at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed; 

(b) at market prices prevailing at the time of sale; 

(c) at prices related to prevailing market prices; or 

(d) at negotiated prices. 
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From time to time, we may also authorize underwriters acting as our agents to offer and sell securities upon the terms and conditions 
set forth in an applicable prospectus supplement. Underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in the form of 
underwriting discounts or commissions in connection with the sale of securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement. 
Underwriters may also receive commissions from purchasers of securities for whom such underwriters may act as agent. Underwriters may sell 
securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement to or through dealers. Such dealers may receive compensation in the form 
of discounts, concessions from the underwriters or commissions from the purchasers for whom such dealers may act as agent. 

We may enter into derivative transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in 
privately negotiated transactions. If  the applicable prospectus supplement so indicates, in connection with those derivatives, the third parties 
may sell securities covered by this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, including short sale transactions. If so, the third party 
may use securities pledged by us or borrowed from us or others to settle those sales or to close out any related open borrowings of common 
shares, and may use securities received from us in settlement of those derivatives to close out any related open borrowings of common shares. 
The third party in such sale transactions will be an underwriter and, if not identified in this prospectus, will be identified in the applicable 
prospectus supplement or a post-effective amendment to this registration statement. 

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement any underwriting compensation we pay to underwriters or agents in 
connection with any offering of securities. Likewise, we will also describe any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters 
to participating dealers in the applicable prospectus supplement. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the distribution of the 
securities may be deemed to be underwriters, and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of 
the securities may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions. We may enter into agreements to indemnify underwriters, dealers 
and agents against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to reimburse these persons for certain expenses. We 
will describe any indemnification agreements in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

If indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may authorize dealers acting as our agents to solicit offers by certain 
institutions to purchase the securities from us at the public offering price set forth in such prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery 
contracts providing for payment and delivery on the date or dates stated in the prospectus supplement. Each delayed delivery contract will be 
for an amount not less than the respective amounts stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Likewise, the aggregate principal amount of 
the securities sold pursuant to delayed delivery contracts will not be less or more than the respective amounts stated in the applicable 
prospectus supplement. We may make delayed delivery contracts with various institutions, including commercial and savings banks, insurance 
companies, pension funds, investment companies, educational and charitable institutions, and other institutions. Delayed delivery contracts will 
always be subject to our approval. Delayed delivery contracts will not be subject to any conditions except the following: 

(a) The purchase by an institution of the securities covered by its delayed delivery contracts shall not at the time of delivery be 
prohibited under the laws of any jurisdiction in the United States to which such institution is subject; and 

(b) If the securities are being sold to underwriters, we shall have sold to such underwriters the total principal amount of the offered 
securities less the principal amount covered by the delayed delivery contracts. 
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Certain of the underwriters or their affiliates may, but will not necessarily, be customers of, engage in transactions with or perform 
services for us or one or more of our subsidiaries in the ordinary course of our and/or their business. It is also possible that certain of the 
underwriters or their affiliates may be affiliates of banking institutions or other financial services firms with which we or one or more of our 
subsidiaries has a pre-existing business relationship. 

EXPERTS 

The consolidated financial statements and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 
(which is included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2005, have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of 
Pricewaterhousecoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and 
accounting. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the Common Stock and debt securities will be passed upon for the Company by Baker & Hostetler LLP, Orlando, 
Florida. Any underwriters will also be advised about the validity of the securities and other legal matters by their own counsel, which will be 
named in the prospectus supplement. 
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PART I1 

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS 

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution. 

The following table sets forth the fees and expenses in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being 
registered hereunder. Except for the SEC registration fee, all amounts are estimates. Certain amounts that cannot be presently estimated will be 
provided in amendments to this registration statement. 

SEC registration fee 
NYSE listing fee 
Accounting fees and expenses 
Legal fees and expenses (other than Blue Sky) 
Blue Sky fees and expenses (including counsel fees) 
Printing and engraving expenses 
Transfer agent’s and registrar’s fees and expenses 
Rating Agency fees 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

$ 4,280.00 
5,000.00 

70,000.00 
50,000.00 
5,000.00 

20,000.00 
10,000.00 
50,000.00 
10,000.00 

$ 224,280.00 

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers. 

Under the Company’s Bylaws, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or 
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact he is or was a director or officer of the Company, or is 
or was serving at the request of the Company as a director or officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other 
enterprise (including employee benefit plans), is entitled to indemnification and to be held harmless by the Company to the fullest extent 
permitted by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”) against all expense, liabilities and loss (including attorneys’ 
fees, judgments, fines or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith, 
including liabilities arising under the Securities Act. These indemnification rights include the right to  be paid by the Company the expenses 
incurred in defending any action, suit or proceeding in advance of its final disposition, subject to the receipt by the Company of an undertaking 
by or on behalf of such person to repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified. 
These indemnification rights under the Bylaws are not exclusive of any other indemnification right which any person may have or acquire 
under any law, bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, disinterested directors or otherwise. 

Under Section 145 of the DGCL, a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, 
to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or officer of such corporation if such person acted in good 
faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in and not opposed to the best interest of the corporation and, with respect to a criminal 
action or proceeding, such person had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful, except that, in the case of any action or suit 
by or in the right of the corporation (such as a derivative action), no indemnification is permitted if the person shall be adjudged liable to the 
corporation (other than indemnification for such expenses as a court shall determine such person is fairly and reasonably entitled). 
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Article Eleven of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director of the Company shall not be personally liable to 
the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (a) for breach of the 
director’s duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders, (b) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional 
misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (c) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (d) for any transaction from which the director derived an 
improper personal benefit. 

The Company has in effect liability insurance policies covering certain claims against any director or officer of the Company by 
reason of certain breaches of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, omission or other act committed by such person in his capacity as director or 
officer. 

Item 16. Exhibits. 

A list of exhibits filed herewith or incorporated by reference is contained in the Exhibit Index, which is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Item 17. Undertakings. 

(a) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: 

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to  this Registration Statement: 

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act; 

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most 
recent post-effective amendment thereof) which individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the 
information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of 
securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation 
from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the 
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 
percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the “Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the 
effective Registration Statement; and 

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration 
Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement; 

provided, however, that paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply if the Registration Statement is on Form S-3 and the information required to 
be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to  the Commission by the 
Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the Registration 
Statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement. 
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( 2 )  That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be 
deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time 
shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at 
the termination of the offering. 

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser: 

(i) (A) Each prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as 
of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and 

(B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5) or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance 
on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(l)(i), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of providing the 
information required by Section lO(a) of the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration 
statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract 
of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the 
issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the 
registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which the prospectus relates, and the offering 
of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no 
statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document 
incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the 
registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify 
any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made 
in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; and 

( 5 )  That, for the purpose of determining liability of the Registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the initial distribution of 
the securities, in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of 
the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means 
of any of the following communications, the undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer 
or sell such securities to such purchaser: 

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant 
to Rule 424; 

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant or used or referred 
to by the undersigned Registrant; 

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the 
undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant; and 

11-3 

h t tD: / /w . sec .  gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/00000 1974506000024/s3. htm 10/1/2007 



Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement Page 17 of 20 

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned Registrant to the purchaser. 

(b) The undersigned Registrant undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each filing of the 
Registrant’s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in 
the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering 
of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers, and controlling persons of 
the Registrant pursuant to  the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that, in the opinion of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, 
unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses 
incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) 
is asserted by such director, officer, or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in 
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question 
whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final 
adjudication of such issue. 

(d) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under 
subsection (a) of Section 3 10 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission 
under Section 305(b)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it 
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Dover, State of Delaware, on June 15,2006. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: /s/ John R. Schimkaitis 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John R. 
Schimkaitis, Michael P. McMasters and Beth W. Cooper, or any of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full 
power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all 
amendments to this Registration Statement, and to file same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the 
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full  power and authority to do and perform each and every act 
and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, 
hereby ratifying and confirming all that the attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or 
cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the 
capacities and on the dates indicated. 

I s /  Ralph J. Adkins 
Ralph J. Adkins, Chairman of the Board 
and Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

/s/ Michael P. McMasters 
Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Date: June 15,2006 

/s/ Richard Bernstein 
Richard Bernstein, Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

Is/  Walter J. Coleman 
Walter J. Coleman, Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

/s/ J. Peter Martin 
J. Peter Martin 
Date: June 15.2006 

/s/ Calvert A. Morgan. Jr. 
Calvert A. Morgan, Jr., Director 

I s /  John R. Schimkaitis 
John R. Schimkaitis, President, 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

/s/ Eugene H. Bayard 
Eugene H. Bayard, Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

i s /  Thomas J. Bresnan 
Thomas J. Bresnan, Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

/ s i  Thomas P. Hill. Jr. 
Thomas P. Hill, Jr., Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

/ s i  Joseph E. Moore 
Joseph E. Moore, Esq., Director 
Date: June 15,2006 

10/1/2007 



Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement 
Date: June 15,2006 

Page 19 of 20 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/datd19745/OOOOO 1974506000024/~3.htm 10/1/2007 



Chesapeake Utilities Corp - Shelf Registration Statement Page 20 of 20 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit No. Description 
1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement for Common Stock * 
1.2 
4.1 

4.2 

4.3 
4.4 
5.1 
12.1 

23.1 
23.2 
24.1 
25.1 

Form of Underwriting Agreement for debt securities * 
Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 
of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1998, File No. 001-1 1590. 
Amended Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, effective February 24,2005, are incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 3 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004, File No. 001-1 1590. 
Form of Trust Indenture between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and the trustee for the debt securities * 
Form of debt securities * 
Opinion of Baker & Hostetler LLP **  
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 12 of each of the 
Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31,2005,2004 and 2003, File No. 001-1 1590. 
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the quarterly period ended March 3 1, 2006, is filed herewith. ** 
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP * * 
Consent of Baker & Hostetler LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1) 
Power of Attorney (set forth on the signature page hereto) 
Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of [ 1, as trustee for the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation debt securities * 

* To be filed by amendment or as an exhibit to a document incorporated by reference into the registration statement. 

**  Filed herewith 

10/1/2007 



e424b5 
Table of Contents 

Exhibit E 

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(B)(5) 
Registration No: 333-135602 

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT 
(To Prospectus dated November 9, 2006) 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

600,300 Shares of Common Stock 

We are selling 600,300 shares of our common stock. Our common stock is listed on the New 
York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CPK.” On November 15, 2006, the last reported sale 
price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange was $30.25 per share. 

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See “Risk Factors” beginning on 
page S-6 of this prospectus supplement for a description of various risks you should 
consider in evaluating an investment in our common stock. 

Per Share Total 
Public offering price $ 30.100 $ 18,069,030 
Underwriting discounts and commissions $ 1.125 $ 675,338 
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ 28.975 $ 17,393,692 

additional shares of our common stock from us on the same terms set forth above to cover over- 
allotments, if any. 

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities 
commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the 
adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. 
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 

The underwriters have a 30-day option to purchase on a pro rata basis up to 90,045 

Robert W. Baird & Co. 
November 15,2006 

A.G. Edwards 
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This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the 
specific terms of this offering. The second part, the accompanying prospectus, gives more general 
information, some of which may not apply to this offering. Before investing in our common stock, you 
should read in their entirety this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, including the 
information under the caption “Where You Can Find More Information,” as well as the documents 
incorporated by reference. These documents contain information you should consider when making your 
investment decision. You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference into 
this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have 
not, authorized any other person to provide you with different or additional information. If anyone provides 
you with different, additional or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. 

We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction 
where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information in this prospectus 
supplement and the accompanying prospectus is accurate only as of their respective dates, or in the case 
of the documents incorporated by reference, the date of such documents regardless of the time of delivery 
of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or any sales of our common stock. Our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. 

References in this prospectus supplement to the “Company,” “Chesapeake,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer 
to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context indicates another 
meaning. 

Unless expressly incorporated by reference, information contained on or made available through our 
Web site is not a part of this prospectus supplement. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents we have incorporated 
by reference contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. We 
intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking 
statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 

Forward-looking statements are generally identifiable by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” 
“anticipate,” “plan,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. Our ability to predict results or the actual 
effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from those 
in forward-looking statements because of, among other reasons, the factors described below and 
described in the periodic reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) 
from time to time, including Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K. The forward-looking statements are not 
guarantees of future performance. They are based on numerous assumptions that we believe are 
reasonable, but they are open to a wide range of uncertainties and business risks. 

Factors that could cause actual results to be different than expected or anticipated include, but are not 
limited to: 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 

the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices on our distribution, wholesale marketing and 
energy trading businesses; 

the effect of competition on our non-regulated and regulated businesses; 

the effect of changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including 
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deregulation; 

the effect of accounting changes; 

the effect of changes in benefit plan assumptions; 

the effect of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental 
damage; 

the effect of general economic conditions on us and our customers; 

the ability of our new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected revenues; 

S-ii 
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our ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators and the timing 
of the requested regulatory actions; and 

the risks set forth herein under the caption “Risk Factors.” 

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance 
on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this prospectus supplement or as of the 
date of any document incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying 
prospectus, as applicable. When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the 
cautionary statements in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents 
incorporated by reference. We are not under any obligation, and we expressly disclaim any obligation, to 
update or alter any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise, except as required by law. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward- 
looking events discussed in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the 
accompanying prospectus might not occur. 

S-iii 
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SUMMARY 

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this 
prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Because this is a summary, it is not 
complete and does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. For a more 
complete understanding of us and this offering of our common stock, we encourage you to read in 
their entirety this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, including the information 
under the caption ”Where You Can Find More Information”, as well as the documents incorporated 
by reference. 

Our Business 

We are a diversified gas utility company, incorporated and headquartered in Delaware, that 
operates both regulated and non-regulated businesses in three segments: natural gas distribution, 
transmission and marketing; propane distribution and wholesale marketing; and advanced 
information services. 

Regulated operations consist of our natural gas distribution and transmission businesses that 
operate in several states. Non-regulated operations consist of our natural gas marketing, propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing, and advanced information services businesses. 

The following charts set forth the percentage of our total assets accounted for by each of our 
segments at September 30, 2006 and the percentage of our operating income accounted for by 
each of our segments for the twelve months ended September 30,2006. 

Total Assets Operating Income for the Twelve Months Ended 
at September 30,2006 September 30,2006 

6**7;Yd 

ip&lorminon r m d n c r :  Irfnm(nlt 
*,,mt>I9r w/raW%m 

4% 7% 

Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission and Marketing 

Natural Gas Distribution. Our three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 58,000 
residential, commercial and industrial customers in central and southern Delaware, Maryland’s 
Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. 

Our Delaware and Maryland utility divisions collectively serve approximately 44,500 customers, 
of whom approximately 44,300 are residential and commercial customers purchasing natural gas 
primarily for heating purposes. The remaining customers are industrial. Residential and commercial 
customers accounted for approximately 76 percent of the volume delivered by the divisions and 
76 percent of the divisions’ gross margin for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The state 
Public Service Commissions of Delaware and Maryland regulate our natural gas distribution 
operations within these states. 

Our Florida division distributes natural gas to approximately 13,400 residential and commercial 
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and 100 industrial customers in Polk, Osceola, Hillsborough, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Union, Holmes, 
Jackson, Desoto, Suwannee, Liberty, Citrus and Washington Counties. For the nine months ended 
September 30, 2006, industrial customers accounted for approximately 92 percent of the volume 
delivered by the Florida division and approximately 42 percent of the division’s gross margin. We 
serve a diversity of industrial customers throughout the state of Florida. The Florida Public Service 
Commission regulates our Florida division. 

s- 1 
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Natural Gas Transmission. Our natural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company (“ESNG”), operates a 331 -mile interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various 
points in Pennsylvania to our Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other 
utilities and industrial customers in southern Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of 
Maryland. ESNG provides open access gas transportation and contract storage services for affiliated 
and non-affiliated companies. As an interstate pipeline, ESNG’s rates and services are subject to 
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). 

Natural Gas Marketing. We market natural gas and offer supply management services in the 
state of Florida through our subsidiary Peninsula Energy Services Company, lnc. (“PESCO”). 
PESCO provides natural gas supply management services to approximately 284 customers of our 
Florida division, which operates as Central Florida Gas, and to an additional 463 customers of other 
natural gas distribution systems operating within the state of Florida. 

Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 

Our propane distribution operations are conducted by Sharp Energy, Inc. and its subsidiaries. 
Our propane wholesale marketing operations are conducted by Xeron, Inc. 

Sharp Energy. Based in Salisbury, Maryland, Sharp Energy sells, transports and distributes 
propane to approximately 32,600 customers in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia, Florida and 
Pennsylvania. We delivered approximately 16.4 million retail and wholesale gallons of propane 
during the nine months ended September 30, 2006. 

Xeron. Based in Houston, Texas, Xeron is a natural gas liquids trading company. Xeron 
purchases from and sells to oil refineries, wholesalers, propane distributors, pipeline companies and 
other trading partners primarily in the southeastern region of the United States. 

Advanced Information Services 

BravePoinf. Our advanced information services business, Bravepoint, Inc., headquartered in 
Norcross, Georgia, provides domestic and international clients with information technology related 
business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Other 

We own several subsidiaries that own and lease real estate to affiliates of Chesapeake. 

Our Competitive Strengths 

Our competitive and strategic positions for our primary business segments are described below. 

We are the only natural gas distribution utility in the franchised areas that we serve on the 
Delmarva Peninsula (a peninsula of the eastern United States separating the Chesapeake Bay from 
the Delaware Bay and the Atlantic Ocean that includes all of Delaware and parts of eastern 
Maryland and Virginia) and in Florida. We are expanding our distribution and transmission facilities 
to capture the growth occurring in our various service territories. For the year ended December 31, 
2005, the number of residential customers for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions 
increased 8.7 percent, while our Florida division experienced a 7.4 percent increase in the number of 
residential customers served. 

Our interstate pipeline is the only pipeline that transports natural gas to the high growth areas 
south of the Chesapeake & Delaware Canal in Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. 

Our natural gas marketing subsidiary in Florida provides natural gas procurement services to 
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commercial and industrial customers. We believe that our long-standing relationships with many 
of these customers are a competitive strength. 

Our competitive strengths in the propane distribution industry include our size on the Delmarva 
Peninsula, expertise in constructing and servicing propane community gas systems, diverse supply 
base, storage capabilities and specialized pricing programs for our customers. Our community gas 
systems provide propane via underground piped propane systems, similar to how natural gas is 
delivered, primarily to new residential developments in locations where natural gas is not 
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available. We believe our experience in the natural gas and propane distribution businesses has 
enabled us to be a market leader in building and servicing these systems in our current service 
territory on the Delmarva Peninsula. 

Our Strategy 

Our strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in 
related businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than traditional 
regulated returns. The key elements of this strategy include: 

Executing a capital investment program in pursuit of organic growth opportunities that 
generate returns equal to or greater than our cost of capital 

Expanding our natural gas distribution and transmission business through expansion into new 
geographic areas in our current service territories 

Expanding our propane distribution business in existing and new markets through leveraging 
our community gas system service and our bulk delivery capabilities 

Utilizing our expertise across our various businesses to improve overall performance 

Enhancing marketing channels to attract new customers and providing reliable and responsive 
customer service to retain existing customers 

Maintaining a capital structure that enables us to access capital as needed 

Maintaining a consistent and competitive dividend 

Recent Developments 

On November 1, 2006, we initiated additional transportation services to several of our customers 
as part of the first phase of ESNG’s 2006-2008 expansion project pursuant to which we expect to 
add 55 miles of pipeline to its existing system in the states of Delaware and Pennsylvania as well as 
two new delivery points. Our 2006 capital expenditures budget of $54.4 million includes $17.4 million 
associated with the first phase of ESNG’s 2006-2008 expansion project. The total project is 
expected to cost approximately $33.6 million and be completed in November 2008. 

Corporate Information 

Our principal executive office is located at 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904 
and our telephone number is (302) 734-6799. We maintain a Web site at www.chpk.com where 
certain additional information about us may be found. Unless expressly incorporated by reference, 
the information on our Web site is not a part of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying 
prospectus or the documents incorporated by reference, but is referenced and maintained as a 
convenience to investors and as otherwise required by applicable law. 

s-3 
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Issuer 

Common stock offered 

Common stock outstanding after 
the offering(’) 

Current indicated annual dividend 
per share(*) 

NYSE symbol for common stock 

THE OFFERING 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

600,300 shares of our common stock (plus up to 90,045 
additional shares that may be issued by us upon exercise of 
the underwriters’ over-allotment option). 

6,590,882 shares of our common stock. If the underwriters 
exercise their over-allotment option in full, we will issue an 
additional 90,045 shares, which will result in 6,680,927 shares 
outstanding. 

$1.16 (see the caption “Market Price, Dividends and Dividend 
Policy”) 

CPK 

(1) The number of shares of our common stock outstanding after the offering set forth above is based on 5,990,582 shares of 
our common stock outstanding as of October 31, 2006 and includes the shares to be sold by us in this offering. The 
number of shares outstanding after the offering does not include an aggregate of 1,372,750 shares of our common stock 
reserved as of October 31, 2006 for issuance under the following plans: the Performance Incentive Plan, the Employee 
Stock Award Plan, the Directors Stock Compensation Plan, the Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan, 
and the Retirement Savings Plan, as well as upon the conversion of any outstanding 8.25% Convertible Debentures. 

(2) Based upon the fourth quarter of 2006 dividend rate of $0.29 per share annualized. Future dividends, if any, may be 
declared and paid at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our future earnings, financial condition and 
other factors. 
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s U M MARY FINANCIAL I N FORMATION 

In the table below, we provide you with certain summary financial information. We have derived 
the income statement data for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005 
and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004 and 2005 from our audited consolidated 
financial statements incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. We have derived the 
income statement data for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2006 and the balance 
sheet data as of September 30, 2006 from our unaudited consolidated financial statements 
incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. The information is only a summary and 
should be read together with the financial information incorporated by reference in the 
accompanying prospectus. See the caption “Where You Can Find More Information” and 
“Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference” in the accompanying prospectus. 

($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 
Income Statement Data: 
Revenues 

Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced information services and other 

Total revenues 

Operating income 
Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced information services and other 

Total operating income 

Nine Months 
Fiscal Year Ended Ended 

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, Sept. 30, 
2003 2004 2005 2005 2006 ----- 

(Unaudited) 

$110,247 $124,246 $166,582 $112,478 $127,040 
41,029 41,500 48,976 33,400 34,339 
12,292 12,209 14,072 9,343 9,017 

$163,568 $177,955 $229,630 $155,221 $170,396 
----- 

$ 16,653 $ 17,091 $ 17,236 $ 12,117 $ 13,256 
3,875 2,364 3,209 1,814 1,166 
1,051 515 1,085 (201) 383 

$ 21,579 $ 19,970 $ 21,530 $ 13,730 $ 14,805 
--- 

Net income from continuing operations $ 10,079 $ 9,550 $ 10,468 $ 6,335 $ 6,572 

Average common shares outstanding (basic) 
Average common shares outstanding (diluted) 
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 

Cash Flow Data: 
Cash dividends declared per share 
Capital expenditures 

($ in thousands) 
Balance Sheet Data: 
Gross property, plant and equipment 
Net property, plant and equipment 
Total assets 

Total stockholders’ equity 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 
Total capitalization 

Current portion of long-term debt 
Short-term borrowing 
Total capitalization and short-term borrowing 
Eauitv as a Dercentaae of total capitalization 

5,611 5,735 5,836 5,823 5,945 
5,802 5,908 5,993 5,982 6,070 

$ 1.80 $ 1.66 $ 1.79 $ 1.09 $ 1.11 
$ 1.76 $ 1.64 $ 1.77 $ 1.07 $ 1.10 

$ 1.10 $ 1.12 $ 1.14 $ 0.85 $ 0.87 
$ 11,790 $ 17,784 $ 33,008 $ 19,940 $ 28,335 

At Dec. 31, At Sept. 30, 
2004 2005 2005 2006 ___-- -  

(Unaudited) 

$250,267 $280,345 $266,561 $309,555 
$177,053 $201,504 $189,036 $225,950 
$241,938 $295,980 $254,030 $301,961 

$ 77,962 $ 84,757 $ 81,592 $ 88,536 ---- 66,190 58,991 62,083 56,792 
$144,152 $143,748 $143,675 $145,328 

$ 2,909 $ 4,929 $ 4,929 $ 4,929 ---- 5,002 35,482 10,624 51,314 
$152,063 $184,159 $159,228 $201,571 

54% 59% 57% 61 Yo 
Equiti as a percentage of total capitalization and short- term borrowing 51% 46% 51% 44% 

s-5 

httn.//xxnxnar c e r  nnwl A r r h i v ~ c l ~ r l  um/rlata/19745/000095015206009475/123022de424b5.htm 10/1/2007 



e424b5 Page 16 of 49 

httD://www.sec.rrov/Archives/edear/data/l9745/0000950 15206009475/123022de424b5 .htm 10/1/2007 



e424b5 
Table of Contents 

RISK FACTORS 

Page 17 of 49 

Fluctuations in weather have the potential to adversely affect our results of operations, cash 
flows and financial condition. 

Our utility and propane distribution operations are sensitive to fluctuations in weather, and weather 
conditions directly influence the volume of natural gas and propane delivered by our utility and propane 
distribution operations to customers. A significant portion of our utility and propane distribution operations’ 
revenues are derived from the delivery of natural gas and propane to residential and commercial heating 
customers during the five-month peak heating season of November through March. If the weather is 
warmer than normal, we deliver less natural gas and propane to customers, and earn less revenue. In 
addition, hurricanes or other extreme weather conditions could damage production or transportation 
facilities, which could result in decreased supplies of natural gas and propane, increased supply costs and 
higher prices for customers. 

Regulation of the Company, including changes in the regulatory environment in general, may 
adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

The state Public Service Commissions of Delaware, Maryland and Florida regulate our natural gas 
distribution operations. ESNG, our natural gas transmission subsidiary, is regulated by the FERC. These 
regulatory commissions set the rates in their respective jurisdictions that we can charge customers for our 
rate-regulated services. Changes in these rates, as ordered by regulatory commissions, affect our 
financial performance. Our ability to obtain timely future rate increases and rate supplements to maintain 
current rates of return depends on regulatory discretion, and there can be no assurance that our divisions 
and ESNG will be able to obtain rate increases or supplements or continue receiving currently authorized 
rates of return. 

The amount and availability of natural gas and propane supplies are difficult to predict, which 
may reduce our earnings. 

Natural gas and propane production can be impacted by factors outside of our control, such as 
weather and refinery closings. If we are unable to obtain sufficient natural gas and propane supplies to 
meet demand, our results of operation may be negatively impacted. 

We rely on having access to interstate pipelines’ transportation and storage capacity. If these 
pipelines or storage facilities were not available, it may impair our ability to meet our customers’ 
full requirements. 

We must acquire both sufficient natural gas supplies and interstate pipeline and storage capacity to 
meet customer requirements. We must contract for reliable and adequate delivery capacity for our 
distribution system, while considering the dynamics of the interstate pipeline and storage capacity market, 
our own on-system resources, as well as the characteristics of our customer base. Local natural gas 
distribution companies, including us, and other participants in the energy industry, have raised concerns 
regarding the future availability of additional upstream interstate pipeline and storage capacity. Additional 
available pipeline and storage capacity is a business issue that must be managed by us, as our customer 
base grows. 

Natural gas and propane commodity price changes may affect the operating costs and 
competitive positions of our natural gas and propane distribution operations, which may adversely 
affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Natural Gas. Over the last four years, natural gas costs have increased significantly and become 
more volatile. In addition, the hurricane activity in 2005 reduced the natural gas available from the Gulf 
Coast region, further contributing to the volatility of natural gas prices. Higher natural gas prices can result 
in significant increases in the cost of gas billed to customers during the winter heating season. Under our 
regulated gas cost recovery mechanisms, we record cost of gas expense equal to the cost of gas 
recovered in revenues from customers. Therefore, an increase in the cost of gas due to an increase in the 

httn~//www.xec.~ov/Archives/ed~ar/data/l9745/0000950 1 5206009475I123022de424b5 .htm 1 O/ 1 /2007 



e424b5 Page 18 of 49 

price of the natural gas commodity generally has no direct effect on our revenues and net income. 
However, our net income may be reduced due to higher expenses that may be incurred for uncollectible 
customer accounts, as well as lower volumes of natural gas deliveries to customers due to lower natural 
gas consumption caused 
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by customer conservation. Increases in the price of natural gas also can affect our operating cash flows, 
as well as the competitiveness of natural gas as an energy source. 

Propane. The level of profitability in the retail propane business is largely dependent on the difference 
between the cost of propane and the revenues derived from our sale of propane to our customers. 
Propane costs are subject to volatile changes as a result of product supply or other market conditions, 
including, economic and political factors impacting crude oil and natural gas supply or pricing. Propane 
cost changes can occur rapidly over a short period of time and can impact profitability. There is no 
assurance that we will be able to pass on propane cost increases fully or immediately, particularly when 
propane costs increase or decrease rapidly. Therefore, average retail sales prices can vary significantly 
from year to year as product costs fluctuate with propane, fuel oil, crude oil and natural gas commodity 
market conditions. In addition, in periods of sustained higher commodity prices, retail sales volumes may 
be negatively impacted by customer conservation efforts and increased amounts of uncollectible accounts. 

We compete in a competitive environment and may be faced with losing customers to a 
competitor. 

We compete with third-party suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. As it relates to transportation 
services, our competitors include the interstate transmission company if the distribution customer is 
located close enough to the transmission company’s pipeline to make a connection economically feasible. 

Our propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their service 
territories, primarily on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and 
responsiveness. Some of our competitors have significantly greater resources. The retail propane industry 
is mature, and we foresee only modest growth in total demand. Given this limited growth, we expect that 
year-to-year industry volumes will be principally affected by weather patterns. Therefore, our ability to 
grow the propane distribution business is contingent upon execution of our community gas systems 
strategy to capture market share and to employ pricing programs that retain and grow our customer base. 
Any failure to retain and grow our customer base would have an adverse effect on our results. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, many of which 
have significantly greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger 
competitors having substantially greater resources available to them to compete on the basis of 
technological expertise, reputation and price. 

Costs of compliance with environmental laws may be significant, 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and 
pollution control. These evolving laws and regulations may require expenditures over a long timeframe to 
control environmental effects at current and former operating sites, including former gas manufactured 
sites that we have acquired from third parties. Compliance with these legal requirements requires us to 
commit capital toward environmental compliance. If we fail to comply with environmental laws and 
regulations, even if such failure is caused by factors beyond our control, we may be assessed civil or 
criminal penalties and fines. 

To date, we have been able to recover through approved rate mechanisms the costs of recovery 
associated with the remediation of former gas manufactured sites. However, there is no guarantee that we 
will be able to recover future remediation costs in the same manner or at all. A change in our approved 
rate mechanisms for recovery of environmental remediation costs at former manufacturer gas sites could 
adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Further, existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised or new laws and regulations 
seeking to protect the environment may be adopted or become applicable to us. Revised or additional 
laws and regulations could result in additional operating restrictions on our facilities or increased 
compliance costs which may not be fully recoverable by us. 
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A change in the economic conditions and interest rates may adversely affect our results of 

operations and cash flows. 

A downturn in the economies of the regions in which we operate, which we cannot accurately predict, 
might adversely affect our ability to grow our customer base and our businesses at the same rate they 
have grown in the recent 

s-7 

10/1/2007 



e424b5 
Table of Contents 

Page 21 of 49 

past. Further, an increase in interest rates without the recovery of the higher cost of debt in the sales 
and/or transportation rates we charge our utility customers, could adversely affect future earnings. An 
increase in short-term interest rates would negatively affect our results of operations, which depend on 
short-term debt to finance accounts receivable, storage gas inventories, and to temporarily finance capital 
expenditures. 

Inflation may impact our results of operations, cash flows and financial position. 

inflation affects the cost of supply, labor, products and services required for operations, maintenance 
and capital improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and 
propane prices are subject to rapid fluctuations. To help cope with the effects of inflation on our capital 
investments and returns, we seek rate relief from regulatory commissions for regulated operations while 
monitoring the returns of our non-regulated business operations. There can be no assurance that we will 
be able to obtain adequate and timely rate relief to offset the effects of inflation. To compensate for 
fluctuations in propane gas prices, we adjust our propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the 
market, However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to increase propane sales prices 
sufficiently to fully compensate for such fluctuations in the cost of propane gas to us. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect our advanced information services segment’s 
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Our advanced information services segment participates in a market that is characterized by rapidly 
changing technology and accelerating product introduction cycles. The success of our advanced 
information services segment depends upon our ability to address the rapidly changing needs of our 
customers by developing and supplying high-quality, cost-effective products, product enhancements and 
services on a timely basis, and by keeping pace with technological developments and emerging industry 
standards. There can be no assurance that we will be able to keep up with technological advancements 
necessary to make our products competitive. 

Our energy marketing subsidiaries have credit risk and credit requirements that may adversely 
affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Xeron, our propane wholesale and marketing subsidiary, and PESCO, our natural gas marketing 
subsidiary in Florida, extend credit to counter-parties. While we believe Xeron and PESCO utilize prudent 
credit policies, each of these subsidiaries is exposed to the risk that it may not be able to collect amounts 
owed to it. If the counter-party to such a transaction fails to perform and any underlying collateral is 
inadequate, we could experience financial losses. 

Our subsidiaries Xeron and PESCO are dependent upon the availability of credit to buy propane and 
natural gas for resale or to trade. If the financial condition of these subsidiaries declines, or if our financial 
condition declines, then the cost of credit available to these subsidiaries could increase. If credit is not 
available, or if credit is more costly, our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be 
adversely affected. 

Our use of derivative instruments may adversely affect our results of operations. 

Fluctuating commodity prices cause our earnings and financing costs to be impacted. Our propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing segment uses derivative instruments, including forwards, swaps and 
puts, to hedge price risk. In addition, we may decide, after further evaluation, to utilize derivative 
instruments to hedge price risk for our Delaware and Maryland divisions, as well as PESCO. While we 
have a risk policy and operating procedures in place to control our exposure to risk, if we purchase 
derivative instruments that are not properly matched to our exposure, our results of operations, cash flows, 
and financial conditions may be adversely impacted. 

Inability to access the capital markets may impair our future growth. 

We rely on access to both short-term and longer-term capital markets as a significant source of 
liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from our operations. Currently, $65 million 
of the total $80 million of short-term lines of credit utilized to satisfy our short-term financing requirements 
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are discretionary, uncommitted lines of credit. We utilize discretionary lines of credit to reduce the cost 

associated with these short-term financing requirements. We are committed to maintaining a sound capital 
structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility needed to access the capital 
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markets when required. However, if we are not able to access capital at competitive rates, our ability to 
implement our strategic plan, undertake improvements and make other investments required for our future 
growth may be limited. 

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance. 

Our operations are subject to the operating hazards and risks normally incidental to handling, storing, 
transporting and otherwise providing natural gas and propane to end users. As a result, we are sometimes 
a defendant in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. We maintain 
insurance policies with insurers in such amounts and with such coverages and deductibles as we believe 
are reasonable and prudent. There can be no assurance, however, that such insurance will be adequate 
to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for personal injury and property 
damage or that such levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical prices. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

As a result of this offering, we will receive approximately $1 7.2 million in net proceeds from the sale of 
our common stock, after deducting an aggregate of approximately $900,000 in underwriting discounts and 
commissions and estimated offering expenses. If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in 
full, we estimate that our net proceeds will be approximately $1 9.8 million. 

We will use the net proceeds from this offering to repay a portion of our short-term debt under 
unsecured revolving lines of credit with two financial institutions. The weighted-average interest rate for 
the nine months ended September 30, 2006 related to borrowing under these lines of credit was 5.40%, 
with 4.75% being the lowest rate and 6.1 1% being the highest rate charged to us during this period. Our 
short-term debt has been used in part to finance a portion of ESNG’s expansion projects. 

Prior to such application, all or a portion of the net proceeds may be invested in short-term interest- 
bearing securities. 
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CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth our consolidated capitalization as of September 30, 2006, on an actual 
basis and on an as adjusted basis to reflect the private placement of $20 million of unsecured senior notes 
in October 2006 and the sale of 600,300 shares of our common stock at the offering price of $30.10 per 
share. 

You should read this table in conjunction with the detailed information and financial statements 
appearing in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the 
accompanying prospectus. 

($ in thousands) 
Total stockholders’ equity 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 
Total capitalization 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Short-term borrowing 
Total capitalization and short-term borrowing 
Equity as a percentage of total capitalization 

At September 30, 2006 (Unaudited) 
Actual As Adjusted 

Amount Percent Amount Percent 
$ 88,536 44% $105,705(’) 53% 

28% 76,792(*) 38% 56 , 792 
$145,328 72% $182,497 91% 

4,929 2% 4,929 2% 
51,314 26% 14,145 7% 

---- 

-- 

(I) Includes the approximately $17.2 million of estimated net proceeds of this offering. 

(2) Includes the $20 million of 5.50% unsecured senior notes issued on October 12, 2006. 
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MARKET PRICE, DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY 

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "CPK, as stated 
previously. The following table sets forth the high and low closing prices of our common stock on the New 
York Stock Exchange and the cash dividends declared on our common stock for the periods indicated. 

Period High Low Dividends 

2004: 
First Quarter $26.5100 $24.3000 $ 0.2750 
Second Quarter 26.2000 20.4200 0.2800 
Third Quarter 25.4000 22.1000 0.2800 
Fourth Quarter 27.5500 24.5000 0.2800 
2005: 
First Quarter $27.5900 $25.8300 $ 0.2800 
Second Quarter 30.9500 23.6000 0.2850 
Third Quarter 35.6000 29.5000 0.2850 
Fourth Quarter 35.7799 30.3227 0.2850 
2006: 
First Quarter $32.4690 $29.9700 $ 0.2850 
Second Quarter 31.2000 27.9001 0.2900 
Third Quarter 35.6499 29.5100 0.2900 
Fourth Quarter (through November 15,2006) 31.3100 29.5500 0.2900 

On November 15,2006, the last reported closing price of our common stock on the New York Stock 
Exchange was $30.25 per share and on October 31,2006, we had approximately 1,981 holders of record 
of our common stock. 

We have paid a quarterly cash dividend on our common stock for 45 consecutive years. We pay 
dividends four times a year: January, April, July and October. Dividends are declared at the discretion of 
our board of directors, and future dividends will depend upon future earnings, cash flow, financial 
requirements and other factors. We cannot assure you that we will pay a dividend at any time in the future 
or that we will raise the level of dividends in the future. Our board of directors can elect at any time, and for 
an indefinite duration, not to declare dividends on our common stock. 

On November 7, 2006, our board of directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.29 per share of our 
common stock. The dividend will be paid on January 5, 2007, to shareholders of record at the close of 
business on December 18, 2006 (the "record date"). Purchasers of our common stock in this offering who 
maintain ownership through the record date will be entitled to receive this dividend. 
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UNDERWRITING 

We have entered into an underwriting agreement, dated November 15, 2006, with the underwriters 
named below with respect to the shares of common stock to be offered pursuant to this prospectus 
supplement. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, we have 
agreed to sell and each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase from us the number of shares of our 
common stock set forth opposite its name in the following table: 

Number of 
Underwriters Shares 

Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 360,180 
A.G. Edwards & Sons, inc. 240,120 

Total 600,300 

Ove r-A I Io t men t 0 p t i o n 

We have granted to the underwriters a 30-day option, exercisable from the date of this prospectus 
supplement, to purchase on a pro rata basis up to 90,045 additional shares of our common stock at the 
public offering price less the underwriting discounts and commissions. 

We will be obligated to sell these shares of our common stock to the underwriters to the extent the 
over-allotment option is exercised. The underwriters may exercise this option only to cover over-allotments 
made in connection with the sale of our common stock offered by this prospectus supplement. 

Discounts and Commissions 

The underwriters propose to offer the shares of our common stock initially at the public offering price 
on the cover page of this prospectus supplement and to certain dealers at that price less a concession not 
in excess of $0.675 per share. The underwriters may allow, and the dealers may reallow, a concession not 
to exceed $0.10 per share on sales to other dealers. After the public offering, the underwriters may 
change the public offering price and concessions to dealers. 

The following table summarizes the compensation to be paid to the underwriters. The information 
assumes either no exercise or full exercise by the underwriters of their over-allotment option. 

Total 
Without Over- With Over- 

Per Share Allotment Allotment 

Public offering price $ 30.100 $ 18,069,030 $20,779,385 
Underwriting discounts and commissions payable by us 1.125 675,338 776,639 
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ 28.975 $ 17,393,692 $20,002,746 

The underwriting fee will be an amount equal to the offering price per share to the public of our 
common stock, less the amount paid by the underwriters to us per share of common stock. The 
underwriters’ compensation was determined through arms’ length negotiations between the underwriters 
and us. 

We estimate that the expenses payable by us in connection with this offering, other than the 
underwriting discounts and commissions referred to above, will be approximately $225,000. Estimated 
expenses include SEC filing fees, New York Stock Exchange listing fees, printing, legal, accounting, 
transfer agent and registrar fees, and other miscellaneous fees and expenses. 

Lock4.Jp Arrangement 
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We and our directors and officers have agreed not to sell, transfer, pledge, offer or contract to sell, 

transfer or pledge, or file with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act, relating to any 
additional shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for 
any shares of our common stock without the prior written consent of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 
for a period of 90 days after the date of this prospectus 
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supplement. These restrictions will not apply to shares issued pursuant to employee benefit plans or other 
employee, executive or director compensation plans, pursuant to our Dividend Reinvestment and Direct 
Stock Purchase Plan or upon the conversion of our 8.25% convertible debentures. 

The 90-day period may be extended under certain circumstances when we announce earnings or 
material news or a material event during the last 17 days of the 90-day period, or if prior to the expiration 
of the 90-day period we announce that we will release earnings within the 16-day period after the last day 
of the 90-day period. 

Indemnity 

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities under the Securities Act or to 
contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to make in that respect. 

Our Relationship with the Underwriters 

The underwriters and their affiliates may provide advisory and investment banking services to us in 
the future, for which they would receive customary compensation. 

Stabilization 

The underwriters may engage in over-allotment transactions, stabilizing transactions and syndicate 
covering transactions in accordance with Regulation M under the Exchange Act. 

Over-allotment involves sales by the underwriters of shares in excess of the number of shares the 
underwriters are obligated to purchase, which creates syndicate short positions. 

Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase shares of our common stock so long as the 
stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. 

Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of our common stock in the open market after 
the distribution has been completed to cover syndicate short positions. 

These stabilizing transactions and syndicate covering transactions may cause the price of our 
common stock to be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. These 
transactions may be effected on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise. Neither we nor either of the 
underwriters makes any representation that the underwriters will engage in any of the transactions 
described above, and these transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time without notice. 
Neither we nor either of the underwriters makes any representation or prediction as to the effect that the 
transactions described above, if commenced, may have on the market price of our common stock. 

EXPERTS 

The consolidated financial statements and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting (which is included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting) incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference to the Annual Report on 
Form 1 O-K for the year ended December 31,2005, have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of 
said firm as experts in auditing and accounting. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Company by Baker & Hostetler LLP, Cincinnati, 
Ohio. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the underwriters by Foley & Lardner LLP, Milwaukee, 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

Common Stock and Debt Securities 

We may offer, from time to time in one or more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on terms 
that we will determine at the time of offering, shares of our common stock, par value per share 
$0.4867 (the “Common Stock), and/or debt securities. We will provide the specific terms of any 
offering of Common Stock and/or debt securities in supplements to this prospectus. The 
prospectus supplements will also describe the specific manner in which we will offer these 
securities and may also supplement, update or amend information contained in this prospectus. 
You should read this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement, and any documents 
incorporated by reference into this prospectus carefully before you invest. 

We may sell Common Stock and/or debt securities on a continuous or delayed basis directly, 
through agents, dealers or underwriters as designated from time to time, or through a 
combination of these methods. If any agents, dealers or underwriters are involved in the sale of 
any securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth any applicable commissions 
or discounts. Our net proceeds from the sale of securities also will be set forth in the applicable 
prospectus supplement. 

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CPK”. 

These Securities have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission or any state securities commission, nor has the Securities and 
Exchange Commission or any state securities commission passed upon the accuracy or 
adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 

We have not authorized any dealer, salesman or other person to give any information 
or to make any representation other than those contained or incorporated by reference in 
this prospectus or any applicable supplement to this prospectus. You must not rely upon 
any information or representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this 
prospectus or any applicable supplement to this prospectus as i f  we had authorized it. 
This prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement do not constitute an offer to 
sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the registered securities 
to which they relate. Nor do this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus 
supplement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy securities in 
any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in 
such jurisdiction. You should not assume that the information contained in this 
prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement is correct on any date after its date, 
even though this prospectus or a supplement is delivered or securities are sold on a later 
date. 
The date of this prospectus is November 9, 2006. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplements include and incorporate by reference 
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the “Securities Act”), and Section 21 E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
“Exchange Act”). We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions 
for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward- 
looking statements are generally identifiable by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” 
“plan,” “estimate,” “project” or similar expressions. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future 
plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from those in forward- 
looking statements because of, among other reasons, the factors described under the caption “Risk 
Factors” in the periodic reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We undertake 
no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise. 

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS 

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission using a “shelf‘ registration process. Under this shelf process, we may sell any combination of 
our Common Stock and/or debt securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings up to a 
total amount of $40,000,000.00. This prospectus only provides you with a general description of the 
securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will 
contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, 
update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and the 
applicable prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings, 
“Where You Can Find More Information” and “Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference.” 

Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this prospectus 
to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” the “Registrant” or “Chesapeake” mean Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and all entities owned or controlled by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. When we refer to our 
“Certificate of Incorporation,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended Certificate of 
Incorporation, and when we refer to our “Bylaws,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended 
Bylaws. 

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION 

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the ”SEC”) pursuant to the Exchange Act. Such filings are 
available to the public from the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any 
document we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public 
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Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain copies of any document 
filed by us at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at that address. You 
may obtain information about the operation of the SEC’s Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 
1-800-SEC-0330. You may inspect reports and other information that we file at the offices of the New York 
Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005. Information about us, including our 
filings, is also available on our website at http://www.chpk.com. Unless expressly incorporated by 
reference, information contained on or made available through our website is not a part of this prospectus 
or any accompanying prospectus supplement. 

We have filed a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, and related exhibits with the 
SEC under the Securities Act. That registration statement contains additional information about us and the 
Common Stock and debt securities. You may inspect the registration statement and exhibits without 
charge at the SEC’s Public Reference Room or at the SEC’s web site set forth above, and you may obtain 
copies from the SEC at prescribed rates. 

lNCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE 

The SEC allows us to ”incorporate by reference” the information contained in documents we file with 
the SEC, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring to those documents. 
The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Any statement 
contained in a document that is incorporated by reference in this prospectus is automatically updated and 
superseded if information contained in this prospectus, or information that we later file with the SEC, 
modifies or replaces that information. Any statement made in this prospectus or any prospectus 
supplement concerning the contents of any contract, agreement or other document is only a summary of 
the actual contract, agreement or other document. If we have filed or incorporated by reference any 
contract, agreement or other document as an exhibit to the registration statement, you should read the 
exhibit for a more complete understanding of the document or matter involved. Each statement regarding 
a contract, agreement or other document is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual document. 

We incorporate by reference the following documents we filed, excluding any information contained 

(a) Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2005, filed on 

(b) Our definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 31, 2006; 

(c) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 11, 2006, filed on March 16, 2006; 

(d) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2, 2006, filed on May 3, 2006; 

(e) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 1, 2006, filed on May 5, 2006; 

(9 Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,2006, filed on 

(9) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2006, filed on June 2, 2006; 

(h) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 13, 2006, filed on June 19, 2006; 

(i) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2006, filed on August 7, 2006; 

(j) Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,2006, filed on 

(k) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 31, 2006, filed on September 7, 2006; 

(I) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2006, filed on September 22, 2006; 

(m) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,2006, filed on October 2,2006; 

(n) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2006, filed on October 17, 2006; 

(0) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 31, 2006, filed on November 6, 2006; 

(p) The description of our preferred stock purchase rights contained in our Registration Statement 

therein or attached as exhibits thereto which has been furnished to, but not filed with, the SEC: 

March 7, 2006; 

May 10, 2006; 

August 9,2006; 
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purpose of updating such description, and further described in the section, “Description of Common 
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(9) The description of our Common Stock contained in our registration statements filed pursuant 
to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, and all amendments or reports filed with the SEC for the purpose 
of updating such description, and further described in the section, “Description of Common Stock.” 

Any documents we file pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the 
date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of the offering of the securities to which this prospectus 
relates will automatically be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus and a part of this 
prospectus from the date of filing such documents; provided however, that we are not incorporating, in 
each case, any documents or information contained therein that has been furnished to, but not filed with, 
the SEC. 

To receive a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus (other 
than exhibits, unless they are specifically incorporated by reference in any such documents), call or write 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, Attention: Michael 
P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, telephone number (302) 734-6799. We 
also maintain a web site that contains additional information about us (http://www.chpk.com). 

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or set forth in this prospectus or the 
applicable prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone else to provide you with different 
information. We may only use this prospectus to sell securities if it is accompanied by a prospectus 
supplement. We are offering these securities only in states where the offer is permitted. You should not 
assume that the information in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is accurate as of 
any date other than the dates on the front pages of these documents. 

THE COMPANY 

We are a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas 
distribution, transmission and marketing, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced 
information services and other related businesses. We are a Delaware corporation that was formed in 
1947. As of June 30, 2006, our three natural gas distribution divisions served approximately 56,800 
residential, commercial and industrial customers in central and southern Delaware, Maryland’s Eastern 
Shore and parts of Florida. Our natural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company, 
operates a 331-mile interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in Pennsylvania to 
our Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in 
southern Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. As of June 30, 2006, our 
propane distribution operation served approximately 32,700 customers in central and southern Delaware, 
the Eastern Shore of Maryland and Virginia, southeastern Pennsylvania, and parts of Florida; and our 
wholesale propane marketing subsidiary markets propane to large independent and petrochemical 
companies, resellers and retail propane companies in the United States. Our advanced information 
services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology-related business 
services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. Our principal executive office is 
located at 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, and our telephone number is 
(302) 734-6799. Our website address is http://www.chpk.com. Unless expressly incorporated by 
reference, information contained on or made available through our website is not a part of this prospectus 
or any accompanying prospectus supplement. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

Unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement, the net proceeds from the sale of Common 
Stock and/or debt securities will be added to our general corporate funds and may be used for general 
corporate purposes including, but not limited to, financing of capital expenditures, repayment of short-term 
debt, funding share repurchases, financing acquisitions, investing in subsidiaries and general working 
capital purposes. Prior to such application, all or a portion of the net proceeds may be invested in short- 
term investments. 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK 
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Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to issue up to 12,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par 
value per share $0.4867. As of June 30, 2006, we had 5,957,627 shares of Common Stock outstanding. In 
addition, as of June 30, 
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2006, we have reserved 487,950 shares of Common Stock for issuance under our equity-based 
compensation plans and 30,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance upon the exercise of warrants. Our 
Certificate of Incorporation also authorizes us to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value 
per share $0.01; however, no shares of preferred stock are outstanding. Our Common Stock is listed on 
the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol, “CPK.” The transfer agent and registrar of the Common 
Stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P.O. Box 43010, Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3010. 

The following descriptions of our Common Stock and preferred stock set forth certain of their general 
terms and provisions. The following descriptions are in all respects subject to and qualified by reference to 
the applicable provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws. 

Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by our Board 
of Directors, out of funds legally available therefor. If we are liquidated, dissolved or involved in any 
winding-up, the holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably any assets legally available 
for distribution to holders of Common Stock. Holders of our Common Stock possess ordinary voting rights, 
with each share entitling the holder to one vote. Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the 
holders of our Common Stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to 
vote for the election of directors. Holders of our Common Stock do not have preemptive rights, which 
means that they have no right to acquire any additional shares of Common Stock that we may 
subsequently issue (other than pursuant to the Rights, described below). Holders of our Common Stock 
also do not have conversion or subscription rights, and the Common Stock is not subject to redemption by 
the Company. 

All of our shares of Common Stock currently outstanding are, and any shares of Common Stock 
offered hereby when issued will be, fully paid and nonassessable. 

We may issue preferred stock from time to time, by authorization of our Board of Directors and without 
the necessity of further action or authorization by our stockholders, in one or more series and with such 
voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights and 
qualifications as our Board may, in its discretion, determine, including, but not limited to (a) the distinctive 
designation of such series and the number of shares to constitute such series; (b) the dividends, if any, for 
such series; (c) the voting power, if any, of shares of such series;(d) the terms and conditions (including 
price), if any, upon which shares of such stock may be converted into or exchanged for shares of stock of 
any other class or any other series of the same class or any other securities or assets; (e) our right, if any, 
to redeem shares of such series and the terms and conditions of such redemption; (9 the retirement or 
sinking fund provisions, if any, of shares of such series and the terms and provisions relative to the 
operation thereof;(g) the amount, if any, which the holders of the shares of such series shall be entitled to 
receive in case of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up; (h) the limitations and restrictions, if any, upon 
the payment of dividends or the making of other distributions on, and upon our purchase, redemption, or 
other acquisition of, our Common Stock; and (i) the conditions or restrictions, if any, upon the creation of 
indebtedness or upon the issuance of any additional stock. 

Under our Certificate of Incorporation, the affirmative vote of not less than 75% of the total voting 
power of all outstanding shares of our stock is required to approve our merger or consolidation with, or the 
sale of all or substantially all of our assets or business to, any other corporation (other than a corporation 
50% or more of the common stock of which we own), if such corporation or its affiliates singly or in the 
aggregate own or control directly or indirectly 5% or more of our outstanding shares of Common Stock, 
unless the transaction is approved by our Board of Directors prior to the acquisition by such corporation or 
its affiliates of ownership or control of 5% or more of our outstanding shares of Common Stock. In 
addition, our Certificate of Incorporation provides for a classified Board of Directors under which one-third 
of the members are elected annually for three-year terms. The supermajority voting requirement for certain 
mergers and consolidations and our classified Board of Directors may have the effect of delaying, 
deferring or preventing a change in control of the Company. 

On August 25, 1999, we filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form 8-A with respect to 
Rights (defined below) to purchase our Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value per 
share $0.01 (the “Preferred Shares”). On August 20, 1999, our Board of Directors declared a dividend 
distribution of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of our Common 
Stock. The dividend was payable to the stockholders of record on September 3, 1999 (the “Record Date”). 
One Right will also be issued with each share of Common Stock issued thereafter until the Distribution 

httn*//nnxnxi c p r  on~i/Arrhiv~s/~rl~ar/rlata/19745/0O0095~15206009475/123022de424b5.htm 10/1/2007 



e424b5 Page 38 of 49 
Date (defined below) and, in certain circumstances, with each share of Common Stock issued after 

the Distribution Date. Except as set forth below, each Right, when it becomes exercisable, entitles the 
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registered holder to purchase from the Company one-fiftieth of a Preferred Share at a price of $54.56 (the 
“Purchase Price”), subject to adjustment. The description and terms of the Rights and the definition of the 
“Distribution Date” are set forth in a Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”) between the Corporation 
and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., successor to BankBoston, N.A., as Rights Agent (the “Rights 
Agent”), dated as of August 20, 1999. The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date and will 
expire at the close of business on August 20, 2009, unless earlier redeemed by the Company. The 
Registration Statement on Form 8-A, and the Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit, are 
incorporated herein by reference. This description of the Rights, the Rights Agreement and the Preferred 
Shares is in all respects subject to and qualified by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 8-A, 
the Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit and the applicable provisions of our Certificate of 
Incorporation and our Bylaws. 

The Preferred Shares purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each 
Preferred Share will be entitled to a minimum preferential quarterly dividend payment equal to the greater 
of (i) $13.00 per share (or $0.26 per 1150th of a Preferred Share) and (ii) an aggregate dividend per share 
of 50 times (subject to adjustment) the dividend declared per share of Common Stock. In the event of 
liquidation, the holders of the Preferred Shares will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation 
payment of $900.00 per share (or $18.00 per 1/50th of a Preferred Share); thereafter, and after the 
holders of the Common Stock receive a liquidation payment of $18.00 per share, the holders of the 
Preferred Shares and the holders of the Common Stock will share the remaining assets in the ratio of 50 
(subject to adjustment) to one for each Preferred Share and share of Common Stock so held, respectively 
In the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction in which Common Stock is exchanged, each 
Preferred Share will be entitled to receive 50 times (subject to adjustment) the amount received per share 
of Common Stock. The holders of Preferred Shares will be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a 
vote of the Common Stock (with the Preferred Shares being entitled to 50 votes per share). In the event 
that the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Preferred Shares is equivalent to six full quarterly 
dividends or more, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall have the right, voting as a class, to elect two 
directors in addition to the directors elected by the holders of the Common Stock until all cumulative 
dividends on the Preferred Shares have been paid through the last quarterly dividend payment date. 
These rights are protected by customary anti-dilution provisions. Because of the nature of the dividend, 
liquidation and voting rights of the Preferred Shares, the value of a one-fiftieth interest in a Preferred 
Share purchasable upon the exercise of a Right should approximate the value of one share of Common 
Stock. The Rights approved by the Board of Directors of the Company were designed to protect the value 
of the outstanding Common Stock in the event of an unsolicited attempt by an acquirer to take over the 
Company in a manner or on terms not approved by the Board of Directors. The Rights were not intended 
to prevent a takeover of the Company at a fair price and should not interfere with any merger or business 
combination approved by the Board of Directors. The Rights have no dilutive effect, nor do they affect 
reported earnings per share or change the way in which the Common Stock is traded. 

The Rights may have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of the 
Company deemed undesirable by the Board of Directors. If a person or group attempts to acquire the 
Company on terms or in a manner not approved by the Board of Directors, then the Rights may cause 
such person’s or group’s ownership interest to become substantially diluted unless the offer includes, as a 
condition to the acquisition, a provision that the Rights will be purchased, redeemed or otherwise 
effectively eliminated. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE DEBT SECURITIES 

The following description of the terms of the debt securities sets forth general terms that may apply to 
the debt securities and provisions of the indentures that will govern the debt securities. The description is 
not intended to be complete, as we will describe the particular terms of any debt securities in the 
prospectus supplement relating to those debt securities. 

The debt securities will be either our senior debt securities or our subordinated debt securities. The 
senior debt securities will be issued under an indenture between us and the trustee. We refer to this 
indenture as the “senior indenture.” The subordinated debt securities will be issued under an indenture 
between us and the trustee. We refer to this indenture as the “subordinated indenture” and to the senior 
indenture and the subordinated indenture together as the “indentures.” 
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indentures are exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. Parenthetical 
section references under this heading are references to sections to each of the indentures unless we 
indicate otherwise. 

General Terms 

Neither indenture limits the amount of debt securities that we may issue. (Section 301). Each 
indenture provides that debt securities may be issued up to the principal amount authorized by us from 
time to time. The senior debt securities will be unsecured and will have the same rank as all of our other 
unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The subordinated debt securities will be unsecured and will be 
subordinated to all senior indebtedness as set forth below. None of our subsidiaries will have any 
obligations with respect to the debt securities. Therefore, our rights and the rights of our creditors, 
including holders of senior debt securities and subordinated debt securities, to participate in the assets of 
any subsidiary will be subject to the prior claims of the creditors of our subsidiaries. 

We may issue the debt securities in one or more separate series of senior debt securities and/or 
subordinated debt securities. (Section 301). The prospectus supplement relating to the particular series of 
debt securities being offered will specify the particular amounts, prices and terms of those debt securities. 
These terms may include: 

the title of the debt securities and the series in which the debt securities will be included: 

the authorized denominations and aggregate principal amount of the debt securities; 

the date or dates on which the principal and premium, if any, are payable; 

the rate or rates per annum at which the debt securities will bear interest, if there is any interest, or 
the method or methods of calculating interest and the date from which interest will accrue; 

the place or places where the principal of and any premium and interest on the debt securities will 
be payable; 

the dates on which the interest will be payable and the corresponding record dates; 

the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which, and the terms and conditions on 
which, the debt securities may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option; 

any obligation to redeem, repay or purchase debt securities pursuant to any sinking fund or 
analogous provisions or at the option of a holder; 

the portion of the principal amount of the debt securities payable upon declaration of the 
acceleration of the maturity of the debt securities; 

the person to whom any interest on any debt security will be payable if other than the person in 
whose name the debt security is registered on the applicable record date; 

any events of default, covenants or warranties applicable to the debt securities; 

if applicable, provisions related to the issuance of debt securities in book-entry form; 

the currency, currencies or composite currency of denomination of the debt securities; 

the currency, currencies or composite currencies in which payments on the debt securities will be 
payable and whether the holder may elect payment to be made in a different currency; 
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whether and under what conditions we will pay additional amounts to holders of the debt securities; 

the terms and conditions of any conversion or exchange provisions in respect of the debt securities; 

the terms pursuant to which our obligation under the indenture may be terminated through the 
deposit of money or government obligations; 

whether the debt securities will be subordinated in right of payment to senior indebtedness and the 
terms of any such subordination; and 

any other specific terms of the debt securities not inconsistent with the applicable indenture. 
(Section 301). 
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Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, the debt securities will not be listed 
on any securities exchange. 

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement specifies otherwise, we will issue the debt securities in 
fully registered form without coupons. If we issue debt securities of any series in bearer form, the 
applicable prospectus supplement will describe the special restrictions and considerations, including 
special offering restrictions and special federal income tax considerations, applicable to those debt 
securities and to payment on and transfer and exchange of those debt securities. 

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations 

We may issue the debt securities as original issue discount securities, bearing no interest or bearing 
interest at a rate, which, at the time of issuance, is below market rates, to be sold at a substantial discount 
below their principal amount. We will describe some special U.S. federal income tax and other 
considerations applicable to any debt securities that are issued as original issue discount securities in the 
applicable prospectus supplement. We encourage you to consult with your own competent tax and 
financial advisors on these important matters. 

Payment, Registration, Transfer and Exchange 

Subject to any applicable laws or regulations, we will make payments on the debt securities at a 
designated office or agency, unless the applicable prospectus supplement otherwise sets forth. At our 
option, however, we may also make interest payments on the debt securities in registered form: 

by checks mailed to the persons entitled to interest payments at their registered addresses; or 

by wire transfer to an account maintained by the person entitled to interest payments as specified in 
the security register. 

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement otherwise indicates, we will pay any installment of interest 
on debt securities in registered form to the person in whose name the debt security is registered at the 
close of business on the regular record date for that installment of interest. (Section 307). If a holder 
wishes to receive a payment by wire transfer, the holder should provide the paying agent with written wire 
transfer instructions at least 15 days prior to the payment date. 

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement otherwise sets forth, debt securities issued in registered 
form will be transferable or exchangeable at the agency we may designate from time to time. Debt 
securities may be transferred or exchanged without service charge, other than any tax or other 
governmental charge imposed in connection with the transfer or exchange. (Section 305). 

Book-Entry Procedures 

The applicable prospectus supplement for each series of debt securities will state whether those debt 
securities will be subject to the following provisions. 

Unless debt securities in physical form are issued, the debt securities will be represented by one or 
more fully-registered global certificates, in denominations of $1,000 or any integral multiple of $1,000. 
Each global certificate will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), and 
registered in its name or in the name of Cede & Co. or other nominee of DTC. No holder of debt securities 
initially issued as a global certificate will be entitled to receive a certificate in physical form, except as set 
forth below. 

DTC has advised us that: 

DTC is: 
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a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to Section 17A of the Exchange Act. 

DTC holds securities for DTC participants and facilitates the settlement of securities transactions 
between DTC participants through electronic book-entry transfers, thereby eliminating the need for 
physical movement of certificates. 

DTC participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing 
corporations. 

Access to DTC’s book-entry system is also available to others, such as banks, brokers and dealers, 
and trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a DTC participant, either directly or indirectly. 

Holders that are not DTC participants but desire to purchase, sell or otherwise transfer ownership of, 
or other interests in, the debt securities may do so only through DTC participants. In addition, holders of 
the debt securities will receive all distributions of principal and interest from the trustee through DTC 
participants. Under the rules, regulations and procedures creating and affecting DTC and its operation, 
DTC is required to make book-entry transfers of debt securities among DTC participants on whose behalf 
it acts and to receive and transmit distributions of principal of, and interest on, the debt securities. Under 
the book-entry system, holders of debt securities may experience some delay in receipt of payments, 
since the trustee will forward such payments to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, and DTC, in turn, will 
forward the payments to the appropriate DTC participants. 

DTC participants will be responsible for distributions to holders of debt securities, which distributions 
will be made in accordance with customary industry practices. Although holders of debt securities will not 
have possession of the debt securities, the DTC rules provide a mechanism by which those holders will 
receive payments and will be able to transfer their interests. Although the DTC participants are expected 
to convey the rights represented by their interests in any global security to the related holders, because 
DTC can act only on behalf of DTC participants, the ability of holders of debt securities to pledge the debt 
securities to persons or entities that are not DTC participants or to otherwise act with respect to the debt 
securities may be limited due to the lack of physical certificates for the debt securities. 

Neither we nor the trustee under the applicable indenture nor any agent of either of them will be 
responsible or liable for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial 
ownership interests in the debt securities or for supervising or reviewing any records relating to such 
beneficial ownership interests. Since the only “holder of debt securities,” for purposes of the indenture, will 
be DTC or its nominee, the trustee will not recognize beneficial holders of debt securities as “holders of 
debt securities,” and beneficial holders of debt securities will be permitted to exercise the rights of holders 
only indirectly through DTC and DTC participants. DTC has advised us that it will take any action 
permitted to be taken by a holder of debt securities under the indenture only at the direction of one or 
more DTC participants to whose accounts with DTC the related debt securities are credited. 

All payments we make to the trustee will be in immediately available funds and will be passed through 
to DTC in immediately available funds. 

Physical certificates will be issued to holders of a global security, or their nominees, if: 

DTC advises the trustee in writing that DTC is no longer willing, able or eligible to discharge 
properly its responsibilities as depository and we are unable to locate a qualified successor; or 

We decide in our sole discretion to terminate the book-entry system through DTC. (Section 305). 

In such event, the trustee under the applicable indenture will notify all holders of debt securities through 
DTC participants of the availability of such physical debt securities. Upon surrender by DTC of a definitive 
global note representing the debt securities and receipt of instructions for reregistration, the trustee will 
reissue the debt securities in physical form to holders or their nominees. (Section 305). 
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upon compliance with the requirements set forth in the applicable indenture. 

No service charge will be imposed for any registration of transfer or exchange, but payment of a sum 
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge may be required. (Section 305). 
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Each indenture generally permits a consolidation or merger between us and another U.S. corporation. 
It also permits the sale or transfer by us of all or substantially all of our property and assets and the 
purchase by us of all or substantially all of the property and assets of another corporation. These 
transactions are permitted if: 

the resulting or acquiring corporation, if other than us, assumes all of our responsibilities and 
liabilities under the indenture, including the payment of all amounts due on the debt securities and 
performance of the covenants in the indenture; and 

immediately after the transaction, no event of default exists. (Section 801). 

Even though each indenture contains the provisions described above, we are not required by either 
indenture to comply with those provisions if we sell all of our property and assets to another 
U.S. corporation if, immediately after the sale, that corporation is one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. 
(Section 803). 

If we consolidate or merge with or into any other corporation or sell all or substantially all of our assets 
according to the terms and conditions of each indenture, the resulting or acquiring corporation will be 
substituted for us in the indentures with the same effect as if it had been an original party to the 
indentures. As a result, the successor corporation may exercise our rights and powers under each 
indenture, in our name or in its own name and we will be released from all our liabilities and obligations 
under each indenture and under the debt securities. (Section 802). 

Events of Default, Notice and Certain Rights on Default 

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, an “event of default,” when used 
with respect to any series of debt securities, means any of the following: 

failure to pay interest on any debt security of that series for 30 days after the payment is due; 

failure to pay the principal of or any premium on any debt security of that series when due; 

failure to deposit any sinking fund payment on debt securities of that series when due; 

failure to perform any other covenant in the applicable indenture that applies to debt securities of 
that series for 90 days after we have received written notice of the failure to perform in the manner 
specified in the indenture; 

default under any debt, including other series of debt securities, or under any mortgage, lien or 
other similar encumbrance, indenture or instrument, including the indentures, which secures any 
debt, and which results in acceleration of the maturity of an outstanding principal amount of debt 
greater than $50 million, unless the acceleration is rescinded, or the debt is discharged, within 
10 days after we have received written notice of the default in the manner specified in the indenture; 

certain events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization; or 

any other event of default that may be specified for the debt securities of that series when that 
series is created. (Section 501). 

If an event of default for any series of debt securities occurs and continues, the trustee or the holders 
of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of the series may declare 
the entire principal of all the debt securities of that series to be due and payable immediately. If a 
declaration occurs, the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt 
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securities of that series can, subject to certain conditions, rescind the declaration. (Section 502). 

The prospectus supplement relating to each series of debt securities which are original issue discount 
securities will describe the particular provisions that relate to the acceleration of maturity of a portion of the 
principal amount of that series when an event of default occurs and continues. 

An event of default for a particular series of debt securities does not necessarily constitute an event of 
default for any other series of debt securities issued under either indenture. 
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Each indenture requires us to file an officers’ certificate with the trustee each year that states that 
certain defaults do not exist under the terms of the indenture. The trustee will transmit by mail to the 
holders of debt securities of a series notice of any default. 

Other than its duties in the case of a default, a trustee is not obligated to exercise any of its rights or 
powers under an indenture at the request, order or direction of any holders, unless the holders offer the 
trustee indemnification satisfactory to the trustee. (Section 603). If indemnification satisfactory to the 
trustee is provided, then, subject to certain other rights of the trustee, the holders of a majority in principal 
amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series may, with respect to the debt securities of that 
series, direct the time, method and place of: 

conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee; or 

exercising any trust or power conferred upon the trustee. (Section 512). 

The holder of a debt security of any series will have the right to begin any proceeding with respect to 
the applicable indenture or for any remedy only if: 

the holder has previously given the trustee written notice of a continuing event of default with 
respect to that series; 

the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that 
series have made a written request of, and offered reasonable indemnification to, the trustee to 
begin the proceeding; 

the trustee has not started the proceeding within 60 days after receiving the request; and 

the trustee has not received directions inconsistent with the request from the holders of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series during those 60 days. 
(Section 507). 

The holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of any series of debt securities, 
by notice to the trustee for that series, may waive, on behalf of the holders of all debt securities of that 
series, any past default or event of default with respect to that series and its consequences. (Section 51 3). 
A default or event of default in the payment of the principal of, or premium or interest on, any debt security 
and certain other defaults may not, however, be waived. (Sections 508 and 513). 

Modification of the Indentures 

We, as well as the trustee for a series of debt securities, may enter into one or more supplemental 
indentures, without the consent of the holders of any of the debt securities, in order to: 

evidence the succession of another corporation to us and the assumption of our covenants by a 
successor: 

add to our covenants or surrender any of our rights or powers; 

add additional events of default for any series; 

http://www.sec.g;ov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/000095O 15206009475/123022de424b5 .htm 10/1/2007 
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Exhibit F 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLlCATiON OF 3 
CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 1 
FOR APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF ) P.S.C. DOCKET NO. 86- 
CQMMON STOCK ANDtOR DEBT SECURITIES 1 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporatior (hereinafkr sometimes called 

"Chesapeake" or "Applicant") pursuant to 26 Del. C. sedion 215, makes the 

following application for approval by the Delaware Public Sewice Commission 

( ' C ~ m m i ~ ~ i o d ' )  of the issuance of up to $4C,QB0,000 ("$419 million"; tt7 commor: stock 

and/or debt securities In suppon ~f this Application Chesapeake states the 

folk?wing 

i Chesapeake IS a 5eiawarE ~ub l ic  uvh+ with, its pirn21p2 

business at 309 Silver ~ a k e  Bouievara, Sower, Deiaware 29904. Ail 

cm-m."cbcitzns should be audresseG to Agplicant at the iaiiowin~ adaress, 

krrantrori Jennifer k Slausius. Manager Q" Pricing a x  Fgeggllatior, 250 Sauti? 

3ueen Street. E.:, Bsx :765 ZUVW Delaware 99904 o: a; the i~ltgwmg e-mail 

address' Fclausius@cnpk.com. TDE respesrive  erep phone raumbe: arid facsimile 

num~er ars 302.736.781 8 and 302,734.50' c .  

2. Cocinsei for h e  Applicant IS YVil/iam A. ihm" Esquire Parkowski, 

Guerke c% Swayze P.D.., 116 West Water Street, P.G. Box 538, 3)rsver, Delaware 

7 99i33. Correspondence a m  3tner communications zoncerning tqis ApDlication 
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6.  For any securities that are issued, Chesapeake expects to Litiiize the 

proceeds tc: repay shm-term debt, which is baing utilized to temporarily finance the 

Compzny’s capitati expenditure program. For the ten-year period from Januaqt ? 

1996 through December 3?,  2005, the Company’s average annuai capital 

expenditures were $18.8 million. The Company’s capital expendiiures budget for 

2006 is 554.4 miiiion. 

In terms of c o r m ”  stock, the Company’s articies 04 incorporation 

authorize the Company to issue up to 12,0tl5:000 shares of commrsr, stock. h y  

common stsck issued under the shelf registration statement, after taking into 

account the shares os’ common stock of the Company that have heretofore k n n  

issuecl, would be wall beiow the  authorized amount. in this appiication, i h s  

Company is requesting authority to issue zc”on stock of up to $40 mi1hor-t. 

- 
1 .  

e. In terms of debt, the form d the securities has not been determined. 

The Company has historically completed privats piscementa of unsftwred Senior 
-. h~tez.. 1 ne Company desires tine fiexibility of issc;ing up tc $ 4 G  miiiior; of iong-term 

aebr; in t h e  form that is mas: advantageous Tram t h e  Crimpany’s sianripoint in 

regards tc k r m s  and conditions, as we][ as, cost. The pcissibie farms of debt 

;nciudgl bki; arc nof iimiteb to: unseeerreec! Senior Notes, public de5: securities issu& 

~ncies E oraspeciils serppkment and the snelf registration statementj and tax-sxenrpt 

3Eancing. Regjardbjess of the i o r r  c;f the debt securities, the  Company is  requesttng 

authority tc issue debt securities that nave a cotrporr rate of no mors than 7 parcent. 

8. is summary, t h e  Company is requesting authority from the 

3 
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Commission to issue c~rnmon stock andlor deb: securities irr at-, amount nat tc 

exceeti $40 miliron 

10 A copy of t h e  opinion of counsel for Chesapaake with respec: t~ the 

/egait& of the proposed issuance of common stock andlor debt securities IS attached 

nerera as Attachment A 

i d  
I i Attack& nereto 2s Atiachment B ana incorporated hereiri b$ reference 

IS 3 schedule setting forth Chesapeake's balance shaet and income statevent for 

the twelve (12) months ended June 30, 2Q06, before tne issuance of the c c m "  

stock and/or deb: securities. Attachment 5 also shows tne impac or  the aamnce 

meet and income statement under three assumptions (a; the issuance 3f 

$46 900.000 of common stock, at a market price of $33.00 per share less at? 

Mimated discounr of 5 percent (Scenaric 1) (6) the issiiance a" new aeSt ir; the 

amoilnt af 54G,U00,00F at a currmt market interest rate oq E.5C percen? {for 

ue7sez:ure-eii Senior Nates wrth terms and conditions comparable tc the C s n ~ a n y s  

oiirsxmding unsecure6 Senior katesl (Scenario 2) ,  and : z r  tne Issuance 9 

$22 OOfi,Oc)5 of neb aebf at a curreen: market interest :ate tri 6.5C oarcant ifx 

unsecdred Senior Notes with terms anr: conditions comparabk tr, the Coanparrys 

z w " x n g  unsecured Senior Notes) and $Zi2,O9O.0OC a' z c m m ~ r  s t o ~ ~  at E 

price of $35.90 pe: share less an estimafea drseoun; ai 5 parzent (Scenasic 

3;. A&taciimen'r €3 is berng presanreo to ~llusrrate the poxenfiar range 3f tne imc,ac? or 

%ha Sompanp's earnings and sapkar' structure as a reesult 0" r~surng  tne secerrrtres 

under the assumptions provided i t i  the  various S C S ~ ~ F ~ O S  
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12. Attached nerem as Attachment C is ii copy of Chesapeake's annual 

report on Form 'IO-K for the calenda: year ended December 37, 2005 Attached 

hereto as Attachment 5 is Chesapeake's most recent quarterly rsport on form 4 0-Q. 

A!so attached hereto as Attachment E is a copy of Chesapeake's shelf registratrot; 

statement. AI! three reports have been Tiled witn the  Securities and Exchange 

Gommissior 

15 Pursuant to the Commissions Mrnimum Fiiing Reauirt"nrs - PaE 

(D>$ attached hereto and incorporated herein by rewenee are the i ~ l i o ~ ~ g  

schedules: 

a> 

c) 

5 
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VVHEREFBRE, Chesapeake prays as follows: 

P. * That the  Commission file this Appiicatior! and 

make such investigation in this matter as it 

deems necessary; 

That the Commission authorizes t h e  Company to 

issue up to $4G:000,000 CI~ common stock and/or 

debt securities consistent with the terms and 

conditions described herein. 

e. 
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CHESAPEAKE UTI LlTi ES CORPOFiATI 0 N 

By: $&(&I )(: !&%&pi/ 
Beth w Cooper ' 
Vice President, Treasilrer, and Corporate 
Secretary 

PARKOWSK!, GLfERKE & SWAY'E PA.. 
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DATED: October 16: 2006 '- I' 

STATE OF DELAWARE 1 

COUNTY OF KENT 1 

BE iT FEMEMSERED that on this 16th day oTilcU3beri 2005, personally appeared 

before me, a notary public forthe State and County aforesaid, Beth W~ Cooper, who being 

insofar as t h e  Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation states facts, and insofar as 

those facts are within ner persmal knowiedge, tney are true; and insofar as those fa& are 

not withra? her personal knowledge, she beiieves them to be true; and tha t tk  atiachments 

. I  

'-- 
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Exhibit F 

ORDER NO. 7565 

AND NOW, rc-wit this 31"' day of 3ctober, 2006: 

and 
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3 ,  Thaz Chesapeake Utilities Z3rporationr shall, no l a t e r  than 

flfteeen !15) day6 afcer t h e  issuance 9f a-y LndebtedTiess 5z equiEy mder 

the  approval herein grznted, fils with the Zonmdssiun a repom describins 

r a t io s ,  and ari cqiriion cf caunsel. that sai6 issuance was made f o r  a 

prcptr p u q o s e ,  5 3  accordance with l a w ,  and consistenr d r , h   ne authaziil; 

gracted .herein. 

3 
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